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AFFIDAVIT OF CHRIS LEWIS
Sworn December 2379, 2024

I, CHRIS LEWIS, of the City of Calgary, in the Province of Alberta, MAKE OATH
AND SAY THAT:

1. I am the sole Director, Executive Chairman, and Chief Executive Officer of Cleo Energy
Corp. (“Cleo”). As such I have personal knowledge of the matters herein deposed to, except
where stated to be based upon information and belief, in which case I verily believe same

to be true.

2. I am authorized to swear this Affidavit as corporate representative of Cleo.
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3. In preparing this Affidavit, I consulted with Cleo’s management and their legal, financial
and other advisors. I also reviewed Cleo’s business records relevant to these proceedings
and have satisfied myself that [ am possessed of sufficient information and knowledge to

swear this Affidavit.

4. All references to dollar amounts contained herein are to Canadian Dollars unless otherwise
stated.

RELIEF REQUESTED

5. This Affidavit is sworn in support of an Application by Cleo for Orders under the

Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, RSC 1985, ¢ B-3, as amended (the “BIA”) among other
things:

(a) extending the 30 day period, ending January 7, 2025, within which Cleo is required
under section 50.4(8) of the BIA to file a proposal by an additional 45 days to
February 21, 2025 (such period, as extended from time to time under section
50.4(9) of the BIA, being the “Stay Period”, and the date on which the Stay Period
expires being the “Expiry Date”);

(b) declaring that Cleo’s legal counsel, Gowling WLG (Canada) LLP (“Gowling”),
Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc. (“A&M?”) in its capacity as proposal trustee of Cleo
(the “Proposal Trustee”) and the Proposal Trustee’s legal counsel (collectively,
the “Administrative Professionals™), shall have the benefit of a security and
charge (the “Administration Charge”) on all of Cleo’s present and after-acquired
property (the “Property”) as security for their reasonable professional fees and
disbursements incurred both before and after the granting of the requested Order,
which Administrative Charge shall be in an amount not to exceed $350,000, and
authorizing the payment to the Administrative Professionals of their reasonable fees
and disbursements incurred in connection with the preparation for the herein

proposal proceedings (the “Proposal Proceedings”);
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(d)

(e)
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approving a secured interim financing facility provided under a loan agreement (the
“Interim Financing Agreement”) Cleo is seeking to enter into with an interim

lender (the “Interim Lender”);

declaring that the Property is subject to a security and charge (the “Interim
Lender’s Charge”) in favour of the Interim Lender to secure the payment and
performance of the Interim Financing Facility and Cleo’s indebtedness, liabilities

and obligations under the Interim Financing Agreement;

to the extent that any Emergency Advance (as defined herein) has been funded by
any advances under the Interim Financing Facility prior to the date of the Order
being applied for hereunder, authorizing Cleo to repay such advances from any

amounts received by Cleo subsequent to the Filing Date;

declaring that the Property is subject to a security and charge in favour of the
directors and officers of Cleo (all such directors and officers being collectively
referred to as the “Directors”) over the Property to indemnify the Directors against
obligations and liabilities that they may incur as Directors of Cleo after the
commencement of the Proposal Proceedings in an amount not to exceed $250,000
(the “D&O Charge”), other than obligations and liabilities incurred as a result of

their gross negligence or wilful misconduct;

declaring that the Administration Charge, Interim Financing Charge and D&O
Charge (collectively, the “BIA Charges”) are priority charges that rank ahead of
any and all charges, security interests, liens, trusts, deemed trusts and encumbrances
against the Property, including liens and trusts created by federal and provincial
legislation, and that the B4 Charges rank, as between themselves, in the following

order of priority:
a) first, the Administration Charge;
b) second, the Interim Lender’s Charge; and

c) third, the D&O Charge;



(h)

@
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authorizing Cleo to pay such amounts as it, in consultation with the Proposal
Trustee, deems necessary to Persons on account of debts that arose prior to the
Filing Date, in order to operate, collect, realize and dispose of the Property in an
orderly manner, provided that such payments are contemplated by the Cash Flow
Forecast (as defined below) filed by the Proposal Trustee under section 50(6) of the
BIA;

declaring that:

a) in accordance with section 69(1) of the BIA4, during the period between the
Filing Date and the Expiry Date: (A) no creditor has any remedy against
Cleo or the Property, or shall commence or continue any action, execution
or other proceedings for the recovery of a claim provable in bankruptcy; (B)
no provision of a security agreement between Cleo and a secured creditor
that provides, in substance, that on Cleo’s insolvency, the default by Cleo
of an obligation under the security agreement, or the filing by Cleo of the
NOI (as defined below), Cleo ceases to have rights to use or deal with
Property secured under the security agreement as it would otherwise have,

has any force or effect; and

b) in accordance with section 65.1(1) of the B/A but subject to section 65.1(4),
no person may terminate or amend any agreement with Cleo or claim an
accelerated payment, or a forfeiture of the term, under any agreement with
Cleo by reason only that Cleo is insolvent or a NOI has been filed with

respect to Cleo; and

declaring that during the Stay Period, all persons having oral or written agreements
with Cleo or statutory or regulatory mandates for the supply of goods and/or
services are hereby restrained until further Order of this Court from discontinuing,
altering, interfering with or terminating the supply of such goods or services as may
be required by Cleo, provided in each case that the normal prices or charges for
such goods or services received after the date of this Order are paid by Cleo in

accordance with normal payment practices of Cleo or other practices as may be
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agreed upon by the supplier or service provider and each of Cleo and the Proposal

Trustee, or as may be ordered by this Honourable Court;

(k) granting a stay of proceedings during the Stay Period of any claims against Chris

Lewis in my capacity as a director and officer of Cleo.

M requiring that any Person that has collected, realized, seized or taken possession of
any money or other Property subsequent to the Filing Date without the consent of
the Proposal Trustee or the leave of this Honourable Court promptly deliver or

surrender to Cleo such money or other Property.
DESCRIPTION OF CLEO’S BUSINESS AND BACKGROUND
The Company

6. Cleo is an Alberta corporation with its head office located at 200 — 117 8™ Avenue
Southwest Calgary, Alberta T2P 1B4 (the “Head Office”) having been incorporated
pursuant to the laws of Alberta in 2016. Cleo’s field office is located in Shorncliffe,
Alberta. Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is a copy of the Alberta corporate search for Cleo.

7. Cleo’s shares are held entirely by its parent corporation Chimera Management Group Ltd.,

a holding corporation. Cleo does not own shares in any other corporation.
The Business

8. Cleo is a privately owned oil and gas operator of medium gravity oil based in Calgary,
Alberta with operations throughout East Central Alberta. Cleo has been operating since its

incorporation in 2016.

0. Cleo has a number of oil wells and gas wells located primarily at the following oil and gas
fields throughout the Western Canada Sedimentary Basin in East Central Alberta (each a
“Field” and collectively, the “Fields”):

a) “Alliance”, which is located in the municipality of Flagstaff County.

b) “Atlee”, which is located in the municipality of Special Areas No. 2.
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c) “Enchant”, which is located in the municipality of Vulcan County.

d) “Fabyan”, which is located in the municipality of Wainwright.

e) “Kessler”, which is located in the municipality of Provost No. 52.

f) “Neutral Hills”, which is located in the municipality of Special Areas No.
4.

2) “Sedgewick”, which is located in the municipality of Flagstaff County.

h) “Shorncliffe” which is located in the municipality of Provost No. 52.

i) “Silver Heights”, which is located in the municipality of the County of
Paintearth No. 18.

) “Taber” which is located in the municipality of Taber.

k) “Hayter”, which is located in the municipality of Provost No. 52.

10.  Cleo’s revenue is primarily linked to the productivity of its wells, as well as the market

price of oil. Prior to Cleo’s much more recent financial circumstances set out below, Cleo
produced approximately 450 bbl/d. This is down from 640 bbl/d as of May 2024. At its
peak, Silver Heights was Cleo’s largest Field and was previously producing 250 bbl/d
around May 2024, while its second and third largest fields are Shorncliffe and Neutral
Hills, respectively producing 170 and 100 bbl/d around May 2024.

11. Cleo transports its oil product (the “Products’) from the Fields to a local sales point either
by pipeline or trucks. The Products are then sold to Trafigura Canada Limited
(“Trafigura”) as Cleo’s oil and gas marketer by way of a Commercial Agreement dated
July 12, 2024, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (the “Commercial Agreement”).
The revenue from the sale of Products to Trafigura is paid out to Cleo on the 25" of every

month, except when the payment date falls on a holiday, wherein it is paid on the 24 day.

12. Cleo has further sold natural gas to British Petroleum (“BP”) from time to time arising
from its Fabyan Field and last sold natural gas to BP in November, 2024. However, Cleo’s
natural gas production has more recently been shut in as a result of lower natural gas prices
and it being uneconomical for Cleo to produce gas. Cleo was producing approximately

$10,000 a month of revenue from the sale of natural gas and the costs to produce were
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higher than generated revenues. Cleo would consider restarting natural gas production in

the winter months of 2025 if it became economical for its cash flow and operations.
Employees

13. Cleo currently employs 13 full-time salaried employees and nine contract consultants. Four
employees and five consultants work primarily in Cleo’s Head Office in Calgary, Alberta,

while the reminder are based in the Fields.
14.  None of Cleo’s employees are unionized.

15.  Payroll for Cleo was more recently provided by ADP Canada, Payroll Services (“ADP”).
However, Cleo has recently been required to perform payroll functions on its own as Cleo
is currently indebted to ADP and ADP has been unwilling to provide Cleo services due to

Cleo’s outstanding accounts receivables to ADP.
EVENTS LEADING TO CLEO’S CURRENT CIRCUMSTANCES

16. Cleo has recently experienced a significant reduction in production levels due to several
factors, including: repair and maintenance required at several of its main producing Fields
causing shut ins of wells; shut in of its oil producing assets following verbal directives
issued to Cleo by the Alberta Energy Regulator (“AER”) due to gas conversation
requirements; thefts of vital copper cabling required to connect critical systems to power
generators at the Silver Heights Field, causing a complete shut in of Silver Heights, its

largest Field; and lower market pricing for oil, each as further described below.
Repairs and Maintenance

17. In or around Q1 of 2023, Cleo initiated a publicly marketed sales process for the sale of
the entire company and all of its assets. One potential buyer approached Cleo and a
potential transaction for the sale of Cleo’s business arose with an original planned closing
date at the end of June 2023. As a result of the potential sale, Cleo made the strategic
decision to cease dedicating capital into repairs and maintenance for its oil and gas assets

(“R&M”).
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In or around November 2023, Cleo came to the conclusion that no transaction would arise
with the aforementioned potential purchaser. At that time nine (9) months had transpired
where little to no R&M had been performed for Cleo’s assets. This long period of non
maintenance was detrimental to Cleo’s assets. For example, a pipeline break occurred at
the Neutral Hills Field in the summer of 2023 where no funds were previously expended
for R&M as a result of the pending sale of Cleo’s assets. This pipeline break reduced
production by 50 bbl/d and thereafter caused Cleo to incur emergency repair costs. Other

wells required similar maintenance at other fields and production of oil began to decline.

In December of 2023, Cleo made efforts to sell certain undeveloped minerals plus Fabyan
gas plant in an attempt to raise capital for R&M. Following a successful transaction
between Cleo and Durham Creek in this regard, Cleo was able to raise approximately
$5,000,000 to be used to support the payment of R&M and to pay outstanding property
taxes and other vendor payables. Cleo then entered into agreements with Mantl Canada
Inc. (“Mantl”) as material supplier and Amped Energy Services Ltd. (“Amped”) as R&M
provider to provide R&M for certain of Cleo’s wells and reactivate certain other
deactivated wells. Following April, 2024, as a result of further cash flow constraints, Cleo
was unable to continue R&M for its assets. As a result, the company looked for further
funding sources to recommence its R&M program and, in July, 2024, entered into a
Prepayment Agreement with Trafigura attached hereto as Exhibit “C” (the “Prepayment
Agreement”) whereby Trafigura agreed to provide Cleo up to three loan tranches of up to
$1,000,000 per tranche for R&M. In exchange, Trafigura would have the right to setoff
matured amounts from the revenues generated by it selling Cleo’s Products. Trafigura is

owed $750,000 under the Prepayment Agreement.

Trafigura has currently extended a single tranche of $1,000,000, which was paid to Cleo
on August 1, 2024. Payments under the loan are made on a monthly basis in accordance
with a Payment Schedule created by Trafigura (the “Payment Schedule”). The Payment
Schedule is attached as Exhibit “ZZ”. The current monthly principal payment is $83,333.
Pursuant to the Commercial Agreement, Trafigura also deducts US$0.95/bbl transported.
The total amount deducted from Trafigura’s monthly payments under the Commercial

Agreement inclusive of both the principal payment under the Prepayment Agreement and
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the US$0.95/bbl under the Commercial Agreement is approximately $91,000, but varies

depending on the monthly production.

The provision of funds from Trafigura allowed Cleo to perform R&M to certain of its better
producing Fields, however many Fields still require R&M to this date.

A total of 64 of 105 producing wells have been shut in by Cleo as a result of needed R&M.
Cleo had been unable to raise additional capital to undertake these necessary mechanical

repairs contributing to a decline in production and revenue rate.

AER Curtailment

23.

24.

Cleo had previously experienced gas curtailment in its Silver Heights Field due to the shut
in of a jointly owned gas processing facility. This resulted in the dispute with Battle River
Energy Ltd. (“Battle River”), as detailed below. Upon the shut in of the gas processing
facility, Cleo was forced to shut in 75% of its Silver Heights production in March of 2021
to comply with Directive 060 regulations, causing the Silver Heights Field to reduce its
production levels from 350 bbl/d to 200 bbl/d. The gas processing facility was never
reactivated and Cleo has consistently worked to mitigate its gas conservation issues in the

Silver Heights Field since that time.

In or around September of 2024, Cleo attempted to reactivate and reperforate a certain well
at Silver Heights and a natural gas cap was inadvertently struck causing excess natural gas
to be released from what was intended to be an oil perforation. Cleo attempted to dispose
of the excess gas through flaring. Thereafter, as a result of a complaint made by a local
resident regarding the amount of flaring, the AER verbally directed Cleo on October 30,
2024 to significantly reduce its flaring at Silver Heights as the AER deemed Cleo’s flaring
levels too high (the “Verbal Directive”). This resulted in reduced production at Silver

Heights from 250 bbl/d to 100 bbl/d, and significantly curtailed Cleo’s revenues.

Injection Line Failure

25.

In or around November 12, 2024 a discharge line on an injection pump at the Silver Heights main

facility began to leak (the “Injection Line Failure) and was too large to patch. Consequently, the
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entire Silver Heights Field was shut in for six full days, while the line was repaired with new

spooling. This shut in caused a large amount of revenue lost at a critical time.

Thefts and Vandalism

26.

27.

28.

29.

Cleo experienced multiple incidents of vandalism in December 2023, whereby thieves
broke into locations at the Neutral Hills South and Kessler Fields to steal copper wiring.
As a result of these thefts, the company was required to shut in the fields and discontinued

production, as a result, losing ~75 barrels per day of production.

Following the Verbal Directive, and the Injection Line Failure, on December 6 and 7, 2024,
two days prior to the filing of the NOI, two thefts of vital copper power cabling occurred
at Silver Heights. The copper cabling connects ATCO sourced power to its Silver Height’s
oil and gas battery which powers the flow of oil and water back into Cleo’s pipeline system.
Without this power to the battery, Cleo cannot produce oil. The thefts required Cleo to shut
in all of the Silver Heights oil wells until necessary repairs are completed to bring Silver

Heights back into operations.

Cleo contacted the RCMP following the initial theft and had monitoring systems in place

thereafter. However, the secondary theft arose thereafter notwithstanding Cleo’s efforts.

Cleo is insured for the theft. I believe that the deductible is $50,000 and payout of a claim
is 90-120 days out.

Reduction in oil and gas revenues

30.

There has been a significant reduction in oil and gas prices since the month of September
2024, which has further exacerbated Cleo’s financial difficulties. The price of Western
Canada Select has gone from approximately 67.49 $US/bbl in July of 2024 to 54.39
$US/bbl during that time. These challenges have placed even further strain on Cleo’s
finances, causing monthly revenues to decrease further. Additionally, the price of AECO
Natural Gas has decreased dramatically over the course of 2024, from approximately

$1.75/mcf in January 2024 to $0.50/mcf in November of 2024.
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31. Cleo’s normal production levels and monthly revenue therefrom, and current production
levels and monthly revenue therefrom as a result of its financial difficulties, is provided for

in the chart below:

Operated ONe(;;lt-e 4| Normal Normal Current | Current
Oil Field Well P Production monthly ) monthly
Well production
Count (bbl/d) revenues revenues
Count
Alliance 4 0 15 $46,994 13 $36,000
Atlee 13 0 60 $80,555 0 $0
Enchant 19 0 Gas $11,223 Gas $7,225
Fabyan 495 112 Gas $67,396 Gas $0
Kessler 66 66 50 $95,000 0 $0
Nﬁ‘illtlrsal 246 45 130 $315,000 100 | $172,000
Sedgewick 21 0 85 $175,000 27 $70,000
Shorncliffe 159 102 150 $350,000 120 $250,000
Silver 77 3 255 $650,000 100 | $200,000
Heights
Taber 27 0 Gas $28,000 $1,500
Hayter 0 383 Shut in $0 Shut in $0
Totals | 4137 | 745 |$1,819,168.00 | 360 | $736,725
32. Cleo’s non operated wells are operated by the following operators:

a) Hayter’s are operated by Harvest Operations Corp. (“Harvest”);

b) Fabyan’s are operated by Axiom Oil & Gas, Canadian Natural Resources Limited
(“CNRL”) and others;

c) Shorncliffe’s are is operated by Harvest;
d) Neutral Hills’ are operated by Prairie Provident Resources;

e) Kessler’s are operated by Karve Energy and Fort Calgary Resources Ltd.
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33. In order to preserve Cleo’s business and make it financially viable, management has taken

a number of steps prior to December 8, 2024, including:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

€9)

(h)

(1)
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Reducing general and administrative expenses through the reduction of salaries of

both executive and Head Office based employees;
Terminating employees and consolidating employee positions at Head Office;

Restructuring Cleo’s employee retention plan starting with terminating all senior
management and Head Office-based retention allowances, and significantly

reducing all field employee retention program allowances;

In May of 2024, Cleo initiated a publicly marketed process to sell certain
underperforming assets to alleviate costs. These fields included Fabyan, Atlee and

Alliance;

Contacting potential sector related companies that are geographically, operationally
and strategically aligned of Cleo’s Fields in an effort to revive production through

asset consolidation and/or partnership;

Contacting Cleo’s secured lenders to attempt to raise additional capital in order to
effect the necessary R&M to restart normal production levels, including at Silver

Heights;

Shutting in marginal and non-profitable facilities, operations and cost centers, in an
effort to reduce the overall corporate lifting costs of the assets. This process was

started in Q2 2024 and the expected completion date was Q1 2025;

Initiating discussions of the sale of all of the Silver Heights and Sedgewick Fields
in exchange for the alleviation of vendor related debt and a cash component that
would have brought in a significant amount of working capital. These discussions

were put on hold following the vandalism of Silver Heights, referred to above;

Initiating discussions with various cryptocurrency mining companies in an effort to

increase revenue from producing its gas assets.
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35.

36.

37.

38.
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Despite Cleo’s efforts to reach profitability, Cleo continues to face financial difficulties

and 1s currently unable to meet its obligations as they become due.

In order to protect Cleo’s and its stakeholders’ interests, on December 8, 2024, Cleo filed
a Notice of Intention to Make a Proposal (“NOI”) pursuant to subsection 50.4(1) of the
BIA and appointed A&M as Proposal Trustee. The NOI was necessary to provide stability
to Cleo’s business and allow Cleo the chance to restructure, particularly as a result of the

unforeseen shutdown of Silver Heights due to the thefts referred to above.

I am advised by Gowling that as a result of the filing of the NOI, a stay of proceedings was
automatically triggered (the “Stay”) of all proceedings and enforcement against Cleo and
its assets for an initial period of thirty (30) days until January 7, 2025. A copy of the NOI
is attached as Exhibit “D”.

Prior to Cleo filing the NOI, Cleo had been communicating with Trafigura in the first week
of December regrading Cleo’s financial situation. Trafigura had reached out to Cleo on
December 3, 2024 to inquire as to why Cleo’s January nominations were lower in
comparison to previous months. Cleo had requested a meeting to discuss Cleo’s financial
circumstances, but a meeting with Trafigura had not occurred before the thefts described
above on December 6 and 7, 2024 and ultimately Cleo’s filing of the NOI on December §,
2024. A copy of the preceding email correspondence between Cleo and Trafigura between

December 3, 2024 and December 7, 2024 is attached Exhibit “AAA”.

Cleo, with the assistance of its professional advisors, intends to commence a sales and
investment solicitation process at the beginning in 2025 once its operations have stabilized
in order to canvass the market for interest in recapitalization Cleo, or alternatively, selling
Cleo’s business as a going concern, or further in the alternative, liquidating its assets
generally. Cleo further intends to use interim financing and cash flow generated during the
Stay Period to help bring back on certain of its wells to help increase its production levels
and cash flow. Cleo currently has expressions of interest for its assets from interested

parties and expects those parties will partake in a sales process.
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CURRENT STATUS OF CLEO

Financial Statements and Asset Value

39. A true copy of Cleo’s unaudited financial statements for the financial year ending
December 31, 2023 are attached hereto as Exhibit “E” (the “Financial Statements”).

Cleo’s current assets and liabilities are similar as provided for in the Financial Statements.

40. According to the Financial Statements, the book value of Cleo’s property was $22,012,000,
as of December 31, 2023, consisting of the following:

Nature Book Value
Cash and cash equivalents $2,505,000
Trade and other receivables $4,346,000
Other assets $61,000
Deposits and prepaid expenses $868,000
Due from related parties $790,000
Property, plant and equipment $7,200,000
Right-of-use asset $1,596,000
Due from related parties $4,646,000
Approximate Total: $22,012,000

41. According to the Financial Statements, as of December 31, 2023 Cleo had total liabilities

in the amount of $39,583,000, consisting of the following:

Nature Book Value

Lease obligations $381,000

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $20,928,000
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Current portion of contract liability $216,000
Current portion of long-term debt $4,401,000
Lease obligations $1,411,000
Contract liability $80,000
Decommissioning obligations $11,554,000
Shareholder loan $419,000
Long-term debt $193,000
Approximate Total: $39,583,000

42. Cleo’s top three producing Fields, Silver Heights, Neutral Hills and Shorncliffe have

proved developed producing (“PDP”) reserve values as follows as at January 1, 2023:

Field PDP Reserve (Before Tax) Cash Flows
Silver Heights $18,000,000 (net present value — 10%)
Neutral Hills $1,150,000 (net present value — 10%)
Shorncliffe $5,600,0000 (net present value — 10%)

PDP reserve values are calculations based on the net present value of future cash flows
from Cleo’s producing oil and gas assets, discounted at a rate equal to 10%. For example,
as set out above, the PDP value of Silver Heights is $18,000,000, which is based upon
Cleo’s most recent reserve report. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “BBB” is the
PDP reserve value schedule which was included in a PDP report prepared by Deloitte for
Cleo as of January 1, 2023. The total PDP for all assets in the report is approximately
$41,500,000. Those values remain approximately current as of the date of this affidavit,

with the exception of the Fabyan Field which sells gas and its value is currently
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approximately $3,500,000. I also believe that the Neutral Hills value in the report may be

undervalued as Cleo currently values it at approximately $6,500,000.

Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable

43.

As of December 7, 2024, Cleo had total accounts receivable of $1,609,659.09 and total
accounts payable of $17,684,633.29.

Cash Flow Forecast

44,

45.

46.

The 5-week Cash Flow Forecast (the “Cash Flow Forecast™) for Cleo commencing the
week ending December 13, 2024 and ending the week ending January 10, 2025 is attached
as Exhibit “F”. Cleo’s management team and their advisors have worked with the Proposal

Trustee to prepare the Cash Flow Forecast.

I am informed by Orest Konowalchuk of the Proposal Trustee that the Cash Flow Forecast

has been provided to the official receiver.

During the period covered by the Cash Flow Forecast, Cleo will incur general and
administrative expenses, operational expenses, payroll and benefit expenses, certain
royalty payments, and restructuring costs, including the professional fees and
disbursements. As illustrated in the Cash Flow Forecast, Cleo will require additional cash

to fund operations during the proposed proposal extension date.

Cash Management

47. Cleo maintains its bank accounts with Royal Bank of Canada (“RBC”) and will continue
to do so during the Proposal Proceedings.

Total Debt

48. Cleo has total debts of $24,102,898.00.

Secured Creditors
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49, Cleo has several secured creditors. As of December 14, 2024, Cleo owed a total debt of

approximately $6.7 million to these parties.
1992169 Alberta Ltd. (Rise Capital)

50. On or around June 22, 2023, Cleo entered into a purchase and sale agreement (the
“Purchase and Sale Agreement”) with 1992169 Alberta Ltd. o/a Rise Capital (“Rise”) in
order to obtain financing by selling and assigning to Rise certain accounts receivable.
Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “G” is a copy of the Purchase and Sale Agreement.
As of December 14, 2024, Cleo was indebted to Rise for approximately $2,785,000.

51. As set out in the Purchase and Sale Agreement, Rise has taken a security interest in all of

Cleo’s present and after acquired personal property pursuant to a general security

agreement,
Mantl Canada Inc.
52. On or around March 1, 2024, Cleo entered into a trade payable loan agreement and demand

promissory note (“Trade Agreement”) with Mantl Canada Inc. (“Mantl”) to secure a trade
payable loan for goods and services from third parties related to the specific reactivation
projects of Cleo, as referenced above. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “H” is a
copy of the Trade Agreement. As of December 14, 2024, Cleo was indebted to Mantl for
approximately $1,750,000.

53.  Mantl has taken a security interest in all of Cleo’s present and after-acquired personal
property pursuant to a general security agreement dated March 1, 2024 (the “Mantl GSA”).
Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “I” is a copy of the Mantl GSA.

Marco Simonelli

54. On or around May 11, 2023, Cleo granted an amended demand promissory note
(“Promissory Note”) to Marco Simonelli (“Simonelli”) in the principal amount of
$734,054.00 with an interest rate of 12% per annum. Attached hereto and marked as
Exhibit “J” is an unsigned copy of the Promissory Note. As of December 14, 2024, Cleo
was indebted to Simonelli for approximately $735,000.
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Simonelli has taken a security interest in all of Cleo’s present and after-acquired personal
property pursuant to a general security agreement dated December 31, 2018 (the
“Simonelli GSA”). Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “K” is a copy of the Simonelli
GSA.

2M7 Financial Solutions

56.

57.

On or around November 21, 2023, Cleo entered into a merchant cash advance agreement
(“Merchant Agreement”) with 2M7 Financial Solutions (“2M?7”) to, among other things,
receive a lump sum payment in exchange for a percentage of Cleo’s future receivables, all
as described in the Merchant Agreement. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “L” is a
copy of the Merchant Agreement. As of December 14, 2024, Cleo was indebted to 2M7
for approximately $500,000.

2MT7 has taken a security interest in all future receivables of Cleo as set out in the Merchant

Agreement.

Jody Weise / Marshalrae Holdings

58.

59.

In or around September 2022, Cleo entered into a line of credit agreement (as amended by
an amendment to secured line of credit agreement, the “Line of Credit Agreement’) with
Jody Weise / Marshal Rae Holdings (collectively “Marshal Rae”). Pursuant to the Line of
Credit Agreement, Marshal Rae established a revolving line of credit in the principal
amount of $500,000. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “M” is an unsigned copy of
the Line of Credit Agreement. As of December 14, 2024, Cleo was indebted to Marshal
Rae for approximately $500,000.

Marshal Rae has taken a security interest in all of Cleo’s present and after-acquired
personal property pursuant to a general security agreement dated September 13, 2022 (the
“Marshal Rae GSA”). Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “N” is a copy of the
Marshal Rae GSA.

Stride Capital Corp.
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On or around August 9, 2023, Cleo entered into an equipment financing and leasing
agreement (“Equipment Agreement”) with Stride Capital Corp. (“Stride”) in order to
finance and lease a number of equipment, as further detailed in the Equipment Agreement.
Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “O” is a copy of the Equipment Agreement. As of
December 14, 2024, Cleo was indebted to Stride for approximately $246,000.

As set out in the Equipment Agreement, Stride has taken a security interest in certain of

Cleo’s wells and equipment, as well as proceeds pursuant to a cross collateral agreement.

Arundel Capital Corporation

62.

63.

On or around May 23, 2024, Cleo entered into two lease agreements (‘“Lease
Agreements”) with Arundel Capital Corporation (“Arundel”) in order to lease certain
pieces of equipment, as detailed in the Lease Agreements. Attached hereto and marked
collectively as Exhibit “P” is a copy of the Lease Agreements. As of December 14, 2024,
Cleo was indebted to Arundel for approximately $128,000.

As set out in the Lease Agreement, Arundel has taken a security interest in the lease
equipment, proceeds, and any rental payment received on any sublease of the lease

equipment.

Stephen Ballard

64.

65.

Cleo entered into a loan agreement with Stephen Ballard (“Ballard”) in order to raise
additional capital for Cleo’s operations (the “Ballard Loan Agreement”). Attached hereto
and marked as Exhibit “Q” is a copy of the Ballard Loan Agreement. As of Decemberl4,
2024, Cleo was indebted to Ballard for approximately $51,000.

Ballard has taken a security interest in all of Cleo’s present and after-acquired personal
property pursuant to a general security agreement dated August 3, 2023 (the “Ballard
GSA”). Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “R” is a copy of the Ballard GSA.

Savanna Well Servicing Inc.
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Savanna Well Servicing Inc. and Fort McKay-Savanna Energy Services Limited
Partnership (collectively “Savanna”) obtained a judgment against Cleo. There remains

approximately $41,000 owing under the judgment.

In exchange for Savanna forbearing from enforcing on its judgment, Cleo agreed to grant
a security interest to Savanna in all of its present and after acquired personal property (the
“Savanna GSA”). Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “S” is a copy of the Savanna
GSA dated November 24, 2023.

Amped Energy Services Ltd.

68.

Amped Energy Services Ltd. (“Amped”) is owed approximately $400,000 for the
reactivation work it performed in conjunction with Mantle, as referenced. Attached hereto
as Exhibit “T” is an Amendment to Secured Line of Credit Agreement where reference to
Amped being added as a party to an “Agreement” is listed with Agreement not being
defined. I am advised by Gowling it will need to review and consult the credit documents

involving Amped to ascertain whether Amped is a secured creditor.

Personal Property Security Registrations

69.

I am informed by Gowling that the following parties have registered financing statements

against Cleo in the Personal Property Registry of Alberta (the “AB PPR”):

(a) Arundel

(b) Harvest Operations Corp.

(c) Summit

(d) Stride/2416924 Alberta Ltd.

(e) Savanna

6)) 1992169 Alberta Ltd./Oxygen Working Capital Corp.
(2) Ballard

(h) Morganick Blending Services Corp.

(1) Startex Refrigeration Services Ltd.

65484796\12



21-

() Vertex Professional Services Ltd.
(k) Mantl
M Simonelli

(m)  Marshal Rae

70. Copies of the AB PPR searches for financing statements registered against Cleo, current as

of the date indicated therein, is attached hereto as Exhibit “U”.
71. A summary chart of the AB PPR searches is attached hereto as Exhibit “V”.
Land Holdings

72. Cleo owns three parcels of real property in its name. Attached hereto and marked as

Exhibit “W?” is the applicable title searches for these parcels of land.
Leases

73. Cleo holds 750 freehold surface leases. Attached hereto as Exhibit “X” is a surface

property report of Cleo’s freehold surface leases dated December 19, 2024.

74. Cleo holds 271 Crown surface leases. Attached here to as Exhibit “Y” is a surface report

of Cleo’s Crown surface leases dated December 19, 2024.

75. Cleo has 291 Crown mineral subsurface leases for its oil and gas wells. Attached hereto as
Exhibit “Z” is a mineral lease index of Cleo’s crown subsurface leases dated December

19, 2024.

76.  Cleo has 183 freehold mineral subsurface leases for its oil and gas wells. Attached hereto
as Exhibit “AA” is a mineral lease index of Cleo’s freehold subsurface leases dated

December 19, 2024.
Royalty Agreements

77. Certain royalty agreements effect Cleo’s oil and gas revenues as follows:
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Keles Production Company Ltd. and Keles Engineering Ltd., entered into a gross
overriding royalty agreement dated December 1, 1987, in respect of assets owned
by Cleo, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “BB”. Royalties have been paid in

kind prior to and during Cleo’s ownership from its associated oil and gas assets.

Truco Resources Ltd., 300930 Alberta Ltd., Starboard Resources Inc., and Patrick
Marcotte, entered into an agreement dated January 1, 1988, in respect of assets
owned by Cleo, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “CC”. Appended as Schedule
“A” to said agreement is a gross overriding royalty agreement. Royalties have been
paid in kind prior to and during Cleo’s ownership from its associated oil and gas

assets.

There are 38 other gross overriding royalty agreements in relation to certain lands.
One such example is a royalty agreement between Penn West Petroleum, now
Obsidian Energy Ltd. (“Penn West”) and Canadian Natural Resources, entered into
a gross overriding royalty agreement dated January 2, 2001, in respect of assets
owned by Cleo, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “DD”. The royalties under this
agreement have been paid in kind prior to and during Cleo’s ownership from its

associated oil and gas assets.

Cleo entered into a gross overriding royalty agreement dated July 28, 2016 as
between Penn West, Penn West Petroleum Ltd. (collectively the “Penn West
Parties”), and Cleo, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “EE”. This royalty
agreement arose out of an Agreement of Purchase of Sale between the Penn West
Parties and Cleo dated June 2, 2016, attached hereto as Exhibit “FF”, the listing

schedules have been omitted for convenience of the length of the document.

78. Cleo entered into a gross overriding royalty agreement dated May 31, 2020 as between

B.LLL. Cree Nation Corp (“B.I.L. Cree”) and Cleo, which is attached hereto as Exhibit

“GG”, the listing schedules have been omitted for convenience of the length of the

document. This royalty agreement arose out of a Conveyance Agreement between those

parties dated May 31, 2021, attached hereto as Exhibit “HH”, the listing schedules have

been omitted for convenience of the length of the document.
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CRA and other Taxing Authorities

79.

80.

81.

As of December 14, 2024, the amount of $966,486 is owing to the Canada Revenue Agency
(“CRA”), which is comprised of $36,506.30 for unpaid payroll source deductions and
$929,979.70 in goods and services tax (“GST”).

As of December 14, 2024, the amount of $468,910 is owing by Cleo to the Government of

Alberta for corporate taxes.

Cleo owes property taxes to the following municipalities listed below:

Municipality Related Field Amount Owing
Municipality of Provost Shorncliff 963,149.00
Municipal of Wainwright  Fabyan 567,387.00
Flagstaff County Sedgewick 19,869.00
Vulcan County Enchant 3,236.00
Municipality of Taber Taber 22,853.00
1,576,494.00

Alberta Energy Regulator

82.

83.

&4.

The AER is owed approximately $393,000 as of December 14, 2024 for AER annual

administration fees and orphan fund levies.

Cleo has a $750,000 cash deposit with the AER provided as part of Cleo’s acquisition of
the Enchant and Taber Fields. It was previously communicated by the AER to Cleo that
this deposit would be returned to Cleo upon the reactivation of the assets at those fields
following the closing of the acquisition. The acquisitions did close but the AER has held

on to the deposit.

Cleo has a liability management rating (“LMR”) of .72. Its LMR is currently lower than
normal because of the amount of wells needed to be shut in by Cleo. During the prior sales

process referred to above in 2023, Cleo’s LMR was 1.03.
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85. In addition to the Verbal Directive, as a result of Cleo filing the NOI, the AER has placed
Cleo on its insolvency watch list and its insolvency department is now monitoring Cleo’s

operations.

86. On December 19, 2024, AER sent a letter to Cleo (the “AER Letter”) notifying the
company that, effective immediately, their eligibility to acquire and hold energy licenses
and approvals has been restricted due to the commencement of this Proposal Proceeding.

A copy of the AER Letter is attached hereto as Exhibit “II”.
General Trade Creditors

87. As of December 14, 2024, Cleo has a total of approximately $8,500,000 in general

unsecured trade creditors.
Judgments
88. There are currently three (3) outstanding Judgments as against Cleo as follows:

(a) Morganick Blending Services Corp. (“Morganick”) was awarded judgment
against Cleo on July 16, 2024 for a total judgment of $16,410.99, attached hereto
as Exhibit “JJ”.

(b) Startec Refrigeration Services Ltd. (“Startec”) was awarded judgment against Cleo

on August 6, 2024 for a total judgment of $11,951.50, attached hereto as Exhibit

“KK”.
(c) Vertex Professional Services Ltd. (“Vertex”) was awarded judgment against Cleo
on October 18, 2024 for a total judgment of $274,708.73, attached hereto as Exhibit
CGLL”.
Garnishments
89. There are currently three outstanding garnishments which have been issued against Cleo

as referenced below:
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a) On or about July 29, 2024, Morganick registered a writ of enforcement in
accordance with the Alberta Court of King’s Bench court file no. 2401-10333,
against Cleo in the PPR. Morganick issued a first garnishee summons in August
2024 for its judgment of $16,410.99, which amount was repaid in part. It then
subsequently issued a second garnishee summons in the amount of $152,436.18
upon Cleo and RBC with respect to Cleo’s accounts with RBC. I am advised by
Gowling that following the filing of the NOI, Cleo obtained Orders from the Court
in the Proposal Proceedings authorizing and directing RBC to cancel a previously
issued cheque or bank draft sent by RBC to the Court prior to the filing of the NOI
as a result of this second garnishment and credit $152,436.18, representing the
garnished funds, back into Cleo’s RBC account. I am advised by the Court that a
bank draft for the garnished funds may have been delivered to the Court in late
November and the Court is attempting to find the bank draft. As of the swearing of
this Affidavit, the Court has been unable to find the bank draft but continues to look
for it. I am advised by Gowling that it is also continuing to work with RBC

regarding the garnished funds.

b) On orabout August 29, 2024, Startec registered a writ of enforcement in accordance
with court file no. 2401-11952, against Cleo in the PPR. Startec subsequently issued
a garnishee summons in the amount of $155,799.02 upon Cleo and RBC with
respect to Cleo’s accounts with RBC. RBC has not paid out funds from Cleo’s

account for this garnishment.

c) On or about October 30, 2024, Vertex registered a writ of enforcement in
accordance with court file no. 2301-13984, against Cleo in the AB PPR. Vertex
subsequently issued a garnishee summons in the amount of $274,708.73 upon Cleo
and RBC with respect to Cleo’s accounts with RBC. RBC has not paid out funds

from Cleo’s account for this garnishment

I am advised by Gowling that following the filing of the NOI Gowling issued letters to
these garnishing parties above and RBC advising them of the Stay and that no further

enforcement action could be taken against Cleo.
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Outstanding Legal Proceedings

90.

A number of proceedings have been commenced against Cleo which remain outstanding
and unsettled, as summarized below. Gowling has advised me that all of the proceedings

as against Cleo are now stayed as a result of the filing of the NOI.

Harvest Operations

91.

92.

Harvest and Cleo are operating partners in various properties (wells and facilities)
primarily located in the Hayter region of Alberta. Disputes arose related to joint operations
and abandonment costs where Harvest is seeking payment of accounts and Cleo is
contesting the legitimacy of the charges and counterclaiming for other damages. Harvest
is seeking about $5,000,000 in damages and Cleo is counterclaims for approximately

$2,000,000 in damages.

An attachment order has been granted to Harvest and Harvest has filed a security interest
registration in the AB PPR arising from this. Harvest is not a secured creditor of Cleo but
has an alleged operator’s lien. Cleo had previously agreed that the attachment could remain
pending the conclusion of a full hearing between the parties regarding their dispute. I am
advised by Gowling that the attachment order is now stayed as a result of the filing of the

NOL

Battle River

93.

Battle River and Cleo are involved in two matters — an arbitration and a court action. Both
are generally related. Cleo owns certain wells and facilities jointly with Battle River. In
some cases, Cleo is the operator and in other cases Battle River is the operator. Disputes

have developed with respect to these assets.

B.I.L Cree

94.

Cleo and B.I.L. Cree Nation Corp (“B.LL. Cree”) entered into the above mentioned royalty
agreement. B.I.L. Cree has filed a claim against Cleo for damages for unpaid royalties.

Cleo has filed a defence of the claim and is contesting it.
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Demands for Payment

95. As of December 10, 2024, Cleo received demands for payment from the following parties

(collectively, the “Demand Letters”):

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

9]
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geoLOGIC Systems Ltd. - attached hereto as Exhibit “MM?” is a demand letter
dated July 26, 2024 demanding payment in the approximate amount of $30,000 in
relation to payments in relation to software, data, licensing fees pursuant to a

licence agreement.

B.I.L. Cree Nation Corp. - attached hereto as Exhibit “NN” is a demand letter dated
July 29, 2024 demanding payment in the amount of $491,396.56 in relation to

certain royalty payments.

TCB Welding Manufacturing Fabrication (“TCB”) - attached hereto as Exhibit
“00” is a demand letter dated September 12, 2024 demanding payments pursuant

to certain of Cleo’s accounts with TCB.

Canadian Natural Resources Limited - attached hereto as Exhibit “PP” is a demand
letter dated September 13, 2024 demanding payment in the amount of $45,690.42

pursuant to various agreements.

Renown Down Hole Solutions Inc. - attached hereto as Exhibit “QQ” is a demand

letter dated October 2, 2024 demanding payment in the amount of $7,687.04.

Peter LeGeyt Recruiting Ltd.- attached hereto as Exhibit “RR” is a demand letter
dated October 22, 2024 demanding payment in the amount of $26,250 plus GST

for professional services related to hiring a candidate.

Mantl Canada Inc. & Amped Energy Services Ltd. - attached hereto as Exhibit
“SS” is a demand letter dated October 30, 2024 demanding payment in the amount
$2,212,203.60 pursuant to the Trade Agreement.
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(h) TAQA North - attached hereto as Exhibit “TT” is a demand letter dated November
4, 2024 demanding payment in respect of certain billing statements issued by

TAQA North.

(1) Lexterra Land Ltd. - attached hereto as Exhibit “UU” is a demand letter dated
November 13, 2024 demanding payment in the amount of $4,872.31 in respect of

certain surface land related services.

) Star West Trucking Ltd. - attached hereto as Exhibit “VV” is a demand letter dated
November 29, 2024 demanding payment in the amount of $14,000 in relation to

trucking services.

96. Absent the automatic stay of proceedings imposed by filing the NOI, it is anticipated that
these parties would commence proceedings against Cleo as well.
RELIEF SOUGHT

Administration Charge

97.

98.

99.

Cleo is seeking from this Honourable Court an Order authorizing and directing to pay the
fees and disbursements of, and granting a super-priority Administration Charge against
Cleo’s Property, to and in favour of counsel for Cleo, the Proposal Trustee, and counsel for
the Proposal Trustee in priority to all other charges to secure payment of their reasonable
fees and disbursements incurred by such parties at their standard rates. The Administration

Charge is limited to a maximum amount of $350,000.

I believe that the Administration Charge is fair and reasonable in the circumstances. Cleo
requires the expertise, knowledge and continuing participation of the Administrative
Professionals in order to complete a successful restructuring, and in order to continue to
obtain that expertise, knowledge and participation, I believe that it is necessary that they

receive the benefit of the Administration Charge.

Cleo has worked with the Proposal Trustee to determine the proposed amount of the
Administration Charge, which I believe is fair and reasonable in the circumstances. The

Proposal Trustee is supportive of the proposed amount.
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I do not believe that there is any unwarranted duplication of roles between the proposed

beneficiaries of the Administration Charge.

Interim Financing

101.

102.

103.

104.

105.

106.

Cleo is currently in discussions with various potential interim lenders to provide interim
financing. Cleo has not yet secured interim financing as of the date of this Affidavit. Cleo
intends on filing additional materials prior to the extension hearing on January 6, 2024

setting forth an interim financing agreement once one has been confirmed.

The Cleo Cash Flow Forecast indicates that Cleo requires the Interim Financing Facility
from January 6, 2025 and onwards to ensure that it has the liquidity required to meet its

obligations for it to continue with these Proposal Proceedings.

Cleo may also need to receive emergency advances under an Interim Financing Agreement
prior to January 6, 2025 so Cleo has operating capital to continue operating until the
January 6, 2025 extension hearing (the “Emergency Advance”). It is expected that an
Interim Financing Agreement will require that amounts received by Cleo from cash flows
during the NOI proceedings will be used to repay the Emergency Advance. Without any
Emergency Advance provided, it is expected Cleo will be unable to continue its operations

until the time it received an Interim Loan.

If Cleo repays all or a portion of the Emergency Advance prior to the hearing of the Stay
Extension, Cleo will also seek an order that the Emergency Advance could be repaid from

the cash flows of Cleo.

Cleo currently has limited cash resources and may not be able to complete its restructuring
should an Interim Financing Facility not be approved. In addition, Cleo is carefully

managing cash on a day-to-day basis with oversight from the Proposal Trustee.

Cleo has sought and obtained guidance from the Proposal Trustee on proposed amounts of
the Interim Lender’s Charge and the Proposal Trustee will be supportive of interim

financing.
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Directors & Officers Charge

107.

108.

109.

110.

I11.

Cleo is seeking an Order of this Honourable Court granting a super-priority D&O Charge
securing the obligation of Cleo to indemnify myself as Cleo’s sole Director for obligations
and liabilities that I may incur in my capacity as Director during the Proposal Proceedings

in the maximum amount of $200,000.

The D&O Charge is intended to address potential claims that may be brought against me
as Cleo’s sole Director that are not covered under existing insurance described below or to

the extent coverage is insufficient to cover such claims.

A successful restructuring of Cleo will only be possible with the continued participation of
myself as Director. I have specialized expertise and relationships with Cleo’s stakeholders.
In addition, I have gained significant knowledge that cannot be easily replicated or

replaced.

The quantum of the D&O Charge was calculated with the assistance of the Proposal
Trustee on the basis of the payroll, source deductions and goods and services taxes that
could potentially accrue during the Proposal Proceeding and such quantum is supported by

the Proposal Trustee.

Cleo maintains insurance policies in relation to the potential liability of the Directors (the
“D&O Insurance Policies”). Although the D&O Insurance Policies insure myself as
against certain claims that may arise against me in my capacity as Director, the coverage
is subject to several exclusions and limitations, including, inter alia, certain employee and
statutory obligations. As a result, there is a potential for insufficient insurance coverage in
respect of potential director and officer liabilities. It would be beneficial for there to be
certainty with respect to potential personal liability as I continue in my current capacity in

the context of these Proposal Proceedings.

Priority of Charges

112.

Cleo is seeking a declaration from this Honourable Court that the B/4 Charges against the

Property rank in priority to all charges, security interests, liens, trusts, deemed trusts and
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encumbrances against the Property, including liens and trusts created by federal and
provincial legislation, and that the BI4 Charges rank, as between themselves, in the

following order of priority:
a) first, the Administration Charge;
b) second, the Interim Financing Charge; and
c) third, the D&O Charge.

The Proposal Trustee is supportive of this proposed priority ranking of the B/4 Charges.

Stay of Proceedings for Cleo

114.

115.

The time to file a proposal for Cleo expires on January 7, 2025. Cleo requests the proposal

extension date to February 21, 2025 in the Proposal Proceedings.

Since the NOI was filed on December 8, 2024, Cleo has worked diligently and in good
faith to advance these Proposal Proceedings and to comply with the various requirements

under the BIA. These steps have included, among other things:

(a) preparing and analysing a list of creditors and identifying issues specific to certain

creditors;
(b) providing the Proposal Trustee with access to its books and records;
(c) working with the Proposal Trustee on the preparation of the Cash Flow Forecast;

(d) communicating with stakeholders regarding the proposal process;

(e) communicating with customers regarding the proposal process;
(H communicating with the AER regarding the status of its operations and the proposal
process;

(2) reaching out to prospective lenders and securing the Interim Financing Facility and

any Emergency Advance;
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(h) reviewing its operating expenses, pursuing the collection of accounts receivable
and taking other steps to ensure Cleo remains financially viable during these

Proposal Proceedings; and
(1) preparing this Application.

116.  On December 10, 2024, Cleo also hired Bluestar Engineering Ltd., to submit a Directive
060 variance for Silver Heights to the AER to support amending the facility licence to
allow for a continuous flaring to end the gas conservation at the battery. Should the variance
request be approved, Cleo will be submitting a Directive 56 to amend the facility license.
If AER approves both the variance request and the facility amendment, Cleo anticipates an

immediate positive impact on future production to prior levels of approximately 250 bbl/d.
117.  The proposal extension date will allow Cleo to, among other things:

(a) continue operations during the Proposal Proceedings in order to carry out work,
with the advice and consent of the Proposal Trustee, that will be economically

beneficial to its estate and stakeholders;

(b) preserve its assets and prevent environmental issues from arising during the winter
months;
(c) continue the restructuring of its business and affairs, and pursue strategic

alternatives; and

(d) take such actions as are necessary or desirable to preserve and enhance the value of

Cleo’s business for the benefit of their creditors and other stakeholders.

118. Cleo’s creditors will not be prejudiced by the Proposal Extension Date. Rather, the proposal
extension date is critical to ensuring that Cleo can continue to generate revenues through
economically beneficial operations under the supervision of the Proposal Trustee, and
formulate a proposal thereby maximizing the value of their assets to the benefit all of their

stakeholders.

119.  The Proposal Trustee is supportive of the proposal extension date.
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Stay for Chris Lewis

120. In addition to the foregoing, Cleo intends to seek a stay of any claims of guarantees and
contracts where such parties may claim I have guaranteed the debts of Cleo, or [ am jointly
and severally liable for the indebtedness of Cleo. Attached hereto are the following

documents in this regard from the records of Cleo:

(a) 19922169 Alberta Ltd. (Rise/Oxygen Capital) — for all debts and liabilities, present
or future, direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, matured or not, at any time
owing by Cleo, with interest from the date of demand for payment at the Royal
Bank of Canada’s Prime Interest Rate plus 30% (the “Rise Guarantee”). The Rise
Guarantee is attached hereto as Exhibit “WW?”,

(b) 2M7 - for all debts and liabilities, present or future, direct or indirect, absolute or
contingent, matured or not, at any time owing by Cleo (the “2M7 Guarantee”).

The 2M7 Guarantee is attached hereto as Exhibit «“XX”.

(c) 2416924 Alberta Ltd./ Stride Capital — I am listed as a co-leasee in relation to this
agreement whereby his obligations are joint and several. The Stride Equipment

Agreement is attached previous as Exhibit “O”.

(d) Stephen Ballard — for the principal sum of $300,000, plus a fixed rate of interest of
20% per annum on the unpaid portion of the Principal (the “Ballard Guarantee”).

The Ballard Guarantee is attached hereto as Exhibit “YY”.

121.  Certain of the above documents are unsigned and do not contain executed Guarantees
Acknowledgement Act certificates. I do not admit liability for any claims arising from the

above documents or that [ am liable under such documents.

122.  Cleo further seeks a stay of all ongoing and potential claims against me in my capacity as
an employee, director and officer of Cleo. I am currently named as a defendant in the

ongoing litigation between Cleo and Battle River, as referred to above.

123.  Such a stay is necessary in the circumstances as I am the only director of Cleo and my

involvement in the restructuring is critical for the Proposal Proceedings to be successful.
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Government Corporation/Non-Profit Search

of Alberta m Corporate Registration System

Date of Search: 2024/12/05
Time of Search: 06:22 AM
Search provided by: ELDOR-WAL REGISTRATIONS (1987) LTD

Service Request Number: 43483889
Customer Reference Number:

Corporate Access Number: 2019731419

Business Number: 766250922

Legal Entity Name: CLEO ENERGY CORP.
Legal Entity Status: Active

Alberta Corporation Type: Named Alberta Corporation
Registration Date: 2016/05/31 YYYY/MM/DD

Date of Last Status Change: 2024/07/22 YYYY/MM/DD

Registered Office:

Street: 200 - 117 8 AVE SW
City: CALGARY
Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2P1B4

Records Address:

Street: 200 - 117 8 AVE SW
City: CALGARY
Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2P1B4

Email Address: CLEWIS@CLEOENERGY.COM

Primary Agent for Service:

Last Name| First Namel Middle Name| Firm Name| Street | City ‘ Province | Postal Code‘ Email l
LEWIS |[COLTON | | 200 - 117 8 AVE SW||CALGARY |[ALBERTA|[T2P1B4  ||CLEWIS@CLEOENERGY.COM|
Directors:

Last Name: LEWIS

First Name: CHRIS

Street/Box Number: 200 - 117 8 AVE SW

City: CALGARY

Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2P1B4

Voting Shareholders:

Legal Entity Name: CHIMERA MANAGEMENT GROUP LTD.

Corporate Access Number: 2024804730

Street: 200 - 117 8 AVE SW

City: CALGARY

Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2P1B4

Percent Of Voting Shares: 100




Details From Current Articles:

The information in this legal entity table supersedes equivalent electronic attachments
Share Structure: SEE SCHEDULE "A" ATTACHED HERETO

Share Transfers Restrictions: SEE SCHEDULE "B" ATTACHED HERETO

Min Number Of Directors: 1

Max Number Of Directors: 10

Business Restricted To: NONE
Business Restricted From: NONE
Other Provisions: SEE SCHEDULE "C" ATTACHED HERETO

Other Information:

Last Annual Return Filed:

[File Year|Date Filed (YYYY/MM/DD)|
[ 2024]2024/07/22 |

Filing History:

[List Date (YYYY/MM/DD)|Type of Filing

2016/05/31 Incorporate Alberta Corporation

2018/04/25 _ Change Director / Shareholder 7
[2020/02/03 [Change Address |
[2020/02/22 [Update BN

2024/07/02 Status Changed to Start for Failure to File Annual Returns
2024/07/22 _ Enter Annual Returns for Alberta and Extra-Provincial Ooﬂi

Attachments:

_>:wn_:=2: Type _Zmﬁcm_a Bar Code||Date Recorded Dm%%%\?—z\_uvi
Share Structure ELECTRONIC 2016/05/31 7
Restrictions on Share HB:%QL ELECTRONIC _ 2016/05/31 7
[Other Rules or Provisions  |[ELECTRONIC  [[2016/05/31 4

The Registrar of Corporations certifies that, as of the date of this search, the above information is an accurate reproduction of data contained in the
official public records of Corporate Registry.



https://cores.reg.gov.ab.ca/cores/cr/cr_elec_attach.download?p_file=3281728
https://cores.reg.gov.ab.ca/cores/cr/cr_elec_attach.download?p_file=3281729
https://cores.reg.gov.ab.ca/cores/cr/cr_elec_attach.download?p_file=3281731




Trafigura

Commercial Agreement

Date: Jul 12, 2024

Page: 1of4

To: Cleo Energy Corp. From: Trafigura Canada Limited

Suite 350, 300 - 5 Ave SW Suite 1700, 400-3rd Avenue SW

Calgary, AB Calgary, Alberta

Canada, T2P 3C4 Canada, T2P 4H2
Attn: Andrew Sweerts Attn: Mr. Craig Wilford

Phone: 4032946765
Email: asweerts@cleoenergy.com Email: Craig. Wilford@trafigura.com

Ref#: Commercial Agreement

Agreement written by Trafigura Canada Limited

Agreement Date:

Seller:
Buyer:
Tenor:

Payment:

Special Terms:

July 12, 2024

Cleo Energy Corp.
Trafigura Canada Limited

This Commercial Contract shall be effective for a period of 12 months commencing from the Signing
Date ("Term"). The Contract shall terminate ("Termination") upon the later of 12 months from the
Sighing Date or upon Trafigura marketing a minimum of 380,000 barrels provided that the full
$3,000,000 has been drawn under the prepayment agreement.

Minimum Marketing Requirement: The minimum number of barrels marketed shall adjust in
accordance with the total amount drawn under the prepayment agreement. If only $1,000,000 is
drawn, the minimum barrels marketed shall be 126,667. If $2,000,000 is drawn, the minimum shall
be 253,333 barrels. Upon drawing the full $3,000,000, the minimum barrels marketed shall be
380,000.

Within 30 days of written notice from either the Seller or Buyer that Termination has occurred, the
Selier will have the election to either, 1) roll into a one (1) year evergreen contract with the Buyer,
beginning as of the date of such election, or 2) confirm that the Prepayment Agreement will expire
as of the end of the month following the 90 day period from the date of such written notice.

Payment is due on the 25th following the month of receipt/delivery of product;

If the 25th is a Holiday or Saturday, payment is due on the previous CDN business day;

If the 25th is a Sunday or Monday Holiday, payment is due on the next CDN business day. Payable
in CDN funds.

Trafigura's Wellhead GTC's will apply to this contract.

Goods: Trafigura to market 100% of available marketable crude from the Seller's existing assets in
Canada or any other delivery point that Cleo delivers crude oil for the duration of the term of the
contract. The Seller may elect to include additional volumes under this contract, to be included in the
Tenor volumes, if it so chooses.

Hedging: Total monthly production for the term of the agreement shall be established as per the
Financial Model agreed upon between the Seller and the Buyer. Physical hedging shall be
conducted on a discretionary basis as required by the Buyer for the term of the agreement at the
going rate, subject to acceptable credit exposure under the Commercial Agreement. The Buyer has
no obligation to hedge volumes on behalf of the Seller at any point under the term of the agreement.
As part of the Commercial Contract, Parties may agree from time to time to fix the purchase price of
future production and as a result, Trafigura will incur additional credit exposure from the
performance of the Seller under the Commercial Agreement. Such price fixing shall be implemented
on an arms-length basis and on market terms and shall seek to protect the Seller's exposure to WTI
and WCS. Any such credit exposure shall be covered under the security documents.




Schedule: 1

Product and
Delivery Point:

Price:

Quantity:

Conversion Rate:

Purchase of Bow River at Gibson Hardisty Terminal from 11-10-045-07W4 (ABBT0155763) for the
Term of this Commercial Contract using schedule pricing.

The Weighted Average for West Texas Intermediate as traded during the calendar month on the
NYMEX, plus the Volume weighted average of indices on the MM1A Index for WCS trades, plus the
agreed upon monthly BR quality spread versus WCS, plus the prior month Gibson Hardisty BRN
Terminal Bow River WADF, less US$0.95/bbl less all applicable transportation,
equalization/condensate, loss allowance and all other applicable charges.

50.00 M3 per Month.

0.158987 M3/BBL

Schedule: 2

Product and
Delivery Point:

Price:

Quantity:

Conversion Rate:

Purchase of Bow River at IPL Bow River N Pipeline from 01-22-040-08W4 (ABBT7500063) for the
Term of this Commercial Contract using schedule pricing.

The Weighted Average for West Texas Intermediate as traded during the calendar month on the
NYMEX, plus the Volume weighted average of indices on the MM1A Index for WCS trades, plus the
agreed upon monthly BR quality spread versus WCS, plus the prior month Gibson Hardisty BRN
Terminal Bow River WADF, less US$0.95/bb! less all applicable transportation,
equalization/condensate, loss allowance and all other applicable charges.

700.00 M3 per Month.
0.158987 M3/BBL

Schedule: 3

Product and
Delivery Point:

Price:

Purchase of CAL at Inter Pipeline Throne PL from IPL Throne Light Terminal from 14-14-039-10W4
(ABBT7500967) for the Term of this Commercial Contract using schedule pricing.

The Weighted Average for West Texas Intermediate as traded during the calendar month on the
NYMEX plus the Weighted Average of MM1A index for CAL trades, plus the current month IPL
WADF at Edmonton, less US$0.95/bbl, less all applicable transportation, equalization/condensate,
loss allowance and all other applicable charges.
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Date: Jul 12, 2024
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Page: 20f4

Quantity:
Conversion Rate:

1,000.00 M3 per Month.
6.29287 BBL/M3

Schedule: 4

Product and
Delivery Point:

Price:

Quantity:
Conversion Rate:

Purchase of CAL at Inter Pipeline Throne PL from 15-02-037-07W4 (ABBT7500562) for the Term of
this Commercial Contract using schedule pricing.

The Weighted Average for West Texas Intermediate as traded during the calendar month on the
NYMEX plus the Weighted Average of MM1A index for CAL trades, plus the current month IPL
WADF at Edmonton, less US$0.95/bbl, less all applicable transportation, equalization/condensate,
loss allowance and all other applicable charges.

220.00 M3 per Month.

6.29287 BBL/M3

Schedule: 5

Product and
Deliverv Point:

Price:

Quantity:
Conversion Rate:

Purchase of CAL at Inter Pipeline Central AB PL from Inter Pipeline Stettler TM from 16-04-042-
12W4 (ABBT8320003) for the Term of this Commercial Contract usina schedule oricina.

The Weighted Average for West Texas Intermediate as traded during the calendar month on the
NYMEX plus the Weighted Average of MM1A index for CAL trades, plus the current month IPL
WADF at Edmonton, less US$0.95/bbl, less all applicable transportation, equalization/condensate,
loss allowance and all other applicable charges.

150.00 M3 per Month.
6.29287 BBL/M3

Schedule: 6

Product and
Delivery Point:

Price:

Quantity:
Conversion Rate:

Purchase of CAL at Secure Big Valley Terminal from 15-35-021-07W4 (ABBT0058629) for the
Term of this Commercial Contract using schedule pricing.

The Weighted Average for West Texas Intermediate as traded during the calendar month on the
NYMEX plus the Weighted Average of MM1A index for CAL trades, plus the current month IPL
WADF at Edmonton, less US$0.95/bbl, less all applicable transportation, equalization/condensate,
loss allowance and all other applicable charges.

140.00 M3 per Month.

6.29287 BBL/M3

Schedule: 7

Product and
Delivery Point:

Price:

Quantity:
Conversion Rate:

Purchase of CAL at Secure Coronation Terminal from 05-27-040-13W4 (ABBT0133818) for the
Term of this Commercial Contract using schedule pricing.

The Weighted Average for West Texas Intermediate as traded during the calendar month on the
NYMEX plus the Weighted Average of MM1A index for CAL trades, plus the current month IPL
WADF at Edmonton, less US$0.95/bbl, less all applicable transportation, equalization/condensate,
loss allowance and all other applicable charges.

40.00 M3 per Month.

6.29287 BBL/M3




Trcfigura

Date: Jul 12, 2024

Commercial Agreement

Page: 3of4

Schedule: 8

Product and
Delivery Point:

Price:

Quantity:
Conversion Rate:

Purchase of CAL at Secure Coronation Terminal from 04-03-040-12W4 (ABBT0114274) for the
Term of this Commercial Contract using schedule pricing.

The Weighted Average for West Texas Intermediate as traded during the calendar month on the
NYMEX plus the Weighted Average of MM1A index for CAL trades, plus the current month IPL
WADF at Edmonton, less US$0.95/bbl, less all applicable transportation, equalization/condensate,
loss allowance and all other applicable charges.

20.00 M3 per Month.
6.29287 BBL/M3

Schedule: 9

Product and
Delivery Point:

Price:

Quantity:
Conversion Rate:

Purchase of CAL at Secure Coronation Terminal from 16-28-038-10W4 (ABBT0118961) for the
Term of this Commercial Contract using schedule pricing.

The Weighted Average for West Texas Intermediate as traded during the calendar month on the
NYMEX plus the Weighted Average of MM1A index for CAL trades, plus the current month IPL
WADF at Edmonton, less US$0.95/bbl, less all applicable transportation, equalization/condensate,
loss allowance and all other applicable charges.

20.00 M3 per Month.

6.29287 BBL/M3

Schedule: 10

Product and
Delivery Point:

Price:

Quantity:
Conversion Rate:

Purchase of CAL at Secure Coronation Terminal from 08-19-039-10W4 (ABBT0114472) for the
Term of this Commercial Contract using schedule pricing.

The Weighted Average for West Texas Intermediate as traded during the calendar month on the
NYMEX plus the Weighted Average of MM1A index for CAL trades, plus the current month IPL
WADF at Edmonton, less US$0.95/bbl, less all applicable transportation, equalization/condensate,
loss allowance and all other applicable charges.

30.00 M3 per Month.

6.29287 BBL/M3

Please confirm that this Contract accurately reflects the terms and conditions of our agreement. If a reply is not received
within five (5) business days, it will constitute acceptance of the terms stated therein. If the terms presented herein constitute
your understanding of the agreement, please sign and return one fully executed copy.









This Prepayment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is dated July 9, 2024 and made between:

(1)

()

CLEO ENERGY CORP., a corporation incorporated under the laws of Alberta and having its
registered office at 200 — 117 8" Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 1B4 (the “Borrower”); and

TRAFIGURA CANADA LIMITED, a corporation incorporated under the laws of Alberta and
having its registered office at 1700, 400 — 39 Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P 4H2 (the
“Buyer”),

(the Borrower and the Buyer shall be collectively referred to in this Agreement as the “Parties” and
individually a “Party”).

WHEREAS:

(A)

(B)

(©)

Pursuant to a contract for the sale and purchase of crude oil (“Products”) dated on or about the
date of this Agreement and entered into between the Borrower, as seller, and the Buyer, as
buyer, (the “Commercial Contract”), the Borrower agrees to sell and the Buyer agrees to buy
Products subject to the terms and conditions of the Commercial Contract.

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Buyer has agreed to make Advances to the Borrower
in the manner set out in Section 5 (Advances), and the Advances shall be repaid by the Borrower
to the Buyer either by repayment with cash or by way of set-off against deliveries of Products by
the Borrower to the Buyer under the Commercial Contract.

This Agreement is supplemental to the Commercial Contract.

IT IS AGREED as follows:

1

1.1

Definitions

In this Agreement the following words and expressions have the following meanings:

“Adjusted Term SOFR” means, for any SOFR Period, the sum of Term SOFR and the Credit
Adjustment Spread for such period, rounded to 5 decimal places, provided that if the Adjusted
Term SOFR so determined is less than 0.5%, then the Adjusted Term SOFR for such period will
be deemed to be 0.5%.

“Advance” means an advance payment made or to be made under this Agreement by the Buyer
to the Borrower up to a maximum principal amount equal to the Maximum Amount.

“Advance Date” means the date on which an Advance is made under Section 5.
“Advance Request” means the notice substantially in the form set out in Schedule 1.

“Affiliate” means, in relation to any person, a Subsidiary of that person or a Holding Company of
that person or any other Subsidiary of that Holding Company.

“Availability Period” means the period from and including the Effective Date up to and including
the date which is one (1) year from the Effective Date.

“‘Business Day” means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which banks are open for
general business in Calgary, Alberta and London, United Kingdom and which is a SOFR Banking
Day.
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“Cash” means, at any time, cash in hand or at a bank and (in the latter case) credited to an
account in the name of the Borrower with a financial institution acceptable to the Buyer, and to
which the Borrower is alone beneficially entitled and for so long as the cash is freely available,
unrestricted and not subject to any security interest or Lien.

“Change of Control” means any circumstance arising after the date hereof in which a person or
a combination of persons, acting jointly or in concert (within the meaning of the Securities Act
(Alberta)), acquires (i) equity securities of the Borrower, which together with all other equity
securities of the Borrower held by such persons, constitutes more than 50% of all outstanding
equity securities of the Borrower or (ii) the right to elect a majority of the directors of the Borrower.

“‘Commercial Contract” shall have the meaning set out in recital (A).

“Credit Adjustment Spread” means 0.10% (10 basis points) for a SOFR Period of one-month’s
duration.

“‘Default” means a Termination Event or any event or circumstance specified in Section 11.1
which would (with the expiry of a grace period, the giving of notice, the making of any
determination of the Buyer under the Transaction Documents, the satisfaction of any other
condition or any combination of any of the foregoing, as applicable) constitute a Termination
Event.

“Default Rate” means an interest rate which is two percent (2.00%) per annum higher than the
Interest Rate.

“Delivery Period” means a delivery period specified in Schedule 2.

“‘Disposition” means any sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance, lease, license, granting of an
option, demolition, abandonment or other disposition (or agreement to dispose) of any nature or
kind whatsoever of any property or of any right, title or interest in or to any property, and the verb
“‘Dispose” has a correlative meaning.

“Effective Date” means the date on which the conditions precedent referred to in Section 3.1
(Conditions precedent) have been satisfied in full or waived by the Buyer.

“Financial Indebtedness” means, without duplication, the aggregate amount of all obligations,
liabilities and indebtedness of a Person which would be classified under GAAP as indebtedness
for borrowed money upon the consolidated balance sheet of such Person.

“Financial Model” means a financial model of the Borrower in a form and in content in each case
approved by the Buyer (acting reasonably), which shall include, without limitation, calculations in
respect of all financial covenants under this Agreement and a detailed itemization of any
distributions, dividends, payments or other expenditures to be made by the Borrower during each
of the four (4) fiscal quarters of the Borrower following the date of such Financial Model. For
certainty, the Financial Model for purposes of this Agreement at any time shall be the then-current
Financial Model which has been approved by the Buyer (acting reasonably).

“Financial Ratios” means, collectively, the Global Coverage Ratio and the Liquidity Ratio.
“Force Majeure” has the meaning given to it in the Commercial Contract.
“GAAP” means, at any time, accounting principles generally accepted in Canada as

recommended in the CPA Canada Handbook - Accounting at the relevant time applied on a
consistent basis.

119456669 v4



“Global Coverage Ratio” means, as of any date of determination, the ratio (expressed as a
percentage) of:

(a) the aggregate of: (i) the Cash balance of the Borrower as at such date, and (ii) the PV10
of the Proved Developed Producing Reserves owned by the Borrower using eighty-five
percent (85%) of the Strip Price and curves;

to,
(b) the Obligations.

For certainty, compliance with the Global Coverage Ratio will not be a condition precedent to the
first Advance hereunder, but will be a condition precedent to any Advance after the first Advance
made hereunder, and the Global Coverage Ratio shall only be tested on each Test Date following
the making of the second Advance under this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of
Section 4.1.

‘Holding Company” means, in relation to a company or corporation, any other company or
corporation in respect of which it is a Subsidiary.

“Indirect Tax” means any goods or services tax, harmonized sales tax, provincial sales tax,
consumption tax, value added tax, carbon tax, fuel tax, greenhouse gas pollution pricing charge,
royalty, or any tax of a similar nature, whether levied by a federal, provincial, municipal, local or
foreign jurisdiction.

“Interest Period” has the meaning given to it in Section 6.1(a).

“Interest Rate” means a rate of interest per annum equal to Adjusted Term SOFR for the
applicable SOFR Period plus five percent (5%) per annum.

“Liquidity Ratio” means, as of the applicable Test Date for each Test Quarter in a Test Period
applicable to such Test Date, the ratio of:

(a) the sum of the following for such Test Quarter: (i) the revenues of the Borrower from the
sale of petroleum substances, (ii) expected revenue from hedging agreements; and (iii)
all Cash of the Borrower as at such date;

to,

(b) the sum of the following for such Test Quarter, all cash costs of the Borrower in respect
of the production, transportation and storage of petroleum substances including, without
limitation, operating expenses, marketing expenditures, capital expenditures, taxes and
interest expense and all distributions and dividends and payments of Financial
Indebtedness made by the Borrower,

all as determined having regard to the Financial Model, and based upon 85% of Strip Prices. For
certainty, compliance with the Liquidity Ratio will not be a condition precedent to the first Advance
hereunder, but will be a condition precedent to any Advance after the first Advance made
hereunder, and the Liquidity Ratio shall only be tested on each Test Date following the making of
the second Advance under this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of Section 4.2.

“Material Adverse Change” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(l).

“Maturity Date” means, in respect of each Advance, the date falling one (1) year from the
Advance Date, as the same may be extended pursuant to Section 5.6(c).

3
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“Maximum Amount” means the amount of $3,000,000.

“‘Net Proceeds” means, with respect to any Disposition of assets by the Borrower, the net
amount equal to the aggregate amount received in cash (including any cash received by way of
deferred payment pursuant to a note receivable, other non-cash consideration or otherwise, and
the release of any amount from an indemnity reserve, escrow or similar fund, but in each case
only as and when such cash is so received) in connection with such Disposition, less the sum of
(i) reasonable fees (including, without limitation, reasonable accounting, advisory and legal fees),
commissions and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred or paid for by the Borrower in connection
with such Disposition (as evidenced by supporting documentation provided to the Buyer upon
request therefor), (ii) taxes incurred in connection with such Disposition, whenever payable, and
(iii) the principal amount of any Financial Indebtedness (other than Financial Indebtedness under
the Transaction Documents) that is secured by such assets and that is required to be repaid in
connection with such Disposition.

“NYMEX/AECO Pricing” shall mean, as of any date of determination with respect to any month
(a) for Products, the closing settlement price for the Light, Sweet Products Oil futures contract for
each month as published by New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) on its website currently
located at www.nymex.com or any successor thereto (as such pricing may be corrected or
revised from time to time by the NYMEX in accordance with its rules and regulations), and (b) for
natural gas, the NGX AB-NIT Same Day Index (5A) in dollars per gigajoule as published in the
Canadian Gas Price Reporter in the table “NGX AB-NIT Same Day Index 5A” or the replacement
pricing reference which is the then recognized industry index for same day gas at such pricing
point should such pricing reference cease to exist.

“Obligations” means all debts, liabilities and obligations, present or future, direct or indirect,
absolute or contingent, matured or unmatured, at any time or from time to time due or accruing
due and owing by or otherwise payable by the Borrower to the Buyer, under, in connection with or
pursuant to the Transaction Documents (including, without limitation, all principal amount of
Advances, interest, fees, premiums, fees, expenses, penalties, reimbursements and
indemnification).

“person” means a natural person, sole proprietorship, corporation, limited liability company, trust,
joint venture, association, company, partnership, institution, public benefit corporation, investment
or other fund, governmental authority or other entity, and pronouns have a similarly extended
meaning.

“Products” has the meaning given to in in Recital (A).

“Proved Developed Producing Reserves” has the meaning assigned such term in the
Canadian Oil and Gas Evaluation Handbook prepared jointly by The Society of Petroleum
Evaluation Engineers (Calgary Chapter) and the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy &
Petroleum (Petroleum Society) as amended or superseded from time to time.

“PV10” means, in respect of the Proved Developed Producing Reserves of the Borrower’s oil and
gas properties, the net present value (on a before income tax basis) of future after-Tax cash flows
which are projected to be received from the date of calculation until the final Maturity Date
hereunder (discounted at ten percent (10%) per annum) calculated by the Borrower and
acceptable to the Buyer, acting reasonably, (including using the relevant technical assumptions
underlying the production profiles and cost profiles in the most recent engineering report of the
Borrower (which must be satisfactory to the Buyer), adjusted for hedging and other required
discounts, and using a go forward blowdown profile consistent with the relevant technical
assumptions underlying the Proved Developed Producing Reserves forecast starting from the
current actual production (adjusted for production volumes temporarily impacted by turnarounds
or third-party curtailments), in each case satisfactory to the Buyer, acting reasonably) after having
reviewed the information from the most recent engineering report of the Borrower (which must be

4
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satisfactory to the Buyer) delivered by the Borrower to the Buyer under this Agreement and taking
into account all other factors which the Buyer reasonably deems material, but provided that each
calculation of such expected future cash flow shall be made in accordance with the then existing
standards of The Society of Petroleum Evaluation Engineers (Calgary Chapter); provided,
however, that in any event (a) appropriate deductions shall be made for severance and ad
valorem taxes or goods and services taxes, and for operating, gathering, transportation and
marketing costs required for the production and sale of such reserves, (b) the pricing
assumptions used in determining PV10 for any particular reserves shall be based upon the Strip
Price and (c) the cash-flows derived from the pricing assumptions set forth in paragraph (b)
above shall be further adjusted to account for the historical basis differential, in each case, in a
manner reasonably acceptable to the Buyer.

“‘Relevant Amount” means, in respect of each Advance, each amount of such Advance specified
in Schedule 2.

“SOFR” means a rate equal to the secured overnight financing rate as administered by the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York (or a successor administrator of the secured overnight
financing rate).

“SOFR Banking Day” means any day on which commercial banks are open for international
business (including dealings in U.S. Dollar deposits); provided that for purposes of the
determination of Term SOFR, a SOFR Banking Day also excludes a day on which the Securities
Industry and Financial Markets Association in the United States recommends that the fixed
income departments of its members be closed for the entire day for purposes of trading in United
States government securities.

“SOFR Period” means a period of 1 month, or such other period as may be agreed to by the
Buyer.

“Strip Price” shall mean, at any time, (a) for the remainder of the current calendar year, the
average NYMEX/AECO Pricing for the remaining contracts in the current calendar year, (b) for
each of the succeeding four complete calendar years, the average NYMEX/AECO Pricing for the
twelve months in each such calendar year, and (c) for the succeeding fifth complete calendar
year, and for each calendar year thereafter, the average NYMEX/AECO Pricing for the twelve
months in such fifth calendar year.

“Subsidiary” as to any person, a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity
of which shares of stock or other ownership interests having ordinary voting power (other than
stock or other ownership interests having such power only by reason of the happening of a
contingency) to elect a majority of the board of directors or other managers of such corporation,
partnership or other entity are at the time owned directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, or both, by such person.

“Tax” means any tax, levy, impost, royalty, deductions, assessments, reassessment, duty or
other charge or withholding of a similar nature (including any penalty or interest payable in
connection with any failure to pay or any delay in paying any of the same).

“Tax Deduction” means a deduction or withholding for or on account of Tax from a payment
under a Transaction Document.

“Term SOFR” means, for any SOFR Period, the “Term SOFR” reference rate for a comparable
period on the 2" Business Day prior to the first day of such SOFR Period, as such rate is
published by the CME Group Benchmark Administration Limited (or a successor administrator
selected by the Buyer), provided however that if such reference rate for such period has not been
published on such 2" Business Day, then Term SOFR will be the “Term SOFR” reference rate for
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such period as published by its administrator on the first preceding Business Day for which such
reference rate was published so long as such first preceding Business Day is not more than 3
Business Days prior to the 2" Business Day referred to above.

“Termination Event” has the meaning given to it in Section 11.

“Test Date” means last day of each fiscal quarter of the Borrower.

“Test Period” means the four (4) Test Quarters immediately following the applicable Test Date.
“Test Quarter” means a Fiscal Quarter within a Test Period.

“Transaction Documents” means, collectively, the following documents:

(a) the Commercial Contract; and

(b) this Agreement.

“Unpaid Amount” means any amount (including the amount of the Obligations) then due and
payable but unpaid by the Borrower under the Transaction Documents.

1.2 Construction
(a) Unless a contrary indication appears, any reference in this Agreement to:
(i) this “Agreement” includes the Schedules, which form part of this Agreement for
all purposes;
(ii) the “Buyer” or the “Borrower” shall be construed so as to include its successors
in title, permitted assigns and permitted transferees;
(iii) a “Transaction Document” or any other agreement or instrument is a reference to

that Transaction Document or other agreement or instrument as in force for the
time being and as from time to time amended, restated, supplemented or
novated (however fundamentally including by any increase in amounts owing or
available to be utilized under such document or any change to the parties
thereto) and (where such consent is, by the terms of the relevant document,
required to be obtained as a condition to such amendment being permitted) with
the prior written consent of the Buyer;

(iv) the masculine, feminine or neuter gender respectively includes the other genders
and references to the singular include the plural (and vice versa);

(v) all references to $ or Dollars in this Agreement are references to Canadian
Dollars;
(vi) “including” means “including without limitation” (with related words being

construed accordingly), “in particular” means “in particular but without limitation”
and other general words shall not be given a restrictive interpretation by reason
of their being preceded or followed by words indicating a particular class of
assets, matters or things;

(vii) a provision of law or a regulation is a reference to that provision as amended, re-

enacted or replaced from time to time and includes any subordinated legislation
or regulation in force under it from time to time; and

6
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2.1

2.2

3.1

(viii)  commercial terms and acronyms shall have the meanings assigned to those
terms in Incoterms 2010 edition, published by the International Chamber of
Commerce.

(b) Section and schedule headings are for ease of reference only. A reference to a Section,
Subsection, Paragraph or Schedule is to a Section, Subsection, Paragraph of or a
Schedule to this Agreement (as the case may be).

(c) A Default (other than a Termination Event) is “continuing” if it has not been remedied or
waived in writing and a Termination Event is “continuing” if it has not been waived in
writing, in each case to the satisfaction of the Buyer.

(d) A person who is not a party to this Agreement has no right to enforce or to enjoy the
benefit of any term of this Agreement. No consent of any person who is not a party to
this Agreement is required to rescind or vary this Agreement at any time.

Prepayment Facility
The Prepayment Facility

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Buyer agrees to make Advances to the Borrower in
an aggregate amount not to exceed the Maximum Amount as a prepayment of the purchase price
for the Products under the Commercial Contract. The Obligations may be repaid in whole or in
part, and from time to time, either by cash repayment by the Borrower or by setting off amounts
due to the Borrower from the Buyer as payment for deliveries by the Borrower of Products under
the Commercial Contract (or by a combination thereof), all as set forth in Section 5.3.

Purpose

The Borrower shall use the proceeds of each Advance for the purposes of making capital
expenditures which are approved by the Buyer prior to the date of each Advance.

Conditions Precedent
The Buyer shall not be obliged to make an Advance under this Agreement unless:

(a) it has received this Agreement and the Commercial Contract in form and substance
satisfactory to it;

(b) it has received a duly completed Advance Request in form and substance satisfactory to
it;

(c) it has received such certificates, corporate authorizations and legal opinions in respect of
the Borrower as the Buyer determines is necessary or desirable;

(d) the representations and warranties in Section 9 (Representations and Warranties) are
true and correct in all material respects and will be true and correct in all material
respects immediately after such Advance is made and the undertakings in Section 10
(Undertakings) are being complied with;

(e) on the date of the Advance Request and on the Advance Date, no Default or Termination
Event has occurred and is continuing or would result or arise from the making of such
Advance;
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3.2

4.1

4.2

() for each Advance after the first Advance hereunder, the Global Coverage Ratio shall be
at least equal to 130% both prior to and following the making of such Advance;

(9) for each Advance after the first Advance hereunder, the Liquidity Ratio shall be at least
equal to 1.10:1.00 both prior to and following the making of such Advance;

(h) the Buyer shall have received evidence satisfactory to it of the completion of prior
planned workovers and reactivations achieving a success rate of 90% to confirm that the
production of Products is at least 90% of the aggregate planned Products production rate
as outlined in the Financial Model provided to the Buyer. For certainty, the success rate
set forth above shall be evaluated by, upon completion of the planned activity associated
with a specific project well, conducting an initial test with a subsequent quality follow-up
test conducted two weeks thereafter;

(i) the Borrower shall have provided daily production figures demonstrating that, accounting
for decline and down-time, the overall production increase aligns with the well test
measured figures;

() the Buyer shall have approved the planned activities to be undertaken with the proceeds
of such Advance;

(k) it has received the most recent Financial Model,

0] there has been no event or circumstance (either individually or when taken as a whole)
which in the Buyer's opinion is materially adverse to: (i) the ability of any party (other than
the Buyer) to perform its obligations under the Transaction Documents to which it is party
thereto; (ii) the rights or remedies of the Buyer under the Transaction Documents; or (iii)
the business, operations, assets, revenues or prospects of the Borrower or any of its
Affiliates or which results, or is reasonably likely to result, in any Transaction Document
not being legal, valid and binding on, and enforceable substantially in accordance with its
terms against, any party thereto (a “Material Adverse Change”)

(m) it has received the fees, costs and expenses due from the Borrower under this
Agreement have been or will be paid on or prior to the Advance Date.

Section 3.1 is exclusively for the benefit of the Buyer and the Buyer shall be entitled in its
discretion to suspend or waive any of its rights thereunder subject to such terms and conditions
as it may see fit.

Financial Ratios
Global Coverage Ratio

The Borrower shall ensure that at all times from and after the date of the second Advance being
made under this Agreement, the Global Coverage Ratio shall be greater than 130%. The Global
Coverage Ratio shall be tested on the date of each Advance after the first Advance made
hereunder and, after the date of the second Advance made hereunder, on each Test Date.

Liquidity Ratio

The Borrower shall ensure that at all times from and after the date of the second Advance being
made under this Agreement, the Liquidity Ratio for each Test Quarter in the Test Period
applicable to such Test Date shall be at least equal to 1.10:1.00. The Liquidity Ratio shall be
tested on the date of each Advance after the first Advance made hereunder and, after the date of
the second Advance made hereunder, on each Test Date.

119456669 v4



5 Advances

5.1 Advance Drawdown

(a)

(b)

(c)

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, in respect of each Advance, the Buyer hereby
agrees that during the Availability Period and subject to:

(i it having received a duly completed and signed Advance Request not later than
11.30 a.m. (Calgary time) on the third (3) Business Day immediately preceding
Business Day before the proposed Advance Date requesting such Advance to be
made; and

(i) the fulfilment of the conditions provided in Section 3 (Conditions precedent),

it will make such Advance as described in Section 5.1(b) below, in the requested principal
amount less any amounts payable by the Borrower in accordance with Section 16 (Fees,
costs and expenses), to the Borrower on the proposed Advance Date.

It is agreed that the Borrower is not entitled to request more than three (3) Advances, and
the aggregate amount of all Advances shall not exceed the Maximum Amount.

In connection with each Advance, the Buyer shall provide an updated Schedule 2 which
includes the information set forth therein for each such Advance, which updated
Schedule 2 shall be acknowledged by the Borrower as being the then current
Schedule 2.

5.2 Advance Request

An Advance Request is irrevocable and will not be regarded as duly completed unless:

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

the proposed Advance Date is a Business Day within the Availability Period;
the currency specified in the Advance Request is Canadian Dollars;

it outlines the uses of the proceeds of such Advance, and such uses have been approved
by the Buyer;

the amount specified in the Advance Request (together with the aggregate amount
provided in all prior Advance Requests provided by the Borrower) is equal to or less than
the Maximum Amount; and

it specifies an account of the Borrower into which such Advance is to be made.

5.3 Scheduled Payments

(a)
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Notwithstanding any occurrence of Force or any other circumstance or any other
provisions of the Transaction Documents, the Borrower agrees to repay each Advance by
making sufficient deliveries of Products during each Delivery Period prior to the Maturity
Date for such Advance to enable the Buyer to deduct the Relevant Amount on the last
day of each Delivery Period in accordance with the delivery and deduction schedule set
out in Schedule 2.

The Buyer shall be entitled to deduct on the last day of each Delivery Period the Relevant
Amount for each Advance for that Delivery Period plus any accrued interest and any
other Unpaid Amounts from the purchase price for the Products delivered by the
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54

5.5

5.6

Borrower pursuant to the Commercial Contract. The Buyer's obligation to pay for the
Products under the Commercial Contract shall be satisfied and extinguished to the extent
of such deductions.

(c) The Buyer shall not be obliged to make such deductions where the deliveries or
specifications of the Products are not in accordance with the terms of the Commercial
Contract.

(d) The Borrower shall ensure that, in each Delivery Period for an Advance, the Relevant

Amount for each Advance for that Delivery Period plus any accrued interest and any
other Unpaid Amounts is discharged by way of deductions in accordance with this
Section and Schedule 2 or, failing this, by payment in cash in clear funds to the Buyer's
account on or before the last day of such Delivery Period.

(e) For certainty, all Obligations relating to an Advance outstanding on the Maturity Date in
respect of such Advance are due and owing on such Maturity Date.

Voluntary Prepayment

The Borrower may, if it gives the Buyer not less than five (5) Business Days prior written notice,
prepay in cash or by directing the Buyer to deduct the amount to be prepaid against any amounts
payable to the Borrower under the Commercial Contract the whole or any part of all of the
Advances (and if in part, being a minimum amount of $100,000). Notwithstanding any
prepayment of the Obligations in respect of an Advance prior to the Maturity Date for such
Advance, for certainty, the Commercial Contract shall remain in full force and effect in
accordance with its terms.

Mandatory Repayments

(a) In addition to any other payments required to be made by the Borrower under this
Agreement, the Borrower shall pay to the Buyer 100% of the Net Proceeds arising from
any Disposition by the Borrower of all or any portion of the assets of the Borrower within
vie (5) Business Days of the receipt thereof. The Borrower shall give the Agent ten (10)
Business Days prior written notice of any mandatory prepayment to this Section,
including the amount of such mandatory prepayment (with reasonable evidence
supporting such amount).

(b) In addition to any other payments required to be made by the Borrower under this
Agreement, the Borrower shall pay to the Buyer the full amount of the outstanding
Advances, together with all accrued and unpaid interest thereon, and all other Obligations
upon the occurrence of:

(i) a Change of Control; or

(ii) a change in operatorship of the assets of the Borrower such that the Borrower is
not longer the sole legal and beneficial operator of any of the assets.

Any repayment made under this Section 5.5(b) shall be made in cash. Upon receipt of
any repayment by the Buyer under this Section 5.5(b), the obligation of the Buyer to
provide any further Advances shall immediately terminate (without any further notice).

Prepayment in accordance with Agreement

(a) If any part of an Advance is prepaid or repaid in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement (other than pursuant to Section 5.3), then the Relevant Amounts falling after
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that prepayment or repayment will reduce in inverse chronological order by the amount of
the prepayment or repayment.

(b) The Borrower shall not repay or prepay all or any part of any Advance except at the times
and in the manner expressly provided for in this Agreement.

(c) The Borrower may not reborrow any part of an Advance or Obligations which is repaid or
prepaid by the Borrower.

5.7 Payment on Maturity

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, in the event that the remaining
balance of all of an Advance, together with accrued but unpaid interest and all other Obligations
payable under any Transaction Documents in respect of such Advance have not been fully repaid
on the Maturity Date in respect of such Advance, the Buyer, in its sole and absolute discretion,
shall have the right (but not the obligation) to extend such Maturity Date by any amount of time to
allow the Borrower a further opportunity to provide to the Buyer the balance of the Products
required under the Commercial Contract, to the extent such Products remains outstanding.

6 Interest and Fees
6.1 Interest
(a) Each interest period for an Advance shall be one (1) month (each an “Interest Period”)

and no Interest Period shall extend beyond the Maturity Date in respect of the applicable
Advance. An Interest Period for an Advance shall start on the date of such Advance or (if
already made) on the last day of the preceding Interest Period and if an Interest Period
would otherwise end on a day which is not a Business Day, that Interest Period will
instead end on the next Business Day in that calendar month (if there is one) or the
preceding Business Day (if there is not).

(b) The Borrower shall pay interest on each Advance and the other Obligations at the
Interest Rate.

(c) Interest shall accrue daily on the outstanding amount of each Advance on the basis of
actual days elapsed and a 360 day year commencing on the Advance Date until the full
amount of such Advance is repaid in full. Interest shall accrue daily on the outstanding
Obligations (other than the Advances) commencing on the date such Obligations are
incurred until the full amount of the Obligations are repaid in full.

(d) The Borrower shall pay accrued interest for each Interest Period no later than the last day
of such Interest Period. At the Buyer's option, the Borrower’s obligation to pay interest
shall be discharged either by way of deduction as provided for in Section 5.3 above or by
the Borrower paying interest in cash by telegraphic transfer to an account nominated by
the Buyer.

(e) A change in SOFR for each SOFR Period will simultaneously cause a corresponding
change in the interest payable under this Agreement. Interest under this Agreement shall
accrue and be calculated (but not compounded) on a daily basis and on the basis of a
360 day year.

() If the Borrower fails to pay any amount payable by it under a Transaction Document on
its due date, then interest shall accrue on such Unpaid Amount from the due date up to
the date of actual payment (both before and after judgment) at the Default Rate. Any
interest accruing under this Section 6.1(f) shall be immediately payable by the Borrower
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6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

on demand by the Buyer and may be discharged, at the option of the Buyer, by way of
deduction as provided for in Section 5.3 or by cash. Default interest (if unpaid) arising on
an Unpaid Amount shall be compounded with the Unpaid Amount daily but will remain
immediately due and payable.

Upfront Fee

The Borrower shall pay to the Buyer an upfront fee calculated at 1.0% of the Maximum Amount,
such fee being earned and payable on the Closing Date. Such fee shall be paid in at the same
time as the payment of the first payment of the Relevant Amount by deducting the aggregate
amount of such fee from the amounts due by the Buyer to the Borrower under the Commercial
Contract.

Maximum Rate of Interest

If any provision of any Transaction Document would oblige the Borrower to make any payment of
interest or other amount payable to the Buyer in an amount or calculated at a rate which would be
prohibited by law or would result in a receipt by the Buyer of “interest” at a “criminal rate” (as such
terms are construed under the Criminal Code (Canada)), then, notwithstanding such provision,
such amount or rate shall be deemed to have been adjusted with retroactive effect to the
maximum amount or rate of interest, as the case may be, as would not be so prohibited by
applicable law or so result in a receipt by the Buyer of “interest’” at a “criminal rate”, such
adjustment to be effected, to the extent necessary (but only to the extent necessary), first, by
reducing the amount or rate of interest and thereafter, by reducing any fees, commissions, costs,
expenses, premiums and other amounts required to be paid which would constitute interest for
purposes of section 347 of the Criminal Code (Canada).

Waiver of Interest Provisions

To the extent permitted by law, any provision of the Interest Act (Canada) which restricts the rate
of interest on any judgment debt shall be inapplicable to the Transaction Documents and is
hereby waived by the Borrower.

Interest Act (Canada)

For purposes of the Interest Act (Canada), (i) whenever any interest or fee under this Agreement
or any other Transaction Document is calculated using a rate based on a year of 360 days or 365
days (or such other period that is less than a calendar year), as the case may be, the rate
determined pursuant to such calculation, when expressed as an annual rate, is equivalent to (x)
the applicable rate based on a year of 360 days or 365 days (or such other period that is less
than a calendar year), as the case may be, (y) multiplied by the actual number of days in the
calendar year in which the period for which such interest or fee is payable (or compounded) ends,
and (z) divided by 360 or 365 (or such other period that is less than a calendar year), as the case
may be, (ii) the principle of deemed reinvestment of interest does not apply to any interest
calculation under this Agreement or any other Transaction Document, and (iii) the rates of interest
stipulated in this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents are intended to be nominal
rates and not effective rates or yields
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7 lllegality

7.1 If it becomes unlawful in any jurisdiction for the Buyer to perform any of its obligations as
contemplated by the Transaction Documents or to fund, issue or maintain an Advance (whether
pursuant to a funding agreement or otherwise) or if the Borrower is in default of Section 10.3 or
Section 10.4, the Buyer may, by not less than 5 days' notice to the Borrower:

(a)
(b)

cancel the applicable Advance, whereupon such Advance will be immediately cancelled;

declare the applicable Advance, together with all Unpaid Amounts, to be due and payable,
whereupon all such outstanding amounts will become due and payable on the date specified
by the Buyer.

7.2 Any such notice under Section 7.1 will take effect in accordance with its terms.

8 Taxes and Indemnities

8.1 Tax Gross Up and Indemnity

(@)
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All payments to the Buyer by the Borrower under any of the Transaction Documents shall
be made free and clear of, and without any Tax Deductions imposed by any federal,
provincial municipal, local, territorial or other taxing authority of Canada or any other
relevant Canadian or foreign jurisdiction (or any political subdivision or taxing authority
thereof), unless such Tax Deductions are required by applicable law to be deducted or
withheld. If the Borrower shall be required by applicable law to deduct or withhold any
such Tax Deductions from or in respect of any amount payable under any of the
Transaction Documents (i) the amount payable shall be increased (and for greater
certainty, in the case of interest, the amount of interest shall be increased) as may be
necessary so that after making all required deductions or withholdings (including
deductions or withholdings applicable to any additional amounts paid under this
Section 8.1), the Buyer receives an amount equal to the amount it would have received if
no such deduction or withholding had been made or required, (ii) the Borrower shall
make such deductions or withholdings, and (iii) the Borrower shall immediately pay the
full amount deducted or withheld to the relevant governmental authority in accordance
with applicable laws, provided that no additional amounts shall be payable pursuant to
this paragraph in respect of:

(i any Tax that would not have been imposed but for the existence of any present
or former connection between the Buyer and the relevant taxing jurisdiction, or
the Buyer being or having been present or engaged in trade or business therein
or having or having had a permanent establishment, office, fixed base or branch
therein;

(ii) any Tax that would not have been imposed but for the delay or failure by the
Buyer (following a written request by the Borrower) in the filing with the relevant
taxing jurisdiction of forms that are required to be filed by the Buyer to avoid or
reduce such Taxes (including for such purpose any refilings or renewals of filings
that may from time to time be required by the relevant taxing jurisdiction),
provided that the filing of such forms would not (in the Buyer's reasonable
judgment) impose any unreasonable burden (in time, resources or otherwise) on
the Buyer or result in any confidential or proprietary income tax return information
being revealed, either directly or indirectly, to any person (other than the relevant
taxing jurisdiction) and such delay or failure could have been lawfully avoided by
the Buyer, and provided further that the Buyer shall be deemed to have satisfied
the requirements of this clause upon the good faith completion and submission of

13



(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
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such forms (including refilings or renewals of filings) as may be specified in a
written request of the Borrower no later than 60 days after receipt by the Buyer of
such written request (accompanied by copies of such forms and related
instructions);

(iii) any Tax that would not have been imposed but for the Buyer not dealing at arm’s
length with the Borrower for the purposes of the Income Tax Act (Canada);

(iv) any Tax that would not have been imposed but for the Buyer being a “specified
non-resident shareholder” (as defined in subsection 18(5) of the Income Tax Act
(Canada)) of the Borrower or not dealing at arm’s length for the purposes of the
Income Tax Act (Canada) with such a “specified non-resident shareholder” of the
Borrower; or

(v) any combination of clauses (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) above.

The Borrower agrees to immediately pay any present or future stamp or documentary
taxes or any other excise or property taxes, charges, financial institutions duties, debits
taxes, Indirect Taxes or similar levies (all such taxes, charges, duties and levies being
referred to as “Other Taxes”) which arise from any payment made by the Borrower under
any of the Transaction Documents or from the execution, delivery or registration of, or
otherwise with respect to, any of the Transaction Documents.

The Borrower shall indemnify the Buyer for the full amount of Tax or Other Taxes
(including, without limitation, any Tax or Other Taxes imposed by any governmental
authority or taxing authority in respect of any relevant jurisdiction on amounts payable by
the Borrower under this Section 8.1, but specifically excluding any Tax described in
Section 8.1(a)(i) to (v) above) paid or payable or deemed paid or payable by the Buyer
and any liability (including penalties, interest and expenses) arising from or with respect
to such Tax or Other Taxes, whether or not they were correctly or legally asserted.
Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, the Borrower will be required to indemnify the
Buyer only for any Tax or Other Taxes imposed by Canada or any other jurisdiction as a
withholding tax by reason of the Buyer having executed, delivered, become a party to,
performed its obligations under (including the making of Advances), received payments
under, received or perfected a security interest under, engaged in any other transaction
pursuant to, or enforced, any Transaction Documents and, for greater certainty, the
Borrower will not be required to indemnify the Buyer for any Tax or Other Taxes (other
than such withholding tax) arising or payable because the Buyer is connected with
Canada or any relevant jurisdiction otherwise than as a result of Buyer having executed,
delivered, become a party to, performed its obligations under, received payments under,
received or perfected a security interest under, engaged in any other transaction
pursuant to, or enforced, any Transaction Documents. Payment under this
indemnification shall be made within thirty (30) days from the date the Buyer makes
written demand for it setting out a calculation of the amount claimed in reasonable detail.
A certificate as to the amount of such Tax or Other Taxes submitted to the Borrower or to
a taxing authority by the Buyer shall be conclusive evidence, absent manifest error, of the
amount due from the Borrower to the Buyer, as the case may be.

The Borrower shall furnish to the Buyer the original or a certified copy of a receipt
evidencing payment of Tax or Other Taxes made by the Borrower within thirty (30) days
after the date of any payment of Tax or Other Taxes.

The provisions of this Section 8.1 shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the
repayment of all Advances and Obligations.
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8.2

9

Other Indemnities

The Borrower shall, within 10 Business Days of demand, indemnify the Buyer against any cost
(including the Buyer's funding costs), loss or liability incurred by the Buyer as a result of the
exercise of any of the rights, powers, discretions, authorities and remedies vested in the Buyer by
the Transaction Documents.

Representations and Warranties

The Borrower represents and warrants to the Buyer, acknowledging and confirming, in each case, that
the Buyer is relying on such representations and warranties without independent inquiry in entering into
this Agreement and providing each Advance that:

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Status

The Borrower is duly authorized and validly existing as corporation under the laws of its
jurisdiction of formation and capable of suing and being sued in its own name and has the full
power, authority and capacity to enter into and perform its obligations under the Transaction
Documents to which it is a party and any related documents;

Binding Obligations

The obligations of the Borrower under the Transaction Documents to which it is a party and/or
related documents are legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations in accordance with their
terms;

No Conflict

The entry into and performance by the Borrower of the Transaction Documents to which it is a
party and any related documents does not and will not (a) contravene or conflict with any law, rule
or regulation in force in Alberta; (b) contravene or conflict with any of its constitutional documents
or any borrowing or similar limit to which the Borrower is subject; or (c) breach any material
agreement or material instrument to which the Borrower is a party or by which any of the
Borrower’s assets are bound or constitute a default, an event of default or a termination event (in
each case, however described) under any such agreement or instrument;

Power and Authority

The Borrower has the power to enter into, perform and deliver, and has performed all corporate
and other actions and has obtained from the relevant governmental authority in its jurisdiction of
incorporation and the jurisdictions where its assets are located all authorizations as are
necessary or expedient to ensure the legality, validity, enforceability and admissibility of, the
Transaction Documents to which it is a party and any related documents against the Borrower
and such authorizations are in full force and effect and duly complied with by the Borrower and
are not the subject of any proceedings, claims or challenges in respect of their revocation,
suspension, cancellation or disapplication;

Insolvency
No corporate action, legal proceeding or other procedure or step described in Sections 11.1(i)

and 11.1(j) has been started or, to the best of the Borrower's knowledge and belief, threatened in
relation to the Borrower;
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9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

10

10.1

10.2

No Termination Event

No Termination Event or default (howsoever described) is continuing or is reasonably likely to
result from the making of the Advance or the entry into, the performance of or any transaction
contemplated by, any Transaction Document;

Financial Condition

All financial statements delivered to the Buyer have been prepared in accordance with GAAP and
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Borrower as at the date to which they were
prepared and for the period then ended;

No Debt Re-scheduling

The Transaction Documents and any related documents and, in particular, the prepayment
arrangements under them are a trade transaction and are not, and will not be, subject to any debt
rescheduling arrangements (sovereign or otherwise), expropriation or moratorium or (in each
case) negotiations in respect thereof;

No Breach

The Borrower has not breached any law or regulation;

Transaction Documents and Products

There are no encumbrances or other contractual restrictions which may affect the rights and
property the subject of the Transaction Documents; (ii) the Borrower is the sole legal and
beneficial owner of the Products free from any claims, third party rights or competing interests;
and (iii) no event or circumstance has taken place that will make any of the insurance policies
taken out in respect of the Products void;

Each of the representations and warranties in Section 9.1 to Section 9.10, inclusive, is deemed to
be made and repeated by the Borrower to the Buyer by reference to the facts and circumstances
then existing on the date this Agreement, on the date of each Advance Request, each Advance
Date and on each Test Date.

Undertakings

General Undertakings

The Borrower hereby irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes:

(a) to procure and maintain all necessary and desirable authorisations for the sale,
transportation and exportation of the Products; and

(b) to take out, maintain, comply with the terms of and not invalidate the insurance policies
taken out in respect of the Products;

Information Undertakings
(a) The Borrower shall supply to the Buyer:
(i) within five (5) Business Days after the end of each calendar month, a compliance
certificate signed by a senior officer of the Borrower in form and substance

satisfactory to the Buyer which confirms, among other things, that the
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(b)

(c)

representations and warranties in Section 9 (Representations and Warranties)
are true and correct in all material respects, that the undertakings in Section 10
(Undertakings) are being complied with, and that there is no Default or
Termination Event which has occurred and is continuing.

(ii) within twenty (20) Business Days after the end of each Delivery Period, a report
on the actual production volumes of Products by the Borrower;

(iii) as soon as the same become available (and in any event within one hundred
eighty (180) days of the end of its financial year), the Borrower’s audited financial
statements for that period together with the applicable auditor’s report;

(iv) upon request of the Buyer, a copy of any authorization or any other document
required or desirable for the Borrower to sell, deliver and export Products to the
Buyer under the Commercial Contract (including any export license) and if
requested by the Buyer any such copy shall be certified;

(v) promptly upon any modification to any insurance policy or entry into any other
insurance policies, in each case, relating to the Products, copies of such
modifications or insurance policies and, promptly upon the Buyer’s request,
evidence that all premiums have been paid in respect thereof;

(vi) if requested by the Buyer, a written acknowledgement relating to any assignment
of rights under any Transaction Document in such form as the Buyer may
require; and

(vii) promptly, such further information regarding the financial condition, business and
operations of the Borrower as the Buyer may reasonably request.

The Borrower will ensure that promptly upon becoming aware of the same, it notifies the
Buyer of any Termination Event (and the steps, if any, being taken to remedy it) or any
breach of, or Default under, any Transaction Document.

The Borrower shall notify the Buyer as soon as it is aware of any potential change of
ownership of the Borrower or failing this, upon the occurrence of a change of ownership,
in each case together with details of the exact nature of the change of ownership.

10.3 Sanctions

The Borrower undertakes that:

(a)

(b)
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it shall comply in all respects with the economic or financial sanctions laws, regulations,
embargoes or restrictive measures administered, enacted or enforced by Canada, the
United Nations, the European Union, the United States, (upon its exit from the European
Union) the United Kingdom, Switzerland, Singapore and any competent governmental
authority, including without limitation, OFAC and the United States Department of State
(“Sanctions”) that are applicable to it;

it shall not knowingly (having made reasonable enquiries) use the proceeds of the
Advance for the purpose of financing or making funds available if and to the extent such
financing or provision of funds would be prohibited by applicable Sanctions or would
otherwise, to the knowledge of the Borrower, cause the Buyer to be in breach of
Sanctions applicable to it; and
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(c)

it shall not knowingly (having undertaken relevant verifications) use any funds identified
as derived directly from any activity or dealing with any person or entity for the purpose of
discharging amounts owing to the Buyer in respect of the Advance to the extent such
provision of funds would cause the Buyer to be in breach of Sanctions applicable to it.

10.4  Anti-money laundering, bribery and corruption

(a)

(b)

The Borrower and each of its Affiliates has implemented and maintains adequate internal
procedures designed to ensure that neither it, nor its directors, officers, or employees
shall authorize the receiving, giving or offering of any financial or other advantage with
the intention of inducing or rewarding an individual or entity to improperly perform an
activity undertaken in the course of an individual's employment or connected to an
entity's business activities (in this Section, “Anti-Corruption Controls”);

In connection with the performance of this Agreement, it and each of its Affiliates has not
paid, received or authorized, and it will not pay, receive or authorize, any financial or
other advantage or the offering thereof, to or for the benefit of any public official, civil
servant, political party, political party official, candidate for office, or any other public or
private individual or entity (including to the Buyer, its Affiliates, officers, directors and
employees), where such payment, receipt or authorization would violate the Anti-
Corruption Controls; and

The Borrower and each of its Affiliates has instituted and maintains reasonable and
relevant policies and procedures designed to promote and achieve in relation to its
business activities, compliance with all anti-money-laundering laws and regulations which
are applicable to it in respect of each such business activity.

10.5 Negative Undertakings

The Borrower shall not:

(@)

(c)

create or permit to subsist any encumbrance over: (i) any of its assets which are subject
to or expressed to be subject to any of the Transaction Documents; (ii) its rights, interests
and obligations pursuant to the Transaction Documents or (iii) any of its rights or
entitlement to the Products;

enter into a single transaction or a series of transactions (whether related or not) and
whether voluntary or involuntary to Dispose of the Products or any assets used for the
production of the Products if the same could be reasonably likely to affect the ability of
the Borrower to perform its obligations under the Transaction Documents to which it is
party; or

(and it shall ensure that none of its Affiliates will) enter into new prepayment or pre-export
financings or similar financings which may affect the Borrower’s ability to comply with the
Transaction Documents.

11 Termination Events

11.1  The occurrence of any of the following shall be a Termination Event:

(a)

(b)

119456669 v4

the Borrower does not pay on the due date any amount payable pursuant to a
Transaction Document;

it is or will become illegal for the Borrower to comply with any of its obligations under the
Transaction Documents;
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(c)

(d)

(e)

the Borrower rescinds or purports to rescind or repudiates or purports to repudiate a
Transaction Document to which it is a party whether in whole or in part;

the Borrower breaches any representation, warranty or undertaking in any Transaction
Document;

any expropriation, compulsory acquisition, nationalisation, attachment, sequestration,
distress or execution or any analogous process in any jurisdiction affects any asset or
assets of the Borrower or any step is taken by any person or agency with a view to the
same;

any indebtedness of the Borrower is: (i) not paid when due nor within any originally
applicable grace period; (ii) declared to be (or a creditor of the Borrower becomes entitled
to declare) or otherwise becomes due and payable prior to its specified maturity as a
result of an event of default (however described);

a Material Adverse Change occurs;
there is any Change of Control;

if a judgment, decree or order of a court of competent jurisdiction is entered against the
Borrower (i) adjudging the Borrower bankrupt or insolvent, or approving a petition seeking
its reorganization or winding-up under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada), the
Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act (Canada) or any other bankruptcy, insolvency,
corporate or analogous law, or (ii) appointing a receiver, trustee, liquidator, or other
person with like powers, over all, or substantially all, of the property of the Borrower, or
(iii) ordering the involuntary winding up or liquidation of the affairs of the Borrower, or (iv)
appointing any receiver or other person with like powers over all, or substantially all, of
the property of the Borrower, unless, in any such case, such judgment, petition, order or
appointment is stayed and of no effect against the rights of the Buyer within 30 days of its
entry; or

if (i) an order or a resolution is passed for the dissolution, winding-up, reorganization or
liquidation of the Borrower pursuant to applicable law, including applicable corporate law,
or (ii) the Borrower institutes proceedings to be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or
consents to the institution of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings against it under the
Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada), the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act
(Canada) or any other bankruptcy, insolvency, corporate or analogous law, or (iii) the
Borrower consents to the filing of any petition under any such law or to the appointment
of a receiver, or other person with like powers, over all, or substantially all, of its
respective property, or (iv) the Borrower makes a general assignment for the benefit of
creditors, or becomes unable to pay its debts generally as they become due, or (v) the
Borrower takes or consents to any action in furtherance of any of the matters described in
Section 11.1(i) or Section 11.1(j).

11.2 On and at any time after the occurrence of a Termination Event the Buyer may, but is not
obligated to:

(@)
(b)
(c)
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terminate the Commercial Contract;
cancel all of the Advances at which time it shall immediately be cancelled;
declare that all or part of the Advances, together with all Unpaid Amounts be immediately

due and payable by the Borrower to the Buyer in cash, at which time they shall become
immediately due and payable by the Borrower; and/or
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13.1

13.2
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14.1

14.2

(d) exercise any or all of its other rights, remedies, powers or discretions under the
Transactions Documents.

Payments
Accounts

The Borrower shall make each payment due from it to the Buyer under each Transaction
Document, for value on the due date at the time and in same day funds in Canadian Dollars in the
place of payment. The Borrower waives any right it may have in any jurisdiction to pay any
amount under the Transaction Documents in a currency or currency unit other than Canadian
Dollars.

Business Days

Any payment which is due to be made on a day that is not a Business Day shall be made on the
next Business Day in the same calendar month (if there is one) or the preceding Business Day (if
there is not).

Partial Payments

If the Buyer receives a payment or delivery for application against amounts due in respect of the
Transaction Documents that is insufficient to discharge all the amounts then due and payable by
the Borrower thereunder, the Buyer shall apply that payment towards the obligations of the
Borrower in any order as the Buyer may choose.

Set-off

All payments or Deliveries to be made by the Borrower under the Transaction Documents shall
be calculated and be made without (and free and clear of any deduction for) set-off or
counterclaim.

The Buyer may set off any matured obligation due from the Borrower against any matured
obligations owed by the Buyer to the Borrower, regardless of the place of payment, booking
branch or currency of either obligation. If the obligations are in different currencies, the Buyer
may convert either obligation at a rate available to the Buyer in its usual course of business for
the purpose of the set-off.

Notices

Any communication to be made under or in connection with the Transaction Documents shall be
made in writing and, unless otherwise stated, may be made by electronic mail (email) or delivery
of a letter to the addresses below.

The address of each Party for any communication or document to be made or delivered under or
in connection with this Agreement shall be that set out next to its name below (or any substitute
address, email or department or officer as the Party may notify to the other by not less than five
(5) Business Days' notice):

In the case of the Buyer:
Trafigura Canada Limited

Suite 1700, 400 — 3rd Avenue SW
Calgary, Alberta, T2P 4H2

20

119456669 v4



14.3

15

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

15.6

15.7

15.8

Attention: lain Singer
Email: lain.singer@trafigura.com and houstonlawyers@trafigura.com

and
In the case of the Borrower:

Cleo Energy Corp.
200, 118 8th Avenue S.W.
Calgary, AB T2P 1B4

Attention: Kellie D’Hondt
Email: kdhondt@cleoenergy.com

Each notice or other communication to be given under or in connection with this Agreement must
be in English.

Miscellaneous

Any certificate or determination by the Buyer of a rate or amount or quantity or by the Borrower
under this Agreement is, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive evidence of the matters to
which it relates.

The Buyer shall be entitled to pass any information received by it under or in connection with the
Transaction Documents to any third party in connection with any funding agreements or
transactions contemplated thereby or in connection therewith.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties relating to the subject
matter of this Agreement and supersedes any preceding discussions, representations or minutes
of meetings between the Parties. No waivers or variations of this Agreement or any waiver or
variation of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing
and signed by the parties.

No delay or omission or failure to exercise any right or remedy under this Agreement shall be
deemed to be a waiver of such right or remedy or acquiescence in the event giving rise to such
right or remedy, but every such right and remedy may be exercised from time to time and so often
as may be deemed expedient by the Party entitled to exercise such right or remedy.

If any provision of this Agreement is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any
jurisdiction, that shall not affect the legality, validity or enforceability in that jurisdiction of any
other provision of this Agreement; or the legality, validity or enforceability in any other jurisdiction
of that or any other provision of this Agreement.

The Borrower may not assign, transfer, or create any encumbrance over any of its rights or
obligations under any Transaction Document. The Buyer may sell, assign, transfer or grant an
interest in its rights and obligations under any Transaction Document to any person without the
consent of the Borrower and the Buyer may create any encumbrance over any or all of its rights
and obligations under this Agreement in favour of any person.

In the event there is any contradiction or inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and
the terms of the Commercial Contract, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts (and by different Parties hereto in

different counterparts), each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument. Delivery by facsimile or other electronic transmission of
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an executed counterpart of a signature page to this Agreement shall be effective as delivery of an
original executed counterpart of this Agreement. The words “execution,” “execute”, “signed,”
“signature,” and words of like import in or related to any document to be signed in connection with
this Agreement shall be deemed to include electronic signatures, or the keeping of records in
electronic form, each of which shall be of the same legal effect, validity or enforceability as a
manually executed signature or the use of a paper based recordkeeping system, as the case may
be, to the extent and as provided for in any applicable law, including, without limitation, as
provided in Parts 2 and 3 of the Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act
(Canada), the Electronic Commerce Act, 2000 (Ontario), the Electronic Transactions Act (British
Columbia), the Electronic Transactions Act (Alberta), or any other similar laws based on the
Uniform Electronic Commerce Act of the Uniform Law Conference of Canada. The Buyer may, in
its discretion, require that any such documents and signatures executed electronically or
delivered by facsimile or other electronic transmission be confirmed by a manually signed original
thereof; provided that the failure to request or deliver the same shall not limit the effectiveness of
any document or signature executed electronically or delivered by facsimile or other electronic
transmission.

Fees, Costs and Expenses

Irrespective of whether an Advance is made, the Borrower shall pay to the Buyer all required fees
in the amounts and on the dates set out in this Agreement. If an Advance has not been made,
the Borrower’s obligation to pay such arrangement fee shall be discharged by way of deduction
from an Advance on the Advance Date.

The Borrower shall be solely responsible for all legal costs and other costs, charges and duties in
relation to the negotiation, execution, performance and enforcement of the Transaction
Documents, provided that such legal costs in respect of the negotiation and finalization of the
Transaction Documents shall not exceed the amount of $40,000. All stamp, documentary,
registration or other like duties or taxes, including any penalties, additions, fines, surcharges or
interest relating to those duties and taxes, which are imposed or chargeable on or in connection
with this Agreement shall be borne by the Borrower.

All payments or consideration payable or to be made under this Agreement by the Borrower to
the Buyer shall be deemed to be exclusive of any Indirect Tax. If any Indirect Tax is chargeable,
the Borrower shall pay to the Buyer (in addition to and at the same time as the making of such
payment or delivery of such consideration) an amount equal to the amount of the Indirect Tax and
the Buyer shall provide the Borrower all such information as required for purposes of claiming any
credit or refund under the applicable Indirect Tax. Where under this Agreement the Borrower is
required to reimburse the Buyer for any costs or expenses, the Borrower shall also at the same
time pay and indemnify the Buyer against all Indirect Tax incurred by the Buyer in respect of such
costs and expenses.

Law and jurisdiction
Law
This Agreement and any non-contractual obligations connected with them shall be governed by

and construed in accordance with the laws of Alberta and the federal laws of Canada applicable
therein.
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17.2  The courts of the Province of Alberta have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out
of or in connection with this Agreement (including a dispute relating to the existence, validity or
termination of this Agreement) or any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection
with this Agreement (in this Section, a “Dispute”).

17.3  The Buyer shall not be prevented from taking proceedings relating to a Dispute in any other
courts with jurisdiction. To the extent allowed by law, the Buyer may take concurrent proceedings
in any number of jurisdictions.

[Remainder of page left intentionally blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

CLEO ENERGY CORP., as Borrower

By:
Name:
Title:
By:
Name:
Title:

TRAFIGURA CANADA LIMITED, as Buyer

By:

Name:lain Singer
Title: Director

By:

Name:Corey Prologo
Title: Director
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Schedule 1
Form of the Advance Request

From: Cleo Energy Corp.

To: Trafigura Canada Limited
Dated:
Dear Sirs
Prepayment Agreement dated July 9, 2024 (the “Prepayment Agreement”)
1 We refer to the Prepayment Agreement. This is an Advance Request. Terms defined in the
Prepayment Agreement shall have the same meaning in this Advance Request.
2 We wish to request the Advance on the following terms:
Proposed Advance Date: [__ 1 (or, if that is not a Business Day, the next
Business Day)
Currency Canadian Dollars
Amount: L1
3 We confirm that each applicable condition specified in Section 3.1 (Conditions precedent) is
satisfied on the date of this Advance Request.
4 The proceeds of the Advance should be credited to [insert details of the Borrower’s account].
5 This Advance Request is irrevocable.

Yours faithfully

authorized signatory for Cleo Energy Corp.
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Schedule 2
Payment Schedule

Advance 1
Delivery Period Delivery Period? Relevant Amount Outstanding
From' To (Principal) Advance
-0.00
Advance 2
Delivery Period Delivery Period Relevant Amount Outstanding
From To (Principal) Advance
-0.00
Advance 3
Delivery Period Delivery Period Relevant Amount Outstanding
From To (Principal) Advance
-0.00

" Each Advance is meant to be paid in 12 equal installments prior to the Maturity Date for such Advance.
2 The last day of the Delivery Period should match the last day of an Interest Period so that Trafigura does not incur break costs. If
any amount is deducted or paid on a day that is not the last day of an Interest Period and Trafigura does incur break costs then it

will be indemnified under clause 3.5.
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B301-163430

I * I Industry Canada Industrie Canada
Office of the Superintendent Bureau du surintendant
of Bankruptcy Canada des faillites Canada

District of  Alberta
Division No. 02 - Calgary
Court No.  25-3163430

Estate No.  25-3163430 E/I ?3 20748

In the Matter of the Notice of Intention to make a proposal of:

CLEO Energy Corp.

Insolvent Person

ALVAREZ & MARSAL CANADA INC.

Licensed Insolvency Trustee

Date of the Notice of Intention: December 08, 2024

CERTIFICATE OF FILING OF A NOTICE OF INTENTION TO MAKE A PROPOSAL
Subsection 50.4 (1)

I, the undersigned, Official Receiver in and for this bankruptcy district, do hereby certify that the af orenamed insolvent person
filed a Notice of Intention to Make a Proposal under subsection 50.4 (1) of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act;

Pursuant to subsection 69. (1) of the Act, all proceedings against the af orenamed insolvent person are stayed as of the date of
filing of the Notice of Intention.

Date: December 09, 2024, 11:44
E-File/Dépbt Electronique Official Receiver
Harry Hays Building, 220 - 4th Ave SE, Suite 478, Calgary, Alberta, Canada, T2G4X3, (877)376-9902


BoltonM
New Stamp





CLEO Energy Corp.

Financial Statements
December 31, 2023
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)



CLEO Energy Corp.

Statement of Financial Position
(unaudited)

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

As at December 31 December 31
2023 2022
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,505 -
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 4,346 5,395
Other assets 61 72
Deposits and prepaid expenses 868 803
Due from related parties (Note 20) 790 1,341
Total current assets 8,570 7,611
Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 7,200 14,783
Right-of-use asset (Note 7) 1,596 4,032
Due from related parties (Note 20) 4,646 4,371
Total assets 22,012 30,797
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Overdraft - 643
Lease obligations (Notes 8, 20) 381 899
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 9) 20,928 19,738
Current portion of contract liability (Note 10) 216 154
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 11) 4,401 1,676
Total current liabilities 25,926 23,110
Lease obligations (Notes 8, 20) 1,411 3,228
Contract liability (Note 10) 80 202
Decommissioning obligations (Note 12) 11,554 10,638
Shareholder loan (Note 20) 419 505
Long-term debt (Note 11) 193 862
Total liabilities 39,583 38,545
Shareholder’s Deficit
Share capital (Note 14) - -
Retained deficit (17,571) (7,748)
Total shareholders’ deficit (17,571) (7,748)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficit 20,012 30,797

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors:

Chris Lewis
Director



CLEO Energy Corp.

Statement of Income (Loss)
(unaudited)

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the year ended

December 31
2023 2022
Revenue
Oil and natural gas (Note 15) 22,397 37,579
Royalties (4,038) (8,673)
Revenue from commodity sales 18,359 28,906
Other income (Note 16) 2,690 1,691
Loss on financial instruments (Notes 5, 10, 13) (237) (256)
Total revenue and other income 20,812 30,341
Government grant funding 59 1,111
Expenses
Production and operating (Note 21) 19,323 22,317
Transportation 423 467
General and administrative (Note 20, 21) 3,861 2,402
Finance expense (Note 17) 3,175 1,775
Depletion and depreciation (Notes 6, 7) 3,705 2,415
Loss on dispositions (Note 6 & 7) 207 -
Total expenses 30,694 29,376
(Loss) income before taxes (9,823) 2,076
Income taxes expense
Deferred income tax expense (Note 19) - -
Net (loss) income (9,823) 2,076

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CLEO Energy Corp.

Statement of Changes in Deficit
(unaudited)

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Number of Retained
common  Share capital deficit Total deficit
shares ($000s) ($000s) ($000s)
Balance — January 1, 2022 200,000,000 - (9,824) (9,824)
Net loss - - 2,076 2,376
Balance — December 31, 2022 200,000,000 - (7,748) (7,748)
Net income - - (9,823) (9,823)
Balance — December 31, 2023 200,000,000 - (17,571) (17,571)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CLEO Energy Corp.

Statement of Cash Flows
(unaudited)

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the year ended

December 31
2023 2022
Operating activities
Net (loss) income for the period (9,823) 2,076
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depletion and depreciation (Notes 6, 7) 3,705 2,415
Loss on sale of asset (Note 6) 207 -
Accretion expense (Note 17) 1,579 1,383
Unrealized loss (gain) on financial
instruments (Note 10) 237 256
Other non-cash items (462) -
Government grant funding (Notes 12, 21) (59) (1,111)
Decommissioning obligations incurred (Note 12) (747) (1,734)
Changes in non-cash working capital (Note 18) 2,162 (1,502)
Cash flow from (used in) operating activities (3,201) 1,783
Investing activities
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment
(Note 6) (415) (3,117)
Proceeds from dispositions (Note 6) 5,632 -
Changes in non-cash working capital (Note 18) - 449
Cash flow from (used in) investing activities 5,217 (2,668)
Financing activities
Increase in long-term debt (Note 11) 13,663 3,760
Repayment of long-term debt (Note 11) (11,247) (2,031)
Repayment of principal relating to lease obligations
(Notes 8, 17) (1,198) (1,221)
Increase in shareholder loan (Note 20) 129 835
Repayment of shareholder loan (Note 20) (215) (800)
Cash flow from (used in) financing activities 1,132 543
Change in overdraft during the period 3,148 (342)
Overdraft — Beginning of period (643) (301)
Overdraft — End of period 2,505 (643)
Cash interest paid (Note 17) 1,278 263

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CLEO Energy Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2023
(unaudited)

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

1 Reporting entity

The principal undertakings of CLEO Energy Corp. (“CLEO” or “the Company”), are to carry on the business of acquiring,
developing and holding interests in petroleum and natural gas properties and assets in the Western Canadian Sedimentary

basin.

CLEO was incorporated in Alberta, Canada and the Company’s head office is located at 200 — 117 8" Avenue SW in
Calgary, Alberta.

2 Basis of presentation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except as detailed in the accounting policies disclosed in Note 3 Significant Accounting Policies.

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on [July 31], 2024.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires Management to use judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial statements, and
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimated.
Significant estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are detailed in Note 4
Management Judgements and Estimation Uncertainty.

Functional and presentation currency

CLEQO's functional and presentation currency is Canadian dollars.

3  Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these financial statements.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash, overdraft and cash equivalents include cash on hand.

Financial instruments

CLEO'’s financial assets and financial liabilities are classified into two categories: Amortized Cost and Fair Value through
Profit and Loss (“FVTPL"). The classification of financial assets is determined by their context in CLEO’s business model
and by the characteristics of the financial asset’s contractual cash flows. Financial assets and financial liabilities are

measured at fair value on initial recognition, subsequent measurement is dependent on the financial instrument’s
classification.



« Amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, due from related parties, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, long term
debt and shareholder loan are measured at amortized cost. The contractual cash flows received from the financial assets
are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows. The financial assets and liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

« FVTPL

Derivative liabilities are measured initially at FVTPL and are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value
immediately charged to the Statement of Income (Loss).

« Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of financial assets is determined by measuring the assets’ expected credit loss (“ECL”). Accounts receivable
are due within one year or less and a lifetime ECL is measured at the date of initial recognition and reassessed at each
reporting date. ECL’s are a probability-weighted estimate of all possible default events related to the financial asset and
are measured as the difference between the present value of the cash flows due to the Company and the cash flows
expected to be received. The carrying amounts of the financial assets are reduced by the amount of the ECL through an
allowance account and losses are recognized within general and administrative (“G&A”) expense in the Statement of
Income (Loss). ECL allowances have not been recognized for cash and cash equivalents due to the virtual certainty
associated with their collection.

Property, plant and equipment

Items of PP&E, which include oil and gas development and production assets and corporate assets, are measured at cost
less accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization (“DD&A”) and accumulated impairment charges.

Depletion of development and production (“D&P”) assets is calculated on a unit of production basis relative to total proved
and probable reserves.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the life of the operating lease.
Capitalization of exploration and development costs

CLEO capitalizes all costs that are directly attributable to bringing an asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of use in the manner intended by Management.

Impairment of non-financial assets
o PP&E

CLEQO'’s only cash generating unit (CGU) is reviewed at each reporting date for indicators of potential impairment and, in
the case of previous impairments, reversals of those impairments. If such indicators exist, an impairment test is performed
by comparing the carrying value to recoverable amount. Any excess of carrying value over the recoverable amount is
recognized in the Statements of Income (Loss) as impairment.



Dispositions

Gains on disposal of assets are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the
assets held for sale and are recognized separately in the Statement of Income (Loss).

Depletion, depreciation and amortization

Development and production assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, depletion, and impairment losses,
net of recoveries. Development and production assets include all direct costs associated with the development and
production of crude oil and natural gas properties.

Costs accumulated are depleted using the unit-of-production method based on estimated total proved and probable
reserve volumes before royalties. Estimated future costs to be incurred in developing proved and probable reserves are
included in the depletion base.

Expenditures related to renewals or betterments that improve the productive capacity or extend the life of an asset are
capitalized. Where an asset or part of an asset that was separately depreciated is replaced and it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company, the expenditure is capitalized and the carrying amount
of the replaced asset is derecognized.

Decommissioning obligations

Provisions for decommissioning and restoration obligations associated with CLEO’s assets are recognized as
decommissioning obligations. These obligations are measured at the present value of Management's best estimate of
expenditures required to settle the liability as at the date of the balance sheet. On a periodic basis, Management reviews
these estimates and changes, if any, are applied prospectively. The change in fair value of the estimated obligations is
recognized as an increase or decrease to the liability, with a corresponding increase or decrease to the carrying amount
of the related asset.

The capitalized amount in PP&E is depreciated on a unit-of-production basis over the life of the proved plus probable
reserves. The long-term liability is increased each reporting period with the passage of time and the associated accretion
charge is recognized in the Statement of Income (Loss). Period revisions to the credit adjusted discount rate, estimated
timing of cash flows or to the estimated undiscounted cost can also result in an increase or decrease to the obligation and
the related asset. Actual costs incurred upon settlement of the obligation are recorded against the obligation to the extent
of the liability recognized.

Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income taxes. Current and deferred income tax expense is recognized
in the Statement of Income (Loss).

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.



Deferred tax assets and tax liabilities are offset to the extent that there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and the intent is to either settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realized.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in its principal or most advantageous market at the measurement date. To estimate the fair value of its
financial instruments, CLEO uses quoted market prices when available, or third-party models and valuation methodologies
that use observable market data. CLEO’s risk management contracts are carried at fair value on the balance sheet. Fair
value less costs of disposal is also calculated to determine the recoverable amount of non-financial assets.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are further categorized
using a three-level hierarchy that reflects the significance of the lowest level of inputs used in determining fair value:

o Level 1 — quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date. Active
markets are those in which transactions occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis.

o Level 2 — pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1. Prices in Level 2 are either
directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date. Level 2 valuations are based on inputs, including quoted
forward prices for commodities, time value and volatility factors, which can be substantially observed or corroborated
in the marketplace.

« Level 3 —valuations in this level are those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data.

At each reporting date, CLEO determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
the level of classification for each financial asset and financial liability measured or disclosed at fair value in the Financial
Statements based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Assessment of the significance
of a specific input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the placement within the fair value
hierarchy.

Revenue from commodity sales

Cleo sells its production pursuant to fixed and variable-price contracts. The transaction price for fixed price contracts
represents the stand-alone selling price per the contract terms. The transaction price for variable priced contracts is based
on the commodity price, adjusted for quality, location or other factors, whereby each component of the pricing formula can
be either fixed or variable, depending on the contract terms. Under its contracts, Cleo is required to deliver fixed or variable
volumes of crude oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids to the contract counterparty. The amount of revenue recognized
is based on the agreed transaction price, whereby any variability in revenue relates specifically to the Company’s efforts to
transfer production, and therefore the resulting revenue is allocated to the production delivered in the period during which
the variability occurs. As a result, none of the variable consideration is considered constrained. The Company recognizes
revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring control of a promised good or service to a customer.
The contracts generally have a term of one year or less, whereby delivery occurs throughout the contract period.



Government grants

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with conditions
attaching to the grant, and that the grant will be received. Grants related to income are presented in the Statement of
Income (Loss) and are deduced in reporting the related expense. Grants relating to assets are presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.

4  Management judgements and estimation uncertainty

The timely preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS requires Management to use judgments, estimates
and assumptions. These estimates and judgments are subject to change and actual results could differ from those
estimated. The key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments to the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and the disclosure of contingencies are discussed below.

Crude oil and natural gas reserves and resources

There are several inherent uncertainties associated with estimating reserves and resources. Reserve and resource
estimates are based on engineering data, estimated future prices, expected future rates of production and the timing and
amount of future expenditures, all of which are subject to many uncertainties, interpretations and judgments. Estimates
reflect market and regulatory conditions existing at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, which could differ
significantly from other points in time throughout the year, or future periods.

Recoverability of asset carrying values

Management applies judgment in assessing the existence of indicators of impairment and reversal of impairment based on
various internal and external factors. The recoverable amount of a CGU or of an individual asset is determined as the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The key estimates the Company applies in determining
an acceptable range of recoverable amounts normally includes information on future commodity prices, expected
production volumes, quantity of reserves and resources, future development and operating costs, discount rates, and
income taxes.

Key input estimates used in the determination of cash flows from oil and gas reserves include the following:

« Commodity prices — forward price estimates related to oil and natural gas commodities are used in the cash flow model.
Commodity prices have fluctuated widely in recent years due to global and regional factors including supply and demand
fundamentals, inventory levels, exchange rates, weather, and economic and geopolitical factors.

« Discount rate — the discount rate used to calculate the net present value of cash flows is based on estimates of an
approximate industry peer group weighted average cost of capital. Changes in the general economic environment could
result in significant changes to this estimate.

Depletion of assets

Depletion of assets is determined based on total proved plus probable reserves as well as future development costs as
estimated by CLEO’s Independent Qualified Reserves Evaluator (“IQRE”).



Lease Arrangements

Management applies judgment in reviewing each of its contractual arrangements to determine whether the arrangement
contains a lease. Leases that are recognized are subject to further management judgment and estimation in various areas
specific to the arrangement, including the lease term and discount rate. In determining the lease term to be recognized,
Management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or
not to exercise a termination option. Where the rate implicit in a lease is not readily determinable, the discount rate of lease
obligations is estimated using a discount rate similar to CLEO’s company-specific incremental borrowing rate. This rate
represents the rate that CLEO would incur to obtain the funds necessary to purchase an asset of a similar value, with
similar payment terms and security in a similar economic environment.

Decommissioning obligations

The provision for site restoration and abandonment is based on current legal and constructive requirements, technology,
price levels and expected plans for remediation. Actual costs and cash outflows can differ from estimates because of
changes in laws and regulations, market conditions, discovery and analysis of site conditions and changes in technology.

Fair value of financial instruments

The estimated fair value of financial instruments is reliant upon a number of estimated variables including forward curves
for commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and interest rates, as well as volatility curves and risk of non-performance.
A change in any one of these factors could result in a change to the overall estimated valuation of the instrument.

Income taxes

Tax regulations and legislation are subject to change and there are differing interpretations requiring Management
judgment. Deferred tax assets are recognized when it is considered probable that the deductible temporary differences will
be recovered in future periods, which requires Management judgment. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized when it is
considered probable that temporary differences will be payable to tax authorities in future periods, which requires
Management judgment. Income tax filings are subject to audits and re-assessments and changes in facts, circumstances
and interpretations of the standards may result in material increase or decrease in the Company’s provision for income
taxes.

Sale of royalty interests

When the Company sells a royalty interest linked to production at a specific property, judgement is required in assessing
the appropriate accounting treatment of the transaction on the closing date and in future periods. We consider the specific
terms of each arrangement to determine whether we have disposed of an interest in the reserves of the respective property.
This assessment considers whether the counterparty is entitled to the associated risks and rewards attributable to them
over the life of the property including the contractual terms and implicit obligations related to production over the life of the
property, the holder of the royalty having the option of either being paid in cash or in kind and the associated commitments,
if any, to develop future expansions or projects at the property.



5 Financial assets and credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to CLEQ if a partner or counterparty to a product sales contract or financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations. CLEO is exposed to credit risk with respect to its accounts receivable, due from
related party amount and cash and cash equivalents. Most of CLEO’s accounts receivable relate to joint ventures and
commodity sales and are subject to typical industry credit risks.

For the period ended December 31, 2023, CLEO had three external customers (December 31, 2022 — three) which
collectively represented all commodity sales from production. These customers are Canadian oil and natural gas marketers
and accounted for $1.1 million of the trade receivables as at December 31, 2023 (December 31, 2022 — $1.9 million).
Receivables from oil and gas marketers are collected on the 25th day following month of production.

Joint interest receivables are typically collected within one to three months following production. The Company mitigates
its credit risk with respect to joint venture receivables by obtaining pre-approval of significant capital expenditures. The

Company can withhold production from joint venture partners in the event of non-payment.

As at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company’s trade and other receivables is aged as follows:

December 31 December 31

($000s) 2023 2022
Current (less than 90 days) 1,987 3,598
Past due (more than 90 days) 2,359 1,797
Total 4,346 5,395

The Lifetime ECL pertaining to accounts receivable is assessed at initial recognition and re-assessed at each reporting
date. In making an assessment as to whether the financial assets are credit-impaired, the Company considers historically
realized bad debts, evidence of a debtor's present financial condition and whether a debtor has breached certain contracts,
the probability that a debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, changes in economic conditions that
correlate to increased levels of default and the number of days a debtor is past due in making a contractual payment. As
at December 31, 2023, the carrying amounts of the assets have been reduced by the amount of $0.5 million (December
31, 2022 - $0.5 million) through an allowance with a corresponding loss recognized within general and administrative
expense in the Statement of Income.



6 Property, plant and equipment

Corporate

Cost ($000s) P&NG Assets Assets Total
Balance — January 1, 2022 18,162 1,151 19,313
Revision in decommissioning obligation 3,617 - 3,617
Additions 3,117 - 3,117
Balance — December 31, 2022 24,896 1,151 26,047
Revision in decommissioning obligation 603 - 603
Additions 415 - 415
Dispositions (11,959) - (11,959)
Balance — December 31, 2023 13,956 1,151 15,107

Accumulated DD&A ($000s)
Balance — January 1, 2022 9,122 412 9,534
DD&A 1,616 114 1,730
Balance — December 31, 2022 10,738 526 11,264
DD&A 2,757 113 2,870
Dispositions (6,227) - (6,227)
Balance — December 31, 2023 7,269 639 7,907

Carrying amounts ($000s)
Balance — December 31, 2022 14,158 625 14,783
Balance — December 31, 2023 6,688 512 7,200

Future development costs to develop proved plus probable undeveloped reserves of $59.5 million were included in the
depletion calculation of petroleum and natural gas properties as at December 31, 2023 (December 31, 2022 — $59.5
million).

In December 31, 2023, the Company sold certain midstream assets and undeveloped land in the Fabyan area for gross
proceeds of $5.5 million and recognized $0.2 million of loss from disposition. As part of the transaction, Cleo also disposed
two equipment leases and derecognized the associated right of use assets and lease liabilities, which resulted in further
$0.3 million of loss.

As at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, there were no indicators of impairment.



7  Right-of-use asset

CLEO recognizes right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities related to its office space and leased equipment.

Cost ($000s) Head office Equipment Total
Balance — January 1, 2022 3,366 890 4,256
Additions - 1,990 1,990
Balance — December 31, 2022 3,366 2,880 6,246
Additions - - -
Disposals - (2,533) (2,533)
Balance — December 31, 2023 3,366 347 3,713

Accumulated DD&A ($000s)

Balance — January 1, 2022 1,430 101 1,531
Depreciation on ROU assets 318 365 683
Balance — December 31, 2022 1,748 466 2,214
Depreciation on ROU assets 318 516 834
Disposals (see Note 6) - (931) (931)
Balance — December 31, 2023 2,066 51 2,117

Carrying amounts ($000s)

Balance — December 31, 2022 1,618 2,414 4,032
Balance — December 31, 2023 1,300 296 1,596

In addition to the disposals of two equipment leases as part the sale of certain Fabyan assets (Note 6), the Company
terminated two equipment lease agreements during 2023, and recorded $0.3 million of income to gain on dispositions.

8 Lease arrangement

The Company has lease liabilities for contracts related to its office space and vehicle leases.

($000s)

Balance — January 1, 2022 2,885
Additions 1,990
Accretion 473
Repayments (1,221)
Balance — December 31, 2022 4,127
Disposals (see Notes 6 & 7) (1,587)
Accretion 450
Repayments (1,198)
Balance — December 31, 2023 1,792
Lease obligations due within one year 381

Lease obligations due beyond one year 1,411

Scheduled as follows:
2024 - $0.5 million
2025 - $0.5 million
2026 - $0.5 million
2027 and thereafter - $0.6 million



9 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
The accounts payable and accrued liabilities balance is comprised of:

December 31  December 31

As at ($000s) 2023 2022
Trade and other payables 9,024 11,126
Joint venture payables 5,937 4,553
Royalty payables 1,249 888
Land payables 1563 334
Accrued liabilities 3,153 2,837
Total 20,926 19,738
Current 20,926 19,738

Non-current

10 Contract liability

A contract liability was recorded on the sale of a royalty interest that is accounted for as a financial liability measured at fair
value through profit and loss (Note 6).

Changes to the contract liability balance during the period are as follows:

($000s)

Balance as at December 31, 2021 162
Accretion 13
Repayments (75)
Unrealized gain on revaluation 256
Balance as at December 31, 2022 356
Accretion 24
Repayments (321)
Unrealized loss on revaluation 237
Balance as at December 31, 2023 296
Current 216
Non-current 80

11 Long-term debt

December 31

December 31

($000s) 2023 2022
Sales-and-leaseback transactionst 929 1,740
Loans 3665 798
Total 4,594 2,538
Current 4,401 1,676
Non-current 193 862



Sales-and-leaseback transactions

The Company has entered into sale-and-leaseback transactions whereby CLEO has the right to repurchase the assets
and therefore retains control of the asset.

During the second quarter of 2024, Cleo entered into sale-and-leaseback transactions for gross proceeds of $1.2 million.
CLEO has the right to repurchase the leaseback assets and therefore retains control. Proceeds from the transactions
have been used primarily towards reduction of working capital deficits. The terms of the transactions range from 4 months
to 24 months.

During the fourth quarter of 2023, Cleo used a portion of the proceeds from the Fabyan asset sale (Note 7) to repurchase
certain leaseback assets for $1.1 million.

As at December 31, 2023, the assets remain in the Statement of Financial Position and the Company has a financial liability
of $0.9 million (December 31, 2022 — $1.7 million) measured at amortized cost. The implied interest rates on the
transactions range from 10.1% to 40%. As at December 31, 2023, a current obligation was recorded for $0.7 million
(December 31, 2022 — $0.9 million) representing the amounts to be repaid within twelve months of the balance sheet date.
The remaining balance will be repaid in 2024 and 2025. There are no financial covenants associated with the sales-and-
leaseback transactions.

Loans

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company received $3.0 million lending from various counterparties. Total
repayments made during the year ended December 31, 2023 were $2.3 million (December 31, 2022 — $0.6 million). The
principal and accrued interest repayments of $1.7 million expected to be made over the twelve months following December
31, 2023 have been classified as a current obligation in the Statement of Financial Position. There are no financial
covenants associated with the loans.

During the third quarter of 2024, Cleo entered into a trade receivable financing agreement (“Facility”). Cleo may borrow
up to $1.5 million or 80% of its assigned trade receivables, whichever is lower (“Borrowing Cap”). Borrowings under this
Facility bear 0.1% daily interest rate. Repayment of the borrowings (in whole or in part) occur when cash is received for
the assigned trade receivables. Cleo may borrow and repay repeatedly during the term of the agreement as long as the
amount outstanding stays within the Borrowing Cap. The agreement is in full effect until terminated by either party with a
30-day notice period. As of the date of this financial statements, Cleo has $1.5 million outstanding under the Facility, plus
$0.3 million of accrued interests.

The principal balances and accrued interest owing at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 are:

December 31 December 31

($000s) 2023 2022
Principal balance 3,110 620
Accrued interest 555 178

Total 3,665 798




12 Decommissioning obligations

Total decommissioning obligations were estimated by Management based on CLEO’s net ownership interest in all wells
and facilities, estimated costs to reclaim and abandon the wells and facilities and the estimated timing of the costs to be
incurred in future periods. The Company has estimated the net present value of the decommissioning obligations to be
$11.6 million at December 31, 2023 (December 31, 2022 — $10.6 million) based on an undiscounted total future liability of
$39.6 million (December 31, 2022 — $40.1 million). These payments are expected to be made over the next 10 to 45 years
with most costs to be incurred between 2030 and 2040. The Company’s credit adjusted interest rate of 10.0% and inflation
rate of 2.0% (December 31, 2022 — 10.0% and 2.0%, respectively) were used to calculate the present value of the
decommissioning obligation at December 31, 2023.

($000s)

Balance at January 1, 2022 8,965

Liabilities acquired 810
Liabilities settled (2,160)
Government grant funding (1,111)
Revisions to estimates 3,237

Accretion 896
Balance at December 31, 2022 10,637

Liabilities acquired 21

Liabilities disposed (6)
Liabilities settled (747)
Government grant funding (59)
Revisions to estimates 603
Accretion 1,105

Balance at December 31, 2023 11,554
Undiscounted future liability

December 31, 2022 40,097

December 31, 2023 39,654

13 Financial instruments

CLEO manages its capital structure and makes changes in response to economic conditions and risk characteristics of its
underlying assets. CLEO may change its capital structure by issuing new shares or new debt. CLEO’s objective with
respect to managing its capital is to maintain a structure allowing it to:

« fund development and exploration programs; and
« provide financial flexibility to execute on strategic opportunities.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments of the Company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, deposits, due from related
parties, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, shareholder loan, contract liabilities, and long-term debt. The Company
is exposed to financial risks arising from its financial assets and liabilities that include credit and liquidity risk in addition to
the market risks associated with commodity prices, and interest and foreign exchange rates. Net income (loss), cash
provided by (used in) operating activities and the fair value of financial assets and liabilities may fluctuate due to movement
in market prices or as a result of the Company’s exposure to credit and liquidity risks.



CLEQ’s net income (loss) includes the following unrealized losses on financial instruments:

For the year ended
December 31
($000s) 2023 2022

Unrealized loss on financial instruments (237) (256)

Fair value measurements

The Company has derivative financial instruments classified as Level 2 measurements in the three-level fair value
measurement hierarchy.

There were no transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy for the periods ended December 31, 2023 and December
31, 2022. The carrying values of CLEO’s cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities as at December 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022 approximate their fair values. Refer to Note 3 Significant
Accounting Policies for information on fair value hierarchy classifications.

Foreign exchange risk

North American crude oil and natural gas prices are based upon US dollar-denominated commodity prices. As a result,
the price received by Canadian producers is affected by the Canadian $ / US $ foreign exchange rate that may fluctuate
over time.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that CLEO will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company’s
financial liabilities include overdraft, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, shareholder loan and financing arrangements.
The Company manages its liquidity risk through short-term financing and long-term debt, and actively manages production

and the capital expenditure budgeting process.

The following table details CLEQ’s financial liabilities as at December 31, 2023:

($000s) <1year 1to 2 years Total
Overdraft - - -

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 20,928 - 20,928
Shareholder loan - 419 419
Long-term debt 4,401 193 4,594
Total financial liabilities 25,329 612 25,941

The timing of lease obligation settlements are scheduled in Note 8.



The following table details CLEQ’s financial liabilities as at December 31, 2022:

($000s) <1 year 110 2 years Total
Overdraft 643 - 643
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 19,738 - 19,738
Shareholder loan - 505 505
Long-term debt 1,676 862 2,538
Total financial liabilities 22,057 1,367 23,424

14 Share capital

As at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company was authorized to issue an unlimited number of common
voting shares at par value. There were no share issuances or redemptions in the periods ending December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares ($000s) shares ($000s)
Total 200,000,000 - 200,000,000 -

15 Revenue
A breakdown of oil and natural gas revenue is as follows:

For the year ended
December 31

($000s) 2023 2022
Crude oil 19,839 31,650
Natural gas 2,357 5477
Natural gas liguids 201 452
Revenue from commodity sales 22,397 37,579

16 Other income
A breakdown of other income is as follows:

For the year ended
December 31

($000s) 2023 2022
Processing income 2,573 1,587
Other 117 104

Other income 2,690 1,691




17 Finance expense

A breakdown of finance expense is as follows:

For the year ended
December 31

($000s) 2023 2022
Interest expense 1,278 263
Accretion on decommissioning obligations 1,105 896
Accretion on lease liabilities 450 474
Accretion on contract liability 24 13
Other interest and penalties 318 129
Finance expense 3,175 1,775

18 Supplemental cash flow information
Changes in non-cash working capital is comprised of:

For the year ended
December 31

($000s) 2023 2022
Trade and other receivables 1,049 (2,148)
Other assets 11 55
Deposit and prepaid expenses (65) (705)
Due from related parties 278 (318)
Long-term receivables 1,190 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 21 2,136
Contract liability (321) (73)
Change in non-cash working capital 2,163 (1,053)

19 Income taxes

The net income tax provision differs from that expected by applying the combined federal and provincial income tax rates
of 23.0% (2022 — 23.0%).

For the year ended
December 31

($000s) 2023 2022
Net income (loss) before income tax (9,823) 2,076
Expected income tax rate 23.0% 23.0%
Expected income tax expense (recovery) (2,259) 477
Non-deductible expenses 60 10
Change in unrecognized deferred income tax asset 2,199 (851)
Adjustment to prior period - 500
Tax affect from change in tax rates - -
Other - (136)

Income tax expense
20 Related party transactions

Key management personnel compensation



The compensation relating to key management personnel is as follows:

For the year ended
December 31
($000s) 2023 2022

Salary and short-term employee benefits 1,150 1,131

At December 31, 2023, the Company has a non-interest bearing loan outstanding of $0.4 million (December 31, 2022 —
$0.5 million) with an executive officer of the Company.

Other related party transactions
The Company has transactions with several companies related by virtue of common control.

Intercompany balances at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 are:

December 31  December 31

($000s) 2023 2022
Current 790 1,341
Non-current 4,646 4,371
Due from related parties 5,436 5712

The current portion of $0.8 million as at December 31, 2023 (December 31, 2022 — $1.3 million) primarily relates to
amounts prepaid to a company under common control in connection with the lease of its office space. During the twelve
months ended December 31, 2023, $0.5 million (twelve months ended December 31, 2022 - $0.5 million) was paid in
connection with the lease.
21 Government grants

The Government of Alberta’s Site Rehabilitation Program (“SRP”) provides grant funding through service providers to
abandon or remediate oil and gas sites. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company derecognized
approximately $0.1 million of asset retirement obligations as an in-kind grant ($1.1 million — December 31, 2022). The
benefit of the grant is recognized on the Statement of Income (Loss).

22 Contingencies

The Company is involved in litigation and claims arising in the normal course of operations.

23 Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been restated to be consistent with the current year’s presentation.






CLEO Energy Corp. [
5-Week Cash Flow Forecast ending January 10, 2025 Notes Week 1 Week 2 Week 3 Week 4 Week 5 5-week total
$CAD 000's week ended 13-Dec-24 20-Dec-24 27-Dec-24 3-Jan-25 10-Jan-25 Total
Cash Receipts
Sales (production settlement) 1 - - 791,916 - - 791,916
Total cash receipts - - 791,916 - - 791,916
Cash Disbursements
Payroll and benefits 2 78,157 - 158,840 10,000 800 247,797
Operating and transportation 3 - - 131,700 24,500 - 156,200
Mineral & Surface Leases 4 - - 9,622 24,489 - 34,111
Utilities 5 - 125,000 - - 125,000
Repairs and maintenance 6 - - - 79,689 - 79,689
Royalties 7 - - - 5,000 - 5,000
General and administrative 8 - - 62,240 525 8,740 71,505
Professional fees 9 - - 150,000 - - 150,000
Total cash disbursements 78,157 - 637,402 144,203 9,540 869,302
Net Cash Flow (78,157) - 154,514 (144,203) (9,540) (77,386)
Net Change in Cash
Beginning of period 78,157 - - 154,514 10,311 78,157
Net cash flow (78,157) - 154,514 (144,203) (9,540) (77,386)
Ending of period - - 154,514 10,311 7 7

UNAUDITED CASH FLOW FORECAST PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT, MUST BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE NOTES AND ASSUMPTIONS
& PRO RT ON THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

December 18, 2024 December 18, 2024

Chris Lewis Date Orest Konowalchuk, CPA, CA, CIRP, LIT Date
Director Senior Vice President




In the Matter of the Notice of Intention
to make a Proposal of
CLEO Energy Corp.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the 5-week
period ending January 10, 2025

Purpose and General Assumptions of the Cash Flow Statement

CLEO Energy Corp. (“CLEO” or the “Company”) has prepared this Cash Flow Statement and the
accompanying Notes to the Cash Flow Statement (collectively the “Cash Flow Statement”) in
support of the proposal proceedings that has been filed under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act
(“BIA”) on December 8th, 2024.

The Company has prepared the Cash Flow Statement based on probable and hypothetical
assumptions that reflect the Company’s planned course of action for the period from December 8§,
2024 to January 10, 2025 (the “Cash Flow Period”). Management is of the opinion that, as at the
date of filing the Cash Flow Statement, the assumptions used to develop the projection represent
the most probable set of economic conditions facing the Company and that the assumptions used
proved a reasonable basis for and are consistent with the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement.

The information contained in the Cash Flow Statement is subject to changing assumptions and/or
receipt of new or additional information; actual results may vary. This Cash Flow Statement should
not be used for any other purpose, and creditors are cautioned that the information provided in the
Cash Flow Statement could vary based on changing future circumstances.

The projected cash flow statement is prepared in Canadian dollars.

Hypothetical and Probable Assumptions of the Cash Flow Statement

1.

Sales consist of forecast oil and gas receipts based on forecast production at strip pricing as of
December 6, 2024. Proceeds from production are generally received on the 25 day of the following
month (or the following business day). Receipts are shown net of any working partner interest and
take-in-kind royalties and include collection of 5% GST.

Payroll and benefits include wages and benefits for thirteen (13) full time employees and six (6)
independent contractors. The employees and independent contractors are paid on a semi-monthly
basis.

Operating and transportation expenses include payments for contract operators, consultants, and
other operating costs such as trucking, chemicals, and related services. These expenses were
estimated based on historical data. The vendor list was reviewed and analyzed with the assumption
that some vendors may require COD payment terms.

Mineral and Surface Lease payments relate to Crown and Freehold lease payments required under
existing arrangements.

Utilities consist of payments to TransAlta for the Company's monthly power consumption. The
Company typically makes installment payments of approximately $100,000 to TransAlta in the
middle of the month, with the remaining balance paid at the end of the month. The payment



stipulated in the Cash Flow Period represents a deposit to open a post-filing account and is based
on approximately 50% of historical monthly consumption.

Estimated repair costs related to damages from a break in at the Silver Heights location. The
Company expects to be repaid these amounts by its insurance provider outside of the Cash Flow
Period.

Pre-filing royalties and GST remittances have been shown as unpaid, subject to the stay of
proceedings. Pending further review, these amounts may have priority claims but will remain
unpaid, unless they are determined to be paid with the consent of various secured creditors or by
order of the Court of King’s Bench of Alberta (the “Court”). Post-filing freehold royalties have
been forecast to be paid in the Cash Flow Period.

General and administrative costs include payments for the Company’s software subscriptions,
monthly rent for its Calgary-based head office, and insurance coverage, which was bound in August

2024, and is paid monthly.

Professional fees include the fees and costs of counsel to CLEO and the Proposal Trustee.






Purchase & Sale Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of the__22 day of June ,_2023.

BETWEEN:
Cleo Energy Corp .(hereinafter called the “Client”) a corporation incorporated under the laws of Alberta,
-And -
1992169 Alberta Ltd. (hereinafter called "Rise Capital") a corporation incorporated under the laws of Alberta
RECITALS:
WHEREAS Client desires to obtain financing by selling and assigning to RISE CAPITAL acceptable accounts receivable;

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and for other good and
valuable consideration (the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by each party), the parties hereby agree as follows:

1 DEFINITIONS

Capitalized terms, whenever used in this Agreement or in any Addendum referred to herein or attached hereto and not otherwise defined herein
or therein, shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in Addendum no. 1.

2 OFFERS
21 Client may from time to time, at its option, offer to sell, transfer and assign Approved Accounts to RISE CAPITAL .
2.2 The performance by RISE CAPITAL of its obligations under this Agreement is, in addition to any other terms and conditions contained in this

Agreement, subject to satisfaction of the following term and condition which is included herein for the sole benefit of RISE CAPITAL and which may be
waived in whole or in part by RISE CAPITAL in its sole and absolute discretion:

RISE CAPITAL shall have received the following in form and substance satisfactory to it:

(a) Copies of the charter documents, by-laws, shareholders agreement, if any, and resolution of the board of directors of Client authorizing
the transactions herein contemplated certified to be true and complete by an officer of Client;

(b) A certificate of incumbency of Client, together with specimen signatures of the signatories of Client;
(c) Certificates of good standing issued by appropriate government officials of the jurisdiction of incorporation of Client; and
(d) Such other certificates and documentation as RISE CAPITAL may request in a form satisfactory to RISE CAPITAL or Rise Capital’s
legal counsel.
2.3 Each offer to sell Accounts to RISE CAPITAL shall be in writing substantially in the form set out in the attached SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS

(see Schedule “A”) and shall be accompanied by the documents listed in Addendum no. 2.

24 Each offer to sell Accounts shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and shall remain open for Rise Capital’s acceptance
in writing for a period of five Business Days or such further period of time as RISE CAPITAL may agree in writing. Once an offer has been made, it shall
be irrevocable by Client until RISE CAPITAL either accepts or declines to accept it in accordance with section 3.1. If RISE CAPITAL does not accept or
decline to accept an offer within the period referred to above, RISE CAPITAL shall be deemed to have declined to accept the offer.

3 ACCEPTANCE AND ASSIGNMENT
3.1 In relation to any Account offered to RISE CAPITAL by Client, acceptance shall be constituted by Rise Capital’s dispatching a confirmation to

Client by facsimile, mail or courier in the form set out in the attached SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS (see Schedule “A”) confirming Rise Capital’'s agreement
to purchase such Account, accompanied by a cheque payable to Client as hereinafter calculated as the Purchase Price. If requested in writing by Client,
RISE CAPITAL may pay the Purchase Price for any Accounts purchased by it by wire transfer to Client’'s account with the bank indicated on the attached
Schedule "B".

3.2 Upon Rise Capital’s acceptance of any Accounts offered to it by Client, such Accounts are hereby transferred and assigned to RISE CAPITAL
, together with all rights under or in relation to the contracts to which the Accounts relate, including all liens or other rights in any Goods, materials or
products that are to be supplied, all Instruments, Chattel Paper, Documents of Title, Securities, deeds, documents, writings, papers, books of account,
other books, electronic and magnetic records and other records evidencing, recording or appertaining to the Instruments, Chattel Paper or Documents of
Title, guarantees and security interests taken or held by Client to secure the performance of any or all of the obligations of the Account Debtor/Debtors,
and including all Proceeds thereof, and Client’s right to rescind or terminate those contracts or to accept a return of any Goods or other materials supplied



under the contracts (collectively, the “Corresponding Rights”), and Client shall execute such other assignment documents to confirm same in a form
provided by RISE CAPITAL . By the said assignment Client shall have transferred to RISE CAPITAL absolutely all of its right, title and interest in and to
the Accounts and the Corresponding Rights purchased by RISE CAPITAL.

3.3 RISE CAPITAL is not obligated to buy any Account from Client and shall have no liability to Client or any Account Debtor/Debtors as a result of
its failure or refusal to purchase an Account.

3.4 Client hereby irrevocably appoints RISE CAPITAL as its attorney to execute (including the power to execute under Client’s seal) and deliver in
Client’s name all Instruments, Chattel Paper, Documents of Title, deeds or other documents that RISE CAPITAL may consider necessary or advisable in
order to convey Rise Capital’s title in any Account purchased by it and/or in any Corresponding Rights or perfect any security in respect thereof, and may
supply any endorsement to any cheque or other Instrument relating to an Account in order to obtain payment therefor, and the power of attorney granted
hereby shall be deemed to be coupled with an interest.

3.5 If, for any reason whatsoever, the transfer and absolute assignment referred to in section 3.2 is not fully and properly effected, until such time
as an effective formal assignment of each Account and all Corresponding Rights purchased by RISE CAPITAL is made, Client shall be deemed to hold
every Account and the Corresponding Rights relating to such Account in trust for RISE CAPITAL .

4 PRICING AND PAYMENT

41 The purchase price for each Account purchased by RISE CAPITAL (the “Purchase Price”) shall be equal to the outstanding amount remaining
to be paid on the Invoice rendered in respect of that Account, including taxes but net of penalties, duties, delivery charges or any other similar charges or
amounts (the “Gross Face Value”) less the discount set out in Schedule "B".

4.2 In determining the Gross Face Value of an Account, the outstanding amount remaining to be paid on the Invoice shall be reduced by an amount
equal to all discounts available to the Account Debtor/Debtors by virtue of such Account Debtor/Debtors paying the Account in full prior to the latest date
on which such Account Debtor/Debtors is entitled to pay such Account before it falls into arrears.

4.3 If RISE CAPITAL receives any payment in respect of an Account which exceeds the monthly or periodic instalment payment on an Account (the
excess portion being referred to hereinafter as a “Periodic Overpayment”) or which exceeds the Gross Face Value for that Account (the excess portion
being referred to hereinafter as a “Matured Debt Overpayment”), and provided such Account did not fall into arrears at any time, RISE CAPITAL shall,
subject to the rights of RISE CAPITAL and the Account Debtor/Debtors to such excess amounts, refund the Periodic Overpayment and/or Matured Debt
Overpayment, as applicable, to Client. All Periodic Overpayments and Matured Debt Overpayments shall be placed by RISE CAPITAL in any RISE
CAPITAL account, including, but not restricted to, a reserve account. All such amounts held by RISE CAPITAL may be applied by RISE CAPITAL against
charge-backs or any outstanding Indebtedness of Client to RISE CAPITAL and, subject to section 4.4, no such amount held by RISE CAPITAL shall be
paid to Client until any and all of such outstanding Indebtedness is fully paid and/or satisfied.

4.4 Provided Client has not failed to pay any outstanding Indebtedness of Client to RISE CAPITAL which is then due and owing and subject to any
application of any Periodic Overpayment and/or Matured Debt Overpayment by RISE CAPITAL against charge-backs, RISE CAPITAL shall pay to Client
the Periodic Overpayment and/or Matured Debt Overpayment for each Account after RISE CAPITAL has received full payment in respect of such Account.
Such payments shall be made within 24 hours, immediately following payment in full of the Account, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Client.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if, in Rise Capital's sole and absolute opinion, there is an adverse change in the financial condition of Client or theAccount
Debtor/Debtors in respect of which the Periodic Overpayment and/or Matured Debt Overpayment was made, or Client’s or such Account Debtor/Debtors’
ability to pay any amounts owing, or to become owing in the future, to RISE CAPITAL has been impaired, worsened or diminished or threatens to do so
(a “Credit Impairment”), RISE CAPITAL shall not be obligated to pay to Client any amount constituting a Periodic Overpayment or a Matured Debt
Overpayment until it is satisfied that the Credit Impairment no longer exists or all Indebtedness and obligations of Client to RISE CAPITAL have been paid
or otherwise satisfied in full.

4.5 The outstanding amount of Accounts purchased by RISE CAPITAL from Client and not yet paid for by its Account Debtors shall not exceed at
any time the amount referred to in Schedule "B" as the “Purchase Limit”.

4.6 RISE CAPITAL shall be entitled to deduct from the Purchase Price for the Accounts purchased by it as listed on each SCHEDULE OF
ACCOUNTS (see Schedule “A”) its standard wire transfer fee for all wire transfers and same-day or overnight courier service charges if Client requests
that payment be delivered to it in such manner.

5 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF CLIENT

5.1 As an inducement for RISE CAPITAL to enter into this Agreement, and with full knowledge that the truth and accuracy of the representations
and warranties in this Agreement are being relied upon by RISE CAPITAL in purchasing Accounts hereunder, Client represents and warrants that:

(a) Client is a corporation validly existing in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation with adequate corporate
power to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement and applicable schedules and addenda;

(b) This Agreement and applicable schedules and addenda executed by Client have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by
Client and constitute valid, legal and binding agreements, enforceable in accordance with their terms;

(c) to Client’s knowledge, no approval, consent or withholding of objection is required from any governmental authority with respect to the
entering into and performance by Client of this Agreement and any applicable schedules and addenda to be executed by Client, or if
any such approval is required, it has been obtained;

(d) the entering into and performance of this Agreement and any applicable schedules and addenda does not violate any judgment, order,
law or regulation applicable to Client or any provision of Client’s Articles of Incorporation or By-laws or result in any breach of, or
constitute a default under, or result in the creation of any lien, charge, security interest or other encumbrance, except Permitted
Encumbrances, upon any of Client’s assets or on the Accounts pursuant to any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, bank loan or credit
agreement or other instrument to which Client is a party or by which Client or Client’s assets may be bound;



(e)

(f)
()

(h)

U]

Client is duly qualified to carry on business in the Province of Alberta and all other jurisdiction(s) where it carries on business. Client
is properly licensed and authorized to operate the business of Adanac Rentals Inc. o/a LC Heavy Haul & QOilfield ServicesUnder the
trade name(s) Cleo Energy Corp..and Client’s trade name(s) has been properly filed and published as required by applicable law.
Client has fulfilled all local, provincial or federal requirements of law in properly registering itself to do business at all addresses where
its business is located;

No event of default (as set out in section 12.1) has occurred;

Client has made timely payment and/or local deposits of required taxes, including employee income tax withholdings, to Canada
Customs and Revenue Agency as well as to any other federal, provincial and/or local tax authority as they become due except such
taxes that are being contested in good faith or has otherwise entered in a payment plan in respect of any such amounts which payment
plan is in good standing and is otherwise satisfactory to RISE CAPITAL in its sole and unfettered discretion;

all financial records, statements, books or other documents shown to RISE CAPITAL by Client at any time, either before or after the
signing of this Agreement, are true, complete and accurate and represent the true financial condition of Client; and

with respect to Account Debtors and Accounts:
(i) Client is, at the time of purchase by RISE CAPITAL , the sole legal and beneficial owner of, and has undisputed title to, the

Accounts and all Corresponding Rights purchased by RISE CAPITAL free and clear of all liens, charges, encumbrances
and adverse claims except Permitted Encumbrances;

(i) Each Account offered to RISE CAPITAL and purchased by RISE CAPITAL is an Approved Account;
(iii) [Intentionally deleted];
(iv) Client has not received any notice, either verbal or written, of a Credit Problem concerning any of its Account Debtors which

Credit Problem has not previously been disclosed in writing to RISE CAPITAL ;

(v) Each Account Debtor/Debtors is indebted to Client for the amounts set out in each Schedule “A” submitted to RISE CAPITAL
from time-to-time;

(vi) each Invoice, Purchase Order or other contract or instrument provided to RISE CAPITAL as evidencing the agreement
between Client and its Account Debtor/Debtors in respect of any Account sets forth and constitutes the entire agreement
between Client and the Account Debtor/Debtors with respect to the subject matter thereof, there being no other written or
oral understandings or representations;

(vii) at the time of purchase by RISE CAPITAL , there has been no prepayment of payments or other monies payable under any
Account except as expressly disclosed in writing to RISE CAPITAL ;

(viii) all covenants, conditions and obligations of Client and each Account Debtor/Debtors under each Account offered to RISE
CAPITAL , including, without limitation, all conditions precedent to the obligation of the Account Debtor/Debtors to make the
payments, have been performed and fulfilled by Client;

(ix) as of the date of each offer, the Account Debtor/Debtors has performed and fulfilled all covenants, conditions and obligations
in respect of each Account and the Account Debtor/Debtors has agreed to continue to perform and fulfil such covenants,
conditions and obligations and has further agreed that its obligation to make all payments in respect of the Account shall be
absolute and unconditional under all circumstances and shall not be affected by any right of set-off, counterclaim or defence
the Account Debtor/Debtors may have against Client, RISE CAPITAL or any other Person for any reason whatsoever;

(x) each Invoice, Purchase Order or other contract or instrument provided to RISE CAPITAL as evidencing the agreement
between Client and its Account Debtor/Debtors in respect of any Account is in full force and effect and has not been
amended, changed or modified and shall not be amended, changed or modified without the prior written consent of RISE
CAPITAL ;

(xi) the Goods referenced in each Invoice, Purchase Order or other contract or instrument provided to RISE CAPITAL as
evidencing the agreement between Client and its Account Debtor/Debtors in respect of any Account have been duly
delivered to the Account Debtor/Debtors at the location specified in such Invoice, Purchase Order or other contract or
instrument and the Account Debtor/Debtors has duly inspected such Goods and has accepted such Goods for all purposes
of its agreement with Client;

(xii) the Goods referenced in each Invoice, Purchase Order or other contract or instrument provided to RISE CAPITAL as
evidencing the agreement between Client and its Account Debtor/Debtors in respect of any Account are presently located
at the address indicated on Schedule “B”;

(xiii) each Account offered for sale to RISE CAPITAL is an accurate and undisputed statement of indebtedness by Account
Debtor/Debtors to Client as a result of a bona fide and absolute sale of Goods to its Account Debtor/Debtors (which Goods
were delivered and accepted by its Account Debtor/Debtors) or performance of service by Client to an Account
Debtor/Debtors, and such Goods were not provided to its Account Debtor/Debtors on consignment, or on an approval or
hold basis, or by way of guaranteed contract or subject to any other contingency and is for a certain sum which is due and
payable in 30 days or less, or within such time as is agreed to, in writing by RISE CAPITAL and Client;

(xiv) Client does not own, control or exercise dominion over, in any way whatsoever, the business of any Account Debtor/Debtors
in respect of which an Account is offered for sale by Client to RISE CAPITAL ; and



(xv) Client has not transferred, assigned, pledged or granted a security interest in its Accounts or other personal property to any
other party which Client has not fully disclosed in writing to RISE CAPITAL prior to the date of execution of this Agreement.

6 COVENANTS OF CLIENT

6.1 In addition to any other covenants made by Client in favour of RISE CAPITAL hereunder, Client hereby covenants with RISE CAPITAL that so
long as any Indebtedness remains outstanding:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(h)

)]

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

it shall promptly notify RISE CAPITAL of any attachment, seizure or any other legal process levied upon or against Client and any
information with respect to Account Debtors which indicates a Credit Problem, including, without restricting the foregoing, any
attachment, seizure or any other legal process levied upon or against any Account Debtor/Debtors of which Client becomes aware;

It shall immediately upon the sale of any Account to RISE CAPITAL , make proper entries on its books and records disclosing the
absolute sale of said Account to RISE CAPITAL ;

It shall provide to RISE CAPITAL such waivers, subordinations, postponements or releases with respect to the sale of any Account
from third parties as may be requested by RISE CAPITAL ;

it shall continue to make timely payment and/or local deposits of required taxes, including employee income tax withholdings, to
Canada Customs and Revenue Agency as well as to any other federal, provincial and/or local tax authority as they become due except
such taxes that are being contested in good faith or that are part of an agreed to repayment plan;

It shall furnish, upon request by RISE CAPITAL , satisfactory proof of payment of any or all taxes required by law to be paid by Client;

It shall maintain such insurance covering Client’s business and assets in amounts reasonably satisfactory to RISE CAPITAL and has
arranged for RISE CAPITAL to be named as loss payee and additional named insured on such insurance policies;

RISE CAPITAL shall, upon 24 hours’ notice, at any and all reasonable times during business hours have the irrevocable right to
inspect, copy and use any and all records, whether in writing or electronically recorded, pertaining to the Accounts purchased by RISE
CAPITAL and as to any other matters relevant to the obligations and rights of RISE CAPITAL hereunder and to make copies of all
such records and enter into and upon the lands or premises where records pertaining to the Accounts may be located for the purpose
of inspecting the same, subject to Client's work schedules and reasonable security procedures;

it shall, at its expense, protect and defend Rise Capital’s title to all Accounts and Corresponding Rights purchased by RISE CAPITAL
against all Persons claiming against or through Client and shall, at all times, keep the Accounts and Corresponding Rights free and
clear from any legal process, pledges, commercial pledges, privileges, floating or fixed charges, judgments, distress or any analogous
process, statutory liens or trusts, liens or encumbrances whatsoever (except Permitted Encumbrances, including any placed thereon
by RISE CAPITAL or agreed to in writing by RISE CAPITAL ) and shall give RISE CAPITAL immediate written notice thereof and shall
indemnify and hold RISE CAPITAL harmless from and against any loss caused thereby. Client further agrees that it shall keep all
Accounts and Corresponding Rights purchased by RISE CAPITAL free and clear of any and all liens, charges, and encumbrances
which may be levied against or imposed upon such Accounts and Corresponding Rights as a result of the failure of Client for any
reason to perform or observe any of the covenants and agreements required to be performed or observed by Client hereunder or
under any Addendum referred to herein or attached hereto;

it shall provide written notice to RISE CAPITAL within 48 hours of Client obtaining knowledge from any source, of the filing, recording
or perfection by any means, of a non-consensual lien, claim or encumbrance against the Accounts and Corresponding Rights of Client;

it shall notify RISE CAPITAL in writing 30 days prior to any change in the location of Client’s place(s) of business or if Client has or
intends to acquire any additional place(s) of business, or prior to any change in the location of Client’s chief executive office and/or
the office or offices where Client’s books and records concerning Accounts and Corresponding Rights are kept;

it shall maintain its working capital at all times such that the ratio of current assets to current liabilities of Client shall not be less than
that set out in Schedule "B"; "current assets" and "current liabilities" as used herein shall mean the current assets and current liabilities,
respectively, as shown on financial statements of Client prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applied
on a consistent basis;

the ratio of debt obligations to equity of Client shall at all times not exceed that set out in Schedule "B"; "debt obligations" as used
herein shall mean the aggregate of all debt incurred, assumed or guaranteed by Client or upon which Client has otherwise become
liable as shown on the financial statements of Client prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applied on
a consistent basis, but excluding obligations in respect of deferred taxes; and "equity" shall mean at any time the aggregate amount
in respect of amounts paid up on capital of all classes, contributed surplus, retained earnings and the amount of any shareholder loans
in respect of which the obligations and security have been fully subordinated and postponed in favour of RISE CAPITAL on terms and
conditions acceptable to RISE CAPITAL in its sole discretion;

at all times the ratio of available cash flow to debt service expense of Client shall not be less than that set out in Schedule "B";
"available cash flow" for any financial period means earnings for such period before interest and debt service expense; and "debt
service expense" for any financial period means all amounts paid or payable during such period in the nature of compensation for
Indebtedness and obligations to any person, including interest and all similar amounts; plus the current portion of all PRESIDENT
repayments paid or payable;

the tangible net worth of Client, less amounts advanced to shareholders, directors or officers of Client, shall at all times be not less
than that set out in Schedule "B"; "tangible net worth" as used herein shall mean the equity of Client (as defined above) less intangible
assets, including the aggregate amount shown in respect of goodwill, trademarks, trademark rights, tradenames, tradename rights,
copyrights, patents, patent rights, patent licences, organization expenses, preproduction expenses, licences and franchises,
unamortized debt discount and expense, share issue expense, prepaid expenses, and the excess of cost of shares of subsidiaries
over net book value of underlying assets at dates of acquisition;



(0) It shall:

(i) set up and maintain accounting systems and books of account in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and practices and, at any time upon request by RISE CAPITAL, furnish all such information concerning Client’s affairs and
business as RISE CAPITAL may reasonably require;

(i) as soon as is practicable and in any event within 60 days after the end of each quarter of each fiscal year, deliver to RISE
CAPITAL the interim unaudited financial statements of Client and of each subsidiary and affiliate of Client, including in each
case a balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and a statement of changes in financial position, together with
comparative figures for the corresponding period in the previous fiscal year;

(iii) as soon as practicable and in any event within 120 days after the end of each fiscal year, deliver to RISE CAPITAL financial
statements in a form satisfactory to RISE CAPITAL prepared by a firm of chartered accountants acceptable to RISE
CAPITAL , which report shall review Client’s annual financial statements and each subsidiary and affiliate of Client;

(iv) as soon as practicable and in any event within 30 days after the end of each calendar month, deliver to RISE CAPITAL an
aged list by Account Debtor/Debtors of Client’'s and each of Client’s subsidiaries' and affiliates’ accounts receivable with a
minimum monthly balance that exceeds the amount set out in Schedule "B"; and

(p) so long as any obligations of Client to RISE CAPITAL remain outstanding and unless RISE CAPITAL otherwise consents in writing,
Client shall not, nor shall it permit any subsidiary or affiliate of Client to, incur or commit or agree to incur capital expenditures or
acquire or agree to acquire or lease any asset or property, which, in aggregate, exceed the amount set out in Schedule "B" per year;

and
(a) If an event of default has occurred and a Monitor has been appointed,

(i) disclose to the Monitor any information which it may have concerning Client and its subsidiaries and affiliates and its
business affairs;

(i) provide to the Monitor full access to Client's and its subsidiaries’ and affiliates' business operations, or assets, books and
records during normal working hours and instruct its bankers, accountants and other advisors and officers of any such
company to release any and all information required; and

(iii) Pay for the reasonable fees and disbursements of the Monitor.

6.2 In addition to any other covenants made by Client in favour of RISE CAPITAL hereunder, Client hereby covenants and agrees with RISE

CAPITAL that so long as any Indebtedness remains outstanding it shall not, without the prior written consent of RISE CAPITAL :

(a) Pledge the credit of RISE CAPITAL, directly or indirectly, to any Person for any purpose whatsoever;
(b) Guarantee, indemnify or provide financial assistance to, directly or indirectly, any Person for any purpose whatsoever
(c) Under any circumstances or in any manner whatsoever, interfere with any of Rise Capital’s rights under this Agreement;
(d) for the term of this Agreement and for as long as any Indebtedness whatsoever remains owing by Client to RISE CAPITAL , factor or

sell Accounts to any Person other than RISE CAPITAL ;

(e) Change or modify the terms of any Invoice, Purchase Order or any other agreement or contract which gives rise to an Account
purchased by RISE CAPITAL unless RISE CAPITAL first consents to such change in writing;

(f) pledge or grant a security interest to any other party in any Accounts purchased by RISE CAPITAL and any Corresponding Rights for
the term of this Agreement and for as long as it is indebted to RISE CAPITAL hereunder; and

(9) Sell, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its property or assets, or consolidate with or merge into or with
any corporation or entity.

7 SECURITY

71 As a further inducement for RISE CAPITAL to enter into this Agreement and as continuing collateral security for any and all Indebtedness of
Client to RISE CAPITAL under this Agreement, Client shall execute and deliver to RISE CAPITAL such Security Documents as RISE CAPITAL may at
any time or from time to time hereafter reasonably request, in each case within a reasonable time after the request therefor by RISE CAPITAL , and in
each case in form and substance satisfactory to RISE CAPITAL and RISE CAPITAL 's counsel. Client shall take such action and execute and deliver to
RISE CAPITAL such agreements, conveyances, deeds and other documents and instruments as RISE CAPITAL shall reasonably request, and register,
file or record the same (or a notice or financing statement in respect thereof) in all offices where such registration, filing or recording is, in the sole and
absolute opinion of RISE CAPITAL or Rise Capital’'s counsel, necessary or advisable to constitute, perfect and maintain its security as a first ranking lien
in all jurisdictions reasonably required by RISE CAPITAL , subject only to Permitted Encumbrances, in each case within a reasonable time after the request
therefor by RISE CAPITAL , and in each case in form and substance satisfactory to RISE CAPITAL and Rise Capital’s counsel.

7.2 Client shall execute such financing or renewal statements, affidavits or other documents for any registration or filing pursuant to any municipal,
provincial, state or federal laws, orders or regulations necessary or desirable to protect it or its interest in any assets over which security has been granted
by an Account Debtor/Debtors to Client, including, without limitation, registration under the Personal Property Security Act (Alberta) in the Province of
Alberta or under similar legislation in any other Province of Canada or jurisdiction necessary to perfect and preserve any security interest created under
any agreement between Client and an Account Debtor/Debtors.

7.3 Client acknowledges and agrees that RISE CAPITAL shall be entitled to execute such financing or renewal statements, affidavits or other
documents for any registration or filing pursuant to any municipal, provincial, state or federal laws, orders or regulations necessary or desirable to protect
Rise Capital’s interest in the Accounts and Corresponding Rights purchased by it or in any assets over which security has been granted to RISE CAPITAL
hereunder and under Security Documents, including, without limitation, registration under the Personal Property Security Act (Alberta) in the Province of



Alberta or under similar legislation in any other Province of Canada or jurisdiction necessary to perfect and preserve any security interest of RISE CAPITAL
created under this Agreement and under Security Documents. If the signatures of both Client and RISE CAPITAL are required in connection with the filing
or registration of any such security interest, Client shall fully cooperate with RISE CAPITAL in respect of such filing or registration.

7.4 Client hereby waives receipt of, and the right to receive, a copy of any registered statement or verification statement with respect to statements
filed or registered by RISE CAPITAL under any federal, provincial and/or state personal property security acts and the Civil Code of Quebec.

8 NOTIFICATION

8.1 Client’s obligation, if any, to notify any Account Debtor/Debtors of the sale/assignment to RISE CAPITAL of any Account owing by such Account
Debtor/Debtors to Client is set out in addendum no. 6.

9 RECOURSE

9.1 RISE CAPITAL shall have recourse against Client when an Account is not paid by a Customer for any reason whatsoever, including, without

limitation, in the following instances:

(a) Client has breached any warranties, representations, covenants or promises in the Agreement with regard to the unpaid Account or
otherwise;
(b) Client and Customer are involved in a dispute of any kind, regardless of its merits or validity; or
(c) The Customer asserts a claim, counterclaim, and right of set-off or cross-claim of any kind whatsoever against Client or RISE CAPITAL
9.2 By giving written notice to Client with respect to an Account for which RISE CAPITAL is entitled to claim recourse, specifying the name of the

Account Debtor/Debtors and the amount remaining owing in respect of the Account, RISE CAPITAL may require Client to immediately repurchase the
Account from RISE CAPITAL and the repurchase price in respect of that Account shall be the aggregate of the outstanding balance of the Account plus
the interest payable under section 9.3 plus all reasonable costs and expenses of RISE CAPITAL , including legal fees on a solicitor-client basis, incurred
by RISE CAPITAL in connection with such repurchase and any documents to be prepared or delivered in connection with same.

9.3 RISE CAPITAL shall be entitled to interest at a rate equal to the amount set out in Schedule "B", such interest to be payable from the day when
the Account went into arrears until the day when payment in full is made by Client.

9.4 RISE CAPITAL may deduct any amount payable by Client under sections 9.2 and 9.3 from any amount payable to Client under this Agreement,
and where such a deduction is made, Client shall be deemed to have made a repayment in respect of the repurchase of the Account.

9.5 Until such time as the repurchase price is paid or deemed to have been paid by Client, the Account and all rights, title and interest therein and
in all security, Security Documents and Corresponding Rights relating thereto shall remain vested in RISE CAPITAL .

9.6 Where Client has paid in full the repurchase price with respect to an Account, then,
(a) any remittance received by RISE CAPITAL thereafter in respect of that Account shall be paid by RISE CAPITAL to Client; and
(b) upon the request and at the expense of Client, RISE CAPITAL shall do, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be done,

executed, acknowledged and delivered, all and every such further acts, deeds, mortgages, transfers and assurances in law as Client
may require in order to complete or perfect the re-assignment of the Account and all Corresponding Rights to which it relates or in any
security relating thereto.

10 DISPUTES WITH ACCOUNT DEBTORS

10.1 Client shall promptly notify RISE CAPITAL of any dispute between Client and an Account Debtor/Debtors concerning an Account (an "Account
Debtor/Debtors Dispute").

10.2 Client shall promptly issue credit notes for returned Goods as accepted by Client from any Account Debtor/Debtors and provide RISE CAPITAL
with a copy of any credit note issued by Client to an Account Debtor/Debtors as soon as that credit note is issued. RISE CAPITAL shall continue to have
a perfected security interest in returned Goods until RISE CAPITAL has received payment in full of all Indebtedness relating to an Account in respect of
which Goods have been returned. In addition, Section 10.3 shall apply mutatis mutandis to return Goods as if the returned Goods were repossessed
Goods.

10.3 At RISE CAPITAL 's request and notwithstanding the purchase by RISE CAPITAL of the Accounts in respect of which there is a dispute, Client
shall exercise its rights as an unpaid vendor including Client’s right of repossession, if any, with respect to any Account purchased by RISE CAPITAL .
Repossessed merchandise recovered from Account Debtors in respect to which there are monies due and owing to RISE CAPITAL pertaining to an
Account purchased by RISE CAPITAL from Client shall be held by Client in trust for RISE CAPITAL until such time as RISE CAPITAL is paid in full with
respect to any Indebtedness due and owing to RISE CAPITAL from Client and, at RISE CAPITAL 's request, Client shall use Client’s best efforts to sell
such merchandise for RISE CAPITAL . Notwithstanding the repossession and sale of any Goods by Client in accordance with this section and for greater
clarity, Client is not an employee or agent of RISE CAPITAL ; Client and RISE CAPITAL are not partners or joint venturers with each other; and nothing
herein shall be construed so as to make Client and RISE CAPITAL partners or joint venturers, to make Client an employee or agent of RISE CAPITAL or
to impose any liability as partner, joint venturer, employer or employee or PRESIDENT or agent on Client or RISE CAPITAL , as the case may be.

10.4 Client shall not institute legal or collection proceedings against any Account Debtor/Debtors from whom monies are due and owing to RISE
CAPITAL with respect to an Account purchased by RISE CAPITAL without obtaining RISE CAPITAL 's prior written consent thereto.

10.5 RISE CAPITAL may commence legal or collection proceedings (a “Proceeding”) in respect of any unpaid Account upon providing prior notice
to Client. In cases of urgency, RISE CAPITAL may commence such Proceedings in its discretion and provide notice to Client within twenty-four (24) hours



of commencement. Upon RISE CAPITAL advising Client of its intention to commence proceedings, Client may instruct RISE CAPITAL not to proceed
accompanied by payment in full to RISE CAPITAL from Client of the total amount due and owing to Client from such Account Debtor/Debtors together with
all interest accrued thereon and all costs and expenses of RISE CAPITAL , including legal fees on a solicitor-client basis, incurred by RISE CAPITAL in
connection with such proceedings and any documents to be prepared or delivered in connection with same. RISE CAPITAL may take any reasonable
action it deems appropriate to collect any Account that is overdue from any Account Debtor/Debtors.

10.6 Whether or not, under the terms of this Agreement or any Schedule or Addendum referred to herein or attached hereto, or as a result of any
breach of any term, condition, representation or warranty contained in this Agreement or any Schedule or Addendum referred to herein or attached hereto,
Client is responsible, in whole or in part, with respect to payment of any Account or any deficiency thereof, RISE CAPITAL , without consultation or notice
to Client, may, but is not obligated to, settle or compromise any dispute with an Account Debtor/Debtors. Such settlement or compromise shall not relieve
Client of its responsibility for payment to RISE CAPITAL in full of any amount owing by it to RISE CAPITAL.

10.7 Where an Account purchased by RISE CAPITAL is, in the sole and absolute opinion of RISE CAPITAL , an Account for which RISE CAPITAL
is entitled to recourse, RISE CAPITAL may charge back to Client the amount of such Account by giving written notice to that effect to Client, and sections
10.1 to 10.6 shall apply, with the necessary modifications, to the repurchase of the Account by Client.

10.8 Mistaken, incorrect and/or erroneous invoicing, submitted by Client to RISE CAPITAL may, at Rise Capital’s discretion, be deemed an Account
Debtor/Debtors Dispute and be charged-back to Client.

10.9 RISE CAPITAL shall identify in writing all chargebacks when taken and provide to Client a written statement thereof. Said statement shall be
deemed an “Account Stated” between Client and RISE CAPITAL.

11 POWER OF ATTORNEY
11.1 In order to carry out this Agreement, Client irrevocably appoints RISE CAPITAL or any Person designated by RISE CAPITAL , its attorney or
agent with power to:
(a) Notify Account Debtors that Client's Accounts have been assigned to RISE CAPITAL and that RISE CAPITAL has a security interest
therein;
(b) Direct Client’s Account Debtors to make payment of all Accounts directly to RISE CAPITAL and forward invoices directly to such

Account Debtors;

(c) Strike out Client’'s address on all invoices and other documents relating to Accounts and Corresponding Rights mailed to Account
Debtors and put Rise Capital’s address on such invoices and documents;

(d) Receive, open and dispose of all mail addressed to Client at Rise Capital’s address;

(e) endorse the name of Client on any cheques, Instruments, Documents of Title, Chattel Paper or Security that may come into the
possession of RISE CAPITAL in respect of Accounts purchased by RISE CAPITAL or pursuant to default on any other documents
relating to any of the Accounts or Corresponding Rights or to Collateral;

f) register, file or record in all jurisdictions any notice or financing statement in all offices where such registration, filing or recording is,
in the sole and absolute opinion of RISE CAPITAL or Rise Capital’'s counsel, necessary or advisable to constitute, perfect and maintain
Rise Capital’s interest in Accounts and/or in any Corresponding Rights;

(9) In Client’'s name, or otherwise, demand, sue for, collect and give releases for any and all monies due or to become due on Accounts;
(h) Compromise, prosecute or defend any action, claim or proceeding as to said Accounts; and
(i) do any and all things reasonably necessary and proper to carry out the purpose intended by this Agreement and to protect Rise

Capital’s interest in the Accounts, Corresponding Rights and other Collateral.

11.2 The power of attorney granted hereby shall be deemed to be coupled with an interest.
12 DEFAULT
121 Any one or more of the following shall constitute an event of default hereunder:
(a) Client shall become insolvent or commit an act of bankruptcy or make an assignment or bulk sale of its assets;
(b) Client shall admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as they become due;
(c) any proceedings are taken with respect to a compromise or arrangement with any one or more of Client’s creditors, or to have Client

declared bankrupt or wound up, or to have a receiver or receiver and manager appointed with respect to Client or any of Client’s
assets and if such proceedings are not contested by bona fide action on the part of the Client or are not dismissed, stayed or withdrawn
within 30 days of commencement thereof;

(d) Receipt by Client of a notice of intention under section 244 of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada);
(e) Client terminates, discontinues or suspends the operation of its business;
(f) any Person takes possession of any property of Client with a value of $5,000 or more by way of or in contemplation of enforcement

of security, or a distress or execution or similar process is levied or enforced against any property with a value of $5,000 or more of
Client;



(9)

(h)

U]

0

(k)

Any change in the legal or beneficial control of Client occurs without RISE CAPITAL 's prior written consent;

any representation or warranty made by Client herein or in any document, financial statement or certificate furnished or to be furnished
by Client in connection herewith shall prove to be incorrect which, if capable of being cured, has not been remedied within 10 business
days after written notice to do so has been given by RISE CAPITAL to Client;

there is a material adverse change in Client’s financial condition or Client’s ability to pay any amounts owing to RISE CAPITAL has
been impaired, worsened or diminished or threatens to do so;

Client fails to pay any Indebtedness to RISE CAPITAL when due and such failure continues unremedied for more than 5 business
days after receipt of written notification from RISE CAPITAL to the Client of such failure; or

Client breaches any term, provision, covenant, warranty or representation under this Agreement, or any representation, warranty,
report or other statement made by or on behalf of Client contained in this Agreement, including, but not limited to, financial statements,
schedules, Schedules of Accounts, required forms or other statements furnished by Client or in any other agreements, contracts
between Client and RISE CAPITAL or obligation of Client to RISE CAPITAL shall be false, erroneous or misleading in any material
respect.

12.2 In the event of any default, RISE CAPITAL may do any one or more of the following without notice or demand to Client except as expressly
required under this Agreement:

(a)
(b)

()

(d)

(e)

®

)

(k)

(n)

(0)

Declare all Indebtedness immediately due and payable in full;

Deem all outstanding Accounts to be the subject of Account Debtor/Debtors Disputes and exercise its rights of recourse in connection
with such Accounts;

Notify any Account Debtors, take possession of Collateral and collect any Accounts, all without judicial process;

require Client to assemble the Collateral and all deeds, documents, writings, papers, books of account, other books, electronic and
magnetic records and other records evidencing, recording or appertaining to Accounts and Corresponding Rights and make them
available to RISE CAPITAL at a place designated by RISE CAPITAL ;

Take control in any manner of any reclaimed, rejected, returned, replevied, stopped in transit or redeposited Goods relating to any
Account;

Enter the premises of Client and take possession of the Collateral and of the records pertaining to the Accounts and, Corresponding
Rights and any other Collateral;

Exercise all or any of the rights and remedies of a secured party under the Personal Property Security Act (Alberta) under the Security
Documents or as a creditor under any other applicable law or at equity;

Grant extensions, compromise claims and settle Accounts for less than face value, without prior notice to Client;

use, in connection with any assembly or disposition of the Collateral, any trademark, trade name, trade style, copyright, patent right or
technical process used or utilized by Client;

Return any surplus realized to Client after deducting the reasonable expenses, and attorney’s fees incurred by RISE CAPITAL in
resolving said default;

Hold Client liable for any deficiency;

U] appoint by instrument in writing, or institute proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of, any
Person (including RISE CAPITAL ) or Persons to be a receiver or receiver and manager (a "Receiver") of all or any part of the
Collateral. RISE CAPITAL may remove or replace the Receiver from time to time and appoint another Person or Persons in its stead
or make application to a court of competent jurisdiction to do so. Subject to the provisions of the instrument or court order appointing
the Receiver, the Receiver so appointed or replaced shall have, possess and may exercise all or any part of the rights, powers and
remedies of RISE CAPITAL (whether conferred upon RISE CAPITAL by this Agreement or otherwise). For greater certainty, where
RISE CAPITAL is referred to in this Agreement, the term shall, where the context permits, include the Receiver so appointed or
replaced and the officers, employees, servants or agents of RISE CAPITAL and the Receiver;

request, by instrument in writing, that Client appoint, or institute proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment
of, any Person (including RISE CAPITAL ) or Persons to monitor the activities of Client generally and to verify compliance by Client
of its obligations hereunder (a “Monitor”);

charge interest on any Indebtedness outstanding at the highest rate permissible by law, which interest shall become part of and added
to the Indebtedness; and

Exercise any rights and remedies available to it in respect of Accounts and/or Corresponding Rights under all Security Documents
referred to in section 7.1.

12.3 All rights, remedies and powers granted to RISE CAPITAL herein and/or in any Addendum referred to herein or attached hereto are cumulative
and may be exercised concurrently or separately from time to time with such other rights as RISE CAPITAL may have. These rights afforded RISE
CAPITAL shall be in addition to any rights or remedies provided for elsewhere in this Agreement or available in law or equity and may be exercised from
time to time as to all or any part of the pledged Collateral as RISE CAPITAL in its discretion may determine.



12.4 In the event of any default, RISE CAPITAL shall not be required or be under any obligation to marshal any assets in favour of Client or any
guarantor/guarantors or any other party.

13 INDEMNITY

13.1 Client shall indemnify and hold RISE CAPITAL harmless from any and all liability, obligations, claims, losses, damages, actions and suits, costs
and expenses in any way relating to or resulting from this Agreement or any Addendum referred to herein or attached hereto, including, without limitation,
counsel fees, costs of suit and interest which RISE CAPITAL may incur due to the failure of Client to perform any of its obligations under this Agreements
or under any Addendum referred to herein or attached hereto and including, without limitation, the failure of Client to pay withholding taxes due and payable
to any taxing authority. If Client fails to perform any of its obligations, RISE CAPITAL may, but shall not be obligated to, perform any of those obligations,
and Client shall pay to RISE CAPITAL, immediately upon written demand, an amount equal to the expense incurred by RISE CAPITAL in performing those
obligations.

13.2 RISE CAPITAL shall indemnify and hold Client harmless from any and all liability, obligations, claims, losses, damages, actions and suits, costs and
expenses in any way relating to or resulting from this Agreement or any Addendum referred to herein or attached hereto, including without limitation,
counsel fees, costs of suit and interest which Client may incur due to a failure of RISE CAPITAL to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement or
under any Addendum referred to herein or attached hereto. If RISE CAPITAL fails to perform any of its obligations, Client may, but shall not be obligated
to, perform any of those obligations, and RISE CAPITAL shall pay to Client, immediately upon written demand, an amount equal to the expense incurred
by Client in performing those obligations.

14 TERMINATION
14.1 This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until terminated by 30 days prior written notice by either party.

14.2 Notwithstanding termination of this Agreement, Client shall continue to be liable to RISE CAPITAL for the full and prompt payment of Accounts
purchased by RISE CAPITAL hereunder which are then outstanding and unpaid, disputed or undisputed, and in respect of which, under the terms hereof,
Client is liable to RISE CAPITAL , as well as for any other Indebtedness due to RISE CAPITAL from Client. RISE CAPITAL shall continue to have a
security interest in the Collateral of Client, including any security interest granted under any Security Document, until all such Indebtedness of Client to
RISE CAPITAL is paid in full.

15 GENERAL

15.1 Client and RISE CAPITAL hereby acknowledge and agree that all schedules and addenda attached hereto or referenced herein shall be read
with and be deemed to be part of this Agreement as if they were contained in one agreement.

15.2 All provisions in this Agreement, or in any Schedule or Addendum referred to herein or attached hereto, to “Goods” shall be read mutatis
mutandis so as to include any “services” provided by Client to Account Debtors.

15.3 If any of Client’s shareholders, directors or officers have any interest, directly or indirectly, in any of Client's Account Debtors, Client shall notify
RISE CAPITAL in advance of such interest prior to its purchasing an Account with respect to such Account Debtor/Debtors.

15.4 All notices and other communications which may be given to any party pursuant to this Agreement shall be given or made in writing and shall
be served personally or by tele copier or mailed by prepaid and registered mail (return receipt requested) addressed to such party at its usual business
address or to such other address or in care of such other Persons as any party may from time to time advise the other by notice in writing. The date of
receipt of any such notice or communication shall be deemed to be the date of delivery thereof if served personally or, if served by tele copier, the date of
transmission thereof or, if mailed as aforesaid, the date next following the first Business Day next following the date of posting. In the event of interruption
of one or more of the forms of communication listed above for any reason, the parties shall use a form of communication which is not so interrupted with
the intent that the form of communication used will give the addressee timely notice of the communication.

15.5 Any amounts owing by Client to RISE CAPITAL hereunder shall be payable to RISE CAPITAL without the necessity of demand.

15.6 RISE CAPITAL shall be at liberty to appropriate any payment made to, or monies received by, RISE CAPITAL from Client, including any monies
in any reserve account, to any portion of the amounts due or to become due under this Agreement or in respect of any Account, and from time to time to
revoke or alter any such appropriation, all as RISE CAPITAL may from time to time in its sole discretion determine.

15.7 Each party hereto shall from time to time execute, draw, endorse and deliver all such instruments and documents and do all such acts and things
as the other party hereto may reasonably deem necessary or desirable for the purposes of carrying into effect any or all of the provisions of this Agreement
or any documents delivered hereunder or of securing the fulfilment of all the obligations of one party to the other party hereunder.

15.8 No failure or delay on the part of either party in exercising any power or right hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single
or partial exercise of any such right or power preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or power hereunder. No
madification or waiver of any provision of this Agreement nor consent to any departure by any party therefrom shall in any event be effective unless the
same shall be in writing and then such waiver or consent shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the given purpose. No notice to any party
in any case shall entitle the other party to any other or further notice in similar or other circumstances.

15.9 Any provisions of this Agreement or any documents delivered hereunder prohibited by law shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition
without invalidating the remaining terms and provisions hereof.

15.10 This Agreement and the schedules and addenda attached hereto shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect
to the matters described herein and shall supersede all prior agreements, arrangements, undertakings, understandings, collateral agreements and
representations, whether oral or written, relative to such matters. This Agreement shall not be amended except by an amending agreement in writing
signed by the parties hereto.

15.11 The undersigned hereby confirm their express wish that this Agreement and any documents related hereto be drawn up in English only and
declare themselves to be satisfied therewith, without prejudice to any documents which may, from time to time, be drawn up in French only or in both



French and English. Les soussignés conferment leur volonté expresse de voir la présente convention et tous les documents s’y rattachant rédigés en
anglais seulement et s’en déclarent satisfaits, le tout, cependant, sous réserve de tout document qui pourrait a 'occasion étre rédigé en francais seulement
ou a la fois en frangais ou en anglais.

15.12 Words importing the singular number only shall include the plural and vice versa. Words importing the use of any gender shall include all genders.
Where used herein, the word “or” is disjunctive but not necessarily exclusive.

15.13 All section headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and do not form part of this Agreement.
15.14 This Agreement shall ensure to and be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors, permitted assigns, trustees and legal representatives.
15.15 Neither RISE CAPITAL nor Client may assign its interest in this Agreement to any Person without the prior written consent of the other.

15.16 Except as is prohibited by law, RISE CAPITAL shall be entitled to charge Client for all costs and expenses incurred by RISE CAPITAL in
connection with this Agreement, including, without limitation, the costs of obtaining credit reports on Client or its Account Debtors, attorney’s fees (on a
solicitor-client basis) and costs incurred by RISE CAPITAL in the negotiation, preparation and execution of this Agreement and any documents related
thereto and in the prosecution or enforcement of any of RISE CAPITAL rights, claims or causes of action which arise out of, relate to or pertain to this
Agreement and the Indebtedness, including all attorney’s fees, interest and other costs and expenses incurred in connection with any bankruptcy or
insolvency proceeding involving Client. Such costs and expenses and attorney’s fees incurred shall be paid on demand by Client.

15.17 Except where otherwise expressly provided, all amounts in this Agreement and/or in any Addendum attached or referred to herein are stated
and shall be paid in Canadian currency.

15.18 Client acknowledges receipt of a true copy of this Agreement.

15.19 This Agreement becomes effective when executed in the places indicated below by authorized representatives of Client and RISE CAPITAL.
15.20 This agreement shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws of the Province of Alberta and for all purposes, including matters of
construction, validity, performance and enforceability be governed by the laws of such Province, and the courts of such Province shall have exclusive

jurisdiction over all matters arising in connection herewith. Client hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts located within the Province of
Alberta and hereby unconditionally waives its right to a jury trial in any suit or proceeding arising under or relating to this Agreement.

15.21 CLIENT ACKNOWLEDGES AND CONFIRMS THAT IT HAS REVIEWED THE CONTENTS OF THIS AGREEMENT AND ALL ADDENDA
ATTACHED OR REFERRED TO HEREIN, THAT IT HAS HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO SEEK THE ADVICE OF LEGAL AND OTHER COUNSEL
PRIOR TO EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT AND THAT IT HAS AVAILED ITSELF OF SUCH OPPORTUNITY AND OBTAINED WHATEVER
ADVICE NECESSARY TO ENSURE THAT IT FULLY UNDERSTANDS AND APPRECIATES ITS RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER.

EXECUTED AND ACCEPTED this 22 day of June . 2023.
Cleo Energy Corp. 1992169 Alberta Ltd.

By: = C'@?— prevwTere By, e Asaiad

Name: Chris Lewis Name: Dan Ardiel

Title: Director Title:  Director
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SCHEDULE "B"

Discount: Daily discount of 0.1% per day. (section 4.1)Purchase Limit:
$1,500,000.00(section 4.5)

Reserve:_20% (Addendum No. 4)

Bank Account (for wire deposits):

Branch: RBC: 117 8 Ave SW, Calgary, AB T2P1B4
Account: 1222041 _ Transit: 00009 Institution: 003

(Section 3.1)
Current assets: current liabilities: _N/A__to _N/A __ (section 6.1(m))
Debt obligations: equity: _ N/A_ to_ N/A  (section 6.1(n))

Available cash flow: debt service expense: _ N/A___to N/A___ (section 6.1(0))

Tangible net worth, less amounts advanced to shareholders, directors or officers: Cdn. $.N/A__ (section 6.1(p))
Aged list of accounts receivable - for accounts with a minimum monthly balance that exceeds: Cdn. $ N/A __ (section 6.1(q) (iii))

Maximum capital expenditures per year: $N/A __ (section 6.1(r))

Interest payable under section 9.3: 35%

Location of Goods (section 5.1(1) (xii))

Notes:

(IF ANY OF THE ITEMS LISTED ABOVE DO NOT APPLY, PLEASE INDICATE BY WRITING "N/A" IN THE SPACE PROVIDED.)

EXECUTED AND ACCEPTED this 22 day of June , 2023.
Cleo Energy Corp. 1992169 Alberta Ltd.
BV: — wr :—6. T rrrery== BV: ."-ermﬂea:.ef
Name: Chris Lewis Name: Dan Ardiel

Title: Director Title:  Director
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ADDENDUM NO. 1

This addendum, as referenced in the agreement dated 22 June 2023

Between Cleo Energy Corp., and 1992169 Alberta Ltd. (the “Agreement”), shall be read with and be deemed to be part of the Agreementas if this
addendum and the Agreement were contained in one agreement.

Capitalized terms, whenever used in the Agreement, shall have the following meanings:

"Accession" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the PPSA and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith;

“Account” means any right to payment for goods sold or leased and delivered, or for service(s) rendered,;

"Account Debtor/Debtors" means a person who is obligated to pay an Account or who is obligated to pay on Chattel Paper or on an Instrument constituting
Collateral;

"Agreement’, “this Agreement”, “herein”, “hereof”, “hereunder” or other like words means this Agreement together with the schedules and addenda
attached hereto and any other agreement supplementary or ancillary hereto;

“Approved Account” means an Account approved by RISE CAPITAL at Rise Capital’s sole discretion.

“Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or any other day on which banks are authorized or obligated to close under the laws of
Canada or the laws of the Province of Alberta;

“Collateral” means all the assets and undertaking of the Client and in all Chattel Paper, Documents of Title (whether or not negotiable), Goods, Instruments,
Intangibles, Money and Securities now owned or hereafter owned or acquired by or on behalf of the Client (including such as may be returned to or
repossessed by the Client) or in respect of which the Client now has or subsequently acquires an interest or of which the Client may hereafter become
possessed or to which the Client may hereafter become entitled and in all Proceeds and renewals thereof, accretions thereto and substitutions therefor
and in all real property of the Client including, without limitation, the following:

(a all inventory of whatever kind and wherever situated now owned or hereafter acquired or reacquired by the Client including, without limitation, all Goods,
merchandise, raw materials, Goods in process and finished Goods held for sale, lease or resale or furnished or to be furnished under contracts for service
or used or consumed in the Client's business (collectively, the "Inventory");

(b all equipment of whatever kind and wherever situated now owned or hereafter acquired by the Client including, without limitation, all tools, machinery,
apparatus, furniture, plant, fixtures and vehicles of whatsoever kind and all purchase warranties, manufacturer's claims, drawings, specifications, plans
and manuals relating thereto (collectively, the "Equipment");

(c all Accounts, debts, dues, claims, chooses in action and demands of every kind howsoever arising or secured and whether or not earned by performance,
including letters of credit and advices of credit, that are now due, owing or accruing or growing due to or owned by or that may hereafter become due,
owing or accruing or growing due to or owned by the Client, and also all securities, security interests, guarantees, mortgages, bills, notes, instruments,
writings and other documents that are now held or owned or that may hereafter be taken, held or owned by or on behalf of the Client in respect of such
Accounts, debts, dues, claims, chooses in action and demands or any part thereof (collectively, the "Rights to Payment");

(d all deeds, documents, writings, papers, books of account, other books, electronic and magnetic records and other records evidencing, recording or
appertaining to the Rights to Payment, Chattel Paper or Documents of Title;

(e all contractual and other rights, claims under policies of insurance, causes of action, franchises, licences, goodwill, inventions, patents, patent rights,
designer rights, trademarks, trade names, copyrights, processes, formulae, industrial designs, trade secrets, know-how and other industrial and intellectual
property rights, whether registered or unregistered and whether under licence or otherwise; and

(f all property described in any schedule or addendum now or hereafter annexed hereto;

"Chattel Paper" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the PPSA and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith;

"Consumer Goods" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the PPSA and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith;

"Corresponding Rights" has the meaning ascribed thereto in section 3.2;

"Credit Impairment" has the meaning ascribed thereto in section 4.4 and Addendum no. 4;

“Credit Problem” means, in the sole and absolute opinion of RISE CAPITAL, Customer is unable to pay its debts because of its bankruptcy, insolvency
or bona fide inability to pay;

“Customer” means Client’s customer and Account debtor/debtors;

“Customer Dispute” means a claim by Customer against Client of any kind whatsoever that reduces the amount collectible from Customer by RISE
CAPITAL. A Customer Dispute may arise from any kind of disagreement between Customer and Client whatsoever, whether valid or invalid, and may
arise at any time, both before or after the signing of this Agreement or the purchase of the Account by RISE CAPITAL;

"Documents of Title" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the PPSA and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith;

"Goods" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the PPSA and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith and, for the purposes of this agreement, shall
include all parts, accessories, attachments, special tools, additions and Accessions thereto, but shall exclude Consumer Goods;

"Equipment" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the definition of "Collateral”;

"Gross Face Value" has the meaning ascribed thereto in sections 4.1 and 4.2;
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"Indebtedness" means any and all obligations, indebtedness and liability of the Client to RISE CAPITAL (including interest thereon) arising under this
Agreement;

"Instruments" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the PPSA and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith;
"Intangibles" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the PPSA and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith;
"Inventory" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the definition of "Collateral”;

"Invoice" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Addendum no. 2 or 3, as applicable;

"Money" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the PPSA and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith;

“Monitor” has the meaning ascribed thereto in section 12.2(m);
“Overpayment” has the meaning ascribed thereto in section 4.3;

“Permitted Encumbrances” means:

(i) liens for taxes, assessments or governmental charges incurred in the ordinary course of business that are not yet due and payable or the validity of
which is being actively and diligently contested in good faith by Client or in respect of which Client has established on its books reserves considered by it
and its auditors to be adequate therefor;

(i) construction, mechanics’, carriers’, warehousemen’s and materialmen’s liens and liens in respect of vacation pay, workers’ compensation,
unemployment insurance or similar statutory obligations, provided the obligations secured by such liens are not yet due and payable and, in the case of
construction liens, which have not yet been filed or for which Client has not received written notice of a lien;

(iii) Deposits to secure public or statutory obligations or in connection with any matter giving rise to a lien described in (b) above;

(iv) Any liens, security interests, encumbrances or other charges in favour of RISE CAPITAL;

(v) Purchase money security interests, as defined in the PPSA;

(vi) any lien, other than a construction lien, payment of which has been provided for by deposit with a bank of an amount in cash, or the obtaining of a
surety bond or letter of credit satisfactory to RISE CAPITAL, sufficient in either case to pay or discharge such lien or upon other terms satisfactory to RISE
CAPITAL ; and

(vii) Any other lien which RISE CAPITAL approves in writing as a Permitted Encumbrance;

“Person” includes an individual, corporation, partnership, trust, unincorporated association or any government, Crown corporation or governmental agency
or authority, or any combination of the above;

"PPSA" means the Personal Property Security Act (Alberta) and all regulations made pursuant thereto;

"Proceeds" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the PPSA and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith and shall, by way of example, include trade-
ins, equipment, cash, bank accounts, notes, Chattel Paper, Goods, contract rights, accounts and any other personal property or obligation received when
such collateral or the proceeds thereof is sold, exchanged, collected or otherwise disposed of;

"Purchase Orders" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Addendum no. 2 or 3, as applicable;

"Purchase Price" has the meaning ascribed thereto in section 4.1;

"Receiver" has the meaning ascribed thereto in section 12.2(1);

“Reserve” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Addendum no. 4; and

"Securities" has the meaning ascribed thereto in the PPSA and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith; and

“Security Documents” means, collectively, any agreements, instruments and documents delivered from time to time (both before and after the date of
this Agreement) to RISE CAPITAL by Client for the purpose of establishing, perfecting, preserving or protecting the interest of RISE CAPITAL in the

Accounts purchased by RISE CAPITAL and Corresponding Rights and in respect of all amounts outstanding hereunder or any other Indebtedness,
including, without limitation, guarantees, debentures, general security agreements, general assignments of receivables and share pledge agreements.



EXECUTED AND ACCEPTED this

Cleo Energy Corp.

-14 -

22 day of June

, 2023.

1992169 Alberta Ltd.

BV: Z:?Fnﬁ— ﬁ,;.:-ﬁ.s.._—?"

5 Ce=—
V.:A

Tistophrertews (I 27,2023 136 M T

Name: Chris Lewis

Title: Director

Name: Dan Ardiel

Title:  Director
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ADDENDUM NO. 4
(For use when a "reserve" fund is required)

This addendum, as referenced in the agreement dated 22 June, 2023 between
Cleo Energy Corp., and 1992169 Alberta Ltd. (the “Agreement”), shall be read with and be deemed to be part of the Agreement as if this
addendum and the Agreement were contained in one agreement.

Capitalized words used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Agreement or in Addendum
no. 1.

In addition to the discount referred to in section 4.1, RISE CAPITAL shall reserve and withhold from the Purchase Price for each Account
purchased by it an amount in a reserve account equal to the percentage of the Gross Face Value of such Account set out in the SCHEDULE OF
ACCOUNTS (a “Reserve”). All amounts held in said reserve account may be applied by RISE CAPITAL against charge-backs or any other obligations of
Client to RISE CAPITAL known or anticipated and, subject to the following paragraph, no amount held in said reserve account shall be paid to Client until
any and all of such obligations are fully paid and/or satisfied.

Provided Client has not failed to pay any outstanding Indebtedness of Client to RISE CAPITAL which is then due and owing, RISE CAPITAL
shall pay to Client from the reserve account the Reserve for each Account after RISE CAPITAL has received full payment in respect of such Account.
Such payments shall be made within ten Business Days immediately following payment in full of the Account, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by
RISE CAPITAL. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if, in Rise Capital’s sole and absolute opinion, there is an adverse change in the financial condition of Client
or the Customer in respect of which the Reserve was made, or Client’s or such Customer’s ability to pay any amounts owing to RISE CAPITAL has been
impaired, worsened or diminished or threatens to do so (a “Credit Impairment”), RISE CAPITAL shall not be obligated to pay to Client any amountfrom
the reserve account until it is satisfied that the Credit Impairment no longer exists.

EXECUTED AND ACCEPTED this 22 day of June , 2023.
Cleo Energy Corp. 1992169 Alberta Ltd.
By — By: e Alrediad
Name: Chris Lewis Name: Dan Ardiel

Title: Director Title:  Director



-16 -

ADDENDUM NO. 6
(For use when "notification" is to be provided to Client's customer)

This addendum, as referenced in the agreement dated_22 June, 2023 between
Cleo Energy Corp. And 1992169 Alberta Ltd. contained in one agreement.

Capitalized words used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Agreement or in Addendum
no. 1.

NOTIFICATION
Client agrees to notify each Customer of the sale/assignment to RISE CAPITAL of any Account owing by such Customer to Client in writing on

Client’s letterhead substantially in the form set out in the attached NOTIFICATION OF ASSIGNMENT (see Schedule “A” attached hereto) advising the
Customer that all future payments are to be made only to RISE CAPITAL directly.

EXECUTED AND ACCEPTED this 22 day of June , 2023
Cleo Energy Corp. 1992169 Alberta Ltd.
By: Ce=— i
e A :
Name: Chris Lewis Name: Dan Ardiel

Title: Director Title:  Director
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RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF
Cleo Energy Corp..
(The "Corporation")

WHEREAS 1992169 ALBERTA LTD. (“Rise Capital”) has agreed to establish a factor facility (the "Facility");

AND WHEREAS the Corporation has agreed to provide to the RISE CAPITAL certain mortgages, charges, assignments and security agreements in order
to secure the Facility;

NOW THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Corporation is authorized to enter into and to perform its agreements and obligations set out in, and to encumber its property and assets in
the manner contemplated by, each of the following (hereinafter collectively called the "Documents"):
(a) Factor Agreement;
(b) General Security Agreement; and
(c) Non-Merger Acknowledgement.
2. Any director or officer of the Corporation is authorized and directed:
(a) to execute and to deliver the Documents and all agreements, instruments and other documents as he, in his sole discretion, considers

necessary, desirable or useful in connection with the Facility, each to be in such form and content as he may approve, his signature
thereto to be conclusive evidence of such approval; and

(b) to do all such further acts and things and give such further assurances as he, in his sole discretion, considers necessary, desirable or
useful in connection with the Facility.

THE FOREGOING IS HEREBY CERTIFIED to be a true and correct copy of a resolution of the board of directors of the Corporation passed in the manner
required by law, which resolution is in full force and effect, unamended as of the date hereof.

DATED this 22 day of June , 2023

Cleo Energy Corp.
—Ctr topiTer tewis (U 27, 2023 T30 ™MD Ty

Name: Chris Lewis

Title: Director

CERTIFICATE OF INCUMBENCY OF

Cleo Energy Corp..

1. The following persons are the duly elected or appointed directors of the Corporation and each qualifies as a director of the Corporation:
(The "Corporation")

2. The following persons are the duly elected or appointed officers of the Corporation and hold the offices in the Corporation set out opposite their
respective names:
NAME OF OFFICER OFFICE
Chris Lewis

Director
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3. The following are the genuine signatures of the following officers and directors of the Corporation:

NAME OF OFFICER/DIRECTOR SPECIMEN SIGNATURE

Ces=—

Chris Lewis Christopher Lewis (Jun 27, 2023 11:30 MDT)

The undersigned certifier, being an officer or director of the Corporation, certifies the foregoing this__22 day of___June

, 2023.

Cas=—

BY: Christopher | ewis (Jun 27 20231130 MDT)

Name: Chris Lewis

Title: Director
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CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATE AUTHORITY

1992169 Alberta Ltd. factor facility with Cleo Energy Corp.

The undersigned, being an officer or director of Cleo Energy Corp., (the "Corporation") certifies that:

1.

The Corporation has been incorporated or amalgamated under the laws of the Province of__Alberta _ and its constating documents are in full
force and effect and no proceedings have been taken to amend, surrender or cancel them.

The minute books of the Corporation contain all the resolutions and other proceedings of the directors and shareholders of the Corporation.

All filings and remittances that are required under the Business Corporations Act (all applicable provinces) by the Corporation unless otherwise
agreed in writing by RISE CAPITAL.

There are no provisions in the constating documents of the Corporation or in any written agreement among all of the shareholders of the
Corporation or in any written agreement among all of the shareholders of the Corporation and one or more persons who are not shareholders
of the Corporation or in any written declaration by a person who is the beneficial owner of all of the issued shares of the Corporation which
restrict or limit the powers of the directors of the Corporation to:

(a) Manage or supervise the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation;

(b) Borrow money upon the credit of the Corporation;

(c) Issue, reissue, sell or pledge debt obligations of the Corporation; or

(d) Mortgage, hypothecate, pledge or otherwise create a security interest in all or any property of the Corporation, owned or subsequently

acquired, to secure any obligation of the Corporation.

Neither the execution, delivery nor performance by the Corporation of its obligations set out in any agreement, instrument or other document
entered into in connection with the above-noted transaction will conflict with, be in or contribute to a contravention, breach or default under the
Corporation's constating documents or resolutions or under any agreement, instrument or other document to which the Corporation is a party or
by which the Corporation is bound other than with respect to the Corporation’s agreements with its senior lender (the “Lender”); provided
however, the Corporation shall enter into an agreement with the Lender in form and content satisfactory to RISE CAPITAL which shall require
the Corporation to repay the amounts owing to the Lender over a six (6) month period in accordance with a repayment schedule upon which the
Lender shall release its security over the Corporation’s assets. .

No acts or proceedings have been taken by or against the Corporation in connection with any Reorganization (as defined in the Business
Corporations Act), any Arrangement (as defined in the Business Corporations Act) or any liquidation, winding-up, dissolution, insolvency or
bankruptcy and the Corporation is not in the course of any such changes and has not received any notice with respect thereto.

| have carefully reviewed those records of the Corporation and have made such inquiries and investigations as are necessary to enable me to
make all the statements and certifications set out herein.

DATED this_ 22 day of __ June , 2023.

BY oo o o7 aoasiimoinT
= - :

Name: Chris Lewis

Title: Director
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CERTIFICATE RE: ARTICLES AND BY-LAWS

TO:
RE: 1992169 Alberta Ltd. factor facility with Cleo Energy Corp. (the "Corporation")
The undersigned, being an officer or director of the Corporation certifies that attached hereto is a true, correct and complete copy of the notice of articles

and articles of the Corporation together with any amendments (the “Constating Documents”). The Constating Documents are in full force and effect,
unamended as of the date hereof and no proceedings have been taken or are pending to amend, supplement, repeal or cancel the Constating Documents.

DATED this__22 day of June , 2023.

Name: Chris Lewis

Title: Director
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GENERAL SECURITY AGREEMENT

To:

Cleo Energy Corp.
200 — 117 8" Ave SW

Calgary, Alberta T2P1B4

Attention: Chris Lewis
RECITALS:

Cleo Energy Corp. (the "Debtor") is, or may become, indebted or liable to 1992169 ALBERTA LTD. (the “Creditor").

To secure the payment and performance of the Liabilities (this term, and other capitalized terms used in this Agreement, have the
meanings set forth in Section 1), the Debtor has agreed to grant to the Creditor security interests in respect of the Collateral in accordance with the terms

of this Agreement.

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are acknowledged by the Debtor, the
Debtor agrees with and in favour of the Creditor as follows:

Definitions. In this Agreement:

"Accessions", "Account”, "Chattel Paper”, "Consumer Goods", "Document of Title", "Equipment”,
"Goods", "Instrument”, "Intangible", "Inventory" and "Proceeds™ have the meanings given to them in the PPSA.

"Books and Records™ means all books, records, files, papers, disks, documents and other repositories of data
recording in any form or medium, evidencing or relating to the Collateral which are at any time owned by the Debtor or to which the
Debtor (or any Person on the Debtor's behalf) has access.

"Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or statutory holiday in the province referred to in
the "Governing Law" section of this Agreement.

"Collateral™ means all of the present and future undertaking, Personal Property (including any Personal Property
that may be described in any Schedule to this Agreement or any schedules, documents or listings that the Debtor may from time to
time sign and provide to the Creditor in connection with this Agreement) and real property (including any real property that may be
described in any Schedule to this Agreement or any schedules, documents or listings that the Debtor may from time to time sign and
provide to the Creditor in connection with this Agreement and including all fixtures and all buildings placed, installed or erected from
time to time on any such real property) of the Debtor (including all such property at any time owned, leased or licensed by the Debtor,
or in which the Debtor at any time has any interest or to which the Debtor is or may at any time become entitled) and all Proceeds
thereof, wherever located.

"Contracts™ means all contracts, including, without limitation, contracts for the purchase, sale or assignment of accounts

receivable between the Debtor and its clients, licenses and agreements to which the Debtor is at any time a party or pursuant to which the
Debtor has at any time acquired rights, and includes (1) all rights of the Debtor to receive money due and to become due to it in connection with
a contract, license or agreement, (ii) all rights of the Debtor to damages arising out of, or for breach or default in respect of, a contract, license
or agreement, and (iii) all rights of the Debtor to perform and exercise all remedies in connection with a contract, license or agreement.
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"Default" means the occurrence of any of the following events or conditions:
(a) The Debtor does not pay any of the Liabilities when due;

(b) The Debtor does not observe or perform any of the Debtor's obligations under this Agreement or any other agreement or
document existing at any time between the Debtor and the Creditor;

(c) Any representation, warranty or statement made by or on behalf of the Debtor to the Creditor, in this Agreement or otherwise,
is untrue in any material respect when made;

(d) The Debtor ceases or threatens to cease to carry on in the normal course all or any material part of the Debtor's business;

(e) If the Debtor is a corporation, there is, in the Creditor's opinion (acting reasonably), a change in effective control of the
Debtor, or if the Debtor is a partnership, there is, in the Creditor's opinion (acting reasonably), a dissolution or change in the membership of the partnership;

() the Debtor becomes insolvent or bankrupt, or makes or files a proposal, a notice of intention to make a proposal or an
assignment for the benefit of creditors under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) or comparable legislation in Canada or any other jurisdiction; a
petition in bankruptcy is filed against the Debtor; or, if the Debtor is a corporation, proceedings are initiated under any legislation by or against the Debtor
seeking its liquidation, winding-up, dissolution or reorganization or any arrangement or composition of its debts;

(9) A Receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official is appointed in respect of the Debtor or any of the Collateral;

any Person holding a Security Interest in respect of any part of the Collateral takes possession of all or any material part of the
Collateral, or a distress, execution or other similar process is levied against all or any material part of the Collateral;

() the Debtor challenges or threatens to challenge the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or the Security Interests
created by this Agreement; or

()] The Creditor, acting in good faith and upon commercially reasonable grounds, believes that the prospect of payment or
performance of any of the Liabilities is or is about to be impaired or that all or any material part of the Collateral is or is about to be placed in jeopardy.

"Intellectual Property Rights" means all industrial and intellectual property rights, including copyrights, patents, trade-marks,
industrial designs, knowhow and trade secrets and all Contracts related to any such industrial and intellectual property rights.

"Liabilities" means all present and future indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of every kind, nature and description (whether direct
or indirect, joint or several, absolute or contingent, matured or unmatured) of the Debtor to the Creditor, wherever and however incurred, and any unpaid
balance thereof.

"Money" has the meaning given to it in the PPSA or, if there is no such meaning given in the PPSA, means a medium of exchange
authorized or adopted by the Parliament of Canada as part of the currency of Canada, or by a foreign government as part of its currency.

"PPSA" means the Personal Property Security Act of the province referred to in the "Governing Law" section of this Agreement, as
such legislation may be amended, renamed or replaced from time to time (and includes all regulations from time to time made under such legislation).

"Permits" means all permits, licenses, authorizations, approvals, franchises, rights-of-way, easements and entitlements that the
Debtor has, requires or is required to have, to own, possess or operate any of its property or to operate and carry on any part of its business.

"Person" will be broadly interpreted and includes an individual, a corporation, a limited liability company, a partnership, a trust, a joint
venture, an association, an unincorporated organization, the government of a country or any political subdivision thereof, any agency or department of any
such government, a regulatory agency or any other juridical entity and the heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representatives of an individual.

"Personal Property" means personal property and includes Accounts, Books and Records, Chattel Paper, Contracts, Documents of
Title, Equipment, Goods, Instruments, Intangibles (including Intellectual Property Rights and Permits), Inventory, Money and Securities.

"Receiver" means a receiver, a manager or a receiver and manager.

"Securities" has the meaning given to it in the PPSA, or if there is no such meaning given in the PPSA but the PPSA defines "security"
instead, it means the plural of that term.

"Security Interest" means any mortgage, charge, pledge, hypothecation, lien (statutory or otherwise), assignment, finance lease,
title retention agreement or arrangement, security interest or other encumbrance or adverse claim of any nature, or any other security agreement or
arrangement creating in favor of any creditor a right in respect of a particular property.

2. Grant of Security Interest. As general and continuing collateral security for the due payment and performance of the Liabilities, the
Debtor mortgages, charges and assigns to the Creditor, and grants to the Creditor a security interest in, the Collateral.

3. Limitations on Grant of Security Interest. If the grant of any Security Interest in respect of any Contract, Intellectual Property Right
or Permit under Section 2 would result in the termination or breach of such Contract, Intellectual Property Right or Permit, then the applicable Contract,
Intellectual Property Right or Permit will not be subject to any Security Interest under Section 2 but will be held in trust by the Debtor for the benefit of the
Creditor and, on exercise by the Creditor of any of its rights under this Agreement following Default, assigned by the Debtor as directed by the Creditor. In
addition, the Security Interests created by this Agreement do not extend to the last day of the term of any lease or agreement for lease of real property.
Such last day will be held by the Debtor in trust for the Creditor and, on the exercise by the Creditor of any of its rights under this Agreement following
Default, will be assigned by the Debtor as directed by the Creditor.
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4. Attachment; No Obligation to Advance. The Debtor confirms that value has been given by the Creditor to the Debtor, that the
Debtor has rights in the Collateral (other than after-acquired property) and that the Debtor and the Creditor have not agreed to postpone the time for
attachment of the Security Interests created by this Agreement to any of the Collateral. The Security Interests created by this Agreement will have effect
and be deemed to be effective whether the Liabilities or any part thereof are owing or in existence before or after or upon the date of this Agreement.
Neither the execution of this Agreement nor any advance of funds shall oblige the Creditor to advance any funds or any additional funds.

5. Representations and Warranties. The Debtor represents and warrants to the Creditor that:

(A) Places of Business, Name, Location of Collateral. The Debtor's PRESIDENT place of business and chief executive office, and the
place where it keeps its Books and Records, is at the address specified on the signature page of this Agreement, and its full legal name, and any other
name under which it conducts its business, is specified on the signature page of this Agreement. The location of all other existing places where the Debtor
carries on business or keeps tangible Personal Property, the location of all jurisdictions in which account debtors of the Debtor are located, and the location
of all real property owned by the Debtor, are set out in Schedule A to this Agreement.

(b) Title; No Other Security Interests. Except for (1) the Security Interests created by this Agreement, and (ii) any other Security Interests
permitted in writing by the Creditor, the Debtor owns (or, with respect to any leased or licensed property forming part of the Collateral, holds a valid
leasehold or licensed interest in) the Collateral free and clear of any Security Interests. No security agreement, financing statement or other notice with
respect to any or all of the Collateral is on file or on record in any public office, except for filings in favor of, or permitted in writing by, the Creditor.

(c) Amount of Accounts. The amount represented by the Debtor to the Creditor from time to time as owing by each account debtor or by
all account debtors in respect of the Accounts will at such time be the correct amount so owing by such account debtor or debtors and, unless disclosed
in writing by the Debtor to the Creditor at that time, will be owed free of any dispute, set-off or counterclaim.

(d) Authority; Consents. The Debtor has full power and authority to grant to the Creditor the Security Interests created by this Agreement
and to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement, and such execution, delivery and performance does not contravene any of the
Debtor's constating documents or by-laws or any agreement, instrument or restriction to which the Debtor is a party or by which the Debtor or any of the
Collateral is bound. Except for any consent that has been obtained and is in full force and effect, no consent of any party (other than the Debtor) to any
Contract or any obligor in respect of any Account is required, or purports to be required, for the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement.
Except as disclosed in writing by the Debtor to the Creditor, neither the Debtor nor (to the best of the Debtor's knowledge) any other party to any Account
or Contract is in default or is likely to become in default in the performance or observance of any of the terms of such Account or Contract.

(e) Execution and Delivery; Enforceability. This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Debtor and is a valid
and binding obligation of the Debtor enforceable against the Debtor in accordance with its terms, subject only to bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation,
reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws generally affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights, and to the fact that equitable remedies (such as
specific performance and injunction) are discretionary remedies.

f) Motor Vehicles. A description of all motor vehicles and other "serial number" goods (i.e. trailers, mobile homes, aircraft, aircraft engines
and vessels) (including vehicle identification numbers) presently owned by the Debtor and classified as Equipment is set out in Schedule A to this Agreement.

(9) No Consumer Goods. The Debtor does not own any Consumer Goods which are material in value, or which are material to the
business, operations, property, condition or prospects (financial or otherwise) of the Debtor.

(h) Intellectual Property Rights. All Intellectual Property Rights owned by the Debtor, and all rights of the Debtor to the use of any
Intellectual Property Rights, are described in Schedule A to this Agreement. To the best of the Debtor's knowledge, each such Intellectual Property Right
is valid, subsisting, unexpired, and enforceable and has not been abandoned. Except as set out in such Schedule, none of such Intellectual Property
Rights has been licensed or franchised by the Debtor to any Person.

6. Survival of Representations and Warranties. All agreements, representations, warranties and covenants made by the Debtor in this
Agreement are material, will be considered to have been relied on by the Creditor and will survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement or any
investigation made at any time by or on behalf of the Creditor and any disposition or payment of the Liabilities until repayment and performance in full of
the Liabilities and termination of all rights of the Debtor that, if exercised, would result in the existence of Liabilities.

7. Covenants. The Debtor covenants and agrees with the Creditor that:

(a) Further Documentation. The Debtor will from time to time, at the expense of the Debtor, promptly and duly authorize, execute and
deliver such further instruments and documents, and take such further action, as the Creditor may request for the purpose of obtaining or preserving the
full benefits of, and the rights and powers granted by, this Agreement (including the filing of any financing statements or financing change statements
under any applicable legislation with respect to the Security Interests created by this Agreement). The Debtor acknowledges that this Agreement has been
prepared based on the existing laws in the province referred to in the "Governing Law" section of this Agreement and that a change in such laws, or the
laws of other jurisdictions, may require the execution and delivery of different forms of security documentation. Accordingly, the Debtor agrees that the
Creditor will have the right to require that this Agreement be amended, supplemented or replaced, and that the Debtor will immediately on request bythe
Creditor authorize, execute and deliver any such amendment, supplement or replacement (1) to reflect any changes in such laws, whether arising as a
result of statutory amendments, court decisions or otherwise, (ii) to facilitate the creation and registration of appropriate security in all appropriate
jurisdictions, or (iii) if the Debtor merges or amalgamates with any other Person or enters into any corporate reorganization, in each case in order to confer
on the Creditor Security Interests similar to, and having the same effect as, the Security Interests created by this Agreement.

(b) Delivery of Certain Collateral. Promptly upon request from time to time by the Creditor, the Debtor will deliver (or cause to
be delivered) to the Creditor, endorsed and/or accompanied by such instruments of assignment and transfer in such form and substance as the Creditor
may reasonably request, any and all Instruments, Securities, Documents of Title and Chattel Paper included in or relating to the Collateral as the Creditor
may specify in its request.

(c) Payment of Expenses; Indemnification. The Debtor will pay on demand, and will indemnify and save the Creditor harmless
from, any and all liabilities, costs and expenses (including legal fees and expenses on a solicitor and own client basis and any sales, goods and services
or other similar taxes payable to any governmental authority with respect to any such liabilities, costs and expenses) (I) incurred by the Creditor in the
preparation, registration, administration or enforcement of this Agreement, (ii) with respect to, or resulting from, any failure or delay by the Debtor in
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performing or observing any of its obligations under this Agreement, or (iii) incurred by the Creditor in performing or observing any of the other covenants
of the Debtor under this Agreement.

(d) Maintenance of Records. The Debtor will keep and maintain accurate and complete records of the Collateral, including a
record of all payments received and all credits granted with respect to the Accounts and Contracts. At the written request of the Creditor, the Debtor will
mark any Collateral specified by the Creditor to evidence the existence of the Security Interests created by this Agreement.

(e) Right of Inspection. The Creditor may, at all times during normal business hours, without charge, examine and make copies
of all Books and Records, and may discuss the affairs, finances and accounts of the Debtor with its officers and accountants. The Creditor may also,
without charge, enter the premises of the Debtor where any of the Collateral is located for the purpose of inspecting the Collateral, observing its use or
otherwise protecting its interests in the Collateral. The Debtor, at its expense, will provide the Creditor with such clerical and other assistance as may be
reasonably requested by the Creditor to exercise any of its rights under this paragraph.

() Limitations on Other Security Interests. The Debtor will not create, incur or permit to exist, and will defend the Collateral
against, and will take such other action as is necessary to remove, any and all Security Interests in and other claims affecting the Collateral, other than the
Security Interests created by this Agreement or as permitted in writing by the Creditor, and the Debtor will defend the right, title and interest of the Creditor
in and to the Collateral against the claims and demands of all Persons.

(9) Limitations on Dispositions of Collateral. The Debtor will not, without the Creditor's prior written consent, sell, lease or
otherwise dispose of any of the Collateral, except that Inventory may be sold, leased or otherwise disposed of, and subject to Section 17, Accounts may
be collected, in the ordinary course of the Debtor's business. Following Default, all Proceeds of the Collateral (including all amounts received in respect
of Accounts) received by or on behalf of the Debtor, whether or not arising in the ordinary course of the Debtor's business, will be received by the Debtor
as trustee for the Creditor and will be immediately paid to the Creditor.

(h) Limitations on Modifications, Waivers, Extensions. Other than as permitted by paragraph () below, the Debtor will not (I)
amend, modify, terminate or waive any provision of any Permit, Contract or any document giving rise to an Account in any manner which is or could
reasonably be expected to be materially adverse to the Debtor or the Creditor, or (ii) fail to exercise promptly and diligently its rights under each Contract
and each document giving rise to an Account if such failure is or could reasonably be expected to be materially adverse to the Debtor or the Creditor.

(h Limitations on Discounts, Compromises, Extensions of Accounts. Other than in the ordinary course of business of the Debtor
consistent with previous practices, the Debtor will not (I) grant any extension of the time for payment of any Account, (ii) compromise, compound or settle
any Account for less than its full amount, (iii) release, wholly or partially, any Person liable for the payment of any Account, or (iv) allow any credit or discount
of any Account.

)] Maintenance of Collateral. The Debtor will maintain all tangible Collateral in good operating condition, ordinary wear and
tear excepted, and the Debtor will provide all maintenance, service and repairs necessary for such purpose.

(k) Insurance. The Debtor will keep the Collateral insured with financially sound and reputable companies to its full insurable
value against loss or damage by fire, explosion, theft and such other risks as are customarily insured against by Persons carrying on similar businesses
or owning similar property within the vicinity in which the Debtor's applicable business or property is located. The applicable insurance policies will be in
form and substance satisfactory to the Creditor, and will (I) contain a breach of warranty clause in favor of the Creditor, (ii) provide that no cancellation,
material reduction in amount or material change in coverage will be effective until at least 30 days after receipt of written notice thereof by the Creditor,
(iii) contain by way of endorsement a mortgagee clause in form and substance satisfactory to the Creditor, and (iv) name the Creditor as loss payee as its
interest may appear. The Debtor will, from time to time at the Creditor's request, deliver the applicable insurance policies (or satisfactory evidence of such
policies) to the Creditor. If the Debtor does not obtain or maintain such insurance, the Creditor may, but need not, do so, in which event the Debtor will
immediately on demand reimburse the Creditor for all payments made by the Creditor in connection with obtaining and maintaining such insurance, and
until reimbursed any such payment will form part of the Liabilities and will be secured by the Security Interests created by this Agreement. Neither the
Creditor nor its correspondents or its agents will be responsible for the character, adequacy, validity or genuineness of any insurance, the solvency of any
insurer, or any other risk connected with insurance.

(0] Further Identification of Collateral. The Debtor will promptly furnish to the Creditor such statements and schedules further
identifying and describing the Collateral, and such other reports in connection with the Collateral, as the Creditor may from time to time reasonably request,
including an updated list of any motor vehicles or other "serial number" goods owned by the Debtor and classified as Equipment, including vehicle
identification numbers.

(m) Notices. The Debtor will advise the Creditor promptly, in reasonable detail, of (1) any Security Interest (other than the Security
Interests created by this Agreement and any Security Interest permitted in writing by the Creditor) on, or claim asserted against, any of the Collateral, (ii)
the occurrence of any event, claim or occurrence that could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the value of the Collateral or on
the Security Interests created by this Agreement, (iii) any change in the location of any place of business (including additional locations) or the chief
executive office of the Debtor, (iv) any change in the location of any of the tangible Collateral (including additional locations), (v) any acquisition of real
property by the Debtor, (vi) any change in the name of the Debtor, (vii) any merger or amalgamation of the Debtor with any other Person, (viii) anyadditional
jurisdiction in which material accounts debtors of the Debtor are located, and (ix) any material loss of or damage to any of the Collateral. The Debtor agrees
not to effect or permit any of the changes referred to in clauses (iii) to (viii) above unless all filings have been made and all other actions taken that are
required in order for the Creditor to continue at all times following such change to have a valid and perfected Security Interest in respect ofall of the
Collateral.

(n) Delivery of Agreements re Intellectual Property Rights. The Debtor will promptly, following demand from time to time by the
Creditor, authorize, execute and deliver any and all agreements, instruments, documents and papers that the Creditor may request to evidence the
Creditor's Security Interests in any Intellectual Property Rights and, where applicable, the goodwill of the business of the Debtor connected with the use
of, and symbolized by, any such Intellectual Property Rights.

8. Rights on Default. On Default, all of the Liabilities will, at the option of the Creditor, become immediately due and payable and the
security constituted by this Agreement will become enforceable, and the Creditor may, personally or by agent, at such time or times as the Creditor in its
discretion may determine, do any one or more of the following:

(a) Rights under PPSA, etc. Exercise all of the rights and remedies granted to secured parties under the PPSA and any other
applicable statute, or otherwise available to the Creditor at law or in equity.
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(b) Demand Possession. Demand possession of any or all of the Collateral, in which event the Debtor will, at the expense of
the Debtor, immediately cause the Collateral designated by the Creditor to be assembled and made available and/or delivered to the Creditor at any place
designated by the Creditor.

(c) Take Possession. Enter on any premises where any Collateral is located and take possession of, disable or remove such
Collateral.
(d) Deal with Collateral. Hold, store and keep idle, or operate, lease or otherwise use or permit the use of, any or all of the

Collateral for such time and on such terms as the Creditor may determine, and demand, collect and retain all earnings and other sums due or to become
due from any Person in respect of any of the Collateral.

(e) Carry on Business. Carry on, or concur in the carrying on of, any or all of the business or undertaking of the Debtor and
enter on, occupy and use (without charge by the Debtor) any of the premises, buildings, plant and undertaking of, or occupied or used by, the Debtor.

() Enforce Collateral. Seize, collect, receive, enforce or otherwise deal with any Collateral in such manner, on such terms and
conditions and at such times as the Creditor deems advisable.

Dispose of Collateral. Realize on any or all of the Collateral and sell, lease, assign, give options to purchase, or otherwise
dispose of and deliver any or all of the Collateral (or contract to do any of the above), in one or more parcels at any public or private sale, at any exchange,
broker's board or office of the Creditor or elsewhere, on such terms and conditions as the Creditor may deem advisable and at such prices as it may deem
best, for cash or on credit or for future delivery.

(h) Court-Approved Disposition of Collateral. Apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for the sale or foreclosure of any or all

of the Collateral.

) Purchase by Creditor. At any public sale, and to the extent permitted by law on any private sale, bid for and purchase any
or all of the Collateral offered for sale and, upon compliance with the terms of such sale, hold, retain and dispose of such Collateral without any further
accountability to the Debtor or any other Person with respect to such holding, retention or disposition, except as required by law. In any such sale to the
Creditor, the Creditor may, for the purpose of making payment for all or any part of the Collateral so purchased, use any claim for Liabilities then due and
payable to it as a credit against the purchase price.

Collect Accounts. Notify the account debtors or obligors under any Accounts of the assignment of such Accounts to the
Creditor and direct such account debtors or obligors to make payment of all amounts due or to become due to the Debtor in respect of such Accounts
directly to the Creditor and, upon such notification and at the expense of the Debtor, enforce collection of any such Accounts, and adjust, settle or
compromise the amount or payment of such Accounts, in such manner and to such extent as the Creditor deems appropriate in the circumstances.

(k) Transfer of Securities. Transfer any Securities forming part of the Collateral into the name of the Creditor or its nominee,
with or without disclosing that the Securities are subject to the Security Interests arising under this Agreement.

U] Exercise of Rights. Exercise any and all rights, privileges, entitlements and options pertaining to any Securities forming part
of the Collateral as if the Creditor were the absolute PRESIDENT of such Securities.

(m) Payment of Liabilities. Pay any liability secured by any Security Interest against any Collateral. The Debtor will immediately
on demand reimburse the Creditor for all such payments.

(n) Borrow and Grant Security Interests. Borrow money for the maintenance, preservation or protection of any Collateral or for
carrying on any of the business or undertaking of the Debtor and grant Security Interests on any Collateral (in priority to the Security Interests created by
this Agreement or otherwise) as security for the money so borrowed. The Debtor willimmediately on demand reimburse the Creditor for all such borrowings.

(0) Appoint Receiver. Appoint by instrument in writing one or more Receivers of the Debtor or any or all of the Collateral with
such rights, powers and authority (including any or all of the rights, powers and authority of the Creditor under this Agreement) as may be provided for in
the instrument of appointment or any supplemental instrument, and remove and replace any such Receiver from time to time. To the extent permitted by
applicable law, any Receiver appointed by the Creditor will (for purposes relating to responsibility for the Receiver's acts or omissions) be considered to
be the agent of the Debtor and not of the Creditor.

(p) Court-Appointed Receiver. Apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a Receiver of the Debtor or of
any or all of the Collateral.

Consultants. Require the Debtor to engage a consultant of the Creditor's choice, or engage a consultant on its own behalf,
such consultant to receive the full cooperation and support of the Debtor and its employees, including unrestricted access to the premises, books and
records of the Debtor; all reasonable fees and expenses of such consultant shall be for the account of the Debtor and the Debtor hereby authorizes any
such consultant to report directly to the Creditor and to disclose to the Creditor any and all information obtained in the course of such consultant's
employment.

The Creditor may exercise any or all of the foregoing rights and remedies without demand of performance or other demand,
presentment, protest, advertisement or notice of any kind (except as required by applicable law) to or on the Debtor or any other Person, and the
Debtor by this Agreement waives each such demand, presentment, protest, advertisement and notice to the extent permitted by applicable law.
None of the above rights or remedies will be exclusive of or dependent on or merge in any other right or remedy, and one or more of such rights
and remedies may be exercised independently or in combination from time to time. Without prejudice to the ability of the Creditor to dispose of the
Collateral in any manner which is commercially reasonable, the Debtor acknowledges that a disposition of Collateral by the Creditor which takes
place substantially in accordance with the following provisions will be deemed to be commercially reasonable:

n Collateral may be disposed of in whole or in part;

(i) Collateral may be disposed of by public auction, public tender or private contract, with or without advertising and without
any other formality;
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(iii) Any purchaser or lessee of Collateral may be a customer of the Creditor;

(iv) a disposition of Collateral may be on such terms and conditions as to credit or otherwise as the Creditor, in is sole discretion,
may deem advantageous; and

(v) The Creditor may establish an upset or reserve bid or price in respect of Collateral.

9. Grant of License. For the purpose of enabling the Creditor to exercise its rights and remedies under Section 8 when the Creditor is
entitled to exercise such rights and remedies, and for no other purpose, the Debtor grants to the Creditor an irrevocable, non-exclusive license (exercisable
without payment of royalty or other compensation to the Debtor) to use, assign or sublicense any or all of the Intellectual Property Rights, including in such
license reasonable access to all media in which any of the licensed items may be recorded or stored and to all computer programs used for the compilation
or printout of the same.

10. Sale of Securities. The Creditor is authorized, in connection with any offer or sale of any Securities forming part of the Collateral, to
comply with any limitation or restriction as it may be advised by counsel is necessary to comply with applicable law, including compliance with procedures
that may restrict the number of prospective bidders and purchasers, requiring that prospective bidders and purchasers have certain qualifications, and
restricting prospective bidders and purchasers to Persons who will represent and agree that they are purchasing for their own account or investment and
not with a view to the distribution or resale of such Securities. The Debtor further agrees that compliance with any such limitation or restriction will not
result in a sale being considered or deemed not to have been made in a commercially reasonable manner, and the Creditor will not be liable or accountable
to the Debtor for any discount allowed by reason of the fact that such Securities are sold in compliance with any such limitation or restriction.

1. Application of Proceeds. All Proceeds of Collateral received by the Creditor or a Receiver may be applied to discharge or satisfy
any expenses (including the Receiver's remuneration and other expenses of enforcing the Creditor's rights under this Agreement), Security Interests in
favor of Persons other than the Creditor, borrowings, taxes and other outgoings affecting the Collateral or which are considered advisable by the Creditor
or the Receiver to protect, preserve, repair, process, maintain or enhance the Collateral or prepare it for sale, lease or other disposition, or to keep in good
standing any Security Interests on the Collateral ranking in priority to any of the Security Interests created by this Agreement, or to sell, lease or otherwise
dispose of the Collateral. The balance of such Proceeds may, at the sole discretion of the Creditor, be held as collateral security for the Liabilities or be
applied to such of the Liabilities (whether or not the same are due and payable) in such manner and at such times as the Creditor considers appropriate
and thereafter will be accounted for as required by law.

12. Continuing Liability of Debtor. The Debtor will remain liable for any Liabilities that are outstanding following realization of all or any
part of the Collateral and the application of the Proceeds thereof.

13. Creditor's Appointment as Attorney-in-Fact. The Debtor constitutes and appoints the Creditor and any officer or agent of the
Creditor, with full power of substitution, as the Debtor's true and lawful attorney-in-fact with full power and authority in the place of the Debtor and in the
name of the Debtor or in its own name, from time to time in the Creditor's discretion after a Default, to take any and all appropriate action and to execute
any and all documents and instruments as, in the opinion of such attorney acting reasonably, may be necessary or desirable to accomplish the purposes
of this Agreement. These powers are coupled with an interest and are irrevocable until this Agreement is terminated and the Security Interests created by
this Agreement are released. Nothing in this Section affects the right of the Creditor as secured party or any other Person on the Creditor's behalf, to sign
and file or deliver (as applicable) all such financing statements, financing change statements, notices, verification agreements and other documents relating
to the Collateral and this Agreement as the Creditor or such other Person considers appropriate.

14. Performance by Creditor of Debtor's Obligations. If the Debtor fails to perform or comply with any of the obligations of the Debtor
under this Agreement, the Creditor may, but need not, perform or otherwise cause the performance or compliance of such obligation, provided that such
performance or compliance will not constitute a waiver, remedy or satisfaction of such failure. The expenses of the Creditor incurred in connection with
any such performance or compliance will be payable by the Debtor to the Creditor immediately on demand, and until paid, any such expenses will form
part of the Liabilities and will be secured by the Security Interests created by this Agreement.

15. Interest. If any amount payable to the Creditor under this Agreement is not paid when due, the Debtor will pay to the Creditor,
immediately on demand, interest on such amount from the date due until paid, at a nominal annual rate equal at all times 24%. All amounts payable by
the Debtor to the Creditor under this Agreement, and all interest on all such amounts, compounded monthly on the last Business Day of each month, will
form part of the Liabilities and will be secured by the Security Interests created by this Agreement.

16. Severability. Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction will, as to that jurisdiction, be
ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability and will be severed from the balance of this Agreement, all without affecting the remaining
provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction.

17. Rights of Creditor; Limitations on Creditor's Obligations.

(a) Limitations on Creditor's Liability. The Creditor will not be liable to the Debtor or any other Person for any failure or delay in
exercising any of the rights of the Debtor under this Agreement (including any failure to take possession of, collect, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any
Collateral, or to preserve rights against prior parties). Neither the Creditor, a Receiver nor any agent of the Creditor (including, in Alberta or British Columbia,
any sheriff) is required to take, or will have any liability for any failure to take or delay in taking, any steps necessary or advisable to preserve rights against
other Persons under any Collateral in its possession. Neither the Creditor nor any Receiver will be liable for any, and the Debtor will bear the full risk of all,
loss or damage to any and all of the Collateral (including any Collateral in the possession of the Creditor or any Receiver) caused for any reason other than
the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Creditor or such Receiver.

(b) Debtor Remains Liable under Accounts and Contracts. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, the Debtor will
remain liable under each of the documents giving rise to the Accounts and under each of the Contracts to observe and perform all the conditions and
obligations to be observed and performed by the Debtor thereunder, all in accordance with the terms of each such document and Contract. The Creditor
will have no obligation or liability under any Account (or any document giving rise thereto) or Contract by reason of or arising out of this Agreement or the
receipt by the Creditor of any payment relating to such Account or Contract pursuant hereto, and in particular (but without limitation), the Creditor will not
be obligated in any manner to perform any of the obligations of the Debtor under or pursuant to any Account (or any document giving rise thereto) or under
or pursuant to any Contract, to make any payment, to make any inquiry as to the nature or the sufficiency of any payment received by it or as to the
sufficiency of any performance by any party under any Account (or any document giving rise thereto) or under any Contract, to present or file any claim,
to take any action to enforce any performance or to collect the payment of any amounts which may have been assigned to it or to which it may be entitled
at any time.
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(c) Collections on Accounts and Contracts. The Creditor hereby authorizes the Debtor to collect the Accounts and payments
under the Contracts in the normal course of the business of the Debtor and for the purpose of carrying on the same. If required by the Creditor at any time,
any payments of Accounts or under Contracts, when collected by the Debtor, will be forthwith (and, in any event, within two Business Days) deposited by the
Debtor in the exact form received, duly endorsed by the Debtor to the Creditor if required, in a special collateral account maintained by the Creditor, and
until so deposited, will be held by the Debtor in trust for the Creditor, segregated from other funds of the Debtor. All such amounts while held by the Creditor
(or by the Debtor in trust for the Creditor) and all income in respect thereof will continue to be collateral security for the Liabilities and will not constitute
payment thereof until applied as hereinafter provided. If a Default has occurred and is continuing, the Creditor may apply all or any part of the amounts on
deposit in said special collateral account on account of the Liabilities in such order as the Creditor may elect. At the Creditor's request, the Debtor will
deliver to the Creditor any documents evidencing and relating to the agreements and transactions which gave rise to the Accounts and Contracts, including
all original orders, invoices and shipping receipts.

(d) Analysis of Accounts. The Creditor will have the right to analyze and verify the Accounts in any manner and through any
medium that it reasonably considers advisable, and the Debtor will furnish all such assistance and information as the Creditor may require in connection
therewith. The Creditor may in its own name or in the name of others (including the Debtor) communicate with account debtors on the Accounts and parties
to the Contracts to verify with them to its satisfaction the existence, status, amount and terms of any Account or any Contract. At any time and from time
to time, upon the Creditor's reasonable request and at the expense of the Debtor, the Debtor will furnish to the Creditor reports showing reconciliations,
aging and test verifications of, and trial balances for, the Accounts.

18. Dealings by Creditor. The Creditor will not be obliged to exhaust its recourse against the Debtor or any other Person or against any
other security it may hold in respect of the Liabilities before realizing upon or otherwise dealing with the Collateral in such manner as the Creditor may
consider desirable. The Creditor may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give up security, accept compositions, grant releases and
discharges and otherwise deal with the Debtor and any other Person, and with any or all of the Collateral, and with other security and sureties, as the
Creditor may see fit, all without prejudice to the Liabilities or to the rights and remedies of the Creditor under this Agreement. The powers conferred on the
Creditor under this Agreement are solely to protect the interests of the Creditor in the Collateral and will not impose any duty upon the Creditor to exercise
any such powers.

19. Communication. Any communication required or permitted to be given under this Agreement will be in writing and will be effectively
given if (1) delivered personally, (ii) sent by prepaid courier service or mail, or (iii) sent prepaid by facsimile transmission or other similar means of electronic
communication, in each case to the address or facsimile number of the Debtor or Creditor set out in this Agreement. Any communication so given will be
deemed to have been given and to have been received on the day of delivery if so delivered, or on the day of facsimile transmission or sending by other
means of recorded electronic communication provided that such day is a Business Day and the communication is so delivered or sent prior to 4:30 p.m.
(local time at the place of receipt). Otherwise, such communication will be deemed to have been given and to have been received on the following Business
Day. Any communication sent by mail will be deemed to have been given and to have been received on the fifth Business Day following mailing, provided
that no disruption of postal service is in effect. The Debtor and the Creditor may from time to time change their respective addresses or facsimile numbers
for notice by giving notice to the other in accordance with the provisions of this Section.

20. Release of Information. The Debtor authorizes the Creditor to provide a copy of this Agreement and such other information as may
be requested of the Creditor by Persons entitled thereto pursuant to any applicable legislation, and otherwise with the consent of the Debtor.

21. Waivers and Indemnity. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Debtor unconditionally and irrevocably waives (1) all claims,
damages and demands it may acquire against the Creditor arising out of the exercise by the Creditor or any Receiver of any rights or remedies under this
Agreement or at law, and (ii) all of the rights, benefits and protections given by any present or future statute that imposes limitations on the rights, powers
or remedies of a secured party or on the methods of, or procedures for, realization of security, including any "seize or sue" or "anti-deficiency" statute or
any similar provision of any other statute. None of the terms or provisions of this Agreement may be waived, amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
except by a written instrument executed by the Creditor. The Creditor will not, by any act or delay, be deemed to have waived any right or remedy hereunder
or to have acquiesced in any Default or in any breach of any of the terms and conditions hereof. No failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the
part of the Creditor, any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof. No single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege
hereunder will preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. A waiver by the Creditor of any right or
remedy hereunder on any one occasion will not be construed as a bar to any right or remedy which the Creditor would otherwise have on any future
occasion. Neither the taking of any judgment nor the exercise of any power of seizure or sale will extinguish the liability of the Debtorto pay the Liabilities,
nor will the same operate as a merger or any covenant contained in this Agreement or of any other liability, nor will the acceptance of any payment or
other security constitute or create any novation. The Debtor agrees to indemnify the Creditor from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses,
damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever (except by reason of the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of the Creditor or any of its agents or employees) which may be imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against the Creditor
and arising by reason of any action (including any action referred to in this Agreement) or inaction or omission to do any act legally required by the Debtor.
This indemnification will survive the satisfaction, release or extinguishment of the Liabilities and the Security Interests created by this Agreement.

22, Environmental License and Indemnity. The Debtor hereby grants to the Creditor and its employees and agents an irrevocable and
non-exclusive license, subject to the rights of tenants, to enter any of the premises of the Debtor to conduct audits, testing and monitoring with respect to
hazardous substances and to remove and analyze any hazardous substance at the cost and expense of the Debtor (which cost and expense will form part
of the Liabilities and will be payable immediately on demand and secured by the Security Interests created by this Agreement). The Debtor will indemnify
the Creditor and hold the Creditor harmless against and from all losses, costs, damages and expenses which the Creditor may sustain, incur or be or
become liable at any time whatsoever for by reason of or arising from the past, present or future existence, clean-up, removal or disposal of any hazardous
substance on or about any property owned or occupied by the Creditor or compliance with environmental laws or environmental orders relating thereto,
including any clean-up, decommissioning, restoration or remediation of any premises owned or occupied by the Debtor or other affected lands orproperty.
This indemnification will survive the satisfaction, release or extinguishment of the Liabilities and the Security Interests created by this Agreement.

23. Amalgamation. If the Debtor is a corporation, the Debtor acknowledges that if it amalgamates with any other corporation or
corporations, then (1) the Collateral and the Security Interests created by this Agreement will extend to and include all the property and assets of the
amalgamated corporation and to any property or assets of the amalgamated corporation thereafter owned or acquired, (ii) the term "Debtor", where used
in this Agreement, will extend to and include the amalgamated corporation, and (iii) the term "Liabilities", where used in this Agreement, will extend to and
include the Liabilities of the amalgamated corporation.
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24, Governing Law; Attornment. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of
Alberta. Without prejudice to the ability of the Creditor to enforce this Agreement in any other proper jurisdiction, the Debtor irrevocably submits and attorns
to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of such province. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Debtor irrevocably waives any

objection (including any claim of inconvenient forum) that it may now or hereafter have to the venue of any legal proceeding arising out of or relating to
this Agreement in the courts of such Province.

25. Interpretation. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, if any matter in this Agreement is subject to the consent or
approval of the Creditor or is to be acceptable to the Creditor, such consent, approval or determination of acceptability will be in the sole discretion of the
Creditor. If any provision in this Agreement refers to any action taken or to be taken by the Debtor, or which the Debtor is prohibited from taking, such
provision will be interpreted to include any and all means, direct or indirect, of taking, or not taking, such action. The division of this Agreement into sections
and paragraphs, and the insertion of headings, is for convenience of reference only and will not affect the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.
Unless the context otherwise requires, words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa, and words importing gender include allgenders.
When used in this Agreement, the word "including" (or includes) means "including (or includes) without limitation". Any reference in this Agreement to a
"Section" means the relevant Section of this Agreement. If more than one Debtor executes this Agreement, their obligations under this Agreement are joint
and several.

26. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement will endure to the benefit of, and be binding on, the Debtor and its successors and permitted
assigns, and will ensure to the benefit of, and be binding on, the Creditor and its successors and assigns. The Debtor may not assign this Agreement, or
any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of the Creditor. If the Debtor or the Creditor is an individual, then the
term "Debtor" or "Creditor", as applicable, will also include his or her heirs, administrators and executors.

27. Acknowledgment of Receipt/Waiver. The Debtor acknowledges receipt of an executed copy of this Agreement and, to the extent
permitted by applicable law, waives the right to receive a copy of any financing statement, financing change statement or verification statement in respect
of any registered financing statement or financing change statement prepared, registered or issued in connection with this Agreement.

Dated at Calgary, the _22 day of June , 2023.

Ca=—

BY: Christopher [ ewis (Jun 27 2023 1130 MDT)

Name: Chris Lewis

Title: Director

Have the authority to bind the Corporation

Address: 200 — 117 8™ Ave SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P1B4

SCHEDULE A

Locations of Collateral (Paragraph 5(a))

Jurisdictions of Account Debtors (Paragraph 5(a))
Alberta

Locations of Real Property (Paragraph 5(a))

Descriptions of Motor Vehicles and Other Serial Number Goods (Paragraph 5(f))

See Attached Appendix “I”

Intellectual Property Rights (Paragraph 5(h
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Trade Payable Loan Agreement and Demand Promissory Note

THIS AGREEMENT made as of March 1, 2024

Borrower: CLEO ENERGY CORP. (“CLEO” or the “Borrower”) 200, 117-8" Ave SW, Calgary,

Alberta T2P 1B4; and

Lender: MANTL Canada Inc. (“Mant]” or the “Lender”) 1500, 510-5" Ave SW Calgary, AB T2P
382
Term: Twelve (12) calendar months from the date of this Agreement

10.

CLEO has incremental production ready to be reactivated (“2024 Reactivation Program”). A list
of reactivation projects is included in Schedule “A”, which CLEO has unilateral rights to revise.
Mantl agrees to provide CLEO with a trade payable loan for the 2024 Reactivation Program and
other trade payables owed to Mantl by CLEO in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the Borrower promises to pay the Lender, the principal sum
(“Principal”) owing in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

The Principal is comprised of any existing trades payable owed to Mantl by CLEO at the date of
this agreement, plus trade payables to be incurred by CLEO with Mantl during the term of this
Agreement, less any payments submitted by CLEO on the account.

The Principal shall not exceed $1,800,000.

On CLEO’s behalf, Mantl will purchase goods and services from third parties for the 2024
Reactivation program (“Third Party Expenses”). Mantl will invoice CLEO for the Third Party
Expenses, plus a finance fee charge of 7% for each third party processed through the CLEO
customer account. Mantl will also invoice CLEO for goods and services rendered directly by
Mantl.

Payments on account by CLEO will be made on or prior to the last day of the third calendar month
following the month end date of each respective invoice.

Failure to pay invoices by CLEO in accordance with clause 6 will render the full balance payable
within 45 days (the “Remedy Period”).

This Agreement shall supersede and replace all prior agreements, promises, and understandings,
oral or written, between the Borrower and the Lender concerning the matters governed hereby.

No legal proceeding to enforce the Borrower’s obligations under this Agreement will be
commenced until after the tenth business day on which there is a failure to perform those obligations
once a demand is made in accordance with clause 7 of this Agreement.

As security for the payment of the Principal, the Borrower shall grant to the Lender a security
interest in all of the Borrowers’ right, title and interest in and to the lands identified in Schedule
“A” to the Security Agreement (as hereinafter defined), including the wells and equipment thereon
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

(collectively, the “Collateral”), upon and subject to the terms of a security agreement in form
attached as Schedule “B” to this Agreement (the “Security Agreement”).

Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and sufficiently made if delivered
personally, sent by electronic mail, facsimile, or mailed by prepaid registered mail to the Parties at
their respective addresses herein. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the date
it is delivered if personally delivered or, if mailed or sent by facsimile on the third business day
following the mailing thereof. Either party may change its address for service by giving written
notice in accordance with this Agreement.

Any amendment of this Agreement shall not be valid and enforceable unless recorded in writing
and executed by the Parties to this Agreement.

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, it is the parties’ intent that such provision be
reduced in scope by the court only to the extend deemed necessary by that court to render the
provision reasonable and enforceable and the remainder of the provision of this Agreement will in
no way be affected, impaired or invalidated as a result.

This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and assigns of the Borrower and Lender.

This Agreement is non-transferable unless at the discretion and approval of the Lender.
Time shall be of the essence of this Agreement.

This Agreement shall, in all respects, be subject to, interpreted, construed and enforced in
accordance with and under the laws of the Province of Alberta and the laws of Canada applicable
therein and shall, in every regard, be treated as a contract made in the Province of Alberta.

Any reference in this Agreement to a monetary amount, including the use of the term "Dollar" or
the symbol "$", shall mean the lawful currency of Canada unless the contrary is specified or
provided for elsewhere in this Agreement.

- Signature Page Follows -
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Matthew Kenna




Field

Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Shomcliffe

Shomcliffe
Shomcliffe
Shorncliffe

Neutral
Hills North
Neutral
Hills North
Atlee

Atlee

Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Neutral
Hills North
Neutral
Hills North
Silver
Heights
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Category

R&M

R&M

R&M

R&M

R&M

R&M

R&M

R&M
Reactivation
Reactivation
R&M

R&M
Recompletion
R&M
Project
Reactivation
Reactivation
R&M

R&M

R&M

Project

Schedule “A”
2024 Reactivation Program Project List

Location

102/14-11-
039-10W4/00
100/14-02-
039-10W4/00
105/01-21-
040-08W4/00
104/01-21-
040-08W4/00
103/01-22-
040-08W4/00
105/08-22-
040-08W4/00
100/09-10-
037-07W4/00
1D2/02-10-
037-07W4/00
100/03-02-
022-07W4/00
103/07-35-
021-07W4/00
100/16-14-
039-10W4/00
100/09-10-
039-10W4/00
100/09-12-
039-10W4/00
100/04-14-
039-10W4/00
Sec 23 Power
restoration
100/02-23-
039-10W4/00
100/01-23-
039-10W4/00
103/11-31-
038-09W4/00
1C0/05-02-
037-07W4/00
1D0/02-10-
037-07W4/00
Sec 2 PL
Project

Issue

HIT or Pump
Failure
Tubing
Failure
Pump Failure

HIT or Pump
Failure
Pump stuck

HIT or Pump
Failure

HIT or Pump
Failure

HIT or Pump
Failure
Reactivation

Reactivation
Reactivation
ESP Fail
Recompletion
HIT or Pump
Failure
Project
Reactivation
Reactivation
Reactivation
HIT or Pump
Failure

HIT or Pump

Failure
Project

1D

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Total
Boed

14

14

13

8

13

7

10

10

16

12

18

14

14

12

1

17

13

6

17

Costs ($)

$
50,875
$
27,500
$
40,535
$
44,000
$
57,255
$
44,000
$
25,300
$
45,100
$
88,000
$
88,000
$
88,000
$
110,000
$
82,500
$
34,265
$
55,000
$
99,000
$
99,000
$
22,000
$
110,000
$
38,500

$
66,000

Cap. Eff.
($/Boed)
3,635
1,979
3,202
5,439
4,544
6,292
2,489
4,316
5,455
7,222
4,877
7,746
5,863
2,812
45,135
5,736
7,586
3,688
6,498
8,170

54,161




Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Shorncliffe

Shorncliffe
Shorncliffe

Neutral
Hills

Neutral
Hills North
Neutral
Hills North
Neutral
Hills North
Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Neutral
Hills
Neutral
Hills North
Neutral
Hills North
Neutral
Hills North
Sedgewick

Silver
Heights

Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Neutral
Hills North
Neutral
Hills North
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Pipeline
Project
Pipeline
R&M
Reactivation
R&M

Project

Pipeline
Pipeline
R&M
Project
Reactivation
Project
R&M

R&M

R&M

R&M

Project

Pipeline
Recompletion
Project
Pipeline
Recompletion

Recompletion

102/14-02-
039-10W4/00
Sec 12 PL
Project
100/13-12-
039-10W4/00
102/08-22-
040-08W4/00
102/02-22-
040-08W4/00
105/04-22-
040-08W4/00
05-11-37-
07wW4 PL
Project
1D0/05-11-
037-07W4
100/12-11-
037-07W4
1D2/08-10-
037-07W4/00
Additional
SH Injection
100/12-24-
039-10W4/00
02-11-37-
7W4 PL
1A0/02-11-
037-07W4/00
1A0/04-11-
037-07W4/00
103/13-11-
037-07W4/00
100/15-05-
042-12W4/00
12-10-39-
10W4 PL
Project
100/12-10-
039-10W4/00
100/06-10-
039-10W4/00
15-11 PL
Wax
100/15-11-
039-10W4/00
1A0/12-10-
037-07W4/00
1B0/11-10-
037-07W4/00

Line
Replacement
Project

Pipeline
Failure
HIT or Pump
Failure
HIT or Pump
Failure
Pump Failure

Project

Pipeline
Down
Pipeline
Down

HIT or Pump
Failure
Project

Reactivation
Project

HIT or Pump
Failure

HIT or Pump
Failure

Wax
Treatment
HIT or Pump
Failure
Project

Pipeline
Break
Recompletion

Project
Pipeline
waxed off

Recompletion

Recompletion

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

12

16

12

13

72

13

13

$

$
132,000
$

$
41,800
$
82,500
$
33,000
$
187,000

$
$
$
1

1,000
$
110,000
$
187,000
$
55,000
$
27,500
$
82,500
$

1,650

$
35,915

$
88,000

$
88,000
$
132,000
$
55,000
$
55,000
$
66,000

$
66,000

$

$
108,323

$

$

4,550

$

6,916

$

4,217

$
153,458

$
$

$
1,364
$
90,269
$
4,726
$
45,135
$
3,112
$
8,752
$

524

$
3,866
$
72,215

6,593
1,825
45,135
6,881

5,238

5,238




Neutral
Hills North
Neutral
Hills North
Silver
Heights
Neutral
Hills
Neutral
Hills
Neutral
Hills
Neutral
Hills North
Shorncliffe

Shorncliffe

Silver
Heights
Shorncliffe

Shorncliffe
Shorncliffe
Shorncliffe

Neutral
Hills North
Silver
Heights
Neutral
Hills
Silver
Heights
Silver
Heights
Atlee

Neutral

Hills
Atlee
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Recompletion
Recompletion
Project
Project
R&M
Project
Pipeline
R&M

R&M

R&M

R&M

R&M

R&M

R&M

R&M
Reactivation
R&M
Reactivation
Reactivation
Optimization
R&M

Reactivation

103/12-11-
037-07W4/00
104/13-11-
037-07W4/00
SH Gas
Conservation
16-02-37-7
Liner Pull
102/16-02-
037-07W4/00
14-10-37-7
PL
1B2/02-15-
037-07W4
100/04-23-
040-08W4/00
100/03-22-
040-08W4/00
100/14-11-
039-10W4/00
104/15-22-
040-08W4/00
103/02-22-
040-08W4/00
1A0/04-23-
040-08W4/00
103/04-22-
040-08W4/00
1D0/13-10-
037-07W4/00
102/01-23-
039-10W4/00
1D2/09-10-
037-07W4
100/12-12-
039-10W4/00
102/15-14-
039-10W4/00
100/02-35-
021-07W4/00
1D0/06-11-
037-07W4/00
102/14-35-
021-07W4/00

Recompletion
Recompletion
Project
Project

HIT or Pump
Failure
Project

Pipeline
Down

HIT or Pump
Failure

HIT or Pump
Failure

HIT or Pump
Failure

HIT or Pump
Failure

HIT or Pump
Failure
Reactivation

HIT or Pump
Failure

HIT or Pump
Failure
Reactivation

HIT or Pump
Failure
Reactivation

Reactivation

Pump
Installation
HIT or Pump
Failure
Reactivation

46

47

48

49

51

52

53

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

13

12

11

$
77,000
$
99,000
$
88,000
$
77,000
$
60,500
$
77,000
$

$
27,500
$
77,000
$
38,500
$
66,000
$
82,500
$
77,000
$
44,000
$
132,000
$
132,000
$
55,000
$
88,000
$
88,000
$
88,000
$
77,000
$
88,000

$
6,111
$
7,857
$
72,215
$
63,188
$
6,583
$
63,188
$

$
6,375
$
7,246
$
9,162
$
9211
$
9,398
$
10,516
$
11,640
$
11,066
$
11,726
$
12,249
$
13,345
$
12,775
$
2,737
$
13,782
$
9,739




Schedule “B”
Form of Security Agreement

See attached.

62287187\2







SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is dated March 1, 2024

BY:
CLEO ENERGY CORP. 200, 117-8th Ave SW, Calgary,
Alberta T2P 1B4
("CLEQ" or the "Debtor")

IN FAVOUR OF:

MANTL Canada Inc. 1500, 510-5th Ave SW Calgary, AB
T2P 352

("Mantl" or the "Secured Party")

The Debtor agrees with the Secured Party as follows:

1.1

ARTICLE 1
INTERPRETATION

Definitions

In this Agreement, the following terms have the following meanings:

1.1.1

1.1.2

11.7
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"Agreement” means this agreement as it may be supplemented, amended, restated or
replaced by written agreement between the Parties.

"Collateral" means all right, title and interest in the Borrower to the lands identified in
Schedule “A”, including wells and equipment thereon, but specifically excludes the Excluded
Collateral.

"Consumer Goods" means Goods that are used or acquired for use primarily for personal,
family or household purposes.

"Debtor" is defined in the recital of the Parties, above.
"Event of Default" is defined in Section 4.1.

"Excluded Collateral" means Consumer Goods and any right, permit or contract that would
be breached or terminated if a security interest was granted in it without the consent of a
third party, unless that consent is obtained.

"Obligations" means the sum of up to $1,800,000.00 owing by the Debtor to the Secured
Party, according to the terms of, and as evidenced by, a trade payable loan agreement and
demand promissory note dated on or about the date hereof, as that promissory note is
amended, supplemented, renewed, restated or replaced (the "Promissory Note"), and all




present and future indebtedness and obligations of the Debtor to the Secured Party under
this Agreement.

1.1.8 "Parties" means, collectively, the Debtor and the Secured Party, and "Party" means any one
of them.
1.1.9 "PPSA" means the Personal Property Security Act (Alberta), as amended, renamed or

replaced and includes all regulations made under that legislation.
1.1.10 "Receiver" means a receiver or receiver-manager of all or any part of the Collateral.
1.1.11 "Secured Party" is defined in the recital of the Parties, above.

1.1.12 "Security Interests” means the mortgages, charges and security interests granted and
created by this Agreement.

1.2 Incorporated Definitions

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement have the definitions set out in the PPSA.

1.3 Governing Law

This Agreement is governed by, and is to be construed and interpreted in accordance with, the laws of
the Province of Alberta and the laws of Canada applicable in that Province.

1.4 Rules of Interpretation

In this Agreement, words signifying the singular number include the plural and vice versa, and words
signifying gender include all genders. Every use of the words "including” and "includes" in this
Agreement is to be construed as meaning "including, without limitation" or "includes, without limitation",
respectively.

1.5 Entire Agreement

This Agreement, together with the Promissory Note, constitutes the entire agreement between the
Parties pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all prior agreements,
understandings, negotiations and discussions, whether oral or written, of the Parties in connection with
the subject matter of this Agreement except as specifically set out in this Agreement or, if applicable, in
the Promissory Note.

ARTICLE 2
GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST

21 Security Interests

As security for payment and performance of the Obligations, the Debtor mortgages and charges to the
Secured Party, and grants to the Secured Party a security interest in, and the Secured Party takes a
security interest in, all of the Debtor's right, title and interest in and to the Collateral.
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2.2 Attachment

The Debtor and the Secured Party do not intend to postpone the attachment of the Security Interests,
and the Security Interests will attach when:

221 this Agreement has been executed, or in the case of after-acquired property, that property
has been acquired by the Debtor;

222 value has been given; and
2.2.3 the Debtor has rights in the Collateral, or in the case of after-acquired property, acquires

rights in the Collateral.

ARTICLE 3
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

31 Representations and Warranties
The Debtor represents and warrants to the Secured Party that:

3.1.1 Corporate Existence. It is duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of the
Province of Alberta.

3.1.2 Name. The full legal name of the Debtor (including any French or French/English form of its
legal name), and any other name under which it conducts its business, is correctly specified
on the signature page of this Agreement.

3.1.3 Place of Business. The Debtor's sole place of business or chief executive office, as
applicable, is 200, 117-8th Ave SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 1B4.

3.1.4 Owns Collateral. The Debtor either owns, possesses and has marketable title to, or has
enforceable leasehold or other rights to, all currently held Collateral

3.2 Covenants

The Debtor covenants with the Secured Party that it will not, without the prior written consent of the
Secured Party:

3.21 sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the Collateral or any part of it, other than in the ordinary
course of business;

3.2.2 release, surrender or abandon the Collateral or any part of it; or

3.2.3 move the Collateral or any part of it from its present locations.
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41

ARTICLE 4
DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT

Events of Default

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events or conditions will be an event of default under
this Agreement ("Event of Defauit"):

411

4.1.2

413

41.4

41.5

4.2

4.21

4.3

the Debtor defaults in payment to the Secured Party upon the expiry of the Remedy Period
(defined within the Promissory Note);

the Debtor defaults in performance of any of the Obligations other than payment under
Section 4.1.1;

the Debtor defaults in the observance or performance of any of the terms, conditions or
covenants to be observed or performed by the Debtor under this Agreement

the Debtor ceases to carry on its business;

the Debtor commits the act of bankruptcy, or if an application for a bankruptcy order is filed
against the Debtor; and

the Secured Party in good faith and on commercially reasonable grounds believes that the
ability of the Debtor to pay any of the Obligations to the Secured Party, or to perform for the

Secured Party any of the Obligations or other covenants contained in this Agreement, is
impaired

Security Interests Enforceable

The occurrence of an Event of Default will cause the Security Interests to become
enforceable against the Debtor with notice by the Secured Party.

Remedies of the Secured Party

If the Security Interests become enforceable, the Secured Party may enforce its rights by any one or
more of the following remedies:

4.31

432

4.3.3

43.4
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by proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a Receiver;

by proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction for the sale or foreclosure of all or any
part of the Collateral;

by filing of proofs of claim and other documents to establish its claims in any proceeding or
proceedings relating to the Debtor;

by appointment by instrument in writing of a Receiver on any terms as to remuneration and
otherwise as the Secured Party thinks fit, or by removing and appointing a replacement for




any Receiver, and any Receiver so appointed will have, in addition to all of the rights and
remedies of a receiver under the PPSA, the power:

4.3.41 to, demand, sue on, , realize on or enforce against the Collateral, and take any
proceedings in the name of the Debtor or otherwise as may seem expedient;

4.3.4.2 to borrow money on the security of the Collateral in priority to this Agreement or
otherwise for the purpose of the maintenance, preservation or protection of the
Collateral,

4.3.4.3 tomake any arrangement or compromise that the Receiver thinks expedient; and

4.3.5 by any other remedy or proceeding authorized or permitted by this Agreement including all
of the rights and remedies of a secured party under the PPSA.

No legal proceeding to enforce the Security Interests will be commenced within 10 business days from
the date on which a notice to enforce the Security Interests is made in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

44 Proceeds of Disposition

The Proceeds of the sale, lease or other disposition of the whole or any part of the Collateral will be
applied to the Obligations, and any surplus remaining in the hands of the Receiver or the Secured Party
will be distributed as required by the PPSA or other applicable law.

4.5 Deficiency

If the Proceeds of the realization of the Collateral are insufficient to fully pay the Obligations to the
Secured Party, the Debtor will be liable to pay, and will immediately pay or cause to be paid, the
deficiency to the Secured Party.

ARTICLE §
GENERAL

5.1 Automatic Discharge

This Agreement will be or be considered to have been discharged if the Debtor ceasing to be indebted
or under any liability, direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, to the Secured Party.

5.2 No Obligation to Advance

None of the preparation, execution or registration of notice of this Agreement will bind the Secured Party
to advance any monies or extend any credit to the Debtor, nor will the advance of a portion of any
monies or the extension of a portion of any credit by the Secured Party to the Debtor bind the Secured
Party to make available any unadvanced or unextended portion of those monies or that credit.
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5.3 Realization

The Secured Party may realize upon various securities securing the Obligations or any part of them in
any order that it sees fit, and realization by any means upon any security or part of it will not bar
realization upon any other security or the Security Interests or any part of them.

5.4 Extensions

The Secured Party may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give up security,
accept compositions, compound, compromise, settle, grant releases and discharges, refrain from
perfecting or maintaining perfection of security interests and otherwise deal with the Debtor, account
debtors of the Debtor, sureties and others, and with the Collateral and other security interests, as the
Secured Party may see fit without prejudice to the liability of the Debtor or to the Secured Party's right
to hold and realize on the security constituted by this Agreement.

5.5 Notice
Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or other communication that is required or permitted by
this Agreement to be given or made by a Party must be in writing and may be personally delivered, sent
by prepaid registered mail or sent by e-mail or other functionally equivalent electronic means of
communication to the receiving Party at its address or e-mail address as follows:

Debtor: 200, 117-8th Ave SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 1B4

clewis@cleoenergy.com
Secured Party: 1500, 510-5th Ave SW Calgary, AB T2P 352

matthew.kenna@mantl.ca

or at any other address or e-mail address as any Party may from time to time advise the other Party in
accordance with this Section 5.5.

5.6 Submission to Jurisdiction

The Debtor irrevocably submits and attorns to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of
Alberta to determine all issues, whether at law or in equity, arising from this Agreement.

5.7 Amendment and Waiver

No supplement, amendment, waiver, discharge or termination of this Agreement is binding unless it is
executed in writing by the Party to be bound. No waiver of, failure to exercise or delay in exercising, any
provision of this Agreement constitutes a waiver of any other provision, whether or not similar, nor does
any waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided.
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5.8 Assignment

5.8.1 The Secured Party may, with the consent of the Debtor, at any time assign, transfer or grant
a security interest in its rights and obligations under this Agreement and the Security
Interests.

5.8.2 Neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations under this Agreement may be assigned

by the Debtor without the prior consent of the Secured Party.

5.9 Enurement
This Agreement enures to the benefit of the Secured Party and its heirs, executors, administrators,

successors and assigns, and is binding upon the Debtor and its heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and permitted assigns.

5.10 Electronic Signatures and Delivery
This Agreement may be:
5.10.1 signed by manual, digital or other electronic signatures; and

5.10.2 delivered or transmitted by any digital, electronic or other intangible means, including by e-
mail or other functionally equivalent electronic means of transmission;

and that execution, delivery and transmission will be valid and legally effective to create a valid and
binding agreement between the Parties.

5.1 Acknowledgment and Waiver
The Debtor:
5111 acknowledges receiving a copy of this Agreement; and

511.2 waives all rights to receive from the Secured Party a copy of any financing statement,
financing change statement or verification statement filed or issued, as the case may be, at
any time in respect of this Agreement or any amendments to this Agreement.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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SCHEDULE "A" attached to and forming part of a Security Agreement dated March 1, 2024
between CLEO ENERGY CORP. AND MANTL CANADA LTD.

THE SECURED ASSETS

Enchant / Taber: All assets, including land, wells, facilities and pipelines located from Twp 009 Rge
13W4M to Twp 014 Rge 20 W4M.

R21t R20 R19 R18 R17 R16 R1S R14 R13W4
DA
< e
e ; . FOWA {TOPLY
e o
£ ENCHANT . [ CLEO Land
4 e {4 CLEO Wi Wells
A { v Gas Wells
o~ N - | ~CLEO Pipeline
;’_‘ R e et
Fi
“R‘
o .
= ,
L AICO
T { b W
)

Atlee: All assets, including land, wells, facilities and pipelines located from Twp 021 Rge 07 W4M to
Twp 022 Rge 07 W4M.

"7 R&vs

CLEQ Land E
FCLEQ Wi Wefis H

Project Wells i
# CLEQ Cantsal Battery {
- CLEQ Pipetine i

1

i * 15-35 Centra) Battery
100% Wi

] Capacity:

! 1,500 bbird O

| 18,800 hblid Water
= 25 MMctd Gas
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AMENDED DEMAND PROMISSORY NOTE

Principal: $734,054.00 Dated: May 11, 2023

Interest Rate: 12%

1.

On December 31, 2018, the Borrower issued an interest bearing demand promissory note in
favour of the Creditor in the principal amount of $735,000.00 (the "Note").

The Parties wish to amend the Note as set out herein.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, CLEO Energy Corp. (the "Borrower"), having a principal office
located at 200, 117 8" Ave SW Calgary Alberta T2P 1B4, promises to pay to or to the order of,
Marco Simonelli (the "Creditor") at 2902 Montcalm Crecent SW Calgary Alberta T2T 3M6
(or at any other place as the Creditor may, from time to time, designate by notice in writing to the
Borrower):

(a) on demand, the principal sum of $734,054.00 (the "Principal") plus any interest due; and

(b) a fixed rate of interest of 12% per annum, (the "Interest Rate"), on the unpaid portion of
the Principal until the Principal is repaid in full, calculated on the basis of the actual
number of days elapsed in a year, being 365 or 366, as the case may be, accruing on a
monthly basis and payable in full when the final payment is made to repay the Principal
in full.

Payment Upon Demand—Subject to Section 5, the Principal, together with any accrued but
unpaid interest, will become due and will be paid in full on demand.

Timing of Demand—Notwithstanding Section 4, no demand for payment of the Principal,
together with any accrued but unpaid interest thereon, will be made by the Creditor until at least
30 days after the date of this promissory note.

Interest on Overdue Interest—If default occurs in the payment of any interest due under this
promissory note, interest on that amount at the Interest Rate, calculated daily and compounded
monthly, will be payable on demand.

Application of Payments—Any amount paid in satisfaction of the indebtedness evidenced by
this promissory note will be applied first in satisfaction of any accrued and unpaid interest which
is due and payable and any overdue interest thereon, and then the remaining portion of the
amount paid will be applied in satisfaction of the Principal owing under this promissory note.

Enforcement—No legal proceeding to enforce the Borrower's obligations under this promissory
note will be commenced until after the first day on which there is a failure to perform those
obligations once a demand is made in accordance with Section 4 and Section 5 of this
promissory note.

Prepayment—The Borrower will be entitled to prepay the Principal, in whole or in part, together
with interest at the Interest Rate calculated to the date of prepayment on the Principal being
prepaid, at any time prior to a demand being made by the Creditor, without any notice being
given to the Creditor and without any bonus or penalty being paid to the Creditor, provided that
the Borrower is not in default in the payment of any amount due under this promissory note. Any
such prepayment will be applied to the Principal owing under this promissory note.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

-2-

Currency and Payment—Any money to be paid pursuant to this promissory note must be paid
by bank draft, certified cheque or electronic funds transfer of immediately available funds
payable to the Creditor, in lawful Canadian currency.

Security—As security for the Principal, the Borrower hereby mortgages and charges to the
Creditor, and grants to the Creditor a security interest in, and the Creditor takes a security interest
in, all of the Borrower's right, title and interest (the "Secured Interest") in and to the Collateral
(defined below), which together with the general security agreement attached as Schedule "A"
to this promissory note, and any other agreements securing, evidencing, or pertaining to the loan
memorialized by this promissory note are collectively referred to as the "Security Documents".
The collateral shall be all present and after acquired properties of the Borrower (the "Collateral").
The Collateral secures the payment of this promissory note and any other liability of Borrower
for itself or its agents to the Creditor however evidenced, now existing or hereafter incurred,
matured or unmatured, direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, including any extensions and
renewals thereof, which Collateral is pledged and a security interest therein granted to the
Creditor, pursuant to the Security Documents together with all rights to which the owner of the
Collateral is now, or may hereafter become, entitled by virtue of owning such Collateral. The
proceeds of any Collateral may be applied against any of the liabilities of the Borrower to the
Creditor in such order of payment as the Creditor deems proper.

Non-Waiver—The extension of the time for making any payment which is due and payable
under this promissory note, or the Creditor's failure or delay in exercising or enforcing any rights
or remedies under this promissory note, or under any instrument securing payment of the
indebtedness evidenced by this promissory note, will not constitute a continuing waiver of the
right of the Creditor to enforce those rights and remedies in the future.

Notices and Demands—Any demand or notice to be made or given in connection with this
promissory note will be in writing and will be personally delivered to an officer or responsible
employee of the Borrower or the Creditor or sent by facsimile, e-mail, or functionally equivalent
electronic means, charges (if any) prepaid, at or to any address, electronic address, or facsimile
number, as the case may be, as the Borrower or the Creditor may designate to the other in
accordance with this provision. Any demand or notice which is personally delivered will be
deemed to have been validly and effectively given on the date of delivery if that date is a business
day, and the delivery was made during normal business hours; otherwise, it will be deemed to
have been validly and effectively given on the business day next following the date of delivery.
Any demand or notice which is transmitted by facsimile, e-mail, or functionally equivalent
electronic means will be deemed to have been validly and effectively given on the date of
transmission if that date is a business day and the transmission was made during normal
business hours of the recipient; otherwise, it will be deemed to have been validly and effectively
given on the business day next following the date of transmission.

Amendments—No amendment or waiver of any provision of this promissory note or consent to
any departure by the Borrower from any provision of this promissory note is effective unless it is
in writing and signed by the Creditor, and then the amendment, waiver or consent is effective
only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which it is given.

Collection Expenses—The Borrower will pay all costs and expenses incurred by the Creditor
in collecting any amount due, and enforcing its rights, under this promissory note, including,
without limitation, reasonable legal fees and disbursements. Those costs and expenses will be
added to the Principal and will bear interest at the Interest Rate.
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17.

18.
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Governing Law—This promissory note will be governed by and construed in all respects in
accordance with the laws of the Province of Alberta and the laws of Canada applicable in that
Province.

Time of the Essence—Time will in all respects be of the essence of this promissory note.

Waiver of Benefits—Presentment for payment, protest and notice of protest, notice of non-
payment and notice of dishonour are waived by the Borrower.

Assignment—The Borrower will not be permitted to assign this promissory note, in whole or in
part, without the prior written consent of the Creditor. The Creditor may assign (including by way
of security) this promissory note, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the
Borrower. This promissory note will be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of
the Borrower and will enure for the benefit of the Creditor and its successors and assigns.

The Borrower has executed this promissory note as of the 11" day of May, 2023.

CLEO ENER

Per: cls
Name: Chris Lewis
Title: Executive Chairman

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED this 11" day of May, 2023:

Name: Marco Simonelli






SCHEDULE "A"
FORM OF GENERAL SECURITY AGREEMENT

General Security Agreement dated December 31, 2018 as per attached;









GENERAL SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is dated December 31512018

BY:

CLEO ENERGY CORP

(the "Debtor")

IN FAVOUR OF:

Marco Simonelli

(the "Secured Party")

The Debtor agrees with the Secured Party as follows:

ARTICLE 1
INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

In this Agreement, the following terms have the following meanings:

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.1.3

1.1.4

1.1.5

"Agreement" means this agreement as it may be supplemented, amended,
restated or replaced by written agreement between the Parties.

"Collateral" means all present and after-acquired personal property owned,
leased, licensed, possessed or acquired by the Debtor, or in which the Debtor has
rights, including all present and after-acquired Goods (including Equipment and
Inventory), Investment Property, Instruments, Documents of Title, Chattel Paper,
Intangibles (including Accounts), Money, crops and fixtures, owned, leased,
licensed, possessed or acquired by the Debtor, or in which the Debtor has rights,
and all Proceeds of that property, but specifically excludes the Excluded Collateral.

"Consumer Goods" means Goods that are used or acquired for use primarily for
personal, family or household purposes.

"Debtor" is defined in the recital of the Parties, above.

"Event of Default" is defined in Section 4.1.



1.1.6 "Excluded Collateral" means Consumer Goods and any right, permit or contract
that would be breached or terminated if a security interest was granted in it without
the consent of a third party, unless that consent is obtained.

1.1.7 "Obligations" means the sum of $735,000 owing by the Debtor to the Secured Party
and interest on that amount at the rate of 12%, according to the terms of, and as
evidenced by, a promissory note dated December 31, 2018, as that promissory note
is amended, supplemented, renewed, restated or replaced, and all present and
future indebtedness and obligations of the Debtor to the Secured Party under this
Agreement.

1.1.8 "Parties" means, collectively, the Debtor and the Secured Party, and "Party" means
any one of them.

1.1.9 "PPSA" means the Personal Property Security Act (Alberta), as amended, renamed
or replaced and includes all regulations made under that legislation.

1.1.10 "Receiver" means a receiver or receiver-manager of all or any part of the Collateral.

1.1.11 "Secured Party" is defined in the recital of the Parties, above.

1.1.12 "Security Interests" means the mortgages, charges and security interests granted
and created by this Agreement.

1.2 Incorporated Definitions

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement have the definitions set out in
the PPSA.

1.3 Governing Law

This Agreement is governed by, and is to be construed and interpreted in accordance with,
the laws of the Province of Alberta and the laws of Canada applicable in that Province.

1.4 Rules of Interpretation

In this Agreement, words signifying the singular number include the plural and vice versa,
and words signifying gender include all genders. Every use of the words "including" and
"includes" in this Agreement is to be construed as meaning "including, without limitation"
or "includes, without limitation", respectively.



ARTICLE 2
GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST
21 Security Interests
As security for payment and performance of the Obligations, the Debtor mortgages and
charges to the Secured Party, and grants to the Secured Party a security interest in, and the
Secured Party takes a security interest in, all of the Debtor's right, title and interestin and to
the Collateral.

2.2 Attachment

The Debtor and the Secured Party do not intend to postpone the attachment of the Security
Interests, and the Security Interests will attach when:

2.2.1 this Agreement has been executed, or in the case of after-acquired property, that
property has been acquired by the Debtor;

2.2.2 value has been given; and
2.2.3 the Debtor hasrights in the Collateral, or in the case of after-acquired property,
acquires rights in the Collateral.
ARTICLE 3
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS
3.1 Representations and Warranties

The Debtor represents and warrants to the Secured Party that:

3.1.1 Corporate Existence. It is duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of
the Province of Alberta.

3.1.2 Name. The full legal name of the Debtor (including any French or French/English
form of its legal name), and any other name under which it conducts its business, is
correctly specified on the signature page of this Agreement.



3.1.3 Place of Business. The Debtor's sole place of business or chief executive office, as
applicable, is 200 -117 8 Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 1B4.

3.1.4 Location of Collateral.

The locations of all other places where the Debtor carries on business or keeps Collateral
are 200 - 117 8 Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 1B4 and throughout Alberta.

3.1.5 Owns Collateral.

The Debtor either owns, possesses and has good and marketable title to, or has
enforceable leasehold or other rights to, all currently held Collateral, free from all security
interests, mortgages, charges, encumbrances, liens and claims except those previously
disclosed to the Secured Party.

3.2 Covenants

The Debtor covenants with the Secured Party that it will not, without the prior written
consent of the Secured Party:

3.2.1 permit the Collateral or any part of it to become subject to any mortgage, charge,
lien, encumbrance or security interest, whether made, given or created by the
Debtor or otherwise;

3.2.2 sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the Collateral or any part of it (other than
Inventory in the ordinary course of business), and if any sale, lease or other
disposition is permitted or consented to it will pay the Proceeds to the Secured
Party;

3.2.3 release, surrender or abandon the Collateral or any part of it; or

3.2.4 move the Collateral or any part of it from its present locations.

ARTICLE 4
DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT

41 Events of Default

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events or conditions will be an event of
default under this Agreement ("Event of Default"):



4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

4.1.7

4.2

the Debtor defaults in payment to the Secured Party when due of any indebtedness
or liabilities forming part of the Obligations;

the Debtor defaults in performance of any of the Obligations other than payment
under Section 4.1.1;

the Debtor defaults in the observance or performance of any of the terms,
conditions or covenants to be observed or performed by the Debtor under this
Agreement or any other agreement or instrument existing at any time between the
Debtor and the Secured Party;

the Debtor ceases or threatens to cease to carry on its business;

the Debtor commits or threatens to commit any act of bankruptcy, or becomes
insolvent or bankrupt or makes a proposal or files an assignment for the benefit of
creditors under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) or similar legislation in
Canada or any other jurisdiction, or if an application for a bankruptcy order is filed
against the Debtor;

proceedings are commenced against or affecting the Debtor seeking the
appointment of, or any creditor of the Debtor or any other person privately appoints,
a receiver, receiver- manager, trustee, custodian, liquidator or similar official for the
Debtor or any part of the Debtor's property, including the Collateral or any part of it;
or

the Secured Party in good faith and on commercially reasonable grounds believes
that the ability of the Debtor to pay any of the Obligations to the Secured Party, or to
perform for the Secured Party any of the Obligations or other covenants contained in
this Agreement, is impaired, or any security granted by the Debtor to the Secured
Party is or is about to be impaired or in jeopardy.

Acceleration

If an Event of Default described in Section 4.1.5 or Section 4.1.6 occurs all of the
obligations will immediately become due and payable without any demand or any notice of
any kind to the Debtor. If any other Event of Default occurs the Secured Party, in its sole and
absolute discretion, may declare all or any part of the Obligations, whether or not by their
terms payable on demand, immediately due and payable, without any further demand or
notice of any kind.

4.3

Demand Obligations



The provisions of Sections 4.1 and 4.2 will not affect the demand nature of any
indebtedness or obligations payable by the Debtor to the Secured Party on demand, and
the Secured Party may demand payment of that indebtedness and those obligations at any
time without restriction, whether or not the Debtor has complied with the provisions of this
Agreement or any other instrument between the Debtor and the Secured Party.

4.4  Security Interests Enforceable

The occurrence of an Event of Default will cause the Security Interests to become
enforceable against the Debtor without the need for any action or notice by the Secured
Party.

4.5 Remedies of the Secured Party

If the more Security Interests become enforceable, the Secured Party may enforce its rights
by any one or of the following remedies:

4.5.1 by taking possession of the Collateral or any part of it, and collecting, demanding,
suing, enforcing, recovering, receiving and otherwise getting in the Collateral, and
for that purpose entering into and upon any lands, buildings, and premises and
doing any act and taking any proceedings in the name of the Debtor, or otherwise, as
the Secured Party considers necessary;

4.5.2 by proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a
Receiver;

4.5.3 by proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction for the sale or foreclosure of
all or any part of the Collateral;

4.5.4 by filing of proofs of claim and other documents to establish its claims in any
proceeding or proceedings relating to the Debtor;

4.5.5 by sale or lease by the Secured Party of all or any part of the Collateral, whether or
not it has taken possession of the Collateral;

4.5.6 by appointment by instrument in writing of a Receiver on any terms as to
remuneration and otherwise as the Secured Party thinks fit, or by removing and
appointing a replacement for any Receiver, and any Receiver so appointed will have,
in addition to all of the rights and remedies of a receiver under the PPSA, the power:

4.5.6.1 to take possession of, collect, demand, sue on, recover, receive, realize
on or enforce against the Collateral, and for that purpose to give valid
and binding receipts and discharges for and in respect of it, and take



4.5.7

4.6

4.5.6.2

4.5.6.3

4.5.6.4

4.5.6.5

any proceedings in the name of the Debtor or otherwise as may seem
expedient;

to carry on or manage all or any part of the business of the Debtor;

to borrow money on the security of the Collateral in priority to this
Agreement or otherwise for the purpose of the maintenance,
preservation or protection of the Collateral, for carrying on or managing
all or any part of the business of the Debtor or for exercising any other
power under this Agreement;

to sell, lease, accept surrenders of leases of or otherwise dispose of
the Collateral in whole or in part, at public auction, by public tender or
by private sale, either for

to make any arrangement or compromise that the Receiver thinks
expedient; and

by any other remedy or proceeding authorized or permitted by this Agreement or by
law or equity, including all of the rights and remedies of a secured party under the

PPSA;

and in exercising, delaying in exercising or failing to exercise, any such right or
remedy the Secured Party will not incur any liability to the Debtor.

Proceeds of Disposition

The Proceeds of the sale, lease or other disposition of the whole or any part of the
Collateral will be applied to the Obligations, including any amounts owed to the Secured
Party under Section 5.5, and any surplus remaining in the hands of the Receiver or the
Secured Party will be distributed as required by the PPSA or other applicable law.

4.7

Deficiency

If the Proceeds of the realization of the Collateral are insufficient to fully pay the
Obligations to the Secured Party, the Debtor will be liable to pay, and willimmediately pay
or cause to be paid, the deficiency to the Secured Party.

5.1

ARTICLE S5
GENERAL

No Automatic Discharge

This Agreement will not be or be considered to have been discharged by reason only of the
Debtor ceasing to be indebted or under any liability, direct or indirect, absolute or
contingent, to the Secured Party.



5.2 No Obligation to Advance

None of the preparation, execution or registration of notice of this Agreement will bind the
Secured Party to advance any monies or extend any credit to the Debtor, nor will the
advance of a portion of any monies or the extension of a portion of any credit by the
Secured Party to the Debtor bind the Secured Party to make available any unadvanced or
un-extended portion of those monies or that credit.

5.3 Security Additional

The Security Interests are in addition to and not in substitution for any other security now or
in the future held by the Secured Party.

54 Realization

The Secured Party may realize upon various securities securing the Obligations or any part
of them in any order that it sees fit, and realization by any means upon any security or part
of it will not bar realization upon any other security or the Security Interests or any part of
them.

5.5 Payment of Costs

The Debtor will pay on demand all costs and expenses incurred (including legal costs and
disbursements on a 100 percent, complete indemnity basis) and fees charged by:

5.5.1 the Secured Party in connection with obtaining or discharging this Agreement,
establishing or confirming the priority of the Security Interests created by this
Agreement or by law, or complying with any demand by any person under the PPSA
to amend or discharge any registration relating to this Agreement; and

5.5.2 the Secured Party or any Receiver in exercising any remedy under this Agreement
(including preserving, repairing, processing, preparing for disposition and disposing
of the Collateral by sale, lease or otherwise) and in carrying on the Debtor's
business.

All of those amounts will bear interest from time to time at the highest interest rate then
applicable to any of the Obligations, and the Debtor will reimburse the Secured Party or
Receiver, as applicable, upon demand for any amount so paid.

5.6 Extensions

The Secured Party may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give up
security, accept compositions, compound, compromise, settle, grant releases and



discharges, refrain from perfecting or maintaining perfection of security interests and
otherwise deal with the Debtor, account debtors of the Debtor, sureties and others, and
with the Collateral and other security interests, as the Secured Party may see fit without
prejudice to the liability of the Debtor or to the Secured Party's right to hold and realize on
the security constituted by this Agreement.

5.7 Notice

Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or other communication that is required or
permitted by this Agreement to be given or made by a Party must be in writing and may be
personally delivered, sent by prepaid registered mail or sent by e-mail or other functionally
equivalent electronic means of communication to the receiving Party at its address or e-
mail address as follows:

Debtor: 200-117 8 Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 1B4
clewis@cleoenergy.com

Secured Party: 2902 Montcalm Crecent SW Calgary Alberta T2T 3M6
Marco12666@me.com

or at any other address or e-mail address as any Party may from time to time advise the
other Party in accordance with this Section 5.7.

5.8 Submission to Jurisdiction

The Debtor irrevocably submits and attorns to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the
Province of Alberta to determine all issues, whether at law or in equity, arising from this
Agreement.

5.9 Amendment and Waiver

No supplement, amendment, waiver, discharge or termination of this Agreement is binding
unless it is executed in writing by the Party to be bound. No waiver of, failure to exercise or
delay in exercising, any provision of this Agreement constitutes a waiver of any other
provision, whether or not similar, nor does any waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless
otherwise expressly provided.

5.10 Further Assurances

The Debtor will, at the Debtor's sole cost, execute and deliver any further agreements and
documents and provide any further assurances as may be reasonably required by the
Secured Party to give effect to this Agreement and, without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, will do or cause to be done all acts and things, execute and deliver or cause to be
executed and delivered all agreements and documents and provide any assurances,


mailto:clewis@cleoenergy.com
mailto:Marco12666@me.com

undertakings and information as may be required from time to time by all regulatory or
governmental authorities.

5.11 Assignment
5.11.1 The Secured Party may, without notice to or consent of the Debtor, at any time
assign, transfer or grant a security interest in its rights and obligations under this

Agreement and the Security Interests.

5.11.2 Neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations under this Agreement may be
assigned by the Debtor without the prior consent of the Secured Party.

5.12 Enurement

This Agreement enures to the benefit of the Secured Party and its heirs, executors,

administrators, successors and assigns, and is binding upon the Debtor and its heirs,

executors, administrators, successors and permitted assigns.

5.13 Joint and Several Obligations

If the Debtor is composed of more than one person, the agreements of, and all obligations

and covenants to be performed and observed by, each of the persons comprising the

Debtor under this Agreement will be the joint and several agreements, obligations and

covenants of each of the persons comprising the Debtor, and any request or authorization

given to the Secured Party by any of the persons comprising the Debtor will be considered

to be the requests or authorizations of each of the persons comprising the Debtor.

5.14 Electronic Sighatures and Delivery

This Agreement may be:

5.14.1 signed by manual, digital or other electronic signatures; and

5.14.2 delivered or transmitted by any digital, electronic or other intangible means,
including by e- mail or other functionally equivalent electronic means of

transmission;

and that execution, delivery and transmission will be valid and legally effective to create a
valid and binding agreement between the Parties.

5.15 Acknowledgment and Waiver

The Debtor:



5.15.1 acknowledges receiving a copy of this Agreement; and

5.15.2 waives all rights to receive from the Secured Party a copy of any financing
statement, financing change statement or verification statement filed or issued, as
the case may be, at any time in respect of this Agreement or any amendments to
this Agreement.

The Debtor has executed and delivered this Agreement as of the date noted at the

beginning of the Agreement.

CLEO ENERGY CORP.

Per:

Name: Chris Lewis
Title: Director
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This Merchant Cash Advance (this "Agreement") is between 2M7 Financial. Having its registered address at 64 Signet Drive North York On. ("Company") and the merchant identified

below ("Merchant").

Business Information

Business Profile

DBA Business Phone Fax
CLEO Energy Corp 403-801-4155
Alternate Phone Legal Business name Email

403-801-4155

CLEO Energy Corp

clewis@cleoenergy.com

Industry

Overdraft limit

Years in Business

1

5-10 Years

Number of locations

Current processor

Number of employees

1 Other
Addresses

Business Address City Province Postal
117-8th Ave SW 200 Calgary AB T2P 1B4

Mailing Address City Province Postal
117-8th Ave SW 200 Calgary AB T2P 1B4

Billing address City Province Postal
117-8th Ave SW 200 Calgary AB T2P 1B4

Owner Information
Legal Name Title in Business Ownership Percentage
Chris Lewis Owner 80

Home Address City Province Postal

1010 135 26th Ave SW Calgary AB T2S OM2
Home Phone Number Cell Number Own/Rent

403-801-4155

Date of Birth Social Insurance Email Address
03/09/1966 clewis@cleoenergy.com
References
Emeregency Contact
Name Relationship Phone Ext. #
Landlord Information
Company name Contact name Phone Ext. #
Key supplier Reference
Company name Contact name Phone Ext. #

PRIVACY CONSENT

Merchant represents and warrants that each individual listed above has consented to Company'’s collection, disclosure, use and processing of any
DeeySigned hyformation which relates to that individual and allows that individual to be identified for the purposes set out in this Agreement.

W@m{g@tﬂ[&nature

10418EE75B8C44E...
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1.  Definitions:

Deposit Account — shall mean Merchant’s bank accounts to which
the proceeds of daily settlement are being remitted by the Processor
and to which Company has been given access as further described
in sec. 10;

. Future Receivables — shall mean Merchant’s future receipts and
contract rights arising from or relating to any proceeds of sale
received by and accepted as a form of payment by Merchant;
Merchant — shall mean the merchant signatory to this Agreement
and shall include any of its holding companies, affiliates and/or
subsidiaries in the case of a corporate entity; or any and all partners
in the case of a partnership;

. Option Period — shall mean a period of time during which the
Company has an option to perform Reload, commencing on the
day that the Company has acquired such right in accordance with
sec. 5 herein below and for as long as Future Receivables
purchased hereunder remain outstanding;

Processor — shall mean credit card/debit card processor(s) for the
processing of debit/credit cards transactions;

Purchase Price — shall mean the amount agreed upon by the Parties
and paid by the Company for Merchant’s Future Receivables, as
further defined herein;

. Purchased Receivables — shall mean the amount specified in
Schedule A, which constitutes the total amount payable by
Merchant to Company in consideration for the Purchase Price;

. Reload — shall mean Company’s option to purchase from Merchant
additional Future Receivables as further defined in sec. 5 herein;
Set Amount — shall mean the amount specified in Schedule A,
which constitutes a fixed dollar amount as determined by Merchant
and Company; and

Specified Percentage — shall mean the amount specified in
Schedule A, which constitutes a percentage of the total amount of
payments processed by Merchant on any given day.

2. Transaction. Subject to all terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement, Company shall pay to Merchant the Purchase
Price set out in Schedule A hereto (the “Initial Purchase and Sale
Schedule”). In consideration of the Purchase Price, Merchant sells,
assigns and transfers, without recourse (except to the extent
provided herein), and Company purchases, Merchant’s entire right,
title and interest in a percentage specified in the Initial Purchase
and Sale Schedule of each of Merchant’s Future Receivables until
the Purchased Receivables has been paid to the Company.
Merchant shall not repurchase or resell any part of or all the Future
Receivables to any third party and hereby declares itself a bare
trustee of Company with respect to all Purchased Receivables
pending payment in full to Company.

3.  Payment of the Purchase Price. Company shall pay the
Purchase Price to the Merchant by depositing the full amount of
the Purchase Price to the Deposit Account or any other account
specified by the Merchant in Schedule A. The payment shall be
made by Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) to the Merchant’s
account. The transfer of the funds from the Company’s bank
account shall be final proof of the payment, unless notified
otherwise by the Merchant within 3 business days from the date of
the payment. Upon payment of the Purchase Price, the Company
shall acquire full, final and unconditional right for the Purchased
Receivables of the Merchant.

4.  Collection of Future Receivables. Company shall collect
Future Receivables from the Merchant’s account in accordance
with the provisions contained herein. The collection of funds shall
be done on a daily basis, calculated in accordance with Schedule

2

“A” either as the Specified Percentage or as the Set Amount.
Company shall have full and irrevocable authorization to debit
Merchant’s account for any amounts calculated by Company in
accordance with this Agreement.

5. Reloads. In addition to the initial purchase transaction
specified in sec. 2 above, the Parties hereby agree that the
Company shall have the unconditional but revocable option (the
“Option”) to purchase from Merchant additional Future
Receivables in the amount, for the price, at the time and in the
manner set forth hereinafter in Schedule “B” attached hereto (the
“Reload Schedule”). The Option shall be exercisable by Company
in three specific tranches (each, a “Reload”), as follows: (i) First
Reload - upon the collection by Company of Future Receivables
purchased hereunder representing, in the aggregate, thirty-five per
cent (35%) of the Purchased Receivables, Company shall be
entitled at its own discretion to purchase from Merchant such
amount of additional Future Receivables as set forth in the Reload
Schedule in regard of the First Reload, for the purchase price
indicated therein; (ii) Second Reload - upon the collection by
Company of Future Receivables purchased hereunder
representing, in the aggregate, sixty per cent (60%) of the
Purchased Receivables, Company shall be entitled at its own
discretion, to purchase from Merchant such amount of additional
Future Receivables as set forth in the Reload Schedule in regard of
the Second Reload, for the purchase price indicated therein; and
(iii) Third Reload - upon the collection by Company of Future
Receivables purchased hereunder representing, in the aggregate,
ninety per cent (90%) of the Purchased Receivables, Company
shall be entitled at its own discretion, to purchase from Merchant
such amount of additional Future Receivables as set forth in the
Reload Schedule in regard of the Third Reload, for the purchase
price indicated therein. Due payment by Company of the Purchase
Price relating to a Reload in the form of an EFT directed to the
Deposit Account shall evidence the purchase by Company of the
Future Receivables relating to such Reload, as set forth in the
Reload Schedule, without necessity of further document or notice.
All provisions of this Agreement shall apply to the Reloads, which
shall be deemed to be an increase of the Purchase Price, and the
amount of additional Future Receivables purchased thereby shall
be deemed to be an increase of the Future Receivables, both as set
forth in the Initial Purchase and Sale Schedule. Merchant shall
have the right to revoke at any time the Option granted to Company
hereunder by written notice to the Company. Such revocation shall
become effective two (2) business days following receipt of such
notice by Company and shall only apply to the Reloads which have
not yet been exercised at the effective date of revocation.

6.  Security Interest. Immediately upon receipt of the Purchase
Price and until full and final repayment of the Purchased
Receivables, Merchant grants to Company a security interest, as
continuing and collateral security for the due and punctual
performance of all present and future obligations and liabilities of
Merchant to Company under this Agreement (to which Personal
Property Security Act (Ontario) and the regulations thereto, as the
same may be amended from time to time applies) in and grants,
mortgages and charges as and by way of a fixed and specific
mortgage and charge to and in favour of Company, all of the
Merchant’s rights, title, and interests in and to each and every
Future Receivable, all pursuant to and in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement; and irrevocably authorizes Company
to file one or more financing or continuation statements, or
amendments thereto, without the signature of Merchant where
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1.  Definitions:

Deposit Account — shall mean Merchant’s bank accounts to which
the proceeds of daily settlement are being remitted by the Processor
and to which Company has been given access as further described
in sec. 10;

. Future Receivables — shall mean Merchant’s future receipts and
contract rights arising from or relating to any proceeds of sale
received by and accepted as a form of payment by Merchant;
Merchant — shall mean the merchant signatory to this Agreement
and shall include any of its holding companies, affiliates and/or
subsidiaries in the case of a corporate entity; or any and all partners
in the case of a partnership;

. Option Period — shall mean a period of time during which the
Company has an option to perform Reload, commencing on the
day that the Company has acquired such right in accordance with
sec. 5 herein below and for as long as Future Receivables
purchased hereunder remain outstanding;

Processor — shall mean credit card/debit card processor(s) for the
processing of debit/credit cards transactions;

Purchase Price — shall mean the amount agreed upon by the Parties
and paid by the Company for Merchant’s Future Receivables, as
further defined herein;

. Purchased Receivables — shall mean the amount specified in
Schedule A, which constitutes the total amount payable by
Merchant to Company in consideration for the Purchase Price;

. Reload — shall mean Company’s option to purchase from Merchant
additional Future Receivables as further defined in sec. 5 herein;
Set Amount — shall mean the amount specified in Schedule A,
which constitutes a fixed dollar amount as determined by Merchant
and Company; and

Specified Percentage — shall mean the amount specified in
Schedule A, which constitutes a percentage of the total amount of
payments processed by Merchant on any given day.

2. Transaction. Subject to all terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement, Company shall pay to Merchant the Purchase
Price set out in Schedule A hereto (the “Initial Purchase and Sale
Schedule”). In consideration of the Purchase Price, Merchant sells,
assigns and transfers, without recourse (except to the extent
provided herein), and Company purchases, Merchant’s entire right,
title and interest in a percentage specified in the Initial Purchase
and Sale Schedule of each of Merchant’s Future Receivables until
the Purchased Receivables has been paid to the Company.
Merchant shall not repurchase or resell any part of or all the Future
Receivables to any third party and hereby declares itself a bare
trustee of Company with respect to all Purchased Receivables
pending payment in full to Company.

3.  Payment of the Purchase Price. Company shall pay the
Purchase Price to the Merchant by depositing the full amount of
the Purchase Price to the Deposit Account or any other account
specified by the Merchant in Schedule A. The payment shall be
made by Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) to the Merchant’s
account. The transfer of the funds from the Company’s bank
account shall be final proof of the payment, unless notified
otherwise by the Merchant within 3 business days from the date of
the payment. Upon payment of the Purchase Price, the Company
shall acquire full, final and unconditional right for the Purchased
Receivables of the Merchant.

4.  Collection of Future Receivables. Company shall collect
Future Receivables from the Merchant’s account in accordance
with the provisions contained herein. The collection of funds shall
be done on a daily basis, calculated in accordance with Schedule
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“A” either as the Specified Percentage or as the Set Amount.
Company shall have full and irrevocable authorization to debit
Merchant’s account for any amounts calculated by Company in
accordance with this Agreement.

5. Reloads. In addition to the initial purchase transaction
specified in sec. 2 above, the Parties hereby agree that the
Company shall have the unconditional but revocable option (the
“Option”) to purchase from Merchant additional Future
Receivables in the amount, for the price, at the time and in the
manner set forth hereinafter in Schedule “B” attached hereto (the
“Reload Schedule”). The Option shall be exercisable by Company
in three specific tranches (each, a “Reload”), as follows: (i) First
Reload - upon the collection by Company of Future Receivables
purchased hereunder representing, in the aggregate, thirty-five per
cent (35%) of the Purchased Receivables, Company shall be
entitled at its own discretion to purchase from Merchant such
amount of additional Future Receivables as set forth in the Reload
Schedule in regard of the First Reload, for the purchase price
indicated therein; (ii) Second Reload - upon the collection by
Company of Future Receivables purchased hereunder
representing, in the aggregate, sixty per cent (60%) of the
Purchased Receivables, Company shall be entitled at its own
discretion, to purchase from Merchant such amount of additional
Future Receivables as set forth in the Reload Schedule in regard of
the Second Reload, for the purchase price indicated therein; and
(iii) Third Reload - upon the collection by Company of Future
Receivables purchased hereunder representing, in the aggregate,
ninety per cent (90%) of the Purchased Receivables, Company
shall be entitled at its own discretion, to purchase from Merchant
such amount of additional Future Receivables as set forth in the
Reload Schedule in regard of the Third Reload, for the purchase
price indicated therein. Due payment by Company of the Purchase
Price relating to a Reload in the form of an EFT directed to the
Deposit Account shall evidence the purchase by Company of the
Future Receivables relating to such Reload, as set forth in the
Reload Schedule, without necessity of further document or notice.
All provisions of this Agreement shall apply to the Reloads, which
shall be deemed to be an increase of the Purchase Price, and the
amount of additional Future Receivables purchased thereby shall
be deemed to be an increase of the Future Receivables, both as set
forth in the Initial Purchase and Sale Schedule. Merchant shall
have the right to revoke at any time the Option granted to Company
hereunder by written notice to the Company. Such revocation shall
become effective two (2) business days following receipt of such
notice by Company and shall only apply to the Reloads which have
not yet been exercised at the effective date of revocation.

6.  Security Interest. Immediately upon receipt of the Purchase
Price and until full and final repayment of the Purchased
Receivables, Merchant grants to Company a security interest, as
continuing and collateral security for the due and punctual
performance of all present and future obligations and liabilities of
Merchant to Company under this Agreement (to which Personal
Property Security Act (Ontario) and the regulations thereto, as the
same may be amended from time to time applies) in and grants,
mortgages and charges as and by way of a fixed and specific
mortgage and charge to and in favour of Company, all of the
Merchant’s rights, title, and interests in and to each and every
Future Receivable, all pursuant to and in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement; and irrevocably authorizes Company
to file one or more financing or continuation statements, or
amendments thereto, without the signature of Merchant where
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permitted by law, as may be necessary or appropriate to perfect and
maintain the perfection of the Company’s perfected security
interest in the Future Receivables.

7. Deposit Account(s). Merchant shall provide Company, with
access to view in “read-only” format the transactions of the each
Deposit Account. The Future Receivables shall be paid to
Company by Company debiting the Merchant’s Deposit
Account(s) or, if Company is for any reason unable to debit the
Deposit Account(s), from any other bank account maintained and
used by Merchant, by electronic funds transfer (“EFT”) in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and Schedule A.
Upon execution of this Agreement, Merchant shall remit to
Company a void cheque (or, in the case of a savings account, the
account number) for all bank accounts maintained by Merchant.
Except as might be otherwise agreed by the Parties, the Merchant
shall not change its Deposit Account(s), shall not open new or
alternative Deposit Accounts, and shall not act in any other way
which will result in preventing the Company from collecting its
Future Receivables in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement.

8. Access to Information. Merchant hereby grants to the
Company an irrevocable right and authorizes it to access and
retrieve information pertaining to Deposit Account(s) from third
parties on Merchant’s behalf. Merchant hereby appoints Company
as its true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of
substitution and resubstitution, for Merchant in Merchant’s name,
place and stead, to gain access to third party internet sites, servers
or documents, setup access accounts, retrieve information, and use
Merchant’s information, required for the purpose of performing
Parties’ responsibilities and obligations contemplated herein.
Merchant agrees, confirms and instructs third party account
providers to rely on the foregoing authorization, agency and power
of attorney granted to Company. Merchant understands and agrees
that some of the actions contemplated herein Company might
perform through its service providers, choice of which shall be at
the sole discretion of the Company.

9.  Processing. Until the Purchased Receivables have been paid
to Company in full, Merchant shall have daily settlements made by
its Processor(s) or banks deposited into Deposit Account(s) as
described below. In the event that any Processor Agreement is
terminated for any reason and/or Merchant enters into any new
Processor Agreement, Merchant must notify Company
immediately and no later than 30 day before such change comes
into force.

10. Business PAD. The Company shall draw a Business
Preauthorized Debit to the Merchant’s Deposit Accounts for the
purpose of receiving payment for the Future Receivables
purchased hereunder (the “Business PAD”). The Business PAD
shall permit Company to withdraw varying amounts at varying
intervals from the Deposit Account and all other accounts
maintained by Merchant in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement. Each Business PAD shall be for the Specified
Percentage and/or the Set Amount as applicable until such time that
Company receives payment in full of the Purchased Receivables,
or for any other amount which is or may become payable by
Merchant to Company hereunder. Merchant acknowledges that the
applicable financial institution is not required to verify that any
purpose of payment for which a pre-authorized debit was issued
has been fulfilled by Company or that a pre-authorized debit has
been issued in accordance with the particulars of Merchant’s
authorization including, but not limited to, the amount, as a
condition to honouring a Business PAD. In any case of a
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discrepancy or disputed Business PAD, Merchant shall prepare and
submit a declaration to this effect to the bank branch of the
Merchant’s Deposit Account, with a copy delivered to the
Company on the same day, up to and including ten (10) calendar
days after the date on which the disputed debit was posted to
Merchant’s account. Should no notice be received within 10
calendar days, the Business PAD shall be considered correct and
final and no further claims shall be made by the Merchant relating
to the correctness of the Business PAD or the amounts withdrawn.
To obtain more information on Merchant’s recourse rights,
Merchant may contact its financial institution or visit
www.cdnpay.ca. Merchant acknowledges that provision and
delivery of this Agreement to Company constitutes delivery by
Merchant to its financial institution(s). Merchant agrees with
Company to waive the requirement under the Rules of the
Canadian Payments Association (the “CPA Rules”) to receive a
written pre-notification prior to each debit as set out in the CPA
Rules. Revocation of this Business PAD constitutes a breach under
and does not terminate this Agreement. Merchant’s authorization
hereunder applies only to the method of payment and does not
otherwise have any bearing on this Agreement. Merchant
understands and agrees to the disclosure of any confidential
information to any third parties as may be required to process the
pre-authorized debits in accordance with the CPA Rules.

11. Rebate for Excessive Withdrawal of Set Amount.
Company shall be entitled to withdraw the Set Amount from the
Deposit Account(s) up to a maximum of the Specified Percentage
of Merchant’s total revenue for the month in which such
withdrawals are made. If Merchant believes that Company has
made withdrawals from Deposit Account(s) in an amount that is
greater than the Specified Percentage of Merchant’s total revenue
for the month in which such withdrawals were made (“Excessive
Withdrawal”), it is the sole responsibility of Merchant to deliver
written notice to Company of any purported discrepancy (“Notice
of Excessive Withdrawal’) within ten (10) days of the end of the
month in which the Excessive Withdrawal was made. Notice of
Excessive Withdrawal must be accompanied by evidence
satisfactory to Company of the Excessive Withdrawal, including,
but not limited to, bank statements, sales receipts and Merchant
records. If Merchant provides Notice of Excessive Withdrawal and
evidence satisfactory to Company within the ten (10) day period,
Company shall provide a rebate to Merchant to the extent that the
Excessive Withdrawal exceeds the Specified Percentage of
Merchant’s total revenue for the month in which the Excessive
Withdrawal was made. Under no circumstances shall Company
repay any amount with respect to an Excessive Withdrawal if either
Notice of Excessive Withdrawal or evidence of Excessive
Withdrawal satisfactory to Company is not provided to Company
in the manner prescribed by this section 11.

12. Due Diligence and Conditions. Merchant authorizes the
Company to conduct background, credit report, onsite and
financial examinations of Merchant, each of its partners or
shareholders and each of the guarantors, extent and variety of
which shall be at sole discretion of the Company. Merchant hereby
agrees that such examinations shall constitute a condition for the
Company’s approval of the Merchant’s application, and shall not
be interpreted as any kind of breach of Merchant’s privacy, or the
privacy of third parties involved in Merchant. Any onsite
examination may include, but is not limited to, verification that
business is conducted as Merchant represents, at all sites where it
conducts business and shall be conducted upon reasonable prior
notice to Merchant, and during reasonable business hours. If
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Merchant is not publicly held, Company, may conduct background
and financial examinations of all principals owning ten percent
(10%) or more of Merchant, extent and variety of which shall be at
sole discretion of the Company. Merchant hereby agrees that such
examinations shall constitute a condition for the Company’s
approval of the Merchant’s application, and shall not be interpreted
as any kind of breach of Merchant’s privacy, the privacy of its
principals, or the privacy of any third parties involved in Merchant.
Merchant shall provide to the Company, or shall cause to be
provided to the company by Merchant’s principals, any
documents, letters of authorization or consent, which might be
required for the Company to conduct its examinations
contemplated herein. The Company retains the right to conduct site
inspections at its sole discretion to verify the correctness and
compliance of the information provided by the Merchant, or to
ensure Merchant’s continuing operations in accordance with the
application and this Agreement. The Company may perform on-
site visits whether during the application process or throughout the
term of this Agreement. Should the Company make an on-site visit
due to non-payment by the Merchant or any other default by the
Merchant, Merchant hereby agrees to pay to the Company a fee of
$500.00 per each instance of default, which shall be construed as
payment for liquidated damages of the company and not as a
penalty fee.

Notwithstanding the execution of this Agreement by Company,
Company may refuse to purchase the Future Receivables based on
its own underwriting guidelines. Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, Company may refuse to purchase the Future
Receivables if (i) Company is not satisfied, in its sole discretion,
with Merchant’s debit and credit cards transactions history as
provided by the Merchant; (ii) Company is not satisfied, in its sole
discretion, with the background information received from
Merchant; and (iii) the aggregate debit and credit cards receipts of
Merchant in the four (4) days prior to the expected date of
disbursement of the Purchase Price does not amount to at least five
percent (5%) of the Purchased Receivables.

13. Indemnification. Merchant hereby agrees to indemnify,
defend and hold harmless Company, and its shareholders,
directors, officers, managers, owners, affiliates, employees, agents
and representatives (the “Indemnitees”) from and against any
claim, demand, loss, financial or otherwise, damage, liability or
cost, including legal fees and expenses, caused by or from: (i) any
intentional, negligent or innocent misrepresentation by Merchant;
(ii) a breach of the terms hereof; (iii) an Event of Default; (iv)
negligence, fraud or intentional wrongdoing by Merchant or any of
its affiliates.

14. Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Merchant
hereby represents, warrants and covenants to Company, and
declares that Company relies on such representations and
warranties in its decision to enter into this Agreement, as follows
on the date hereof and so long as any amount is owing from
Merchant to Company hereunder: (i) Merchant shall not change,
terminate, limit or otherwise modify its operations, business
structure, ownership or any other characteristics of its business
which, in the view of a reasonable business person, could
jeopardize or limit Company’s rights under this Agreement,
without express written consent of Company; (ii) all of the
information provided by or on behalf of Merchant to Company on
its application and in connection with this Agreement, is true and
correct in all material respects; (iii) Merchant is in compliance with
all applicable laws, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, approvals,
consents and other authorizations necessary to conduct its
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business; Merchant is in compliance with any and all applicable
federal, provincial and local laws rules, regulations, and possesses
and is in compliance with any and all permits, authorizations and
licenses, approvals and consents to own, operate and lease its
properties, and to conduct the business in which it is presently
engaged; (iv) Merchant, and the individual(s) signing this
Agreement on behalf of Merchant, have full power and authority
to enter into and perform the obligations of Merchant under this
Agreement, all of which have been duly authorized by all
necessary and proper action and are not in contravention of the
Merchant’s articles or by-laws or any unanimous shareholder
agreement; (v) there is no criminal proceeding or civil claim,
action, suit, demand, enforcement, arbitration or other proceeding
or investigation pending before any court, government agency,
arbitration panel, or administrative tribunal or, to Merchant’s
knowledge, threatened against Merchant, involving a dispute(s) of
more than $5,000 in the aggregate; (vi) Merchant is the owner or
authorized lessor of its business premises and has presented
documentation verifying to this extent to Company; (vii) Merchant
has not entered into an agreement similar to this Agreement with
another company for which any sums are still outstanding; (viii)
neither Merchant nor any of its principals have declared
bankruptcy in the past two years and neither are undischarged
bankrupts; (ix) no portion of the Future Receivables, or any other
assets pledged pursuant to this Agreement, is subject to any lien,
security interest, assignment, option or encumbrance, other than
the security interest(s) granted to Company, Merchant’s current
credit card and/or debit card processor(s) pursuant to existing
agreements, and/or Merchant’s bank(s) pursuant to existing
banking agreements; (x) Merchant has filed or caused to be filed
any and all federal, provincial, local and foreign tax returns which
are required to be filed, and has paid or caused to be paid any and
all taxes as shown on such returns or on any assessment received
by Merchant to the extent that such taxes have become due, and
Merchant has no knowledge of any material liability for any tax to
be imposed on Merchant or any of its assets or properties for which
adequate provision has not been made in its financial statements;
(xi) Merchant and Guarantor (as defined hereinafter) are solvent,
do not have any outstanding payables past thirty (30) days and have
no knowledge of any potential or real material changes to Merchant
or Guarantor pending in the next ninety (90) days (and its
underlying client); and (xiii) during the term of this Agreement,
Merchant shall proceed with the batch closing of this credit and
debit cards payments no less than ten (10) times per month; (xii)
each Future Receivable, when created, shall be a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the Merchant; (xiii) any and all
representations made in this Agreement, and any and all financial
statements delivered to the Company, are true and correct, and no
material fact has been omitted; and (xiv) each and all of the
foregoing representations shall be deemed to be continuing
covenants of Merchant, and shall remain true and accurate at all
times after the date of this Agreement, until the Purchased
Receivables have been paid in full.

15.  Timing and Method of Funding. Merchant and Company
agree that the purchase of the Purchased Receivables shall be
deemed on the date of disbursement of the Purchase Price by
Company to Merchant with title in and to the Purchased
Receivables passing to Company on such date. Merchant and
Company also agree that Company, at its sole discretion, may
refuse to purchase the Purchased Receivables for any or no reason.
Merchant and Company further agree that Company shall provide
payment through any commercially reasonable method, at
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Company’s sole discretion, including, but not limited to, electronic
funds transfer.

16. Events of Default. In addition to any event of default
described as such in this Agreement, any of the following shall
constitute an “Event of Default”: (i) Merchant fails to direct all
payments relating to the credit card and debit card receivables
exclusively to the Deposit Account(s) or changes, terminates or
closes the Deposit Account(s) without the prior written agreement
of Company; (ii) Merchant refuses to accept a debit or credit card
as a form of payment regardless of the amount of the sale; (iii)
Merchant obtains additional financing or advances without the
express prior written consent of Company; (iv) Merchant, without
the prior written consent of Company, enters into any transaction
involving the sale of Merchant, or any substantial change in its
ownership or controlling interest; (v) Merchant sells or otherwise
hypothecates or grants security or otherwise encumbers the Future
Receivables to another person, company or entity; (vi) any of the
representations, warranties and covenants contained in this
Agreement are not true or are materially incorrect or misleading;
(ix) Merchant fails to make any remittance or payment provided
for hereunder or pursuant to any settlement, arrangement or
payment plan agreed upon by the parties in connection with this
Agreement, or breaches any other covenants contained in this
Agreement; or (x) except as otherwise permitted herein, Merchant
permits any lien, security interest or hypothec to be granted against
or registered against the Purchased Receivables or any proceeds
therefrom or a Deposit Account(s); (xi) bankruptcy order or
receivership of either Merchant or guarantor or a general
assignment in bankruptcy. For grater certainty, any act or omission
carried out by an affiliate, shareholder, director, officer, employee
or agent of Merchant that, if carried out by Merchant itself, would
be an Event of Default, shall be deemed to be an Event of Default
hereunder. Merchant hereby acknowledges and agrees that, in
order to verify Merchant’s compliance hereunder, Company shall
have a right of access, during the regular working hours, to any
premises where Merchant conducts business.

17. Remedies. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default,
Company shall be entitled to all remedies available at law as well
as the right to terminate this Agreement and recover by EFT or via
other means acceptable to Company, from the Deposit Account(s)
or any other account maintained by Merchant any unpaid portion
of the Purchased Receivables and any other amounts payable to
Company under this Agreement. In any action for breach of the
Agreement, Company shall be entitled to damages equal to the
Purchase Price less the amount received by Company from
remittances to the said date, together with legal costs and a charge
amounting to the greater of $500 or 10% of the amount outstanding
at the time of the Event of Default, intended as liquidated damages
and not a penalty fee. In the event that any payment to be made by
Merchant hereunder, whether by EFT, cheque, credit card or pre-
authorized debit, is refused for insufficiency of funds or for any
other reason whatsoever, or in the event that immediately prior to
withdrawal of any pre-authorized debit payment Merchant does
not have sufficient funds in the Deposit Account (an “NSF
Payment”), Company shall be entitled to charge to Merchant, for
each NSF Payment, $100. In the event Merchant changes its
Deposit accounts without prior written authorization of the
Company, Company shall be entitled to charge the Merchant a fee
0f $250.00 intended as liquidated damages and not a penalty.

18. Merchant Not Acting As a Consumer. In entering into
this Agreement, the Merchant is acting in its capacity as a business
enterprise and not as a consumer. Merchant acknowledges and
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agrees that this transaction is made only for business purposes and
not for personal, family or other household purposes and agrees to
waive any application of the consumer protection laws to this
Agreement.

19.  Waiver. The Company’s failure to exercise any right under
this Agreement does not constitute a waiver on the Company’s part
to exercise such rights at a later time. Nor shall any singular or
partial exercise of any right under this Agreement preclude the
Company from any other future exercise of any right. The remedies
provided hereunder are cumulative and not exclusive of any
remedies provided by law or equity.

20. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon
and enure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective
successors, heirs and assigns.

21. Notices to Company. Any notice to Company required or
permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and may be
given by personal service, registered or first class mail, postage
prepaid, to the address of Company as it appears above, or as
changed through written notice to Merchant.

22.  No Interest; Not a Loan. The Parties hereby agree, declare
and consent that the transaction contemplated herein shall not
constitute a loan and laws applicable to loans shall not apply to it.
Company does not charge any interest, finance charges, late fees
or similar charges as the transactions contemplated herein are not
intended to constitute a loan. Instead, Company is purchasing the
Future Receivables at a discount. There are no scheduled payments
for Merchant and no repayment term for Merchant. Company is
not an investor in the business of Merchant. Merchant is
responsible to account for the transactions made herein in
accordance with the provisions hereof and acknowledges that
Merchant’s method of accounting, if in contradiction with the
terms hereof, shall not change in any way the nature of the
transactions contemplated in this agreement nor bind Company in
any way to account in the same manner. In the case of any Event
of Default, Merchant agrees to pay to the Company a fee of
$250.00.

Notwithstanding the foregoing and for greater certainty, should it
be determined by an applicable authority that the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement constitutes a loan and should it be
determined that any provision of this Agreement would oblige
Merchant to make any payment which is construed by an
applicable authority to be an amount which would be prohibited by
applicable law, then notwithstanding such provision, such amount
shall be deemed to have been adjusted nunc pro tunc to the
maximum amount, as the case may be, as would not be so
prohibited by applicable law, such adjustment to be effected by
reducing the Purchased Receivables under this Agreement until
such amount becomes equal to the Purchase Price.
Notwithstanding the potential reduction contemplated in this sec.
22, nothing herein constitutes agreement that the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement are loans or are intended to be
loans.

23. Costs and Expenses. Company shall be entitled to recover
from Merchant any and all reasonable costs and legal fees (on a
substantial indemnity basis) associated with and/or resulting from
the enforcement of its rights and remedies hereunder or at law.
24. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire
understanding of the parties hereto and supersedes all prior
negotiations, whether oral or written. No changes to this
Agreement shall be valid or enforceable, unless made by both
parties in writing, in which case such change shall come to force
of the date of the later party signing the change.
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25. Severability. Should any term or provision of this
Agreement be deemed invalid, illegal or unenforceable, then such
invalid, illegal or unenforceable term or provision shall be null and
void, and all other terms and provisions of this Agreement shall
continue in full force and effect as though such invalid, illegal or
unenforceable term or provision had never been a part hereof.

26. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by
and to be construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of
Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable therein without regard
to principles of conflicts of law and treated in all respects as an
Ontario contract. The parties to this Agreement hereby irrevocably
and unconditionally attorn to the exclusive jurisdiction of the
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courts of the Province of Ontario.
27. Language. The parties have requested that this Agreement
be drawn in English language. Les parties ont exigé que la présente
entente soit rédigée en langue anglaise.

[Space Left Intentionally Blank]

The parties signing below declare and represent that: (i) they have read and understood the TERMS AND CONDITIONS set out in this
Agreement, (ii) they have the signing authority to bind their respective corporate entities or businesses to all terms and conditions stipulated in
this Agreement and (iii) each party had an opportunity to review this Agreement and receive legal or any other advise it deems necessary; (iv)
Merchant has taken all corporate or other proceedings necessary to authorize the execution and delivery of this Agreement by Merchant and

Merchant’s performance of its obligations hereunder.
DocuSigned by:

For Merch thrWsZ partners — add details and sign below):

TO4T8EE7SB8T44E ..

Signature: Signature:
Title: ) ] Title:
Executive Chairman
Print Name: . . Print Name:
Chris Lewis
Date: November 21 2023 Date:
For Company: DocuSigned by:
Awremed, Bostuin
Signature: DTODRRRDAIZAT .
Title:
CEO - 2M7 Financial Solutions
Print Name:
Avi Bernstein
Date:

November 21, 2023
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PERSONAL GUARANTEE
IN CONSIDERATION of Company dealing with Merchant, and after having reviewed and understood the Merchant Cash Advance Agreement of which this
Guarantee forms a part (the “Agreement”), the undersigned hereby guarantee payment to Company and, if applicable, jointly and severally (or solidarily in
the Province of Quebec) guarantee payment to the Company, of all present and future debts and liabilities in any currency, direct, indirect, contingent or
otherwise, matured or not, including interest thereon, now or at any time due or owing to Company from or by Merchant, its executors, liquidators,
administrators or legal representatives, whether arising from the performance or breach of this Agreement. The liability of the undersigned (or each
undersigned if more than one) under this Guarantee shall arise immediately after demand for payment under this Guarantee has been made in writing by
Company on the undersigned or any one of them, if more than one.
By signing this Guarantee, Guarantor(s) assume and guarantee all of Merchant’s obligations under the Agreement, including, but not limited to, the obligation
of Merchant to indemnify Company, pursuant to this Agreement. To induce Company to accept Merchant’s application and to enter into the Agreement,
Guarantor(s) hereby agree to pay any and all costs and legal fees in connection with any action commenced by Company to enforce its rights under the
Agreement and/or this Guarantee.
It is agreed that the undersigned shall be liable to Company in respect of all debts and liabilities, stated to be owing to Company by Merchant under this
Agreement with respect to such debts and liabilities, notwithstanding whether such agreement or any provision thereof is invalid, void, illegal, or
unenforceable and notwithstanding whether such agreement was properly completed, entered into or authorized. The undersigned shall indemnify and save
Company harmless from any losses which may arise by virtue of any debts and liabilities stated to be owing to Company by Merchant, being or becoming
for any reason whatsoever in whole or in part (a) void, voidable, null, ultra vires, illegal, invalid, ineffective or otherwise unenforceable in accordance with its
terms, or (b) released or discharged by operation of law (all of the foregoing being an "Indemnifiable Circumstance"). For greater certainty, the losses shall
include the amount of all debts and liabilities owing to Company by Merchant which would have been payable by Merchant but for the Indemnifiable
Circumstance.
It is further agreed that Company without the consent of the undersigned and without exonerating in whole or in part the undersigned may grant time,
renewals, extensions, indulgences, releases and discharges to, may abstain from taking, perfecting or realizing upon security from, may release security to,
may accept compositions from, and may otherwise change the terms of any of the debts and liabilities hereby guaranteed and otherwise deal with Merchant
as Company may see fit.
This Guarantee is unlimited, absolute and without condition, and is binding upon Guarantor(s), his/her/their heirs, legal representatives, successors and
assigns. Guarantor(s) waive any and all rights to require Company or any other Indemnitee (as defined in the Agreement) to proceed against Merchant
before taking action against him/her/them. This Guarantee shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and for the purpose of
legal proceedings this contract shall be deemed to have been made in the said province and to be performed there, and the courts of that province shall
have non-exclusive jurisdiction over all disputes which may arise under this contract, provided always that nothing herein contained shall prevent the Bank
from proceeding at its election against the undersigned in the courts of any other province or country. If any provision of this Guarantee are determined to
be unenforceable, prohibited, invalid or illegal, it shall be severed from this Guarantee solely to the extent of such unenforceability, prohibition, invalidity or
illegality and the remainder of such provision and the remainder of this Guarantee shall be unaffected thereby. The liability of the undersigned under this
Guarantee shall not be terminated if this Guarantee is held to be unenforceable against any other undersigned.
Guarantor(s) hereby authorize inquiry by Company into his/her/their personal and business financial information, including, but not limited to, banking
relationships, consumer reports and credit bureaus, and authorize inquiry into his/her/their personal history including investigation of all criminal and civil
matters.
The undersigned acknowledges and agrees that Company may make a claim or demand payment hereunder notwithstanding any limitation period regarding
such claim or demand set forth in the Limitations Act, 2002 (Ontario) or under any other applicable law with similar effect and, to the maximum extent
permitted by applicable law, any limitations periods set forth in such act or applicable law are hereby explicitly excluded or, if excluding such limitations
periods is not permitted by such act or applicable law, are hereby extended to the maximum limitation period permitted by such act or applicable law. For
greater certainty, the undersigned acknowledges and agrees that this Guarantee is a "business agreement" as defined under Section 22 of the Limitations
Act, 2002 (Ontario).
I/We the Guarantor(s) acknowledge having read the terms of the Agreement and this Guarantee, and my/our signature(s) below shall serve as confirmation
that I/'we understand(s) all of the terms and provisions of the Agreement and this Guarantee. Rights of Company hereunder against the Guarantor(s) are, if
applicable, joint and several.

DocuSigned by:

(e 1y pe

Signature: uul) AW Signature:

10418EE75B8C44E....

Print Name: Print Name:
Chris Lewis

Address: Address:
200 11708th ave SW Calgary Ab T2P 1B4

Date: Date:

November 21 2023




DocuSign Envelope ID: 95561BF4-5515-49D5-A226-7CBD29E76488

Purchase Schedule

SCHEDULE A

PURCHASE PRICE SPECIFIED PERCENTAGE

SET WEEKLY AMOUNT PURCHASED RECEIVABLES

$250,000 25%

$12,325.00 $345,000

DocuSigned by:

(lurts (wis

10418EE75B8C44E...

OWNER #1 SIGNATURE

OWNER #2 SIGNATURE

SCHEDULE B

Available only to accounts in good standing and can be withheld at the sole discretion of 2M7 Financial Solutions

STAGE REPAID AMOUNT PURCHASE PRICE PURCHASED RECEIVABLES
Reload #1 35% $78,488.00 $108,313.00
Reload #2 60% $103,500.00 $142,830.00
Reload #3 90% $186,300.00 $257,094.00

DocuSigned by:

(lurts (wis

10418EE75B8C44E...

OWNER #1 SIGNATURE

OWNER #2 SIGNATURE

2023-11-21-1.38-6.5







AMENDMENT TO SECURED LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (the "Amending Agreement") is dated as of December 31, 2023
BETWEEN:

CLEO ENERGY CORP.

(the "Borrower")

-and -

JODY WIESE/MARSHALRAE HOLDINGS

(the "Creditor" and together with the Borrower, the
"Parties")

CONTEXT:

A. On December 31,2018, the Borrower issued an interest bearing demand promissory note in favour
of the Creditor in the principal amount of $500,000.00 (the "Note").

B. The Parties wish to amend the Note as more particularly set out herein.

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that in consideration of this Amending Agreement
and the mutual terms and conditions set forth herein, the Parties agree that:

1. INTERPRETATION

This Amending Agreement is supplemental to and shall form one agreement with the Note, and the Note
and this Amending Agreement shall be read together and have effect so far as practicable as though all the
provisions thereof and hereof were contained in one instrument. Capitalized terms that are not otherwise
defined herein shall have the meaning attributed to those terms in the Note.

2, AMENDMENTS

The Note is amended as follows:

(a) deleting the words in Section 3
Exhibit A Days Outstanding
<30 days 31-60 days > 61 days
Interest percentage 18% 15% 12%
Interest amount () S 4,500.00 S 7,500.00 S 9,000.00

And replace it with

Exhibit A Interest Rate (see SCHEDULE A)

Interest Rate 20%




3.

CONFIRMATION

The Parties hereby acknowledge and confirm that, except as specifically amended by the provisions of this
Amending Agreement, all of the terms and conditions contained in the Note are and shall remain in full
force and effect, un-amended, in accordance with the provisions thereof.

4,

(@)

(b)

(c)

GENERAL

This Amending Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each of
such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, and all such
counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument.

This Amending Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws
of the Province of Alberta and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein.

This Amending Agreement, when read together with the Note, contains the entire
agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof and
supersedes any prior understanding or agreements between them respecting the subject
matter hereof and thereof.

All provisions of this Amending Agreement shall be binding upon, enure to the benefit of,
and be enforceable by and against the Parties, their respective successors and permitted
assigns.

[Remainder of this page left intentionally blank; signature page(s) follow.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have executed this Amending Agreement as of the date first
written above.

Jody Wiese

CLEO ENERGY C

Per:

Name: Chris Lewis
Title:  Director

Signature Page to Amending Agreement



SCHEDULE "A"

TO AMENDMENT TO PROMISSORY NOTE

SCHEDULE "C"

TO THE NOTE
Month Principal 20% Interest
Jan-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,219.18
Feb-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,493.15
Mar-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,219.18
Apr-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,493.15
May-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,493.15
Jun-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,219.18
Jul-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,493.15
Aug-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,219.18
Sep-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,493.15
Oct-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,493.15
Nov-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,493.15
Dec-24 $ 500,000.00 $ 8,493.15







GENERAL SECURITY AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT is dated September 13, 2022

BY:
CLEO ENERGY CORP

(the "Debtor")
IN FAVOUR OF:
Jody Wiese/Marshal Rae Holdings
(the "Secured Party")
The Debtor agrees with the Secured Party as follows:
ARTICLE 1
INTERPRETATION
1.1 Definitions

In this Agreement, the following terms have the following meanings:

1.1.1 "Agreement" means this agreement as it may be supplemented, amended,
restated or replaced by written agreement between the Parties.

1.1.2 "Collateral" means all present and after-acquired personal property owned,
leased, licensed, possessed or acquired by the Debtor, or in which the Debtor has
rights, including all present and after-acquired Goods (including Equipment and
Inventory), Investment Property, Instruments, Documents of Title, Chattel Paper,
Intangibles (including Accounts), Money, crops and fixtures, owned, leased,
licensed, possessed or acquired by the Debtor, or in which the Debtor has rights,
and all Proceeds of that property, but specifically excludes the Excluded Collateral.

1.1.3 "Consumer Goods" means Goods that are used or acquired for use primarily for
personal, family or household purposes.

1.1.4 "Debtor" is defined in the recital of the Parties, above.

1.1.5 "Event of Default" is defined in Section 4.1.



1.1.6 "Excluded Collateral" means Consumer Goods and any right, permit or contract
that would be breached or terminated if a security interest was granted in it without
the consent of a third party, unless that consent is obtained.

1.1.7 "Obligations" means the sum of $500,000 owing by the Debtor to the Secured Party
and interest on that amount at the rate of 20%, according to the terms of, and as
evidenced by, a Secured Line of Credit Agreement dated September 13, 2022, as
that Secured Line of Credit Agreement is amended, supplemented, renewed,
restated or replaced, and all present and future indebtedness and obligations of the
Debtor to the Secured Party under this Agreement.

1.1.8 "Parties" means, collectively, the Debtor and the Secured Party, and "Party" means
any one of them.

1.1.9 "PPSA" means the Personal Property Security Act (Alberta), as amended, renamed
or replaced and includes all regulations made under that legislation.

1.1.10 "Receiver" means a receiver or receiver-manager of all or any part of the Collateral.

1.1.11 "Secured Party" is defined in the recital of the Parties, above.

1.1.12 "Security Interests" means the mortgages, charges and security interests granted
and created by this Agreement.

1.2 Incorporated Definitions

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement have the definitions set out in
the PPSA.

1.3 Governing Law

This Agreement is governed by, and is to be construed and interpreted in accordance with,
the laws of the Province of Alberta and the laws of Canada applicable in that Province.

1.4 Rules of Interpretation

In this Agreement, words signifying the singular number include the plural and vice versa,
and words signifying gender include all genders. Every use of the words "including" and
"includes" in this Agreement is to be construed as meaning "including, without limitation"
or "includes, without limitation", respectively.



ARTICLE 2
GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST
21 Security Interests
As security for payment and performance of the Obligations, the Debtor mortgages and
charges to the Secured Party, and grants to the Secured Party a security interest in, and the
Secured Party takes a security interest in, all of the Debtor's right, title and interestin and to
the Collateral.

2.2 Attachment

The Debtor and the Secured Party do not intend to postpone the attachment of the Security
Interests, and the Security Interests will attach when:

2.2.1 this Agreement has been executed, or in the case of after-acquired property, that
property has been acquired by the Debtor;

2.2.2 value has been given; and
2.2.3 the Debtor hasrights in the Collateral, or in the case of after-acquired property,
acquires rights in the Collateral.
ARTICLE 3
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS
3.1 Representations and Warranties

The Debtor represents and warrants to the Secured Party that:

3.1.1 Corporate Existence. It is duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of
the Province of Alberta.

3.1.2 Name. The full legal name of the Debtor (including any French or French/English
form of its legal name), and any other name under which it conducts its business, is
correctly specified on the signature page of this Agreement.



3.1.3 Place of Business. The Debtor's sole place of business or chief executive office, as
applicable, is 200 -117 8 Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 1B4.

3.1.4 Location of Collateral.

The locations of all other places where the Debtor carries on business or keeps Collateral
are 200 - 117 8 Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 1B4 and including all assets in rural
communities in Alberta.

3.1.5 Owns Collateral.

The Debtor either owns, possesses and has good and marketable title to, or has

enforceable leasehold or other rights to, all currently held Collateral, free from all security

interests, mortgages, charges, encumbrances, liens and claims except those previously
disclosed to the Secured Party.

3.2 Covenants

The Debtor covenants with the Secured Party that it will not, without the prior written
consent of the Secured Party:

3.2.1 permitthe Collateral or any part of it to become subject to any mortgage, charge,
lien, encumbrance or security interest, whether made, given or created by the
Debtor or otherwise;

3.2.2 sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the Collateral or any part of it (other than
Inventory in the ordinary course of business), and if any sale, lease or other
disposition is permitted or consented to it will pay the Proceeds to the Secured
Party;

3.2.3 release, surrender or abandon the Collateral or any part of it; or

3.2.4 move the Collateral or any part of it from its present locations.

ARTICLE 4
DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT

41 Events of Default

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events or conditions will be an event of
default under this Agreement ("Event of Default"):



4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

4.1.7

4.2

the Debtor defaults in payment to the Secured Party when due of any indebtedness
or liabilities forming part of the Obligations;

the Debtor defaults in performance of any of the Obligations other than payment
under Section 4.1.1;

the Debtor defaults in the observance or performance of any of the terms,
conditions or covenants to be observed or performed by the Debtor under this
Agreement or any other agreement or instrument existing at any time between the
Debtor and the Secured Party;

the Debtor ceases or threatens to cease to carry on its business;

the Debtor commits or threatens to commit any act of bankruptcy, or becomes
insolvent or bankrupt or makes a proposal or files an assignment for the benefit of
creditors under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) or similar legislation in
Canada or any other jurisdiction, or if an application for a bankruptcy order is filed
against the Debtor;

proceedings are commenced against or affecting the Debtor seeking the
appointment of, or any creditor of the Debtor or any other person privately appoints,
a receiver, receiver- manager, trustee, custodian, liquidator or similar official for the
Debtor or any part of the Debtor's property, including the Collateral or any part of it;
or

the Secured Party in good faith and on commercially reasonable grounds believes
that the ability of the Debtor to pay any of the Obligations to the Secured Party, or to
perform for the Secured Party any of the Obligations or other covenants contained in
this Agreement, is impaired, or any security granted by the Debtor to the Secured
Party is or is about to be impaired or in jeopardy.

Acceleration

If an Event of Default described in Section 4.1.5 or Section 4.1.6 occurs all of the
obligations will immediately become due and payable without any demand or any notice of
any kind to the Debtor. If any other Event of Default occurs the Secured Party, in its sole and
absolute discretion, may declare all or any part of the Obligations, whether or not by their
terms payable on demand, immediately due and payable, without any further demand or
notice of any kind.

4.3

Demand Obligations



The provisions of Sections 4.1 and 4.2 will not affect the demand nature of any
indebtedness or obligations payable by the Debtor to the Secured Party on demand, and
the Secured Party may demand payment of that indebtedness and those obligations at any
time without restriction, whether or not the Debtor has complied with the provisions of this
Agreement or any other instrument between the Debtor and the Secured Party.

4.4  Security Interests Enforceable

The occurrence of an Event of Default will cause the Security Interests to become
enforceable against the Debtor without the need for any action or notice by the Secured
Party.

4.5 Remedies of the Secured Party

If the more Security Interests become enforceable, the Secured Party may enforce its rights
by any one or of the following remedies:

4.5.1 by taking possession of the Collateral or any part of it, and collecting, demanding,
suing, enforcing, recovering, receiving and otherwise getting in the Collateral, and
for that purpose entering into and upon any lands, buildings, and premises and
doing any act and taking any proceedings in the name of the Debtor, or otherwise, as
the Secured Party considers necessary;

4.5.2 by proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a
Receiver;

4.5.3 by proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction for the sale or foreclosure of
all or any part of the Collateral;

4.5.4 by filing of proofs of claim and other documents to establish its claims in any
proceeding or proceedings relating to the Debtor;

4.5.5 by sale or lease by the Secured Party of all or any part of the Collateral, whether or
not it has taken possession of the Collateral;

4.5.6 by appointment by instrument in writing of a Receiver on any terms as to
remuneration and otherwise as the Secured Party thinks fit, or by removing and
appointing a replacement for any Receiver, and any Receiver so appointed will have,
in addition to all of the rights and remedies of a receiver under the PPSA, the power:

4.5.6.1 to take possession of, collect, demand, sue on, recover, receive, realize
on or enforce against the Collateral, and for that purpose to give valid
and binding receipts and discharges for and in respect of it, and take



4.5.7

4.6

4.5.6.2

4.5.6.3

4.5.6.4

4.5.6.5

any proceedings in the name of the Debtor or otherwise as may seem
expedient;

to carry on or manage all or any part of the business of the Debtor;

to borrow money on the security of the Collateral in priority to this
Agreement or otherwise for the purpose of the maintenance,
preservation or protection of the Collateral, for carrying on or managing
all or any part of the business of the Debtor or for exercising any other
power under this Agreement;

to sell, lease, accept surrenders of leases of or otherwise dispose of
the Collateral in whole or in part, at public auction, by public tender or
by private sale, either for

to make any arrangement or compromise that the Receiver thinks
expedient; and

by any other remedy or proceeding authorized or permitted by this Agreement or by
law or equity, including all of the rights and remedies of a secured party under the

PPSA;

and in exercising, delaying in exercising or failing to exercise, any such right or
remedy the Secured Party will not incur any liability to the Debtor.

Proceeds of Disposition

The Proceeds of the sale, lease or other disposition of the whole or any part of the
Collateral will be applied to the Obligations, including any amounts owed to the Secured
Party under Section 5.5, and any surplus remaining in the hands of the Receiver or the
Secured Party will be distributed as required by the PPSA or other applicable law.

4.7

Deficiency

If the Proceeds of the realization of the Collateral are insufficient to fully pay the
Obligations to the Secured Party, the Debtor will be liable to pay, and willimmediately pay
or cause to be paid, the deficiency to the Secured Party.

5.1

ARTICLE S5
GENERAL

No Automatic Discharge

This Agreement will not be or be considered to have been discharged by reason only of the
Debtor ceasing to be indebted or under any liability, direct or indirect, absolute or
contingent, to the Secured Party.



5.2 No Obligation to Advance

None of the preparation, execution or registration of notice of this Agreement will bind the
Secured Party to advance any monies or extend any credit to the Debtor, nor will the
advance of a portion of any monies or the extension of a portion of any credit by the
Secured Party to the Debtor bind the Secured Party to make available any unadvanced or
un-extended portion of those monies or that credit.

5.3 Security Additional

The Security Interests are in addition to and not in substitution for any other security now or
in the future held by the Secured Party.

54 Realization

The Secured Party may realize upon various securities securing the Obligations or any part
of them in any order that it sees fit, and realization by any means upon any security or part
of it will not bar realization upon any other security or the Security Interests or any part of
them.

5.5 Payment of Costs

The Debtor will pay on demand all costs and expenses incurred (including legal costs and
disbursements on a 100 percent, complete indemnity basis) and fees charged by:

5.5.1 the Secured Party in connection with obtaining or discharging this Agreement,
establishing or confirming the priority of the Security Interests created by this
Agreement or by law, or complying with any demand by any person under the PPSA
to amend or discharge any registration relating to this Agreement; and

5.5.2 the Secured Party or any Receiver in exercising any remedy under this Agreement
(including preserving, repairing, processing, preparing for disposition and disposing
of the Collateral by sale, lease or otherwise) and in carrying on the Debtor's
business.

All of those amounts will bear interest from time to time at the highest interest rate then
applicable to any of the Obligations, and the Debtor will reimburse the Secured Party or
Receiver, as applicable, upon demand for any amount so paid.

5.6 Extensions

The Secured Party may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give up
security, accept compositions, compound, compromise, settle, grant releases and



discharges, refrain from perfecting or maintaining perfection of security interests and
otherwise deal with the Debtor, account debtors of the Debtor, sureties and others, and
with the Collateral and other security interests, as the Secured Party may see fit without
prejudice to the liability of the Debtor or to the Secured Party's right to hold and realize on
the security constituted by this Agreement.

5.7 Notice

Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or other communication that is required or
permitted by this Agreement to be given or made by a Party must be in writing and may be
personally delivered, sent by prepaid registered mail or sent by e-mail or other functionally
equivalent electronic means of communication to the receiving Party at its address or e-
mail address as follows:

Debtor: 200-117 8 Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 1B4
clewis@cleoenergy.com

Secured Party: Site 3 Box 8 RR4 STN Main Ponoka AB T4J 1R4
jodywiese@gmail.com

or at any other address or e-mail address as any Party may from time to time advise the
other Party in accordance with this Section 5.7.

5.8 Submission to Jurisdiction

The Debtor irrevocably submits and attorns to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the
Province of Alberta to determine all issues, whether at law or in equity, arising from this
Agreement.

5.9 Amendment and Waiver

No supplement, amendment, waiver, discharge or termination of this Agreement is binding
unless it is executed in writing by the Party to be bound. No waiver of, failure to exercise or
delay in exercising, any provision of this Agreement constitutes a waiver of any other
provision, whether or not similar, nor does any waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless
otherwise expressly provided.

5.10 Further Assurances

The Debtor will, at the Debtor's sole cost, execute and deliver any further agreements and
documents and provide any further assurances as may be reasonably required by the
Secured Party to give effect to this Agreement and, without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, will do or cause to be done all acts and things, execute and deliver or cause to be


mailto:clewis@cleoenergy.com

executed and delivered all agreements and documents and provide any assurances,
undertakings and information as may be required from time to time by all regulatory or
governmental authorities.

5.11 Assignment

5.11.1 The Secured Party may, without notice to or consent of the Debtor, at any time
assign, transfer or grant a security interest in its rights and obligations under this
Agreement and the Security Interests.

5.11.2 Neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations under this Agreement may be
assigned by the Debtor without the prior consent of the Secured Party.

5.12 Enurement

This Agreement enures to the benefit of the Secured Party and its heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and assigns, and is binding upon the Debtor and its heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and permitted assigns.

5.13 Joint and Several Obligations

If the Debtor is composed of more than one person, the agreements of, and all obligations
and covenants to be performed and observed by, each of the persons comprising the
Debtor under this Agreement will be the joint and several agreements, obligations and
covenants of each of the persons comprising the Debtor, and any request or authorization
given to the Secured Party by any of the persons comprising the Debtor will be considered
to be the requests or authorizations of each of the persons comprising the Debtor.

5.14 Electronic Sighatures and Delivery

This Agreement may be:

5.14.1 signed by manual, digital or other electronic signatures; and

5.14.2 delivered or transmitted by any digital, electronic or other intangible means,
including by e- mail or other functionally equivalent electronic means of

transmission;

and that execution, delivery and transmission will be valid and legally effective to create a
valid and binding agreement between the Parties.



5.15 Acknowledgment and Waiver

The Debtor:

5.15.1 acknowledges receiving a copy of this Agreement; and

5.15.2 waives all rights to receive from the Secured Party a copy of any financing
statement, financing change statement or verification statement filed or issued, as
the case may be, at any time in respect of this Agreement or any amendments to
this Agreement.

The Debtor has executed and delivered this Agreement as of the date noted at the

beginning of the Agreement.

CLEO ENERGY CORP.

Per: @

Name: Chris Lewis
Title: Director
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Lessee(s): CLEO Energy Corp. and Christopher John McRae Lewis Joint and Several
200 - 117 8th Ave SW

Calgary, Alberta

T2P 1B4

Business Ph: (403) 801-4155

clewis@cleoenergy.com

Lease No. 105387-S03P

Vendor name Refinance

Vendor address

***See Attached SCHEDULE A***
All right, title and interest in the debtor to the oil and gas producing equipment and
any other tangible and intangible property related thereto.

Es UlpinErs Proceeds: any and all proceeds of amounts arising from or payable in connection with
any of the collateral described above.
Equipment Location 200 - 117 8th Ave SW, Calgary, AB, T2P 1B4

(if different from Lessee address)

Lease start date August 9, 2023

Initial Payment
(plus applicable taxes)

Payment

(plus applicable taxes) 24 payments @ $29,237.63 starting September 15, 2023

Term 25
Early Purchase Option SN/A at the end of the Term’s N/A calendar month.
Purchase Option $750.00 at the end of the Term’s 25 calendar month.
Lessor: 2416924 ALBERTA LTD. O/A STRIDE CAPITAL Date: 08/09/2023
This Lease shall not become .
binding upon Lessor until E-SIGNED by Randy Mannix
accepted as follows: on 2023-08-11 11:01:23 MDT

The undersigned acknowledges having read the entire lease agreement and accepts the terms and conditions including
those on page 2, 3, and 4 hereof. Each of the undersigned affirms that they are duly authorized to execute this Lease on
behalf of the Lessee.

Lessee Signature: Lessee Signature:

X E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis X E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis
on 2023-08-10 08:24:01 MDT on 2023-08-10 08:24:02 MDT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis

Title: Director Title: Individual

Ste 201, 3007 14th Street SW, Calgary, AB, T2T 3V6 Ph: 403.930.2175  Fx: 403.287.9847
Page 1 of 4




In consideration of the covenants herein contained, including those on the reverse hereof, and other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged), Lessor and
Lessee agree as follows:

1. Lease: Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor, the equipment described in the Lease Details, together with any parts, accessories, replacements, additions and
accessions, tangible or intangible, now and hereafter relating thereto or affixed thereon (collectively the “Equipment”) THIS LEASE CANNOT BE CANCELLED OR TERMINATED BY LESSEE.

2. Purchase Documents: If Lessee has not issued a purchase order or entered into an agreement with Vendor to purchase the Equipment (a “Purchase Document”), Lessee hereby agrees that Lessor
may do so on Lessor’s own behalf. If Lessee has entered into a Purchase Document, Lessee represents and warrants that title to the Equipment has not passed to Lessee and, at Lessor’s option, Lessee
shall assign to Lessor its rights under the Purchase Document to purchase the Equipment and to acquire any related license of software, information and documentation (a “License”). Except for the
obligation to pay Vendor for the Equipment if (and only if) this Lease commences and is accepted by Lessor, Lessee shall perform, satisfy and discharge all of the purchaser’s obligations under any
Purchase Document and License and any assignment by Lessee to Lessor pursuant to this Section shall not include such obligations. The provisions of any Purchase Document or License do not modify
Lessee’s obligations to Lessor hereunder.

3. Term: This Lease is for an original term (the “Term”) commencing on the earlier of the Lease Commencement Date set out in the Delivery and Acceptance Certificate or, if Lessor waives a Delivery
and Acceptance Certificate pursuant to Section 4, the Date of the Lessor’s Acceptance set forth above and ending at the expiry of the number of complete calendar months indicated under the heading
“Term” in the Lease Details.

4. Acceptance: Upon delivery and acceptance of the Equipment, Lessee shall forthwith execute and deliver to Lessor a Delivery and Acceptance Certificate in form prescribed by Lessor unless Lessor, in
its sole discretion, waives such execution and delivery by executing this Lease prior to the receipt of such certificate and after the delivery of the Equipment.

5. Equipment Selection: LESSEE HAS PERSONALLY SELECTED THE EQUIPMENT AND LESSOR HAS ACQUIRED THE EQUIPMENT AT LESSEE’S SPECIFIC REQUEST FOR THE PURPOSE OF LEASING IT
HEREUNDER. LESSEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE SUITABILITY OF THE EQUIPMENT AND ITS INSTALLATION AND DELIVERY IS LESSEE’S RESPONSIBILITY; THE FAILURE OF THE EQUIPMENT TO BE
DELIVERED AND INSTALLED, TO OPERATE OR TO CONFORM TO LESSEE’S REQUIREMENTS SHALL NOT LESSEN LESSEE’S OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER.

6. Rentals: Lessee shall, without notice from or request by Lessor, pay to Lessor during the Term of this Lease the total number of rental payments set forth in the Lease Details. Such rental payment
shall be payable in advance to Lessor at the address indicated above (or other address notified by Lessor to Lessee) as follows: first rental payment upon Lessee’s execution hereof and, commencing
after the calendar period covered by such first rental payment subsequent rental payments throughout the Term on: (A) in the case of monthly payments, the first day or the fifteenth day of each
month, whichever day is closer to the date the Lease commences, or (B) in the case of payments based on any other calendar period, on the first day of each such calendar period.

Any amount paid by Lessee to Lessor prior to this Lease commencing which is in excess of such first rental payment shall be credited towards Lessee’s final rental payment(s) in reverse order of
occurrence, without interest. RENTAL PAYMENTS AND ANY OTHER AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THIS LEASE ARE PAYABLE WITHOUT SET-OFF, COMPENSATION OR ABATEMENT AND IN NO EVENT SHALL THE
FIRST RENTAL PAYMENT BE REFUNDED TO LESSEE.

7. Adjustments: The rental payment set forth above is based upon the purchase price for the Equipment and Lessor’s cost of funds. If (but only if) an Estimated Purchase Price has been specified in a
Financing Terms Addendum attached hereto and the final invoice from Vendor specifies a purchase price (including taxes, delivery, installation and other charges) (the “Purchase Price”) that is greater
or less than the Estimated Purchase Price, Lessee authorizes Lessor to adjust the above rental payments to reflect the Purchase Price provided Lessee receives notice of such adjustment; however, if the
Purchase Price exceeds the Estimated Purchase Price by more that 10%, Lessor will notify Lessee and obtain Lessee’s prior written approval to such adjustment (such approval not to be unreasonably
withheld) and the Lease will not commence until such approval is obtained. If (but only if) a Latest Start Date is specified in a Financing Terms Addendum attached hereto and

Lease for any reason commences after such Latest Start Date, this Lease shall nevertheless be binding and Lessee authorizes Lessor in Lessor’s sole discretion to adjust the above rental payments to
reflect its cost of funds on the date this Lease commences and Lessor shall upon Lessee’s request, provide Lessee with a copy of the completed description. If this Lease is signed by Lessee prior to
Lessor having a complete description of the Equipment, Lessee hereby authorizes Lessor to complete such description provided Lessee receives notice of such description. Any adjustment to rental
payments or completion of an Equipment description made pursuant to this Section shall be deemed to have effect from the date Lessee executes this Lease; if a Financing Terms Addendum is not
executed and attached hereto, Lessor may not adjust the Net Rental Payments set forth above without Lessee’s prior written consent.

8. Interest on Overdue Payments: Lessee shall without notice pay interest at the rate of Thirty percent (30%) per annum calculated and compounded monthly and not in advance, on: (A) any past due
rental payments (B) any amounts which bear interest according to this Lease and (C) any other amounts due to Lessor hereunder which are not paid on their due dates; in each case from the date any
such amount becomes due or interest bearing, before and after maturity, default and judgment, until such arrears or other amounts are paid in full.

9. Pre-Authorized Payments: Lessee’s Bank is hereby authorized and directed to (A) debit Lessee’s account set forth above for all payments purporting to be drawn on Lessee for payment to Lessor
which are presented for payment by Lessor or Lessor’s agent, and (B) make all such payments to Lessor or Lessor’s agent from such account; such payments may be requested in the form of magnetic or
computer-produced tape in which case such Bank is hereby authorized to treat them as signed by Lessee. Lessee agrees, in consideration of such Bank acting on this authorization, that such institution
will not be liable for any loss or damage incurred as a result of honouring this authorization. If such account is transferred to another branch, this authorization shall be directed to such other branch.
This authorization may not be revoked without Lessor’s consent. Lessor is hereby irrevocably authorized to deliver a copy, details or further evidence of this authorization to such Bank, Lessee hereby
appointing Lessor its lawful attorney for such purpose. Such authorization may only be used by Lessor in respect of payments arising under this Lease, including payments arising under any Transaction
Schedule to this Lease.

10. Installation, Maintenance and Repair: Lessee shall, at its expense, be responsible for: (A) the delivery, installation, de-installation and redelivery of the Equipment and (B) the maintenance, upkeep,
care, servicing and repair (including necessary replacements of parts) (“Maintenance”) of the Equipment; in both cases by a party acceptable to Lessor. Lessee shall at its expense keep the Equipment in
good repair, condition and working order. Lessee shall not without the prior written consent of Lessor make any alterations, additions or improvements to the equipment. All such alterations, additions
or improvements shall be at Lessee’s expense and shall belong to, and become property of, Lessor immediately upon being made. On Lessor’s request, Lessee shall enter into a Maintenance agreement
respecting the Equipment with the manufacturer thereof or other Maintenance supplier acceptable to Lessor.

11. Use: Lessee shall use the Equipment in a careful and prudent manner and not for any unlawful purpose and shall at Lessee’s expense comply with and conform to the manufacturer’s specifications
and all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations (including laws, ordinances and regulations concerning environmental matters) relating to the possession, use or Maintenance of the Equipment.
Lessee shall only use the equipment in connection with its business or in the carrying on of an enterprise and only for commercial, industrial, professional or handicraft purposes and shall not use the
Equipment for any personal, family, household or farming purposes. The Lessee shall ensure that the Equipment is operated in a careful and proper manner by competent operators only.

12. Loss and Damage: Lessee shall, until this Lease is terminated and Lessee’s obligations hereunder are discharged in full (including the return of the Equipment), bear the entire risk of loss, damage,
destruction, theft, seizure or governmental taking of the Equipment or any part thereof (any such case being a “Loss”), regardless of whether it is caused by any default or neglect of Lessee. No Loss
shall relieve Lessee of its obligations hereunder. Lessee shall forthwith notify the Lessor of any loss or damage to the Equipment.

13. Title and Identification: The Equipment is and shall at all times be and remain the sole personal and moveable property of Lessor, shall not be affixed or attached to or otherwise become a fixture or
accession to any lands, buildings or chattels and Lessee shall have no right, title or interest in or to the Equipment except as expressly set forth herein. Lessee shall not allow the equipment to become
subject to any claim, privilege, lien, charge, encumbrance, levy, security interest, mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, seizure, trust, attachment, judicial process, ownership interest, license, sublease or
other right in favour of any person (in any such case an “Encumbrance”) unless such Encumbrance is caused by Lessor. At Lessor’s request, Lessee shall at Lessee’s expense affix and maintain on the
Equipment, in a manner and in places satisfactory to Lessor, labels, plates or other marks supplied by Lessor to identify the equipment as the property of Lessor.

14. Location and Inspection: Lessee shall maintain the Equipment at the Equipment Location specified in the Lease Details and shall not move the Equipment from such location. Lessor shall have the
right to inspect the Equipment and Lessee’s Maintenance, insurance and tax records at any time.

15. Net Lease: ALL COSTS AND EXPENSES RELATING TO THE EQUIPMENT OR ITS USE, MAINTENANCE OR POSSESSION SHALL BE BORNE BY LESSEE, INCLUDING ALL TAXES AND ALL FEES, CHARGES,
CLAIMS AND FINES INCURRED OR ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH THE REGISTRATION, LICENSING OR OPERATION OF THE EQUIPMENT. The rental payments and other amounts payable hereunder shall
be absolutely net to Lessor, free of all expenses or outgoings of any kind or nature. If Lessee fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder, Lessor may do so on Lessee’s behalf and shall be entitled to
immediate reimbursement from Lessee; without prejudice to any other Lessor’s rights or remedies, and Lessee appoints Lessor its lawful attorney for such purposes.

16. Taxes: Lessee shall pay all Taxes and file all returns in respect of Taxes immediately upon such Taxes or returns becoming due. “Taxes” includes all taxes, imposts, levies, fees, duties and charges now
or hereafter imposed by any federal, provincial, municipal or other taxation authority on Lessee, the Equipment or the purchase, sale, ownership, delivery, possession, use, Maintenance, operation or
lease of the Equipment or on Lessor in respect of any of the foregoing (including sales excise, use, property, business, transfer, goods and services and value added taxes and including penalties or
interest based on late payment of taxes), but excluding taxes on or measured by Lessor’s overall net income. Lessor shall be entitled to claim any applicable capital cost allowance, investment tax credit
or similar benefit under applicable tax legislation from time to time pertaining to the Equipment and/or the Lease and Lessee shall not make any such claim in respect thereof.

17. Insurance: Lessee shall, at its own expense, place and maintain, at its own expense, with insurers acceptable to Lessor: (a) Comprehensive all risks insurance on the Equipment in an amount at least
equal to its full replacement value, such insurance to include: (i) Lessor as additional insured, (ii) a loss payable clause in favour of Lessor as first payee, and (iii) a waiver of subrogation in favour of
Lessor; and (b)General public liability and property damage insurance with limits of liability equal to at least $2,000,000 per occurrence (or such greater amount as Lessor may require from time to
time), and such insurance shall: (i) extend to all liabilities of Lessee arising out of its use or possession of Equipment, (ii) include Lessor as additional insured, and (iii) include a cross-liability provision
which insures each person insured thereunder in the same manner and to the same extent as if a separate policy had been issued to each.

All insurance policies shall contain endorsements providing that: (A) thirty days written notice shall be given to Lessor before a policy lapses or is materially altered or cancelled; (B) coverage shall
be primary and not contributory; (C) Lessor’s interest as additional insured shall not be invalidated or otherwise affected by any act or omission, deliberate, negligent or otherwise, of Lessee or its
agents, servants or employees (such as a “standard mortgagee clause”); (D) Lessor shall not be responsible for payment of any premium; and (E) Lessor may elect to have all proceeds of loss
payable only to itself. Lessee shall, on request, supply Lessor with certified copies of all insurance policies or other evidence satisfactory to Lessor of satisfaction of these insurance covenants and
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evidence of renewal of the expiring policy must be delivered to the Lessor at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date. In the event of damage amounting to actual or constructive total
loss of the Equipment, Lessor shall be entitled to retain from all insurance proceeds an amount equal to the total amount payable to Lessor by Lessee hereunder as Liquidated Damages

18. Failure to Insure: If Lessee fails to fulfill its insurance obligations hereunder, then, without prejudice to Lessor’s other rights and remedies, Lessor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to
procure insurance covering Lessor’s interest (but not Lessee’s interest) in the Equipment, in such form and amount and with such insurers (including an insurer affiliated with Lessor) as Lessor shall
determine from time to time, all at Lessee’s expense. Such expense (the “Insurance Expense”) shall include the full cost of acquiring such insurance (not reduced by any credit or refund or any other
amount due or paid to Lessor with respect to Lessor’s insurance) and any charges or fees for services associated with the placement, maintenance or service of such insurance, plus interest accruing on
such expense at the interest rate provided herein for overdue amounts until such expense is reimbursed by Lessee to Lessor. Lessee shall pay the insurance Expense to Lessor in equal instalments at the
same time and in the same manner as the remaining rental payments. Lessee shall cooperate with Lessor’s insurance agent in connection with the placement of such insurance and the processing of
any claims. Nothing herein shall be deemed to obligate or entitle Lessor to act as an insurer hereunder or to arrange any insurance for the benefit of Lessee. Nothing herein shall require Lessor to
secure, maintain in force or renew any insurance, in any amounts or upon any specific terms and conditions. Lessor reserves the right to terminate any insurance coverage which Lessor may arrange, or
allow same to lapse, without incurring any liability to Lessee.

19. Representations: Lessee represents, warrants and covenants throughout the Term that; (A) if Lessee is a body corporate, it is and will continue to be validly incorporated (or otherwise established),
organized and existing and in good standing; (B) it has all necessary power and authority to execute, deliver and perform this Lease, each such action (i) having been duly authorized by all necessary
action of Lessee, (ii) not being in conflict with any applicable law, the constating documents, resolutions or by-laws of Lessee or any indenture, instrument, agreement or undertaking to which it is a
party or by which it or any of its assets are or may become bound, and (iii) not resulting in the creation of any Encumbrance on the Equipment; (C) this Lease is and will continue to be the legal, valid and
binding obligation of Lessee enforceable against it and effective against its creditors in accordance with its terms; (D) there are no pending or threatened actions or proceedings before any court,
administrative agency or other tribunal that could have a material adverse effect on Lessee; (E) financial statements and other related information furnished by Lessee to Lessor are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and fairly present Lessee’s financial position on their respective dates; and (F) to evidence the foregoing Lessee shall provide legal opinions,
resolutions and such other documents as Lessor may reasonably request.

20. Subleasing Etc.: Lessee shall not sublet or part with possession or control of the Equipment or permit its use by any person other than Lessee or employees of Lessee who are qualified and
competent to operate same. Neither this Lease nor Lessee’s rights hereunder shall be assigned by Lessee except with Lessor’s prior written consent and no assignment shall release Lessee from its
obligations hereunder.

21. Surrender: At the end of the Term or any renewal thereof, if Lessee has not purchased the Equipment pursuant to a Section 29 Purchase Option, Lessee, at Lessee’s expense and risk, shall surrender
control of the Equipment to Lessor and shall; (A) after giving Lessor thirty days prior written notice, return the Equipment to Lessor at Lessor’s nearest office or other place specified by Lessor or (B) if
requested by Lessor, dispose of the Equipment as Lessor reasonably directs, including disposition in a manner which will avoid any dangerous use thereof or damage or injury to any person or property
therefrom. Whenever Lessee is required to return the Equipment to Lessor the Equipment shall be in good repair, condition and working order and Lessee shall pay all costs of Maintenance and
restoration of Equipment returned to Lessor, necessary to restore it to its condition on the date this Lease commenced, normal wear and tear excepted. Lessee shall, if Lessor so requests, store the
Equipment at Lessee’s risk and expense and as Lessor’s bailee for a period of up to 90 days after the end of the term; Lessee shall not use the Equipment or pay rental payments for the Equipment
during such period but shall otherwise be bound by all of the terms of this Lease during such period.

22. Renewal: If Lessee fails to surrender the Equipment at the end of the Term or any renewal thereof, or to purchase the same pursuant to a Section 29 Purchase Option, Lessee shall be deemed to
have requested a renewal of this Lease for a period of three (3) calendar months and Lessor may, in its sole discretion; (A) demand the surrender of the Equipment in compliance with Section 21 and
exercise its rights and remedies for such non-compliance or (B) accept Lessee’s request to renew this Lease for a three (3) month period commencing on the end of the Term or the last renewal thereof.
Such acceptance may be evidenced in writing signed by Lessor or by Lessor continuing to invoice Lessee, withdrawing rental payments pursuant to a pre-authorized payment plan or otherwise accepting
rental payments in respect of such renewal period. Lessee shall continue to have all of it’s obligations under this Lease during any such renewal period, including the obligation to pay Lessor rental
payments, as it had during the Term and all provisions of this Lease shall apply to any such renewal term.

23. Entry: If Lessee fails to surrender the Equipment to Lessor as required under this Lease, Lessor may, without notice to Lessee or resort to legal process, but subject to any applicable law, enter any
premises where the Equipment is located and take possession of and remove or disable such Equipment.

24. Indemnity: Lessee hereby indemnifies Lessor and agrees to save Lessor harmless from and against all loss, costs, liabilities, claims, legal proceedings and expenses (including legal fees on a solicitor
and his own client basis and costs) whatsoever arising in connection with this Lease, the Purchase Documents, any License, the Equipment, the manufacture, selection, purchase, ownership, delivery,
possession, use, Maintenance, operation, Loss or return of the equipment, Taxes, the recovery of claims under any insurance policy relating to the Equipment, any use or operation of Equipment which
infringes any patent or other industrial or intellectual property right of any person, any Default by Lessee, the exercise by Lessor of any rights or remedies hereunder or any entry or taking of possession,
removal or disabling of Equipment pursuant to Section 23.

25. Defaults: Each of the following is a default by Lessee (a “Default”) (a) Lessee fails to make any rental payment or pay any other amounts due under this Lease within 3 days after the same is due and
payable; or (b) Lessee fails to perform, observe or comply with any other obligation, term or condition on its part to be performed, observed or complied with hereunder; or (c) Any event of default
occurs under any other lease or contract between Lessor and Lessee or under any material agreement between Lessee and any other person; or (d) Any representation or warranty made by Lessee to
Lessor in or in connection with this Lease is incorrect; or (e) The Equipment or any part thereof is subjected to an Encumbrance not caused by Lessor, Lessee sells or attempts to sell or grant an
Encumbrance on any part of the Equipment or the value of Lessor’s interest in the Equipment is materially impaired due to Loss; or (f) Lessee makes any assignment for the benefit of its creditors,
becomes insolvent, commits any act of bankruptcy, takes any action to wind-up or dissolve, ceases or threatens to cease to do business as a going concern, is subject to a change in control in fact or in
law or seeks any arrangement or composition with its creditors; or (g) Any proceeding in bankruptcy, receivership, winding-up, dissolution, liquidation or insolvency is commenced by or against Lessee
or its property; or (h) Lessor in good faith believes and has commercially reasonable grounds to believe that the prospect of payment or performance by Lessee under this Lease is or is about to be
impaired or the Equipment is or is about to be placed in jeopardy; or (i) Any guarantor of Lessee’s obligations hereunder disputes its obligation under its guarantee or seeks to determine its obligations
thereunder or to terminate its guarantee of Lessee’s future obligations or becomes subject to any of the events in clauses (b), (c), (d), (f) or (g) of this Section.

26. Effect of Default; Damages: A loss to Lessor upon a Default is dependent in part upon the cost of the Equipment to Lessor, the Term and the minimum return expected by Lessor from the sale or re-
lease of the Equipment at the end of the Term. Upon any Default and in addition to Lessor’s other rights and remedies under this Lease and otherwise available at law or in equity:

(a) Lessee shall pay forthwith (without notice) to Lessor as a genuine pre-estimate of liquidated damages, and not as a penalty (and in addition to all other amounts owing under this Lease), an amount
(the “Liquidated Damages”) equal to the aggregate of: (i) Unpaid rental payments and other amounts payable hereunder unpaid as of the date of the Default, and (ii) The present value (calculated on
the basis of an interest rate of one percent (1%) per annum calculated and compounded monthly) of: (A) the remaining rental payments payable from the date of Default to the end of the Term or, if
applicable, any renewal thereof, and (B) amounts otherwise payable under the Lease to the end of the Term, or, if applicable, any renewal thereof, and (C) the greater of the purchase price for the
Equipment pursuant to any end of Term fair market value or fixed price purchase option and the amount of any residual interest which Lessor may have in Equipment, and (iii) any Enforcement Costs
incurred by Lessor, and (iv) interest thereon from the date of Default until payment in full; to the extent that the Liquidated Damages are deemed to include any Taxes which Lessor is required to remit
to any taxation authority the Liquidated Damages shall be increased by the amount necessary to ensure that the net amount of the Liquidated Damages retained by Lessor after remitting all applicable
Taxes will be equal to the amount calculated above; (b) upon Lessor’s demand, Lessee at Lessee’s expense shall forthwith surrender control of the Equipment to Lessor pursuant to Section 21 as though
the Term had expired; (c) Lessor may, immediately and without notice to Lessee or resort to legal process take possession of and remove or disable the Equipment pursuant to Section 23 as though
Lessee had failed to surrender such Equipment when required to do so; (d) The rights of Lessee hereunder in respect of the Equipment, including the right to use and possess the Equipment, shall cease
and terminate absolutely without limiting Lessee’s liability or obligations hereunder; and (e) Lessor may by notice in writing terminate this Lease or any other agreement Lessor may have with Lessee. All
rights and remedies of Lessor, either under this Lease or at law or in equity or otherwise afforded to Lessor, are cumulative and not alternative. Lessor’s costs and expenses incurred as a result of a
Default (“Enforcement Costs”) (including all costs and expenses in respect of collection, legal fees, repossession, repair of Equipment, enforcement of Lessor’s rights or remedies, sale or re-lease costs
or other realization costs) shall be paid by Lessee to Lessor forthwith upon demand, with interest accruing thereon from the date such costs and expenses were incurred until payment in full.

27. Sale on Default: Lessor may after a Default sell, re-lease or otherwise dispose of Equipment at public or private sale with or without notice to Lessee and upon such terms and in such manner as

Lessor may determine. Lessee shall thereafter continue to be liable to Lessor for the amount of any deficiency between the proceeds to Lessor from such disposition and the Liquidated Damages. If at

any time after a Default and prior to Lessor obtaining possession of the Equipment, Lessee pays to Lessor the Liquidated Damaged and all applicable Taxes, title to the Equipment shall vest in Lessee on
n “asis, where is” basis without any condition, representation or warranty of Lessor whatsoever.

28. Effect of Waiver: No delay in exercising, or failure to exercise, any right or remedy accruing to Lessor under this Lease will impair or waive such right or remedy, nor will a waiver of any single Default
be deemed a waiver of any other prior, subsequent or concurrent Default. Any waiver, permit, consent or approval on the part of Lessor in respect of this Lease must be in writing and shall have effect
only to the extent specifically set forth in such writing.

29. Purchase Option: In this Section (a)”Default” means any existing Default and any event or circumstance which, with the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both, would constitute a Default; and
(b) “Fair Market Value” means the delivered and installed, all-inclusive, purchase price for equipment in good repair in a sale between an arms length purchaser buying for its own use and a seller
dealing in such equipment in the ordinary course of its business, as such purchase price is determined by the Lessor acting reasonably. Provided no Default exists, any Purchase Option set forth in the
Lease Details may be exercised by the Lessee; (i) giving Lessor written notice sixty (60) days prior to the Option Date of its election to exercise such option; and (ii) paying Lessor the Option Price, plus
Taxes, at least thirty (30) days before the Option Date. After the giving of such notice and the making of such payment, provided no Default exists on the Option Date, Lessee shall acquire Lessor’s
interest in the Equipment on the Option Date on an “as is, where is” basis without any condition, representation or warranty by Lessor of any kind whatsoever except that the Lessee acquires such
interest from Lessor free of Encumbrances caused by Lessor.

30. Lessee’s Waiver: TO THE EXTENT NOT PROHIBITED BY LAW OR STATUTE, LESSEE HEREBY WAIVES THE BENEFIT OF ALL PROVISIONS OF ALL APPLICABLE CONDITIONAL SALES, REGULATORY, CREDIT
AND OTHER STATUTES AND ALL REGULATIONS MADE THEREUNDER IN ANY APPLICABLE JURISDICTION WHICH WOULD IN ANY MANNER AFFECT, RESTRICT OR LIMIT THE RIGHTS AND REMEDIES OF
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LESSOR HEREUNDER., including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all of Lessee’s rights, benefits and protections given or afforded by the provisions of The Limitation of Civil Rights Act of
Saskatchewan, as amended. Lessee also waives and assigns to Lessor the right of any statutory exemption from execution or otherwise and further waives any right to demand security for cost in the
event of litigation.

31. Lessor Warranties: Lessor warrants that on the date this Lease commences it is the owner of the Equipment, free and clear of any Encumbrance caused by Lessor, save for Lessee’s rights hereunder.
Except as otherwise explicitly set forth herein, but without affecting Lessor’s warranties set forth in any other agreement (all of which Lessee acknowledges do not affect or form part of this Lease),
Lessor makes no warranty or representation whatsoever as to the durability, quality or condition of the Equipment or its suitability for Lessee’s purposes or as to any other matter whatsoever (including
status of this Lease for tax or accounting classification purposes). No representation to Lessee as to the Equipment or any other matter by the Vendor or any supplier or manufacturer of the Equipment
shall in any way affect Lessee’s obligations under this Lease. At the request and expense of Lessee and while there is no Default, Lessor will (A) assign to Lessee for the Term any and all warranties,
guarantees, service contracts, Licenses and representations given to Lessor by the Vendor or a manufacturer or supplier of the Equipment with respect to the Equipment (” Equipment Rights”) which are
assignable at law; and (B) assist Lessee in receiving the benefit of such Equipment Rights. If Lessor obtains possession or control of the Equipment or if there is a Default, Lessee shall be deemed to have
immediately reassigned such Equipment Rights to Lessor without any further action. If Equipment is located in the Province of Quebec, Lessor hereby conveys to Lessee any warranty which the Vendor
or a manufacturer or supplier of such Equipment gave to Lessor. LESSOR SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS, DAMAGE OR EXPENSE OF ANY KIND OR NATURE, WHETHER DIRECT, INDIRECT OR
CONSEQUENTIAL, CAUSED BY THE EQUIPMENT OR THE USE, MAINTENANCE OR POSSESSION THEREOF, BY THE INADEQUACY OF THE EQUIPMENT RIGHTS OR BY ANY INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE OR LOSS
OF USE OF THE EQUIPMENT OR FOR ANY LOSS OF BUSINESS OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER AND HOWSOEVER CAUSED.

32. Assignment: This Lease and all rights, remedies and benefits of Lessor hereunder may be assigned by Lessor without notice to or the consent of Lessee and Lessee hereby accepts such assignments
and waives signification of the act of assignment and the delivery of a copy of any assignment document. Upon such assignment: (A) the assignee (the “Assignee”) shall be entitled to enforce the rights
and remedies and to receive all benefits which would otherwise accrue to the original Lessor under this Lease; (B) the Assignee shall be deemed to be Lessor for the purpose of all such rights, remedies
and benefits; (C) the Assignee shall have no obligation to Lessee to perform any of the obligations of the original Lessor hereunder or otherwise in respect of the Equipment, all of which are retained by
the original Lessor; and (D) Lessee’s rights hereunder as against the original Lessor shall be unaffected except as herein specifically provided. Lessee agrees not to assert against the Assignee any claim
by way of abatement, defense, set-off, compensation, counterclaim or the like which Lessee may have against the original Lessor. The Lessee shall co-operate with the Lessor and any Assignee to
facilitate any assignment. Upon notice of an assignment Lessee shall unconditionally pay to such Assignee all rental payments and other amounts due hereunder and shall not assert any defense against
such Assignee in any action for rental payments or other amounts due and payable hereunder, except the defence of payment to the Assignee.

33. Credit Investigation: Subject to applicable legislation, Lessee hereby consents to Lessor conducting a credit investigation of Lessee and to Lessor making inquires with financial institutions or other
persons in a business relationship with Lessee in connection therewith; Lessee hereby authorizes and directs such persons to answer Lessor’s inquiries. Lessee agrees to furnish to Lessor: (A) a copy of
its interim financial statements and other related information, as Lessor may request from time to time; and (B) its annual financial statements, audited if applicable, within ninety days of the end of
each financial year.

34. Security Interests: To Secure Lessee’s performance of its obligations hereunder Lessee grants Lessor a continuing security interest in any interest Lessee has in the Equipment, in all proceeds thereof
(including proceeds of insurance) and in any rental payments receivable on any sublease permitted by Lessor; Lessee agrees that Lessor has all rights of a secured party under any applicable personal
property security legislation and at law and in equity. To the extent this Lease creates a security interest, such security interest is a purchase money security interest (as the terms “security interest” and
“purchase money security interest” are used in the Personal Property Security Act (Alberta) and shall be interpreted with similar effect under analogous legislation in force in any other relevant
jurisdiction. In this Lease the term “security interest” includes a movable hypothec without delivery.

35. Fees: Lessor shall be entitled to charge Lessee such fees and other charges as it may establish from time to time for the administration of and ancillary matters to this Lease, including a fee of $25.00
for each security registration required in connection with this Lease and such fees for invoices as Lessor may from time to time establish.

36. Name Change, etc.: Lessee shall promptly notify Lessor in writing of: (A) any change in Lessee’s name: (B) any transfer, authorized or unauthorized, by Lessee of any interest in or benefit from the
Equipment; (C) any change, authorized or unauthorized, by Lessee in the location of any Equipment; and (D) any change in the location of Lessee’s chief executive office specified above.

37. Information: Lessee agrees that Lessor may provide copies of this Lease and/or information concerning Lessee and its obligations hereunder to
any person.

38. Additional Equipment: Lessor and Lessee may from time to time agree to lease additional equipment pursuant to these Terms & Conditions and the above Lessee Information and Invoice Option
and each such agreement shall be evidenced by a written schedule referencing this initial lease (a “Transaction Schedule”), signed by Lessee and Lessor and setting forth the particulars of such
equipment lease transaction including the matters addressed by the above Lease Details and including any amendments to the Lessee Information or Terms & Conditions which are applicable to that
transaction. The particulars of the initial transaction set forth in the above Lease Details shall not apply to subsequent transactions but the Terms & Conditions, Invoice Option and Lessee Information of
this Lease are incorporated by reference into each Transaction Schedule and shall apply mutatis mutandis, to the transaction specified in such Transaction Schedule; such Lessee Information, Terms &
Conditions, Invoice Option and each Transaction Schedule shall constitute a separate lease and the entire agreement with respect to that transaction, shall be deemed to be a “Lease” to which these
Terms & Conditions refer and shall not terminate as a result of the termination or expiry of any other Lease made pursuant to these Terms and Conditions. The terms of any Transaction Schedule
evidencing a specific transaction shall prevail over these Terms & Conditions and the above Lessee Information to the extent of any conflict or inconsistency but only in respect of that transaction.

39. Entire Agreement: This Lease (including (A) all details set forth above in the Lessee Information, Lease Details and Invoice Option and in these Terms & Conditions and (B) any schedule, addendum
or amendment to this Lease which is in writing, references this Lease and is signed by Lessee and Lessor at any time) constitutes the entire agreement between Lessor and Lessee with respect to its
subject matter.

40. Applicable Law: This Lease shall be construed according to the laws of the Province of Alberta.

41. Enurement: Subject to the terms hereof, this Lease shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, permitted
assigns and legal representatives.

42. Interpretation: Whenever the context of this Lease so requires, the singular shall include the plural and vice versa and words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter
genders. Time is of the essence of this Lease and each of its provisions. Headings are for convenience of reference only and do not affect the interpretation. Terms used in the Lessee Information or
Lease Details have, when used in these Terms & Conditions, unless the context otherwise requires, the meaning ascribed thereto by such use. The word “including” means “including without limitation”

43. Notices: Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder must be in writing and will conclusively be deemed to have been received by its recipient on the business day it is delivered or sent
by facsimile transmission to a party at the address indicated on the first page hereof (or at such other address as such party specifies to the other party in writing) or, if sent by registered mail, provided
there is no interruption in postal services, on the fifth business day after the day of mailing, addressed to such party at such address.

44. Severability: Any provision of this Lease prohibited by or unlawful or unenforceable under any applicable law shall, at the sole option of Lessor, be ineffective without invalidating the remaining
provisions of this Lease: provided, however, that to the extent that the provisions of any such applicable law can be waived, they are hereby waived by Lessee.

45. Further Assurances: Lessee agrees to do all things and execute or obtain all documents as may be required by Lessor in order to give effect to or better evidence this Lease including the execution of
financing statements or other documents to effect security registrations to protect Lessor’s interests, any acknowledgements required by any Assignee and any waivers or subordinations from Lessee’s
landlords or creditors.

46. Language: The parties hereby acknowledge that they have required this Lease, and all other agreements and notices required or permitted to be entered into or given pursuant hereto, to be drawn
up in the English language only. Les parties reconnaissent avoir demandé que le présent contrat ainsi que toute autre entente ou avis requis ou permis a étre conclu ou donné en vertu des dispositions
du présent contrat, soient rédigés en langue anglaise seulement.

47. Survival: Notwithstanding any other sections hereof, all obligations of Lessee under sections 2,8,10,12,13,15,16,19,21,22,23,24,25,26,27,30,31,32,34 and 35 hereof and the rights and remedies of
Lessor hereunder shall survive the termination of this Lease and the receipt of all rental payments and other amounts payable by Lessee hereunder.

48. Joint and Several Liability: If more than one person executed this Lease, their obligations hereunder shall be joint and several and, in the Province of Quebec, solidary without benefit of division or
discussion.

49. Receipt of Copy, Etc.: Lessee acknowledges receipt of a true copy of this Lease and waives, to the extent permitted by applicable law, all rights to receive copies of financing statements, financing
change statements, verification statements or copies of other notices or filings made by Lessor at any time in connection with this Lease, any schedule thereto, any amendment thereof or any
Transaction Schedule.

Ste 201, 3007 14th Street SW, Calgary, AB, T2T 3V6 Ph: 403.930.2175  Fx: 403.287.9847
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SCHEDULE A PSV
uwi Vessel Manufacturer A# CRN SN Make Model CRN SN
103/14-27-40-13W4 Separator A516577 R2959.213 008705-200 Taylor 82E8351311 001774-130
103/14-27-40-13W4 Fuel Gas Scrubber P6909.231 S-3316 Taylor 82E4351311 008410-43
103/14-27-40-13W4 100 bbl Tank Nusco 8705
102/13-27-40-13W4 Separator A503862 P1768.213 317557 0G01316.2C 034048-70
102/13-27-40-13W4 Fuel Gas Scrubber 114178.2135 6286.423 Taylor 82£4351311 009792-137
100/13-27-40-13W4 Separator A602938 P7298.21 27171 Taylor 82E8351311 11297-9
A4589.3
100/13-27-40-13W4 Fuel Gas Scrubber 0OH57373.219 251675 82E4351311 028480-21
05-27-40-13W4 Suction Gas Scrubber 8286.1357 Taylor 82E3531311 19242-17
05-27-40-13W4 Discharge Bottle A10027 H7951.5C SF-122828 Taylor 82E4351311 20278-3
05-27-40-13W4 750 bbl Tank Rugged Tank & Fabrication 30611
05-27-40-13W4 750 bbl Tank Rugged Tank & Fabrication 31711
05-27-40-13W4 750 bbl Tank Rugged Tank & Fabrication 31011
100/08-07-042-14W4 Flare Knockout Pyramid Electric 97-M-502
100/08-07-042-14W4 Fuel Gas Scrubber Panax 0H5737.213 251552 Taylor 82E4351311 009792-139
100/08-07-042-14W4 Separator Panax A595883 P7298.21 26837 Taylor 82E8351311 005417-165
A4589.3
100/08-07-042-14W4 750 bbl Tank Rugged Tank & Fabrication 31511
102/04-03-040-12W4 Separator Nusco A508365 R2959.213 007634-200 Taylor 82E8351311 05417-112
102/04-03-040-12W4 Fuel Gas Scrubber Nusco P6909.231 $-3080 Taylor 82E4351311 0G01316.2C 00972-130
102/04-03-040-12W4 100 bbl Tank Nusco 7634
102/04-03-040-12W4 750 bbl Tank Rugged Tank & Fabrication 30711
103/11-31-038-09W4 Vert 3 Phase Separator A576240 P7217.2 11191 Taylor 82E8351311 43299-215
103/11-31-038-09W4 Fuel Gas Scrubber F6388.2 11553 Taylor 82E4351311 43109-101
100/01-31-038-09W4 Separator A606217 R5286.213 19317-01 Taylor 82E8351311 016588-224
100/01-31-038-09W4 Fuel Gas Scrubber 0H09024.213 6287.551 Taylor 82E5351311 016354-375
03-31-038-09W4 Control Bldg Fuel Gas Scrubber Lo Tech 0H7154.2134 1006.7219 Mercer 91-17D51VO5E1 0G8841.5C 820096
03-31-038-09W4 750 bbl Tank Flint A750-18
03-31-038-09W4 750 bbl Tank Flint A750-19
102/11-31-038-09W4 Vert 3 Phase Separator RV A3153334 F5874.2 3614 Mercer 9117D511714E 0G2606.5C 45507
102/11-31-038-09W4 Fuel Gas Scrubber
102/11-31-038-09W4 Pumpjack Scrubber Platinum Pull type
102/11-31-038-09W4 750 bbl Tank Kamber Fab Industries 750165
100/08-19-039-10W4 Pumpjack Scrubber Ampscot Pull type
100/08-19-039-10W4 Separator A518959 R8610.231 04-07-230 Taylor 82E8351311 16845-35
100/08-19-039-10W4 Fuel Gas Scrubber Lo Tech 0H2422.2134 1014.1778 Taylor 82E4351311 0001316.2C 057050-7
100/08-19-039-10W4 750 bbl Tank Rugged Tank & Fabrication 30811
100/16-35-038-10W4 Fuel Pot Bromley AS557316 H4109.234 625822 Taylor 82E4351311 0G01316.2C 014391-365
100/16-35-038-10W4 Separator Panax A549191 P7298.21 26061 Taylor 82E8351311 014338-256
A4589.3
100/16-35-038-10W4 400 bbl Tank Recom 10031
100/16-35-038-10W4 400 bbl Tank Recom 10032
16-28-038-10W4 Discharge Bottle Steel Fab H7951.5C SF-126348(?) Taylor 82E4351311 0G01316.2C 040215-153
16-28-038-10W4 Suction Bottle Impact Industrial Sales 0H07152.2 502525 Taylor 82E5351311 037824-263
102/16-33-038-10W4 Pumpjack Scrubber Lo Tech WellMark W2601-EV1-311-30  |{007968.52/56 |IBT05265-24
102/16-33-038-10W4 Separator NWP Industries A588884 19453.231 1643 Taylor 82E7351311 0G01316.2C 051342-34
102/16-33-038-10W4 Scrubber NWP Industries 0H09319.213 1610 Taylor 82E4351311 0G01316.2C 5401215 (?)
103/15-27-038-10W4 Separator Panax A602939 P7298.21 27172 Taylor 82E6351311 010760-317
A4589.3

All right, title and interest in the debtor to the oil and gas producing equipment and any other tangible and intangible property related thereto.

Proceeds: any and all proceeds of amounts arising from or payable in connection with any of the collateral described above

08/09/2023

Lessee Signature:
E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis
on 2023-08-10 08:24:47 MDT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Director

E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis
X on 2023-08-10 08:24:49 MDT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Individual




PSV

SCHEDULE A
103/15-27-038-10W4 Scrubber Panax 0H5737.213 251673 Taylor 82E4531311 0G01316.2C 057050-19
100/04-22-041-09W4/02 Separator RIV A405717 M0716.2 4538 Taylor 82G12651311-1440 034048-87
100/04-22-041-09W4/02 Scrubber no plate Taylor 82E4351311 49722-17
100/04-22-041-09W4/02 100 bbl Tank Bromley 206-D100-10243
100/04-22-041-09W4/02 750 bbl Tank no plate
100/04-22-041-09W4/02 Group Separator Bromley A565171 P1768.213 516-70N Taylor 82E7351311 30665-443
100/04-22-041-09W4/02 Fuel Gas from Separator Bromley A560518 626072 Taylor 82E4351311 30747-49
100/04-22-041-09W4/02 Inlet Separator NGC A556798 R5810.213 16607-2 Hydroseal 14E3MOV00/L5 555302-15
100/04-22-041-09W4/02 Oil Separator NGC A565668 R5809.213 16607-7 Taylor 82H6571311 032086-216
100/07-15-041-09W4/00 Separator FloDrip A479897 L4250.231 4718 Taylor 82E8351311 48787-127
100/16-03-041-09W4/00 Fuel Gas Lo Tech 0H2299.2134 1006.1899 Taylor 82E4351311 49980-68
100/16-03-041-09W4/00 Gas Separator Nusco A486731 P9291.2C 005618-200 Taylor 82E4351311 45787-124
100/16-03-041-09W4/00 130 bbl tank Nusco 005618
100/03-03-041-09W4/02 Separator Nusco A516263 R6050.23 008348-200 Mercer 91-17D51T14E1 489323
100/03-03-041-09W4/02 Fuel Gas Scrubber Flo-Dri Taylor 82E4351311 15000-15
100/03-03-041-09W4/02 60 bbl Tank Nusco 8348
100/09-24-041-09W4/00 Separator Nusco A534806 P4395.2 01-4349-5 Taylor 82E4351311 46787-151
100/09-24-041-09W4/00 Fuel Gas Separator 0H6795.21 99-4349-5 Mercer 9106D51VO6EL 151901
100/06-21-041-09W4/02 Gas Separator Plains Oil A513244 R2520.213 3526-V3 Mercer 91-17D51T14E1 129457
100/06-21-041-09W4/02 60 bbl Tank Ultrafab 0486-019
15-05-042-12W4 3 Phase Separator Silverado A550927 T4857.2 5-1852 Taylor 82H116751311 19772
15-05-042-12W4 Gas Scrubber Silverado OH583.7.213 $-1798 Taylor 82E4351311 14730-55
15-05-042-12W4 Air Receiver Steel Fab H7951.5C SF-179975

All right, title and interest in the debtor to the oil and gas producing equipment and any other tangible and intangible property related thereto.
Proceeds: any and all proceeds of amounts arising from or payable in connection with any of the collateral described above.
08/09/2023

Lessee Signature:

E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis
on 2023-08-10 08:24:59 MDT x

E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis
on 2023-08-10 08:25:00 MDT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Director

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Individual



SCHEDULE "A"

Location

Building/Equipment

Additional Information

15-35-21-07W4 Office Electrical room, Office & Tool Room
15-35-21-07W4 Utility Building Water/Glycol Heater, (2) Circulating Centrifugal Pumps, (2) Air Compressors & a Drying Tower
15-35-21-07W4 Inlet Building Test Separator, FWKO, Flare Meter Run, 8 Well Header, (2) Ruffnecks

15-35-21-07W4

Treater Building

Universal 10 x 40 Foot Dual Burner Treater & Meter Run

15-35-21-07W4

Compressor Building

3408 Cat & 2 Stage Gemini Compressor

15-35-21-07W4

Dehy Building

Contactor, Reboiler & Accumulator, Glycol Pump, Methanol Pump

15-35-21-07W4

Quin Plex Building

250 HP Quin Plex Building & Booster

15-35-21-07W4

Triplex Building

(2) 125 HP Triplex Pumps & Boosters, (2) Roper Recycling Screw Pumps, Recycle Discharge Header

15-35-21-07W4 Cut Shack Centrifuge, Steel Bench with Hot Bath Sink
15-35-21-07W4 Tank Farm (2) 2000 BBL Water Tanks, (1) 2000 BBL Recycle Tank, (2) 1200 BBL Oil Tanks, (1) 750 BBL Desand Tank
15-35-21-07W4 Flare Stack

15-35-21-07W4

Underground Flare Knockout Tank

15-35-21-07W4

Underground Injection Pump Drain Tank

2-2-22-07W4

Test Separator, Pigging Station

7-2-22-07W4

Test Separator, 7 Well Header, Pigging Station, Electrical Building

12-11-22-07W4

Test Separator, with Chev V6 Hydraulic Drive

All right, title and interest in the debtor to the oil and gas producing equipment and any other tangible and intangible property related thereto.
Proceeds: any and all proceeds of amounts arising from or payable in connection with any of the collateral described above.

Date: 08/09/2023

Lessee Signaturc:
E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis

on 2023-08-10 08:25:04 MDT X

X

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis

Title: Director

E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis
on 2023-08-10 08:25:05 MDT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis

Title: Individual




Acknowledgement of Re-Lease

Date: August 9, 2023

Lessee(s) CLEO Energy Corp. and Christopher John McRae Lewis Joint and Several
Lease Agreement #105387-S03P dated August 9, 2023

Equipment:
Equipment Details
Quantity | Description Serial Number(s)

***See Attached SCHEDULE A***

Please acknowledge below that the equipment described above is currently owned by 2416924 Alberta Ltd. O/A Stride
Capital and title has not transferred to CLEO Energy Corp. and Christopher John McRae Lewis Joint and Several and that
all parties have agreed to re-lease the equipment as described above to CLEO Energy Corp. and Christopher John
McRae Lewis Joint and Several for consideration of $600,000.00 to which funds will be directed as follows:

2416924 Alberta Ltd. O/A Stride Capital Lease 105387-S01  $153,076.80 Valid to August 14, 2023
2416924 Alberta Ltd. O/A Stride Capital Lease 105387-S02  $153,076.80 Valid to August 14, 2023
CLEO Energy Corp. Balance of Proceeds

Title to the equipment will be released upon completion of the contract terms as set out in Lease Agreement 105387-
SO3P. Please acknowledge below that the above noted equipment is leased as is where is. 2416924 Alberta Ltd. O/A
Stride Capital makes no warranties and or representations whether implied by statute or otherwise as to the working
condition of the equipment, its merchantability for fitness for any particular purpose. This Acknowledgement is
attached to and forms an integral part of Lease Agreement 105387-S03P.

This Acknowledgement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall
constitute one and the same agreement and the execution and delivery of counterparts of this Acknowledgement by
fax or email by any party shall be binding upon the parties hereto.

DATED August 9, 2023

Lessee: CLEO Energy Corp. and Christopher John McRae Lewis Joint and Several

E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis
By: x on 2023-08-10 08:25:25 MDT By X on 2023-08-10 08:25:27 MDT
Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Director Title: Individual

Executed by Lessor: 2416924 Alberta Ltd. O/A Stride Capital

E-SIGNED by Randy Mannix
on 2023-08-11 11:01:36 MDT

Randy Mannix / SVP Leasing

#201, 3007 14™ Street SW, Calgary, AB, T2T 3V6 Ph: 403.930.2175 Fax: 403.287.9847



Pre-Authorized
Payment Plan

AUTHORIZATION
PRE-AUTHORIZED PAYMENT PLAN

You are hereby authorized and requested to pay and debit to the account mentioned above all cheques purporting to be drawn on
you on behalf of the undersigned where more than one, by and made payable to 2416924 ALBERTA LTD. O/A STRIDE CAPITAL
(Funding Company) and presented to you for payment regarding lease payments on Lease # 105387-S03P when due.

In consideration of your acting as aforesaid, it is agreed that your treatment of each said cheque and your rights to it shall be the same
as if it were signed by the undersigned, or by each of the undersigned where more than one, personally and that the failure to pay any
such cheque shall give rise to no liability on your part where such failure results in loss or damage of any kind. Any delivery of this
authorization to you will constitute delivery by the undersigned.

I may revoke my authorization at any time, subject to providing notice of 30 days. To obtain a sample cancellation form, or for more
information on my right to cancel a PAD Agreement, | may contact my financial institution or visit www.cdnpay.ca.

| have certain recourse rights if any debit does not comply with this agreement. For example, | have the right to receive
reimbursement for any debit that is not authorized or is not consistent with this PAD Agreement. To obtain more information on my
recourse rights, | may contact my financial institution or visit www.cdnpay.ca.

This Pre-Authorized Payment Plan may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one
and the same agreement and the execution and delivery of counterparts of this Pre-Authorized Payment Plan by telecopier by any
party shall be binding upon the parties hereto

TO BE EXECUTED BY DEBTOR(S) / LESSEE(S) Lease #105387-S03P
CLEO Energy Corp. (Debtor / Lessee)

Dated this day of 08/09/2023

E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis
Signatu re. X on 2023-08-10 08:25:52 MDT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis

PLEASE ATTACH AN UNSIGNED CHEQUE FROM YOUR BANK OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

AFFIX VOID CHEQUE HERE

Ste 201, 3007 14th Street SW, Calgary, AB, T2T 3V6 Ph: 403.930.2175 Fx: 403.287.9847



Delivery and Acceptance
Certificate

To: 2416924 ALBERTA LTD. O/A STRIDE CAPITAL

Re: 105387-S03P (the “Lease Agreement”)

The equipment described in the Lease Agreement between 2416924 ALBERTA LTD. O/A STRIDE CAPITAL

(Lessor) and the undersigned (Lessee) was received by us not more than five days prior to the date on which
this certificate is executed.

The Equipment has, on or before the date hereof, been received and accepted by us and is satisfactory in all
material aspects.

We authorize 2416924 ALBERTA LTD. O/A STRIDE CAPITAL or its assignee to pay for such Equipment and to
commence the Lease on the date of the Certificate, Wednesday, August 9, 2023 (the Lease Commencement

Date) or, if Lessor waives this Certificate, on such other date as is provided for in the Lease Agreement.

This Certificate forms part of the Lease Agreement.

Date: 08/09/2023

Lessee(s): CLEO Energy Corp. and Christopher John McRae Lewis Joint and Several

Lessee Signature: Lessee Signature:
X E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis x E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis
on 2023-08-10 08:26:47 MDT on 2023-08-10 08:26:49 MDT
Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Director Title: Individual

Ste 201, 3007 14th Street SW, Calgary, AB, T2T 3V6 Ph: 403.930.2175  Fx: 403.287.9847



Lessee’s Insurance
Undertaking

This undertaking forms part of Lease 105387-S03P
Insured Lessee: CLEO Energy Corp.

Equipment covered by this certificate:
***See Attached SCHEDULE A***

During the term of the lease contract commencing Wednesday, August 9, 2023 (mm/dd/yyyy) with a term of 25 months and any extension
thereof, whereby I/we, the Lessee(s) of the above equipment, owned by 2416924 ALBERTA LTD. O/A STRIDE CAPITAL (hereinafter called the
Lessor), agree to cause 2416924 ALBERTA LTD. O/A STRIDE CAPITAL to be named as Additional Insured and First Loss Payee in the applicable
policies described below.

If the above equipment is subjected to a Standard Automobile Policy (Owner’s Form), I/we the Lessee(s) agree to effect and maintain such policy
per the terms above including a S.E.F. No. 5a — Permission to Rent or Lease Endorsement (specified Lessee including modified application —
separate policy) in the name of the Lessor with respect to the above described equipment for the following perils, limits and amounts.

INSURED AGREEMENTS PERILS LIMITS AND AMOUNTS
LEGAL LIABILITY FOR BODY INJURY $2,000,000
SECTION A TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON OR (EXCLUSIVE OF COST AND POST JUDGEMENT INTEREST) FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE
DAMAGE TO THE PROPERTY RESULTING FROM BODILY INJURY TO OR THE DEATH OF ONE OR MORE PERSONS. AND
THIRD PARTY FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF CLAIMS ARISING
LIABILITY FROM ANY ONE ACCIDENT

$5,000,000 Environmental liability (if applicable)

SUB. S
SEC. PAYMENT FOR DEATH AS STATED IN SECTION B OF THE POLICY OR EACH PERSON
SECTION B 1. OR
7 BODILY INJURY
AS STATED IN SECTION B OF THE POLICY
ACCIDENT oR
BENEFITS PRINCIPLE MAX. WEEKLY
SUM S BENEFITS
3. | UNINSURED MOTORIST AS STATED IN SECTION B OF THE POLICY
SUB. | ALL PERILS
SEC. $5000
1,
SECTION C 2. | COLLISION OR UPSET 55000 | AMOUNT DEDUCTIBLE ON EACH SEPARATE CLAIM EXCEPT FOR LOSS OR
LOSS OF OR DAMAGE TO DAMAGE BY FIRE OR LIGHTENING OR THEFT OF THE ENTIRE AUTOMOBILE.
OWNED AUTOMOBILES 3. | COMPREHENSIVE $5000
(EXCLUDING COLLISION OR UPSET)
4. | COMPREHENSIVE 45000
(EXCLUDING COLLISION OR UPSET)
ENDORSEMENTS

|/we agree to deliver or cause to be delivered to the Lessor, within the 30-day period immediately following the date of the delivery of the above stated Equipment to me/
us, such insurance policy and any endorsements and certificates applicable thereto.

|/we agree to deliver or cause to be delivered to the Lessor, within the 15-day period immediately following the expiry or termination date of such policy, written evidence
of the renewal or replacement of such policy.

|/we agree and acknowledge that, should I/we fail to comply with this Lessee’s Insurance Undertaking, |/we shall reimburse the Lessor for all amounts they would not
otherwise be liable to pay.

|/we further agree and acknowledge that, should I/we fail to comply with this Lessee’s Insurance Undertaking, I/we will be in default per the terms and conditions of the
Lease contract.

Date: 8/9/2023

Lessee Signature: Lessee Signature:
X E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis X E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis
on 2023-08-10 08:26:59 MDT on 2023-08-10 08:27:00 MDT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Director Title: Individual

Suite 201, 3007 14t~ Street SW, Calgary, AB, T2T 3V6 Ph: 403.930.2175  Fx: 403.287.9847
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&

Cross Collateral Agreement

This Cross Collateral Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”) by and between 2416924 ALBERTA LTD. O/A
STRIDE CAPITAL with offices at Ste 201, 3007 14" Street SW, Calgary, AB, T2T 3V6 collectively known as the “Secured Party”
and CLEO Energy Corp. and Christopher John McRae Lewis Joint and Several located at 200 - 117 8th Ave SW, Calgary,
Alberta, T2P 1B4 (“Debtor”).

Statement of Purpose

The parties intend by this Agreement to establish herein, without the need for further documentation, a security interest in all
of the personal property which the Debtor has acquired or shall hereinafter acquire and in which Secured Party has or shall
hereinafter have a security interest. All of said property shall secure all liabilities, obligations and indebtedness of Debtor to
Secured Party of every kind and description now existing or hereinafter arising, whether arising under this Agreement or
otherwise. Liability includes obligations to perform acts or refrain from taking action, as well as obligations to pay money.
The security interest created by this Agreement is in addition to and not in lieu of any other security interest which has been
or which may hereafter be granted by Debtor to Secured Party.

Debtor, in order to induce Secured Party to finance Debtor’s purchase of property by means of conditional sales contracts,
leases with or without options to purchase, promissory notes and security agreements or other similar lien creating
instruments or contracts (“Contract”), hereby agrees to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

AGREEMENT

Grant of Security Interest — Debtor hereby grants to Secured Party a security interest in such of Debtor’s presently existing
and hereafter acquired property in which Secured Party has or shall hereafter have a security interest plus all proceeds of the
Foregoing (collectively, the “Collateral”) to secure the payment and performance of all Debtor’s liabilities and obligations to
Secured Party of every kind and character, whether joint or several, direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to
become due, and whether under presently existing or hereinafter created Contracts (collectively, the “Liabilities”).

. Covenants of Debtor — Debtor covenants and agrees to execute and deliver to Secured Party any financing statements or

documents or instruments required to be filed in connection with the security interest hereby created relating to the
Collateral and to pay all costs in connection therewith. Debtor hereby appoints Secured Party as Debtor’s attorney in-fact to
do, at Secured Party’s option and Debtor’s expense, all acts and things which Secured Party may deem necessary to perfect
and continue the perfection of the security interests hereby created.

Default and Remedies — If Debtor fails to pay or perform any of its Liabilities when due or fails in the performance of any
other provision of this Agreement or any Contract, or if Debtor becomes insolvent or makes an assignment for the benefit of
creditors or if a proceeding in reorganization, bankruptcy, or for a receivership is commenced by or against Debtor, Debtor
shall be in default hereunder and under the Contracts and the Secured Party may, without notice or demand, accelerate and
declare all Liabilities and any other amounts due hereunder payable immediately and Secured Party may exercise and shall
have any and all rights and remedies accorded it under any contract and by the applicable Personal Property Security Act as in
effect from time to time under applicable provincial law. All rights granted to Secured Party hereunder shall be cumulative
and not alternative, shall be in addition to and shall in no manner impair or affect Secured Party’s right or remedies under any
existing or hereafter arising Contract statute or rule of law.

Miscellaneous

. Secured Party’s acceptance of delinquent payments or failure of Secured Party to exercise any right shall not be a waiver of

any obligation of Debtor, including, but not limited to, the obligation of Debtor to pay interest on delinquent payments, nor
constitute a waiver of a similar default subsequently occurring.

Debtor waives any right it may have to direct application of any payment made by it to Secured Party. Secured Party may, at
its option offset and deduct any of the Liabilities of Debtor from any and all sums owed by Secured Party.

Ste 201 3007 14th Street SW, Calgary, AB, T2T 3V6 Ph: 403.930.2175 Fx: 403.287.9847



Cross Collateral Agreement

c. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the law of the province of Alberta. Any provision of this Agreement
prohibited by law shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof.

d. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto: provided,
however, that Debtor shall not without the prior written consent of Secured Party, assign any right or delegate any of its
obligations under this Agreement to any third party.

This Cross Collateral Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall
constitute one and the same agreement and the execution and delivery of counterparts of this Cross Collateral by telecopier
by any party shall be binding upon the parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 08/09/2023.

Lessee(s): CLEO Energy Corp. and Christopher John McRae Lewis Joint and Several

Lessee Signature: Lessee Signature:

X E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis X E-SIGNED by Christopher John McRae Lewis
on 2023-08-10 08:27:11 MDT on 2023-08-10 08:27:12 MDT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Director Title: Individual
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Invoice

Invoice To: Date Invoice #
CLEO Energy Corp. August 9, 2023 105387-S03P
200 - 117 8th Ave SW

Calgary, Alberta
T2P 1B4

Description

Initial Payment (1st Rental)

A documentation fee of $1,500.00 has been added to your transaction.

GST# 74011 5506 RTO001

Amount

$0.00
Sub Total $0.00
GST $0.00
PST N/A
Total $0.00
Received/Paid to Vendor N/A
Amount Owing $0.00
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Lease No. 105387-23P

Lessee Details

Lessee(s) CLEO Energy Corp.

Address 200 - 117 8th Ave SW, Calgary, AB, T2P 1B4

Contact Ph: (403) 801-4155, Cl: (403) 801-4155, Email: clewis@cleoenergy.com

Equipment Details Serial Number

Equipment See attached schedule ‘A’ attached to and forming part of this lease agreement.

Location 200 - 117 8th Ave SW, Calgary, AB, T2P 1B4

Arundel Capital Corporation

Payments

Start Date May 23, 2024 Initial Payment

24 payments of $3,991.33 (plus applicable taxes) beginning July 1, 2024
Payments

Options

ST ERNel e 8| $750.00 (plus applicable taxes) at the end of the Term’s 26th calendar month.

Early Purchase

Option N/A

Execution

I  £-SIGNED by Sean Rowan
become binding

upon Lessor until on 2024-05-28 20:51:26 GMT
accepted as Lessor: Arundel Capital Corporation Date: May 23, 2024

follows:

The undersigned acknowledges having read the entire Lease Agreement and accepts the terms and conditions including those on page
2,3,4, and 5 hereof. Each of the undersigned affirms that they are duly authorized to execute this Lease Agreement on behalf of the
Lessee.

Date: May 23, 2024
E-SIGNED by Christopher Lewis
¥ 0on 2024-05-28 18:50:53 GMT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Chairman
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Pre-Authorized Payment Plan

1. You, the Lessee, hereby authorize Arundel Capital Corporation to draw payments from the bank account identified periodically under
the Pre-Authorized Debit (PAD) Agreement in payment of the lease payments and any other amounts due under this Lease
105387-23P. This authorization will remain in effect until the Lessee provides written notice to Lessor of its change or termination.

2. The Lessee may revoke their authorization at any time, subject to providing notice of 30 days. To obtain a sample cancellation form,
or for more information on the Lessee’s right to cancel a PAD Agreement, the Lessee may contact their financial institution or visit
www.cdnpay.ca.

This Lease Agreement/Pre-Authorized Debit Agreement is for Business use.

4. The Lessee has certain recourse rights if any debit does not comply with this agreement. For example, the Lessee has the right to
receive reimbursement for any debit that is not authorized or is not consistent with this PAD Agreement. To obtain more information
on the Lessee’s recourse rights, the Lessee may contact their financial institution or visit www.cdnpay.ca.

5. The Lessee must provide a void cheque or an account information form from their financial Institution.

Date: May 23, 2024

E-SIGNED by Christopher Lewis
x On2024-05-28 18:50:56 GMT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Chairman

Acceptance & Authorization Certificate

1. The Equipment described in this Lease Agreement 105387-23P between Arundel Capital Corporation (Lessor) and the
undersigned (Lessee) has been unconditionally accepted by Lessee in its present condition and location.

2. Lessee certifies that it has made or caused to be made any tests and inspections of the Equipment as Lessee deemed
necessary to become satisfied with the Equipment condition.

3. Lessee further acknowledges that the supplier, manufacturer, and the Equipment were selected by the Lessee and is
satisfied with the specifications, operating performance, and suitability of the Equipment for the purpose of which the
Lessee intends to use it.

4. Lessee irrevocably authorizes the Lessor to pay for such Equipment and to commence the Lease Agreement on the date
of the Certificate May 23, 2024 (the Lease Commencement Date).

Date: May 23, 2024

E-SIGNED by Christopher Lewis
X ©0n2024-05-28 18:50:58 GMT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Chairman

1. Lease: Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor, the Equipment described in the Lease Equipment Details, together with any parts, accessories, replacements,
additions and accessions, tangible or intangible, now and hereafter relating thereto or affixed thereon (collectively the “Equipment”) THIS LEASE AGREEMENT CANNOT BE CANCELLED OR
TERMINATED BY LESSEE.

2. Term: This Lease Agreement is for an original term (the “Term”) commencing on the Lease Commencement Date set out in the Acceptance/Agreement and Authorization Certificate ending at
the expiry of the number of complete calendar months indicated under the heading “Term” in the Lease Details.

3. Rentals: Lessee shall, without notice from or request by Lessor, pay to Lessor during the Term of this Lease Agreement the total number of rental payments set forth in the Lease Details. Such
rental payment shall be payable in advance to Lessor at the address indicated above (or other address notified by Lessor to Lessee) as follows: Initial rental payment upon Lessee’s execution hereof
and, commencing after the calendar period covered by such Initial rental payment subsequent rental payments throughout the Term on the first day of each rental period as indicated in the Lease
Details. RENTAL PAYMENTS AND ANY OTHER AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ARE PAYABLE WITHOUT SET-OFF, COMPENSATION OR ABATEMENT AND IN NO EVENT SHALL THE
FIRST RENTAL PAYMENT BE REFUNDED TO LESSEE.

4. Interest on Overdue Payments: Lessee shall without notice pay interest at the rate of Thirty percent (30%) per annum calculated and compounded monthly and not in advance, on: (A) any past
due rental payments (B) any amounts which bear interest according to this Lease and (C) any other amounts due to Lessor hereunder which are not paid on their due dates; in each case from the
date any such amount becomes due or interest bearing, before and after maturity, default and judgment, until such arrears or other amounts are paid in full.

5. Installation, Maintenance and Repair: Lessee shall, at its expense, be responsible for: (A) the delivery, installation, de-installation and redelivery of the Equipment and (B) the maintenance,
upkeep, care, servicing and repair (including necessary replacements of parts) (“Maintenance”) of the Equipment; in both cases by a party acceptable to Lessor. Lessee shall at its expense keep the
Equipment in good repair, condition and working aorder. Lessee shall not without the prior written consent of Lessor make any alterations, additions or improvements to the Equipment. All such
alterations, additions or improvements shall be at Lessee’s expense and shall belong to, and become property of, Lessor immediately upon being made.

6. Use: Lessee shall use the Equipment in a careful and prudent manner and not for any unlawful purpose and shall at Lessee’s expense comply with and conform to the manufacturer’s
specifications and all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations (including laws, ordinances and regulations concerning environmental matters) relating to the possession, use or Maintenance of
the Equipment. Lessee shall only use the Equipment in connection with its business or in the carrying on of an enterprise and only for commercial, industrial, professional or handicraft purposes
and shall not use the Equipment for any personal, family, household or farming purposes. The Lessee shall ensure that the Equipment is operated in a careful and proper manner by competent
operators only.

7. Title and Identification: The Equipment is and shall at all times be and remain the sole personal and moveable property of Lessor, shall not be affixed or attached to or otherwise become a fixture
or accession to any lands, buildings or chattels and Lessee shall have no right, title or interest in or to the Equipment except as expressly set forth herein. Lessee shall not allow the Equipment to
become subject to any claim, privilege, lien, charge, encumbrance, levy, security interest, mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, seizure, trust, attachment, judicial process, ownership interest, license,
sublease or other right in favour of any person (in any such case an “Encumbrance”) unless such Encumbrance is caused by Lessor. At Lessor’s request, Lessee shall at Lessee’s expense affix and
maintain on the Equipment, in a manner and in places satisfactory to Lessor, labels, plates, GPS tracking units, or other marks supplied by Lessor to identify the Equipment as the property of Lessor.
8. Location and Inspection: Lessee shall maintain the Equipment at the Equipment Location specified in the Lease Details and shall not move the Equipment from such location. Lessor shall have the
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right to inspect the Equipment and Lessee’s Maintenance, insurance and tax records at any time.
9. Insurance: Lessee shall, until this Lease Agreement is terminated and Lessee’s obligations hereunder are discharged in full (including the return of the Equipment), bear the entire risk of loss,
damage, destruction, theft, seizure or governmental taking of the Equipment or any part thereof (any such case being a “Loss”), regardless of whether it is caused by any default or neglect of
Lessee. No Loss shall relieve Lessee of its obligations hereunder. Lessee shall forthwith notify the Lessor of any loss or damage to the Equipment.
Lessee shall, at its own expense, place and maintain with insurers acceptable to Lessor: (a) Comprehensive all risks insurance on the Equipment in an amount at least equal to its full replacement
value, such insurance to include: (i) Lessor as additional insured, (ii) a loss payable clause in favour of Lessor as first payee, and (iii) a waiver of subrogation in favour of Lessor; and (b)General public
liability and property damage insurance with limits of liability acceptable to us, and such insurance shall: (i) extend to all liabilities of Lessee arising out of its use or possession of Equipment, (i)
include Lessor as additional insured, and (iii) include a cross-liability provision which insures each person insured thereunder in the same manner and to the same extent as if a separate policy had
been issued to each.
All insurance policies shall contain endorsements providing that: (A) thirty days written notice shall be given to Lessor before a policy lapses or is materially altered or cancelled; (B) coverage shall
be primary and not contributory; (C) Lessor’s interest as additional insured shall not be invalidated or otherwise affected by any act or omission, deliberate, negligent or otherwise, of Lessee or its
agents, servants or employees (such as a “standard mortgagee clause”); (D) Lessor shall not be responsible for payment of any premium; and (E) Lessor may elect to have all proceeds of loss
payable only to itself. Lessee shall, on request, supply Lessor with certified copies of all insurance policies or other evidence satisfactory to Lessor of satisfaction of these insurance covenants and
evidence of renewal of the expiring policy must be delivered to the Lessor at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date. In the event of damage amounting to actual or constructive total loss
of the Equipment, Lessor shall be entitled to retain from all insurance proceeds an amount equal to the total amount payable to Lessor by Lessee hereunder as Liquidated Damages
10. Failure to Insure: If Lessee fails to provide satisfactory evidence of insurance, then, without prejudice to Lessor’s other rights and remedies, Lessor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to
procure insurance covering Lessor’s interest (but not Lessee’s interest) in the Equipment, in such form and amount and with such insurers (including an insurer affiliated with Lessor) as Lessor shall
determine from time to time, all at Lessee’s expense. Such expense (the “Insurance Expense”) shall include the full cost of acquiring such insurance (not reduced by any credit or refund or any
other amount due or paid to Lessor with respect to Lessor’s insurance) and any charges or fees for services associated with the placement, maintenance or service of such insurance, plus interest
accruing on such expense at the interest rate provided herein for overdue amounts until such expense is reimbursed by Lessee to Lessor. Lessee shall pay the Insurance Expense to Lessor in equal
instalments at the same time and in the same manner as the remaining rental payments. Lessee shall cooperate with Lessor’s insurance agent in connection with the placement of such insurance
and the processing of any claims. Nothing herein shall be deemed to obligate or entitle Lessor to act as an insurer hereunder or to arrange any insurance for the benefit of Lessee. Nothing herein
shall require Lessor to secure, maintain in farce or renew any insurance, in any amounts or upon any specific terms and conditions. Lessor reserves the right to terminate any insurance coverage
which Lessor may arrange, or allow same to lapse, without incurring any liability to Lessee.
11. Taxes: Lessee shall pay all Taxes and file all returns in respect of Taxes immediately upon such Taxes or returns becoming due. “Taxes” includes all taxes, imposts, levies, fees, duties and charges
now or hereafter imposed by any federal, provincial, municipal or other taxation authority on Lessee, the Equipment or the purchase, sale, ownership, delivery, possession, use, Maintenance,
operation or lease of the Equipment or on Lessor in respect of any of the foregoing (including sales excise, use, property, business, transfer, goods and services and value added taxes and including
penalties or interest based on late payment of taxes), but excluding taxes on or measured by Lessor’s overall net income. Lessor shall be entitled to claim any applicable capital cost allowance,
investment tax credit or similar benefit under applicable tax legislation from time to time pertaining to the Equipment and/or the Lease and Lessee shall not make any such claim in respect thereof.
12. Surrender: At the end of the Term or any renewal thereof, if Lessee has not purchased the Equipment pursuant to a Section 19 Purchase Option, Lessee, at Lessee’s expense and risk, shall
surrender control of the Equipment to Lessor and shall; (A) after giving Lessor thirty days prior written notice, return the Equipment to Lessor at Lessor’s nearest office or other place specified by
Lessor or (B) if requested by Lessor, dispose of the Equipment as Lessor reasonably directs, including disposition in a manner which will avoid any dangerous use thereof or damage or injury to any
person or property therefrom.
13. Renewal: If Lessee fails to surrender the Equipment at the end of the Term or any renewal thereof, or to purchase the same pursuant to a Section 19 Purchase Option, Lessee shall be deemed
to have requested a renewal of this Lease Agreement for a period of three (3) calendar months and Lessor may, in its sole discretion; (A) demand the surrender of the Equipment in compliance
with Section 12 and exercise its rights and remedies for such non-compliance or (B) accept Lessee’s request to renew this Lease Agreement for a three (3) month period commencing on the end of
the Term or the last renewal thereof. Such acceptance may be evidenced in writing signed by Lessor or by Lessor continuing to invoice Lessee, withdrawing rental payments pursuant to a pre-
authorized debit agreement plan or otherwise accepting rental payments in respect of such renewal period. Lessee shall continue to have all of it’s obligations under this Lease Agreement during
any such renewal period, including the obligation to pay Lessor rental payments, as it had during the Term and all provisions of this Lease Agreement shall apply to any such renewal term.
14. Entry: If Lessee fails to surrender the Equipment to Lessor as required under this Lease, Lessor may, without notice to Lessee or resort to legal process, but subject to any applicable law, enter
any premises where the Equipment is located and take possession of and remove or disable such Equipment.
15. Defaults: Each of the following is a default by Lessee (a “Default”) (a) Lessee fails to make any rental payment or pay any other amounts due under this Lease Agreement within 3 days after the
same is due and payable; or (b) Lessee fails to perform, observe or comply with any other obligation, term or condition on its part to be performed, observed or complied with hereunder; or (c) Any
event of default occurs under any other lease or contract between Lessor and Lessee or under any material agreement between Lessee and any other person; or (d) Any representation or warranty
made by Lessee to Lessor in or in connection with this Lease Agreement is incorrect; or (e) The Equipment or any part thereof is subjected to an Encumbrance not caused by Lessor, Lessee sells or
attempts to sell or grant an Encumbrance on any part of the Equipment or the value of Lessor’s interest in the Equipment is materially impaired due to Loss; or (f) Lessee makes any assignment for
the benefit of its creditors, becomes insolvent, commits any act of bankruptcy, takes any action to wind-up or dissolve, ceases or threatens to cease to do business as a going concern, is subject to a
change in control in fact or in law or seeks any arrangement or composition with its creditors; or (g) Any proceeding in bankruptcy, receivership, winding-up, dissolution, liquidation or insolvency is
commenced by or against Lessee or its property; or (h) Lessor in good faith believes and has commercially reasonable grounds to believe that the prospect of payment or performance by Lessee
under this Lease Agreement is or is about to be impaired or the Equipment is or is about to be placed in jeopardy; or (i) Any guarantor of Lessee’s obligations hereunder disputes its obligation
under its guarantee or seeks to determine its obligations thereunder or to terminate its guarantee of Lessee’s future obligations or becomes subject to any of the events in clauses (b), (c), (d), (f) or
(g) of this Section.
16. Effect of Default; Damages: A loss to Lessor upon a Default is dependent in part upon the cost of the Equipment to Lessor, the Term and the minimum return expected by Lessor from the sale
or re-lease of the Equipment at the end of the Term. Upon any Default and in addition to Lessor’s other rights and remedies under this Lease Agreement and otherwise available at law or in equity:
(a) Lessee shall pay forthwith (without notice) to Lessor as a genuine pre-estimate of liquidated damages, and not as a penalty (and in addition to all other amounts owing under this Lease
Agreement), an amount (the “Liquidated Damages”) equal to the aggregate of: (i) Unpaid rental payments and other amounts payable hereunder unpaid as of the date of the Default, and (ii) the
remaining rental payments payable from the date of Default to the end of the Term or, if applicable, any renewal thereof, and (iii) amounts otherwise payable under the Lease Agreement to the
end of the Term, or, if applicable, any renewal thereof, and (iv) the purchase price for the Equipment pursuant to any end of Term fair market value or fixed price purchase option, and (v) any
Enforcement Costs incurred by Lessor, and (vi) interest thereon from the date of Default until payment in full; to the extent that the Liquidated Damages are deemed to include any Taxes which
Lessor is required to remit to any taxation authority the Liquidated Damages shall be increased by the amount necessary to ensure that the net amount of the Liquidated Damages retained by
Lessor after remitting all applicable Taxes will be equal to the amount calculated above; (b) upon Lessor’'s demand, Lessee at Lessee’s expense shall forthwith surrender control of the Equipment to
Lessor pursuant to Section 12 as though the Term had expired; (c) Lessor may, immediately and without notice to Lessee or resort to legal process take possession of and remove or disable the
Equipment pursuant to Section 14 as though Lessee had failed to surrender such Equipment when required to do so; (d) The rights of Lessee hereunder in respect of the Equipment, including the
right to use and possess the Equipment, shall cease and terminate absolutely without limiting Lessee’s liability or obligations hereunder; and (e) Lessor may by notice in writing terminate this Lease
Agreement or any other agreement Lessor may have with Lessee; (f) All rights and remedies of Lessor, either under this Lease Agreement or at law or in equity or otherwise afforded to Lessor, are
cumulative and not alternative. Lessor’s costs and expenses incurred as a result of a Default (“Enforcement Costs”) (including all costs and expenses in respect of collection, legal fees, repossession,
repair of Equipment, enforcement of Lessor’s rights or remedies, sale or re-lease costs or other realization costs) shall be paid by Lessee to Lessor forthwith upon demand.
17. Sale on Default: Lessor may after a Default sell, re-lease or otherwise dispose of Equipment at public or private sale with or without notice to Lessee and upon such terms and in such manner as
Lessor may determine. Lessee shall thereafter continue to be liable to Lessor for the amount of any deficiency between the proceeds to Lessor from such disposition and the Liquidated Damages. If
at any time after a Default and prior to Lessor obtaining possession of the Equipment, Lessee pays to Lessor the Liquidated Damages and all applicable Taxes, title to the Equipment shall vest in
Lessee on an “as is, where is” basis without any condition, representation or warranty of Lessor whatsoever.
18. Effect of Waiver: No delay in exercising, or failure to exercise, any right or remedy accruing to Lessor under this Lease Agreement will impair or waive such right or remedy, nor will a waiver of
any single Default be deemed a waiver of any other prior, subsequent or concurrent Default. Any waiver, permit, consent or approval on the part of Lessor in respect of this Lease Agreement must
be in writing and shall have effect only to the extent specifically set forth in such writing.
19. Purchase Option: In this Section “Fair Market Value” means the delivered and installed, all-inclusive, purchase price for equipment in good repair in a sale between an arms length purchaser
buying for its own use and a seller dealing in such equipment in the ordinary course of its business, as such purchase price is determined by the Lessor acting reasonably. Provided no Default exists,
any Purchase Option set forth in the Lease Agreement Details may be exercised by the Lessee; (i) giving Lessor written notice sixty (60) days prior to the Option Date of its election to exercise such
option; and (ii) paying Lessor the Option Price, plus Taxes, at least ten (10) days before the Option Date. After the giving of such notice and the making of such payment, provided no Default exists
on the Option Date, Lessee shall acquire Lessor’s interest in the Equipment on the Option Date on an “as is, where is” basis without any condition, representation or warranty by Lessor of any kind
whatsoever except that the Lessee acquires such interest from Lessor free of Encumbrances caused by Lessor.
20. Fees: Lessor shall be entitled to charge Lessee such fees and other charges as it may establish from time to time for the administration of and ancillary matters to this Lease Agreement.
21. Net Lease: ALL COSTS AND EXPENSES RELATING TO THE EQUIPMENT OR ITS USE, MAINTENANCE OR POSSESSION SHALL BE BORNE BY LESSEE, INCLUDING ALL TAXES AND ALL FEES, CHARGES,
CLAIMS AND FINES INCURRED OR ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH THE REGISTRATION, LICENSING OR OPERATION OF THE EQUIPMENT. The rental payments and other amounts payable hereunder
shall be absolutely net to Lessor, free of all expenses or outgoings of any kind or nature. If Lessee fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder, Lessor may do so on Lessee’s behalf and shall be
entitled to immediate reimbursement from Lessee; without prejudice to any other Lessor’s rights or remedies, and Lessee appoints Lessor its lawful attorney for such purposes. No event of force
majeure, whatever that may be, relieves the Lessee from its obligations pursuant to this Lease Agreement.
22. Subleasing Etc.: Lessee shall not sublet or part with possession or control of the Equipment or permit its use by any person other than Lessee or employees of Lessee who are qualified and
competent to operate same. Neither this Lease Agreement nor Lessee’s rights hereunder shall be assigned by Lessee except with Lessor’s prior written consent and no assignment shall release
Lessee from its obligations hereunder.

C.L.
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23. Representations: Lessee represents, warrants and covenants throughout the Term that; (A) if Lessee is a body corporate, it is and will continue to be validly incorporated (or otherwise
established), organized and existing and in good standing; (B) it has all necessary power and authority to execute, deliver and perform this Lease Agreement, each such action (i) having been duly
authorized by all necessary action of Lessee, (ii) not being in conflict with any applicable law, the constating documents, resolutions or by-laws of Lessee or any indenture, instrument, agreement or
undertaking to which it is a party or by which it or any of its assets are or may become bound, and (iii) not resulting in the creation of any Encumbrance on the Equipment; (C) this Lease Agreement
is and will continue to be the legal, valid and binding obligation of Lessee enforceable against it and effective against its creditors in accordance with its terms; (D) there are no pending or
threatened actions or proceedings before any court, administrative agency or other tribunal that could have a material adverse effect on Lessee; (E) financial statements and other related
information furnished by Lessee to Lessor are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and fairly present Lessee’s financial position on their respective dates; and (F)
to evidence the foregoing Lessee shall provide legal opinions, resolutions and such other documents as Lessor may reasonably request.

24. Indemnity: Lessee hereby indemnifies Lessor and agrees to save Lessor harmless from and against all loss, costs, liabilities, claims, legal proceedings and expenses (including legal fees on a
solicitor and his own client basis and costs) whatsoever arising in connection with this Lease Agreement, the Purchase Documents, any License, the Equipment, the manufacture, selection,
purchase, ownership, delivery, possession, use, Maintenance, operation, Loss or return of the equipment, Taxes, the recovery of claims under any insurance policy relating to the Equipment, any
use or operation of Equipment which infringes any patent or other industrial or intellectual property right of any person, any Default by Lessee, the exercise by Lessor of any rights or remedies
hereunder or any entry or taking of possession, removal or disabling of Equipment pursuant to Section 14.

25. Lessee’s Waiver: TO THE EXTENT NOT PROHIBITED BY LAW OR STATUTE, LESSEE HEREBY WAIVES THE BENEFIT OF ALL PROVISIONS OF ALL APPLICABLE CONDITIONAL SALES, REGULATORY,
CREDIT AND OTHER STATUTES AND ALL REGULATIONS MADE THEREUNDER IN ANY APPLICABLE JURISDICTION WHICH WOULD IN ANY MANNER AFFECT, RESTRICT OR LIMIT THE RIGHTS AND
REMEDIES OF LESSOR HEREUNDER., including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all of Lessee’s rights, benefits and protections given or afforded by the provisions of Law of Property
Act (Alberta), The Sale of Goods Act (British Columbia), The Sale of Goods Act (Ontario), The Limitation of Civil Rights Act of Saskatchewan and The Saskatchewan Farm Security Act, as amended.
Lessee also waives and assigns to Lessor the right of any statutory exemption from execution or otherwise and further waives any right to demand security for cost in the event of litigation.

26. Credit Investigation: Subject to applicable legislation, Lessee hereby consents to Lessor conducting a credit investigation of Lessee and to Lessor making inquires with financial institutions or
other persons in a business relationship with Lessee in connection therewith; Lessee hereby authorizes and directs such persons to answer Lessor’s inquiries. Lessee agrees to furnish to Lessor: (A)
a copy of its interim financial statements and other related information, as Lessor may request from time to time; and (B) its annual financial statements, audited if applicable, within ninety days of
the end of each financial year.

27. Lessor Warranties: Lessor warrants that on the date this Lease Agreement commences it is the owner of the Equipment, free and clear of any Encumbrance caused by Lessor, save for Lessee’s
rights hereunder. Except as otherwise explicitly set forth herein, but without affecting Lessor’s warranties set forth in any other agreement (all of which Lessee acknowledges do not affect or form
part of this Lease Agreement), Lessor makes no warranty or representation whatsoever as to the durability, quality or condition of the Equipment or its suitability for Lessee’s purposes or as to any
other matter whatsoever (including status of this Lease Agreement for tax or accounting classification purposes). No representation to Lessee as to the Equipment or any other matter by the
Vendor or any supplier or manufacturer of the Equipment shall in any way affect Lessee’s obligations under this Lease Agreement. At the request and expense of Lessee and while there is no
Default, Lessor will (A) assign to Lessee for the Term any and all warranties, guarantees, service contracts, Licenses and representations given to Lessor by the Vendor or a manufacturer or supplier
of the Equipment with respect to the Equipment ("Equipment Rights”) which are assignable at law; and (B) assist Lessee in receiving the benefit of such Equipment Rights. If Lessor obtains
possession or control of the Equipment or if there is a Default, Lessee shall be deemed to have immediately reassigned such Equipment Rights to Lessor without any further action. If Equipment is
located in the Province of Quebec, Lessor hereby conveys to Lessee any warranty which the Vendor or a manufacturer or supplier of such Equipment gave to Lessor. LESSOR SHALL NOT BE LIABLE
FOR ANY LOSS, DAMAGE OR EXPENSE OF ANY KIND OR NATURE, WHETHER DIRECT, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL, CAUSED BY THE EQUIPMENT OR THE USE, MAINTENANCE OR POSSESSION
THEREOF, BY THE INADEQUACY OF THE EQUIPMENT RIGHTS OR BY ANY INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE OR LOSS OF USE OF THE EQUIPMENT OR FOR ANY LOSS OF BUSINESS OR DAMAGE
WHATSOEVER AND HOWSOEVER CAUSED.

28. Name Change, etc.: Lessee shall promptly notify Lessor in writing of: (A) any change in Lessee’s name: (B) any transfer, authorized or unauthorized, by Lessee of any interest in or benefit from
the Equipment; (C) any change, authorized or unauthorized, by Lessee in the location of any Equipment; and (D) any change in the location of Lessee’s chief executive office specified above.

29. Assignment: This Lease Agreement and all rights, remedies and benefits of Lessor hereunder may be assigned by Lessor without notice to or the consent of Lessee and Lessee hereby accepts
such assignments and waives signification of the act of assignment and the delivery of a copy of any assignment document. Upon such assignment: (A) the assignee (the “Assignee”) shall be entitled
to enforce the rights and remedies and to receive all benefits which would otherwise accrue to the original Lessor under this Lease Agreement; (B) the Assignee shall be deemed to be Lessor for the
purpose of all such rights, remedies and benefits; (C) the Assignee shall have no obligation to Lessee to perform any of the obligations of the original Lessor hereunder or otherwise in respect of the
Equipment, all of which are retained by the original Lessor; and (D) Lessee’s rights hereunder as against the original Lessor shall be unaffected except as herein specifically provided. Lessee agrees
not to assert against the Assignee any claim by way of abatement, defense, set-off, compensation, counterclaim or the like which Lessee may have against the original Lessor. The Lessee shall co-
operate with the Lessor and any Assignee to facilitate any assignment. Upon notice of an assignment Lessee shall unconditionally pay to such Assignee all rental payments and other amounts due
hereunder and shall not assert any defense against such Assignee in any action for rental payments or other amounts due and payable hereunder, except the defence of payment to the Assignee.
30. Security Interests: Ta secure Lessee’s performance of its obligations hereunder Lessee grants Lessor a continuing security interest in any interest Lessee has in the Equipment, in all proceeds
thereof (including proceeds of insurance) and in any rental payments receivable on any sublease permitted by Lessor; Lessee agrees that Lessor has all rights of a secured party under any applicable
personal property security legislation and at law and in equity. To the extent this Lease Agreement creates a security interest, such security interest is a purchase money security interest (as the
terms “security interest” and “purchase money security interest” are used in the Personal Property Security Act (Alberta) and shall be interpreted with similar effect under analogous legislation in
force in any other relevant jurisdiction. In this Lease Agreement the term “security interest” includes a movable hypothec without delivery.

31. Charge on Land: To further secure Lessee’s performance of its obligations hereunder Lessee grants Lessor a charge in any land which Lessee now owns or may in the future own during any
time when any amount remains outstanding under this Lease Agreement, and Lessee authorizes Lessor to register any, caveat, lien or other encumbrance against such land in Lessor’s favour in
order to protect Lessor’s interest in said lands.

32. Information: Lessee agrees that Lessor may provide copies of this Lease Agreement and/or information concerning Lessee and its obligations hereunder to any person.

33. Entire Agreement: This Lease Agreement (including (A) all details set forth above in the Lessee Information, Lease Details and Invoice Option and in these Terms & Conditions and (B) any
schedule, addendum or amendment to this Lease Agreement which is in writing, references this Lease Agreement and is signed by Lessee and Lessor at any time) constitutes the entire agreement
between Lessor and Lessee with respect to its subject matter.

34. Applicable Law: This Lease Agreement shall be construed according to the laws of the Province of Alberta. If this Lease Agreement is signed in the province of Québec, it shall be deemed a
leasing contract as per sections 1842 and following of the Civil Code of Québec, provided however during any renewal pursuant to Section 13 above, this Lease Agreement shall be deemed to
constitute a lease pursuant to section 1852 and following of the Civil Code of Québec.

35. Enurement: Subject to the terms hereof, this Lease Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, permitted assigns and legal representatives.

36. Interpretation: Whenever the context of this Lease Agreement so requires, the singular shall include the plural and vice versa and words importing the masculine gender shall include the
feminine and neuter genders. Time is of the essence of this Lease Agreement and each of its provisions. Headings are for convenience of reference only and do not affect the interpretation. Terms
used in the Lessee Information or Lease Agreement Details have, when used in these Terms & Conditions, unless the context otherwise requires, the meaning ascribed thereto by such use. The
word “including” means “including without limitation”

37. Notices: Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder must be in writing and will conclusively be deemed to have been received by its recipient on the business day it is delivered or
sent by electronic or facsimile transmission to a party at the address indicated on the first page hereof (or at such other address as such party specifies to the other party in writing) or, if sent by
registered mail, provided there is no interruption in postal services, on the fifth business day after the day of mailing, addressed to such party at such address.

38. Severability: Any provision of this Lease Agreement prohibited by or unlawful or unenforceable under any applicable law shall, at the sole option of Lessor, be ineffective without invalidating the
remaining provisions of this Lease Agreement: provided, however, that to the extent that the provisions of any such applicable law can be waived, they are hereby waived by Lessee.

39. Further Assurances: Lessee agrees to do all things and execute or obtain all documents as may be required by Lessor in order to give effect to or better evidence this Lease Agreement including
the execution of financing statements or other documents to effect security registrations to protect Lessor’s interests, any acknowledgements required by any Assignee and any waivers or
subordinations from Lessee’s landlords or creditors.

40. Language: The parties hereby acknowledge that they have required this Lease Agreement, and all other agreements and notices required or permitted to be entered into or given pursuant
hereto, to be drawn up in the English language only. Les parties reconnaissent avoir demandé que le présent contrat ainsi que toute autre entente ou avis requis ou permis a étre conclu ou donné
en vertu des dispositions du présent contrat, soient rédigés en langue anglaise seulement.

41. Survival: Notwithstanding any other sections hereof, all obligations of Lessee under sections 4,5,7,9,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,20,21,23,24,25,27,29,30 and 31 hereof and the rights and remedies of
Lessor hereunder shall survive the termination of this Lease Agreement and the receipt of all rental payments and other amounts payable by Lessee hereunder.

42. Joint and Several Liability: If more than one person executed this Lease Agreement, their obligations hereunder shall be joint and several and, in the Province of Quebec, solidary without benefit
of division or discussion.

43. Receipt of Copy, etc.: Lessee acknowledges receipt of a true copy of this Lease Agreement and waives, to the extent permitted by applicable law, all rights to receive copies of financing
statements, financing change statements, verification statements or copies of other notices or filings made by Lessor at any time in connection with this Lease Agreement, any schedule thereto,
any amendment thereof or any Transaction Schedule.

44. Electronic Counterpart Execution: This Lease Agreement and any schedules may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original instrument and when
all parties have executed a counterpart hereof or thereof, as the case may be, all such counterparts together shall constitute but one and the same agreement, with execution and delivery of
counterparts by telecopier or other electronic format (including, without limitation PDF) By any party hereto being binding upon all parties hereto.

C.L.
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Schedule ‘A’
Equipment Details

This Schedule ‘A’ — Equipment Details is attached to and forms an integral part of Lease Agreement Number 105387-23P dated May
23, 2024 made between CLEO Energy Corp. as Lessee and Arundel Capital Corporation as Lessor.

Equipment Details

Description

All right, title and interest in the debtor to the lands located at the below descriped legal land locations, the wells and equipment
thereon and any other tangible and intangible property related thereto.

Proceeds: any and all proceeds of amounts arising from or payable in connection with any of the collateral described here in.

06-10-037-07W4
06-11-037-07W4
06-11-039-10W4
06-12-039-08W4
06-12-042-11W4
06-12-044-08W4
06-18-044-07W4
06-19-044-07W4
06-19-044-13W4
06-20-044-07W4
06-20-045-08W4
06-21-042-08W4
06-22-040-08W4
06-22-042-07W4
06-25-046-08W4
06-26-042-09W4
06-28-042-09W4
06-29-042-07W4
06-29-044-07W4
06-30-042-07W4
06-30-042-08W4
06-30-042-10W4
06-30-045-07W4
06-33-042-09W4
06-33-044-07W4
06-33-046-08W4
06-35-046-08W4
07-04-042-12W4

07-08-045-07W4
07-10-037-07W4
07-10-044-08W4
07-10-045-08W4
07-10-046-09W4
07-11-037-07W4
07-11-039-08W4
07-13-044-08W4
07-16-044-07W4
07-19-043-09W4
07-20-045-07W4
07-21-043-08W4
07-22-040-08W4
07-24-044-08W4
07-24-044-10W4
07-25-044-08W4
07-26-044-07W4
07-26-044-08W4
07-27-040-08W4
07-27-040-08W4
07-27-044-07W4
07-28-045-08W4
07-29-045-08W4
07-29-046-08W4
07-31-042-08W4
07-32-042-10W4
07-32-045-08W4
07-33-044-07W4

07-36-041-10W4
08-02-042-11W4
08-03-037-07W4
08-04-042-12W4
08-04-044-08W4
08-11-039-08W4
08-11-039-08W4
08-12-039-08W4
08-13-044-08W4
08-14-044-07W4
08-16-035-06W4
08-16-035-06W4
08-16-039-10W4
08-17-045-07W4
08-18-042-07W4
08-19-044-07W4
08-20-042-08W4
08-22-040-08W4
08-22-040-08W4
08-22-044-07W4
08-23-044-08W4
08-25-042-09W4
08-29-041-10W4
08-29-044-08W4
08-30-045-07W4
08-31-044-07W4
08-34-044-07W4
09-02-045-08W4

09-03-044-06W4
09-04-042-12W4
09-10-037-07W4
09-10-037-07W4
09-10-039-10W4
09-10-041-10W4
09-11-039-08W4
09-12-039-08W4
09-12-039-10W4
09-13-044-08W4
09-16-035-06W4
09-16-044-08W4
09-20-035-06W4
09-23-043-07W4
09-28-044-08W4
09-28-044-08W4
09-31-042-08W4
09-32-044-07W4
09-36-045-08W4
10-02-043-09W4
10-02-045-07W4
10-08-042-07W4
10-08-044-07W4
10-09-045-07W4
10-10-042-09W4
10-10-045-07W4
10-11-039-10W4
10-11-041-11W4

10-11-045-08W4
10-12-039-08W4
10-12-039-10W4
10-12-042-09W4
10-12-046-09W4
10-16-045-07W4
10-18-042-08W4
10-18-044-07W4
10-20-045-08W4
10-27-035-06W4
10-27-035-06W4
10-27-044-08 W4
10-27-046-08 W4
10-28-041-10W4
10-30-044-07W4
10-31-046-08W4
10-35-041-10W4
10-36-044-07W4
11-01-045-07W4
11-03-045-07W4
11-04-042-12W4
11-04-044-07W4
11-05-043-06W4
11-05-045-07W4
11-06-044-06 W4
11-10-039-10W4
11-10-045-07W4
11-11-039-10W4

Date: May 23, 2024

E-SIGNED by Christopher Lewis
x 0N 2024-05-28 18:51:09 GMT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis

Title: Chairman

Suite 201, 3007 14th Street SW, Calgary, AB, T2T 3V6 Ph: 403.287.9597 Fx: 403.287.9847




Insured Lessee: CLEO Energy Corp.

Equipment covered by this Insurance Undertaking:

This undertaking forms part of Lease # 105387-23P.

Description

Serial

See attached schedule ‘A’ attached to and forming part of this lease agreement.

During the term of the lease contract commencing Thursday, May 23, 2024 with a term of 26 months and any extension thereof, whereby I/we, the
Lessee(s) of the above equipment, owned by Arundel Capital Corporation (hereinafter called the Lessor), agree to cause Arundel Capital Corporation to
be named as Additional Insured and First Loss Payee in the applicable policies described below.
If the above equipment is subjected to a Standard Automobile Policy (Owner’s Form), |/we the Lessee(s) agree to effect and maintain such policy per the
terms above including a S.E.F. No. 5a / O.E.F. No. 5 / F.A.Q. No. 5a — Permission to Rent or Lease Endorsement (specified Lessee including modified
application — separate policy) in the name of the Lessor with respect to the above described equipment for the following perils, limits and amounts.

INSURED AGREEMENTS PERILS LIMITS AND AMOUNTS
$2,000,000
(EXCLUSIVE OF COST AND POST JUDGEMENT INTEREST) FOR LOSS OR
DAMAGE RESULTING FROM BODILY INJURY TO OR THE DEATH OF ONE OR
SECTION A #EGQF& B?ElTL:chY)FngyBSEDRYs%Ugg MORE PERSONS. AND FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY REGARDLESS
THIRD PARTY DAMAGE TO THE PROPERTY OF THE NUMBER OF CLAIMS ARISING FROM ANY ONE ACCIDENT
LIABILITY $5,000,000 Environmental liability (if applicable)
SUB SEC 5
: AS STATED IN SECTION B OF THE POLICY OR EACH PERSON
PAYMENT FOR DEATH
SECTION B oR
BODILY INJURY AS STATED IN SECTION B OF THE POLICY
ACCIDENT 1 OR
BENEFITS PRINCIPLE MAX. WEEKLY
SUM S BENEFITS
2. UNINSURED MOTORIST AS STATED IN SECTION B OF THE POLICY
SUB. SEC.
SECTION C 1 ALL PERILS $5000
AMOUNT DEDUCTIBLE ON EACH SEPARATE CLAIM EXCEPT
LOSS OF OR DAMAGE TO 2. COLLISION OR UPSET $5000 FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE BY FIRE OR LIGHTENING OR THEFT OF
OWNED AUTOMOBILES
COMPREFENGIVE THE ENTIRE AUTOMOBILE.
3. (EXCLUDING COLLISION OR UPSET) | *°000
COMPREHENSIVE
4. (EXCLUDING COLLISION OR UpSET) | »2000

ENDORSEMENTS

be liable to pay.

contract.

|/we agree to deliver or cause to be delivered to the Lessor, within the 30-day period immediately following the date of the delivery of the above stated Equipment to me/us,
such insurance policy and any endorsements and certificates applicable thereto.
I/we agree to deliver or cause to be delivered to the Lessor, within the 15-day period immediately following the expiry or termination date of such policy, written evidence of the

renewal or replacement of such policy.
|/we agree and acknowledge that, should I/we fail to comply with this Lessee’s Insurance Undertaking, |/we shall reimburse the Lessor for all amounts they would not otherwise

I/we further agree and acknowledge that, should I/we fail to comply with this Lessee’s Insurance Undertaking, I/we will be in default per the terms and conditions of the Lease

Date: May 23, 2024

E-SIGNED by Christopher Lewis
¥ on 2024-05-28 18:51:12 GMT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis

Title: Chairman




1.

e

d.

This Cross Collateral Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”) by and between ARUNDEL CAPITAL

CORPORATION with offices at Ste 201, 3007 14" Street SW, Calgary, AB, T2T 3V6 (collectively known as the “Secured

Party”) and CLEO Energy Corp. located at 200 - 117 8th Ave SW, Calgary, Alberta, T2P 1B4 (“Debtor”).

Statement of Purpose

The parties intend by this Agreement to establish herein, without the need for further documentation, a security

interest in all of the personal property which the Debtor has acquired or shall hereinafter acquire and in which Secured

Party has or shall hereinafter have a security interest. All of said property shall secure all liabilities, obligations and

indebtedness of Debtor to Secured Party of every kind and description now existing or hereinafter arising, whether

arising under this Agreement or otherwise. Liability includes obligations to perform acts or refrain from taking action, as

well as obligations to pay money. The security interest created by this Agreement is in addition to and not in lieu of any

other security interest which has been or which may hereafter be granted by Debtor to Secured Party.

Debtor, in order to induce Secured Party to finance Debtor’s purchase of property by means of conditional sales

contracts, leases with or without options to purchase, promissory notes and security agreements or other similar lien

creating instruments or contracts (“Contract”), hereby agrees to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

AGREEMENT

Grant of Security Interest — Debtor hereby grants to Secured Party a security interest in such of Debtor’s presently
existing and hereafter acquired property in which Secured Party has or shall hereafter have a security interest plus all
proceeds of the Foregoing (collectively, the “Collateral”) to secure the payment and performance of all Debtor’s liabilities
and obligations to Secured Party of every kind and character, whether joint or several, direct or indirect, absolute or
contingent, due or to become due, and whether under presently existing or hereinafter created Contracts (collectively,
the “Liabilities”).

Covenants of Debtor — Debtor covenants and agrees to execute and deliver to Secured Party any financing statements or
documents or instruments required to be filed in connection with the security interest hereby created relating to the
Collateral and to pay all costs in connection therewith. Debtor hereby appoints Secured Party as Debtor’s attorney in-
fact to do, at Secured Party’s option and Debtor’s expense, all acts and things which Secured Party may deem necessary
to perfect and continue the perfection of the security interests hereby created.

Default and Remedies — If Debtor fails to pay or perform any of its Liabilities when due or fails in the performance of any
other provision of this Agreement or any Contract, or if Debtor becomes insolvent or makes an assignment for the
benefit of creditors or if a proceeding in reorganization, bankruptcy, or for a receivership is commenced by or against
Debtor, Debtor shall be in default hereunder and under the Contracts and the Secured Party may, without notice or
demand, accelerate and declare all Liabilities and any other amounts due hereunder payable immediately and Secured
Party may exercise and shall have any and all rights and remedies accorded it under any contract and by the applicable
Personal Property Security Act as in effect from time to time under applicable provincial law. All rights granted to
Secured Party hereunder shall be cumulative and not alternative, shall be in addition to and shall in no manner impair or
affect Secured Party’s right or remedies under any existing or hereafter arising Contract statute or rule of law.

Miscellaneous

. Secured Party’s acceptance of delinquent payments or failure of Secured Party to exercise any right shall not be a waiver

of any obligation of Debtor, including, but not limited to, the obligation of Debtor to pay interest on delinquent
payments, nor constitute a waiver of a similar default subsequently occurring.

Debtor waives any right it may have to direct application of any payment made by it to Secured Party. Secured Party
may, at its option offset and deduct any of the Liabilities of Debtor from any and all sums owed by Secured Party.

. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the law of the province of Alberta. Any provision of this

Agreement prohibited by law shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition without invalidating the remaining
provisions hereof.

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto:
provided, however, that Debtor shall not without the prior written consent of Secured Party, assign any right or delegate
any of its obligations under this Agreement to any third party.



This Cross Collateral Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in
separate counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken
together shall constitute one and the same agreement and the execution and delivery of counterparts of this Cross
Collateral by telecopier by any party shall be binding upon the parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of May 23, 2024.

S.R.

Name: Sean Rowan per Arundel Capital Corporation
Title: Vice President Operations

Debtor(s): CLEO Energy Corp.

Debtor(s) Signature(s):

E-SIGNED by Christopher Lewis
x 0n2024-05-28 18:51:17 GMT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Chairman




Lease No. 105387-24P

Lessee Details

Lessee(s) CLEO Energy Corp.

Address 200 - 117 8th Ave SW, Calgary, AB, T2P 1B4

Contact Ph: (403) 801-4155, Cl: (403) 801-4155, Email: clewis@cleoenergy.com

Equipment Details Serial Number

Equipment See attached schedule ‘A" attached to and forming part of this lease agreement.

Location 200 - 117 8th Ave SW, Calgary, AB, T2P 1B4

Arundel Capital Corporation

Payments

Start Date May 23, 2024 Initial Payment

24 payments of $3,991.33 (plus applicable taxes) beginning July 1, 2024
Payments

Options

ST ERNel e 8| $750.00 (plus applicable taxes) at the end of the Term’s 26th calendar month.

Early Purchase

Option N/A

Execution

B EEECRLEIEY  E-SIGNED by Sean Rowan

CECICUTUEINEEN () 2024-05-28 21:03:37 GMT
upon Lessor until

accepted as Lessor: Arundel Capital Corporation Date: May 23, 2024

follows:

The undersigned acknowledges having read the entire Lease Agreement and accepts the terms and conditions including those on page
2,3,4, and 5 hereof. Each of the undersigned affirms that they are duly authorized to execute this Lease Agreement on behalf of the
Lessee.

Date: May 23, 2024

E-SIGNED by Christopher Lewis
X on 2024-05-28 16:35:10 GMT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Chairman

Suite 201, 3007 14th Street SW, Calgary, AB, T2T 3V6 Ph: 403.287.9597 Fx: 403.287.9847



Pre-Authorized Payment Plan

1. You, the Lessee, hereby authorize Arundel Capital Corporation to draw payments from the bank account identified periodically under
the Pre-Authorized Debit (PAD) Agreement in payment of the lease payments and any other amounts due under this Lease
105387-24P. This authorization will remain in effect until the Lessee provides written notice to Lessor of its change or termination.

2. The Lessee may revoke their authorization at any time, subject to providing notice of 30 days. To obtain a sample cancellation form,
or for more information on the Lessee’s right to cancel a PAD Agreement, the Lessee may contact their financial institution or visit
www.cdnpay.ca.

This Lease Agreement/Pre-Authorized Debit Agreement is for Business use.

4. The Lessee has certain recourse rights if any debit does not comply with this agreement. For example, the Lessee has the right to
receive reimbursement for any debit that is not authorized or is not consistent with this PAD Agreement. To obtain more information
on the Lessee’s recourse rights, the Lessee may contact their financial institution or visit www.cdnpay.ca.

5. The Lessee must provide a void cheque or an account information form from their financial Institution.

Date: May 23, 2024

E-SIGNED by Christopher Lewis
x on 2024-05-28 16:35:15 GMT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Chairman

Acceptance & Authorization Certificate

1. The Equipment described in this Lease Agreement 105387-24P between Arundel Capital Corporation (Lessor) and the
undersigned (Lessee) has been unconditionally accepted by Lessee in its present condition and location.

2. Lessee certifies that it has made or caused to be made any tests and inspections of the Equipment as Lessee deemed
necessary to become satisfied with the Equipment condition.

3. Lessee further acknowledges that the supplier, manufacturer, and the Equipment were selected by the Lessee and is
satisfied with the specifications, operating performance, and suitability of the Equipment for the purpose of which the
Lessee intends to use it.

4. Lessee irrevocably authorizes the Lessor to pay for such Equipment and to commence the Lease Agreement on the date
of the Certificate May 23, 2024 (the Lease Commencement Date).

Date: May 23, 2024

E-SIGNED by Christopher Lewis
x on 2024-05-28 16:35:29 GMT

Name: Christopher John McRae Lewis
Title: Chairman

1. Lease: Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor, the Equipment described in the Lease Equipment Details, together with any parts, accessories, replacements,
additions and accessions, tangible or intangible, now and hereafter relating thereto or affixed thereon (collectively the “Equipment”) THIS LEASE AGREEMENT CANNOT BE CANCELLED OR
TERMINATED BY LESSEE.

2. Term: This Lease Agreement is for an original term (the “Term”) commencing on the Lease Commencement Date set out in the Acceptance/Agreement and Authorization Certificate ending at
the expiry of the number of complete calendar months indicated under the heading “Term” in the Lease Details.

3. Rentals: Lessee shall, without notice from or request by Lessor, pay to Lessor during the Term of this Lease Agreement the total number of rental payments set forth in the Lease Details. Such
rental payment shall be payable in advance to Lessor at the address indicated above (or other address notified by Lessor to Lessee) as follows: Initial rental payment upon Lessee’s execution hereof
and, commencing after the calendar period covered by such Initial rental payment subsequent rental payments throughout the Term on the first day of each rental period as indicated in the Lease
Details. RENTAL PAYMENTS AND ANY OTHER AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ARE PAYABLE WITHOUT SET-OFF, COMPENSATION OR ABATEMENT AND IN NO EVENT SHALL THE
FIRST RENTAL PAYMENT BE REFUNDED TO LESSEE.

4. Interest on Overdue Payments: Lessee shall without notice pay interest at the rate of Thirty percent (30%) per annum calculated and compounded monthly and not in advance, on: (A) any past
due rental payments (B) any amounts which bear interest according to this Lease and (C) any other amounts due to Lessor hereunder which are not paid on their due dates; in each case from the
date any such amount becomes due or interest bearing, before and after maturity, default and judgment, until such arrears or other amounts are paid in full.

5. Installation, Maintenance and Repair: Lessee shall, at its expense, be responsible for: (A) the delivery, installation, de-installation and redelivery of the Equipment and (B) the maintenance,
upkeep, care, servicing and repair (including necessary replacements of parts) (“Maintenance”) of the Equipment; in both cases by a party acceptable to Lessor. Lessee shall at its expense keep the
Equipment in good repair, condition and working arder. Lessee shall not without the prior written consent of Lessor make any alterations, additions or improvements to the Equipment. All such
alterations, additions or improvements shall be at Lessee’s expense and shall belong to, and become property of, Lessor immediately upon being made.

6. Use: Lessee shall use the Equipment in a careful and prudent manner and not for any unlawful purpose and shall at Lessee’s expense comply with and conform to the manufacturer’s
specifications and all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations (including laws, ordinances and regulations concerning environmental matters) relating to the possession, use or Maintenance of
the Equipment. Lessee shall only use the Equipment in connection with its business or in the carrying on of an enterprise and on